
           
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.01, THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD AN OPEN
MEETING IN THE SUPERVISORS’ HEARING ROOM, 1400 EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE
OR MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE
CALL OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV). ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC IS WELCOME
TO ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH IS HELD AT 610 E. HIGHWAY 260, BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS’ CONFERENCE ROOM, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 6, 2016 - 10:00
A.M.

R E V I S E D
 

             
1. CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF

ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION
 

 

2. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt
Resolution No. 16-09-04 to amend the 2003
Gila County Comprehensive Plan by changing
the land use designation from commercial to
mixed use for 8409 W. Fossil Creek Road,
Strawberry, Arizona, also known as parcel
number 301-08-140A.  (Bob Gould)

Adopted

 

B.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt
Ordinance No. 2016-02 amending the Zoning
Map for Unincorporated Areas of Gila County
for the rezoning of property at 8409 W. Fossil
Creek Road, Strawberry, Arizona, from
Commercial Two (C2) to Single Family
Residential (R1-D12) for the purpose of
allowing the minor land division of this parcel
and to facilitate the sale of one of the new
parcels.  (Bob Gould)

Adopted

 

C.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Adopted



C.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt
Ordinance No. 2016-01 amending the Zoning
Map for Unincorporated Areas of Gila County
for the rezoning of property located at 105 and
107 Mineral Lane, Globe, Arizona, from
Commercial Three (C3) to Single Family
Residential (R1-D12) for the purpose of
allowing the establishment of residential
development without a commercial use.  (Bob
Gould)

Adopted

 

D.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Order
No. LL-16-04, a liquor license application
submitted by Martha Ann Vuksanovich for a
new Series 10 Beer & Wine Store License with
an interim permit to operate at the Butcher
Hook Bait Shop located in Tonto Basin. 
(Marian Sheppard)

Adopted

 

3. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to authorize
the Treasurer's Office to abate the taxes,
interest and fees on 30 properties, and
authorize the Chairman's signature on each of
the related Certificates of Removal and
Abatement of Tax and Certificates of
Clearance.  (Debi Savage/Denise Cox)

Authorized

 

B.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve
Intergovernmental Agreement No. 080416
between Gila County (County) and the Gila
County Community College District
(Provisional) (College) for the County to provide
$250,000 in four quarterly payments of
$62,500 to the College for utility expenses and
repair and maintenance of the facilities and
real property at its Globe and Payson

Approved



campuses commencing July 1, 2016, and
ending June 30, 2017.  (Don McDaniel)

 

C.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve an
increase in the annual funding amount to the
University of Arizona Cooperative Extension
Program in Gila County from $60,000 to
$70,000, which the Board of Supervisors
determines will improve or enhance the
economic welfare of the inhabitants of Gila
County, and instruct staff to return to a
future Board meeting with the appropriate
Intergovernmental Agreement for Board
consideration.  (Don McDaniel)

Approved

 

D.   Information/Discussion/Action to agree
to provide an economic development grant of
$10,000 to the City of Globe for the
construction of a mining-themed playground
at the Old Dominion Historic Mine Park, and
instruct staff to return to a future Board
meeting with the appropriate
Intergovernmental Agreement for Board
consideration.  (Don McDaniel)

Approved

 

E.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve
an economic development grant to the Town of
Payson in an amount not to exceed $8,500
to begin phase I of the grading and
landscaping for the American Gulch Project,
which the Board of Supervisors determines
will improve or enhance the economic welfare
of the inhabitants of Gila County, and instruct
staff to return to a future Board meeting with
the appropriate Intergovernmental Agreement
for Board consideration.  (Don McDaniel)

Approved

 

F.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Adopted



F.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt
Resolution No. 16-09-01 to accept a Grant of
Easement from Monty and Clara Nichols, and
Mitch Holder; and, to accept and sign a Grant
of Easement with BHP Copper, Inc., and an
Access Easement Agreement with
Freeport-McMoRan Miami, Inc., all of which
pertain to roadway easements for portions of
Pinal Creek Road in the Globe area.  (Steve
Sanders)

Adopted

 

G.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt
Resolution No. 16-09-02 which authorizes the
execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement
(IGA/JPA 16-0005916-I) between Gila County
and the State of Arizona, Department of
Transportation, to replace the bridge on
Colcord Road over Gordon Canyon east of
Payson in Gila County.  (Steve Sanders)

Adopted

 

H.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt
Resolution No. 16-09-03 which authorizes the
execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement
(IGA/JPA 16-0005917-I) between Gila County
and the State of Arizona, Department of
Transportation, to construct a sidewalk along
Golden Hill Road in the Globe-Miami area of
Gila County.  (Steve Sanders)

Adopted

 

I.   Information/Discussion/Action to canvass the
election results contained in the Official
Canvass of the Primary Election held on
August 30, 2016, in Gila County, Arizona, and
declare the results official.   (Eric Mariscal)

Declared
Official

 

J.   Information/Discussion/Action to authorize Authorized



J.   Information/Discussion/Action to authorize
the advertisement of Request for Proposals No.
080316-Sub-Grantee for Public Health
Support Services such as physical activity
education, nutrition education classes, and
services that are mandated by a Registered
Dietician Nutritionist (RDN) and Physical
Activity Specialist.  (Michael O'Driscoll)

Authorized

 

K.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve
Master Lease Agreement No.
107446102-19308 between Dell Financial
Services, L.L.C. and Gila County in the
amount of $453,835.77 to purchase
replacement Dell server hardware and
associated VMWare software licensing at 0%
interest rate over a period of five years, from
September 6, 2016, through September 5,
2021.  (Kelly Riggs)

Approved

 

L.   (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County
Board of Supervisors and convene as the
Gila County Library District Board of
Directors.) Information/Discussion/Action to
approve Library Service Agreements for Globe,
Hayden, Isabelle Hunt (Pine), Miami, Payson,
San Carlos, Tonto Basin, and Young public
libraries for the period July 1, 2016, to June
30, 2017.  (Jacque Sanders)

Approved

 

M.   Information/Discussion/Action to authorize
the submission and subsequent acceptance of
a State Grants-In-Aid Application by the Gila
County Library District to the Arizona State
Library, Archives and Public Records, Library
Development Division, for fiscal year 2017 in
the amount of $23,000 designated to Gila
County for the period July 1, 2016, through
June 30, 2017.  (Jacque Sanders) (Motion to

Authorized



adjourn as the Gila County Library District
Board of Directors and reconvene as the
Gila County Board of Supervisors.)

 

N.   Information/Discussion/Action to consider
issuing official comments to the Tonto Basin
Ranger District, Tonto National Forest,
regarding the proposed Tonto Basin Green
Waste Disposal Site Project located near
the Tonto Basin community.  (Jacque
Sanders)

Approved

 

4. CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any
matter on the Consent Agenda will be
removed from the Consent Agenda and
discussed and voted upon as a regular
agenda item upon the request of any
member of the Board of Supervisors.)

 

 

A.   Approval of a FY2017 Drug, Gang and Crime
Control Grant Agreement (ACJC No.
DC-17-023) between Gila County and the
Arizona Criminal Justice Commission in the
amount of $59,495 for the period of July 1,
2016, to June 30, 2017.

Approved

 

B.   Approval to accept a Victim Compensation
Grant Agreement (ACJC Grant No. VC-17-052)
between Gila County and the Arizona Criminal
Justice Commission in the amount of $58,125
for the period of July 1, 2016, to June 30,
2017.

Approved

 

C.   Approval to accept Arizona Criminal Justice
Commission FY 2017 Crime Victim Assistance
Program Grant No. VA-17-020 in the amount
of $17,600 for the period of July 1, 2016, to
June 30, 2017.

Approved



 

D.   Approval of the appointment of Jerrilee
Antunes as Justice of the Peace Pro Tempore
of the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's
Office with the term expiring on December 31,
2016.

Approved

 

E.   Approval of Amendment No. 1 to an
Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No.
ADHS13-049248) between Gila County and
the Arizona Department of Health Services to
replace the price sheet in the contract, all of
which is to provide tuberculosis prevention
services for the period of July 1, 2013,
through June 30, 2018, in the annual amount
of $12,000.

Approved

 

F.   Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement
(Contract No. ADHS17-132851) between Gila
County Health and Emergency Management
and the Arizona Department of Health Services
for the Commodity Supplemental Foods
Program and the Senior Farmers' Market
Nutrition Program for the period of October 1,
2016, through September 30, 2021.

Approved

 

G.   Approval of Amendment No. 3 to an
Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No.
ADHS14-053062) between the Gila County
Health and Emergency Management Division
and the Arizona Department of Health Services
to extend the term of the agreement for the
period of October 1, 2016, through September
30, 2017.

Approved

 

H.   Approval of Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. Approved



H.   Approval of Amendment No. 2 to Contract No.
042314 with Jani-Serv, Inc. to extend the
contract term to provide janitorial services for
various County facilities in northern Gila
County for the period of August 18, 2016,
through August 17, 2017, at an annual cost of
$42,114.56.

Approved

 

I.   Approval of Amendment No. 2 to State of
Arizona Contract No. ADSPO13-054359 to
extend the contract term with Blackstone
Security Services, Inc., whereby the contractor
will provide armed security manpower for the
safety of the public and employees at the Gila
County Globe Courthouse in the amount of
$82,750 for the period of September 16, 2016,
through September 15, 2017.

Approved

 

J.   Approval of Amendment No. 8 to Professional
Services Contract No. 062813-Medical
Examiner Services between Gila County and
Mark A. Fischione, M.D., PLC to extend the
contract from July 7, 2016, to July 6, 2017, at
a not to exceed contract amount of $95,000.

Approved

 

K.   Approval of a Special Event Liquor License
application submitted by Gila County Fair,
Inc. to serve liquor at the Gila County Fair to
be held at the Gila County Fairgrounds on
September 22-25, 2016.

Approved

 

L.   Approval of an Application for Extension of
Premises/Patio Permit submitted by Randy D.
Nations to temporarily extend the premises
where liquor is permitted to be served at the
Sidewinders Tavern Grill, located in Pine, at
an event to be held on October 1, 2016.

Approved

 



M.   Adoption of an Order calling for an election to
reorganize the Rim Trail Domestic Water
Improvement District governing board
changing from three members to five members.

Adopted

 

N.   Acknowledgment of Kelley Paulin's resignation
from the Beaver Valley Fire District Board of
Directors and appoint Oscar "Gene" Jones to
fulfill Mrs. Paulin's unexpired term, effective
June 20, 2016, through December 31, 2018.

Acknowledged

 

O.   Acknowledgment of the July 2016 monthly
activity report submitted by the Globe
Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Acknowledged

 

P.   Acknowledgment of the July 2016 monthly
activity report submitted by the Payson
Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Acknowledged

 

Q.   Acknowledgment of the July 2016 monthly
activity report submitted by the Clerk of the
Superior Court's Office.

Acknowledged

 

R.   Approval of the August 2, 2016, and August
15, 2016, Board of Supervisors' meeting
minutes.

Approved

 

S.   Acknowledgment of the Human Resources
reports for the weeks of August 2, 2016,
August 9, 2016, August 16, 2016, August 23,
2016, and August 30, 2016.

Acknowledged

 

T.   Approval of finance
reports/demands/transfers for July 25-31,
2016; August 1-7, 2016; August 8-14, 2016;
August 15-21, 2016; and, August 22-28, 2016.

Approved

 



U.   Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000
which have been approved by the County
Manager for the weeks of July 11, 2016
through July 15, 2016; and July 18,
2016 through July 22, 2016.

Acknowledged

 

5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is
held for public benefit to allow individuals to
address the Board of Supervisors on any issue
within the jurisdiction of the Board of
Supervisors. Board members may not discuss
items that are not specifically identified on the
agenda. Therefore, pursuant to Arizona
Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the
conclusion of an open call to the public,
individual members of the Board of
Supervisors may respond to criticism made by
those who have addressed the Board, may ask
staff to review a matter or may ask that a
matter be put on a future agenda for further
discussion and decision at a future date.

No Comments

 

6. At any time during this meeting pursuant to
A.R.S. §38-431.02(K), members of the Board of
Supervisors and the County Manager may
present a brief summary of current events.  No
action may be taken on information presented.

Presented

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928)
425-3231 AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL
7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO
(928) 425-3231.
THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING
LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)((3)
THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE
MEETING



   

ARF-3938     Public Hearing      2. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  

Submitted For: Robert Gould, Temp. Planner Submitted By: Robert Gould, Temp. Planner
Department: Community Development Division: Planning and Zoning

Information
Request/Subject
Adoption of Resolution No. 16-09-04 amending the land use designation in the 2003 Gila County
Comprehensive Plan from commercial to mixed use for James Clinton for Parcel No. 301-08-140A
located at 8409 W. Fossil Creek Road, Strawberry, AZ.

Background Information
James Clinton submitted application CPA-16-02 to change the land use designation for his parcel to
mixed use so that he can complete a minor land division and create two parcels with a single family
residence on each property. Mr. Clinton is required to do this before he can rezone his property.  This
action will allow the transfer of his residential unit and make it easier to obtain necessary financing.

Evaluation
This area is predominantly developed as single family residential. All development around him is
currently single family residential with the exception of the adjoining parcel to the east which is owned
by Gila County.  This parcel is currently being used for residential mailboxes for the residents in
the area.  

Conclusion
A Commercial Two (C2) District designation is not appropriate for this area in that the use that could be
permitted would clash with residential uses. The adjoining parcels to the west are already designated for
mixed use.

Recommendation
Staff would recommend that the Board of Supervisors accept the recommendation from the Planning
and Zoning Commission to change the land use designation to mixed use for the subject parcel.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 16-09-04 to amend the 2003 Gila County
Comprehensive Plan by changing the land use designation from commercial to mixed use for 8409 W.
Fossil Creek Road, Strawberry, Arizona, also known as parcel number 301-08-140A.  (Bob Gould)

Attachments
Resolution No. 16-09-04
Assessor's Map
Staff Report
Public Hearing Notice-Change in Comp Plan-Clinton



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-09-04
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA 

COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING THE LAND USE DESIGNATION IN 

THE 2003 GILA COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN TO CHANGE 

FROM COMMERCIAL TO MIXED USE FOR 8409 WEST FOSSIL 

CREEK ROAD, STRAWBERRY, AZ. 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission held a public hearing on August 4, 2016, to 

consider application CPA-16-02, a request from James Clinton to amend the 2003 Gila County 

Comprehensive Plan by changing the land use designation from commercial to mixed use; and  

 

WHEREAS, this public hearing was duly posted and advertised as required by the Arizona 

Revised Statutes; and 

 

WHEREAS, James Clinton desires to split his parcel into two parcels with a single family 

residential unit on each parcel; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Gila County Zoning Ordinance does not allow a single family residential unit in 

commercial zoning without first establishing the commercial use;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors approves 

this resolution to amend the 2003 Gila County Comprehensive Plan and change the land use 

designation for 8409 W. Fossil Creek Road, parcel number 301-08-140A, from commercial to 

mixed use. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 6th
 
day of September 2016, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona. 

ATTEST: GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 
 

   

Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 

Approved as to form: 
 

 

 
 

 

Jefferson R. Dalton 
Deputy Gila County Attorney 

Civil Bureau Chief 





 

 

 

 
 

 

Application Z-16-02 and 
CPA-16-02 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board of Supervisors Hearing 
September 6, 2016 

1400 East Ash, Globe, Arizona 



I Application 
 

Applicant Name James and Mary Ann Clinton 
Applicant Address 8409 W. Fossil Creek Road, Strawberry, AZ 
Site Address 8409 W. Fossil Creek Road, Strawberry, AZ 
APN Number 301-08-140A 
Current Zoning Designation Commercial Two  with “T” Overlay 
Current Comprehensive Plan 
Designation 

Commercial 

Application Number Z-16-02 and CPA-16-02 
 

 
II Purpose & Description 
 

The applicant desires to accomplish two tasks with this application: 
 

1. They want to amend the Comprehensive Plan for Gila County by changing the planning 
district from Neighborhood Commercial  to Mixed  Use  

2. They want to change their current zoning from C2 to R1-D12 
 
III Primary Issue or Issues to Consider 
 

While this is currently one parcel it contains two separate single family residential units. The 
owners desire to complete a land division so that they can sell one of the units as a separate single 
family residence. Our Commercial District regulations do not allow this without establishing a 
commercial use. In commercial zoning the residence is considered a caretaker unit with the  
primary use of commercial being required. 
 
Single family residential in a commercial district is very difficult to finance when the property 
owner wants to sell the home. We see this situation quite frequently throughout the county. At the 
same time this area is not appropriate for the full range of potential developments permitted in a 
C2 zoning district.  
 
This parcel is surrounded by single family residential development. The adjoining lot is owned by 
the County and currently contains mail boxes for the surrounding residents. 
 

IV Analysis 
 

This parcel is currently affected by the FEMA floodway and floodplain. Current development on 
this parcel has abided by all flood regulations. 
 
The properties to the west on Fossil Creek Road are also zoned C2, but they are developed as 
single family residential.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



While it is difficult to see the aerial below shows this is a single family area. 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
V Summary 
 

As you drive through the Fossil Creek Road area it is obvious that C2 type commercial is not 
appropriate for this area. While small commercial such as barbers or sandwich shops that provide 
mainly to the surrounding residents is ok larger commercial wouldn’t work and probable would  



not occur anyway. Because of this staff does support this application and recommends that the 
Board of Supervisors accept the recommendation from the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 





   

ARF-3948     Public Hearing      2. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  

Submitted For: Robert Gould, Temp. Planner Submitted By: Robert Gould, Temp. Planner
Department: Community Development Division: Planning and Zoning

Information
Request/Subject
Adoption of Ordinance No. 2016-02 amending the Zoning Map for Unincorporated Areas of Gila County
to rezone parcel number 301-08-140A owned by James and Mary Ann Clinton from Commercial Two
(C2) to Single Family Residential (R1-D12).

Background Information
James and Mary Ann Clinton submitted an application (Z-16-02) to rezone their property known as
Assessor's parcel number 301-08-140A, which is located at 8409 W. Fossil Creek Road, Strawberry, AZ. 
The property currently contains two single family residential units. The Clintons intend to complete a
minor land division by dividing their parcel into two separate parcels when it has been rezoned.

Evaluation
This area along Fossil Creek Road has developed primarily as singly family residential.  The
Comprehensive Plan has designated this for commercial development.  When zoning is for commercial
and there is single family residential on the parcel, it becomes very difficult for the owners to sell their
property and have the purchaser obtain a mortgage loan.  The rezoning of this parcel to residential will
make it so much easier to obtain a mortgage loan.  C2 commercial development zoning allows for the
establishment of commercial development that is not appropriate for this area and it is very unlikely that
larger commercial will locate along Fossil Creek road anyway.

Conclusion
In order to make it easier for property owners to buy and sell property and also to preserve this area
against having unwanted commercial development, it would be helpful to rezone Assessor's parcel
number 301-08-140A from C2 to R1-D12.

Recommendation
Staff recommend the approval of Ordinance No. 2016-02 to rezone Assessor's parcel number
301-08-140A from C2 to R1-D12.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Ordinance No. 2016-02 amending the Zoning Map for
Unincorporated Areas of Gila County for the rezoning of property at 8409 W. Fossil Creek Road,
Strawberry, Arizona, from Commercial Two (C2) to Single Family Residential (R1-D12) for the purpose of
allowing the minor land division of this parcel and to facilitate the sale of one of the new parcels.  (Bob
Gould)

Attachments
Ordinance No. 2016-02
Assessor's Map
Staff Report
Public Hearing Notice-Amend Zoning Map-Reynoso and Clinton



Page 1 of 2 

 

Ordinance No. 2016-02  

 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2016-02 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MODIFYING 
THE ZONING MAP FOR UNINCORPORATED AREAS OF GILA COUNTY TO 
CHANGE THE ZONING OF ASSESSOR’S PARCEL NUMBER 301-08-140A FROM 
COMMERCIAL TWO (C2) DISTRICT WITH A “T” OVERLAY DISTRICT TO 
S I N G L E  F A M I L Y  R E S I D E N T I A L  ( R1-D12) DISTRICT TO ALLOW A 
LAND DIVISION TO CREATE TWO SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL LOTS. 

 

WHEREAS, an application was filed by James Clinton (applicant/owner), Gila County Planning 
and Zoning Case No. Z-16-02, to modify the Zoning Map for Unincorporated Areas of Gila 
County located at 8409 W. Fossil Creek Road, Strawberry, Arizona and identified as Assessor’s 
parcel number 301-08-140A; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors adopted the Gila County Planning and Zoning 
Ordinance on September 8, 1959; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing on August 4, 
2016, and unanimously recommended approval of the modification listed; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors held a public hearing on September 6, 2016; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors has determined that the findings for a zone change (as 
listed below) from the Gila County Planning and Zoning Ordinance Section 104.1-Zoning Map, 
have been met. 

 

1. The change is consistent with the goals, objectives and policies of the Gila County Planning 
and Zoning Ordinance and the Gila County Comprehensive Plan. 

 

2. The change is in the interest of or will further the public health, safety, comfort, 
convenience and welfare of Gila County residents. 

 

3. The change will not adversely affect the established character of the surrounding 
neighborhood nor be detrimental to adjacent properties. 



Page 2 of 2 

 

Ordinance No. 2016-02  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors has approved  
application Z-16-02 submitted by James Clinton to modify the Zoning Map for Unincorporated 
Areas of Gila County with regard to Assessor’s parcel number 301-08-140A located at 8409 W. 
Fossil Creek Road, Strawberry, Arizona whereby the zoning will be changed from C2 District  
with “T” (overlay) District  to allow for the division of this parcel into two single family residential 
lots with the following conditions: 

 

1. If this proposed land division is not completed within 24 months, the Board of Supervisors 
has the discretion to revert this zoning to C2 with a “T” overlay. 

 

2. A minor land division shall be submitted and approved by the Community Development 
Division Director. 

 

3. The applicant must meet all requirements for the placement of a septic system to protect 
groundwater supplies. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 6th day of September 2016, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona.  

ATTEST: GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

  
   

Marian Sheppard Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
Clerk of the Board 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 

 
   

Jefferson R. Dalton 
Deputy Gila County Attorney 
Civil Bureau Chief 





 

 

 

 
 

 

Application Z-16-02 and 
CPA-16-02 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board of Supervisors Hearing 
September 6, 2016 

1400 East Ash, Globe, Arizona 



I Application 
 

Applicant Name James and Mary Ann Clinton 
Applicant Address 8409 W. Fossil Creek Road, Strawberry, AZ 
Site Address 8409 W. Fossil Creek Road, Strawberry, AZ 
APN Number 301-08-140A 
Current Zoning Designation Commercial Two  with “T” Overlay 
Current Comprehensive Plan 
Designation 

Commercial 

Application Number Z-16-02 and CPA-16-02 
 

 
II Purpose & Description 
 

The applicant desires to accomplish two tasks with this application: 
 

1. They want to amend the Comprehensive Plan for Gila County by changing the planning 
district from Neighborhood Commercial  to Mixed  Use  

2. They want to change their current zoning from C2 to R1-D12 
 
III Primary Issue or Issues to Consider 
 

While this is currently one parcel it contains two separate single family residential units. The 
owners desire to complete a land division so that they can sell one of the units as a separate single 
family residence. Our Commercial District regulations do not allow this without establishing a 
commercial use. In commercial zoning the residence is considered a caretaker unit with the  
primary use of commercial being required. 
 
Single family residential in a commercial district is very difficult to finance when the property 
owner wants to sell the home. We see this situation quite frequently throughout the county. At the 
same time this area is not appropriate for the full range of potential developments permitted in a 
C2 zoning district.  
 
This parcel is surrounded by single family residential development. The adjoining lot is owned by 
the County and currently contains mail boxes for the surrounding residents. 
 

IV Analysis 
 

This parcel is currently affected by the FEMA floodway and floodplain. Current development on 
this parcel has abided by all flood regulations. 
 
The properties to the west on Fossil Creek Road are also zoned C2, but they are developed as 
single family residential.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



While it is difficult to see the aerial below shows this is a single family area. 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
V Summary 
 

As you drive through the Fossil Creek Road area it is obvious that C2 type commercial is not 
appropriate for this area. While small commercial such as barbers or sandwich shops that provide 
mainly to the surrounding residents is ok larger commercial wouldn’t work and probably would 



not occur anyway. Because of this staff does support this application and recommends that the 
Board of Supervisors accept the recommendation from the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 





   

ARF-3936     Public Hearing      2. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  

Submitted For: Robert Gould, Temp. Planner Submitted By: Robert Gould, Temp. Planner
Department: Community Development Division: Planning and Zoning

Information
Request/Subject
Adoption of Ordinance No. 2016-01 amending the Zoning Map for Unincorporated Areas of Gila County
to rezone parcel numbers 205-01-019N and 205-01-019P, owned by Gonzalo and Roberta Reynoso,
from Commercial Three (C3) Distict to Single Family Residential (R1-D12) District.

Background Information
Gonzalo and Roberta Reynoso submitted an application (Z-16-01) to rezone their property known as
Assessor's parcel numbers 205-01-019N and 205-01-019P which are located at 105 and 107 Mineral
Lane in Globe. This property was originally zoned C3 by a Planning and Zoning Commission initiative in
the 1980s. Parcel number 205-01-019P currently has a single family residence and parcel number
205-01-019N is vacant. The Reynosos intend to place a single family home on the vacant property.

Evaluation
Most of the development in this area is single family residential. Some time in the 1980s, the Board of
Supervisors rezoned the front 400 feet from single family residential to C3. This created many
multi-zoned properties along State Highway 188 within the Globe area. Approximately a year ago, the
Board of Supervisors authorized the rezoning of one of the properties along this stretch of highway to
single family residential due to the difficulty in financing single family residential in commercial zoning.

Conclusion
C3 zoning is not a bad zoning for this location. It has major highway frontage which makes it accessible
to everyone but more care should have been taken to avoid the multi-zoned properties and in creating
difficulties for some property owners. The Planning & Zoning Commission is interested in taking on this
task to amend the zoning for other properties if the property owners are conducive to this change in
zoning. It will be a major undertaking due to the fact that each property owner must be contacted and it
is expected that some property owners may not want to change their zoning.

Recommendation
Staff would recommend that the Board of Supervisors adopt Ordinance No. 2016-01 as submitted.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Ordinance No. 2016-01 amending the Zoning Map for
Unincorporated Areas of Gila County for the rezoning of property located at 105 and 107 Mineral Lane,
Globe, Arizona, from Commercial Three (C3) to Single Family Residential (R1-D12) for the purpose of
allowing the establishment of residential development without a commercial use.  (Bob Gould)

Attachments
Ordinance No. 2016-01
Staff Report
Assessor's Map Reynoso
Public Hearing Notice-Amend Zoning Map-Reynoso and Clinton



Ordinance No. 2016-01 Page 1 of 2 

 
  

 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2016-01 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS MODIFYING THE ZONING MAP FOR 

UNINCORPORATED AREAS OF GILA COUNTY TO CHANGE THE 

ZONING OF ASSESSOR’S PARCEL NUMBERS 205-01-019N AND 205-

01-019P FROM COMMERCIAL THREE (C3) DISTRICT TO 

RESIDENTIAL ONE (R1) DISTRICT WITH A D12 DENSITY DISTRICT 

TO ALLOW FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF A SINGLE FAMILY 

RESIDENTIAL HOUSING UNIT 

 

WHEREAS, an application was filed by Gonzolo and Roberta Reynoso (applicant/owner), Gila 

County Planning and Zoning Case No. Z-16-01, to modify the Zoning Map for Unincorporated 

Areas of Gila County located at 105 and 107 Mineral Lane, Globe and identified as Assessor’s 

parcel numbers 205-01-019N and 205-01-019P;  and 

 

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors adopted the Gila County Planning and 

Zoning Ordinance on September 8, 1959; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing on 

August 4, 2016, and unanimously recommended approval of the modification listed; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors held a public hearing on September 6, 2016; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors has determined that the findings for a zone change (as 

listed below) from the Gila County Planning and Zoning Ordinance Section 104.1-Zoning Map, 

have been met. 

 

1. The change is consistent with the goals, objectives and policies of the Gila County Planning 

and Zoning Ordinance. 

 

2. The change is in the interest of or will further the public health, safety, comfort, convenience 

and welfare of Gila County residents. 

 

3. The change will not adversely affect the established character of the surrounding 

neighborhood nor be detrimental to adjacent properties. 



Ordinance No. 2016-01 Page 2 of 2 

 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors has 

approved the application submitted by Gonzolo and Roberta Reynoso to modify the Zoning Map 

for Unincorporated Areas of Gila County with regard to Assessor’s parcel numbers 205-01-

019N and 205-01-019P, whereby the zoning will be changed from C3 District to R1-D12 

District to allow for the development of a single family residential housing unit. 

 

1. If this proposed project is not permitted within 24 months, the Board of Supervisors has the 

discretion to revert this zoning to C3. 

 

2. The applicant must meet all requirements for the placement of a septic system to protect 

groundwater supplies. 

 

3. The applicant must obtain all necessary building and public works permits.  

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 6
th

 day of September 2016, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona.  

 

 

ATTEST:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

    
Marian Sheppard Michael A. Pastor 

Clerk of the Board  Chairman 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

  
Jefferson R. Dalton 

Deputy Gila County Attorney 

Civil Bureau Chief 



1 

STAFF REPORT TO THE 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

APPLICATION Z-16-01 
APPLICATION TO REZONE 205-01-019N and 019P 
FROM C3 TO R1-D12 

Public Hearing September 6, 2016 @ 10:00 AM 
Supervisors Hearing Room 

1400 East Ash 
Globe, Arizona 



2 
 

 

 

I APPLICATION 

Applicant Name Roberta Reynoso 
Applicant Address PO Box 213, Globe, AZ 85502 
Site Address 105 & 107 Mineral Lane, Globe, AZ 
APN Number 205-01-019N and 019P  
Current Zoning 
Designation 

C3 

Current Comprehensive 
Plan Designation 

Community Commercial 

Application Number Z-16-01 
 
 
II Purpose & Description 
 

The purpose of this application is to allow the applicant to place a single family residential use on the parcel 
closest to State Highway 188. 

 
III Primary issue or issues to consider 
 

One of the Parcels to be rezoned has a single family residential unit while the other is vacant. Under our current 
zoning regulations you cannot put a single family residential unit on a commercially zoned parcel without having 
a commercial use there also. It is also very difficult to obtain financing for a single family home on a commercial 
zoned lot. 

 
IV Background 
 

In 1980 the Planning and Zoning Commission at the request of the Board of Supervisors initiated a process to 
rezone the front 400 feet of properties on the east side of State Highway 188 from residential zoning and CU 
zoning to C3 zoning. The Board of Supervisors felt that this was in the best interest of the community that this 
area be designated for commercial development. Much of the land that was rezoned already contained single 
family residential development on it. 

 
V Analysis 
  

There are two issues of critical importance involved here: 
 

1. The community needs to have adequate land available for business expansion to accommodate the 
needs of future growth. 

2. Property owners need to be able to sell and purchase homes and obtain the necessary mortgages to do 
this. 

 
In regards to the first issue these properties are located along a State Highway and are therefore very 
appropriate for commercial development due to the accessibility of these parcels. Using the highway frontage 
lots for commercial development keeps traffic out of residential areas. 
 



3 
 

In regards to the second issue property owners should be able to buy and sell their properties and the 
purchasers need to be able to obtain the necessary financing. Efforts need to be made to insure to the best 
extent possible compatibility of residential and commercial development. 
 
 

VI Summary 
 

Are we cutting ourselves short for commercial zoned property if we rezone these two parcels. I have not done 
an inventory of land available for commercial development but I can tell you that we have not had any demand 
for commercial properties from development in the past several years. I don’t believe we should do a blanket 
rezoning in this area because the Board of Supervisors were actually on the right track to zone this area for 
commercial uses. The problem is that it does create a problem for property owners who own homes in a 
commercial area. 
 
We have had several requests from property owners to rezone from commercial to residential for the purpose 
of conveying their property. Approving this application will place more development requirements on future 
commercial development such as adequate buffering between the commercial and residential uses.. 

 
VII Recommendation 
 

Staff recommendation is to accept the Commission recommendation to the Board of Supervisors  to approve 
application V16-01 to rezone 205-08-019N & 019P to R1-D12 zoning. Staff would also recommend that the 
Board initiate an initiative to amend the Comprehensive Plan the change the planning district from Community 
Commercial to Mixed use which will allow future proposals to rezone land to not require a Comp Plan 
amendment while at the same time allowing both single family and commercial development to co-exist.  

 
  
  
  
  

 
 







   

ARF-3933     Public Hearing      2. D.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  

Submitted For: Marian
Sheppard 

Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County Order No. LL-16-04-Liquor License Application

Background Information
Martha Ann Vuksanovich has submitted an application to the
Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control (DLLC) for a new Series 10
Beer & Wine Store License with an Interim Permit to operate in Tonto Basin. 
Part of the statutory process is once the DLLC accepts and processes the
license, it is sent to the local governing body in which city, town or county the
establishment is located.  Upon the local governing body's, which in Gila
County is the Board of Supervisors' (Board), review of the application, a
recommendation is then issued to the DLLC to either approve, deny or issue a
"no recommendation" decision.

Per statutory requirements, a notice of hearing by the Board was posted at the
establishment for a period of 20 days, specifically to inform any person residing,
owning, or leasing property within a one-mile radius of the establishment of
this application. To date, the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors has not received
any objections to this application.

Evaluation
This application has been forwarded to the Gila County Clerk of the Board of
Supervisors for submission to the Board.  An internal review has been
conducted by the Planning and Zoning Department, Health Department, and
Treasurer's Office.  The departments and elected office have submitted
paperwork stating that there are no issues with regard to their departmental
policies/procedures related to this application.

Conclusion
All of Gila County's requirements have been met with regard to this application;
no one has submitted a written objection to this application; therefore, a public
hearing should be held by the Board to entertain any comments from the public
relating to this application before the Board takes an action to issue a
recommendation to the DLLC.



Recommendation
The Clerk of the Board of Supervisors recommends that the Board issue an
approval recommendation to the DLLC.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Order No. LL-16-04, a liquor
license application submitted by Martha Ann Vuksanovich for a new Series 10
Beer & Wine Store License with an interim permit to operate at the Butcher
Hook Bait Shop located in Tonto Basin.  (Marian Sheppard)

Attachments
LL-16-04 Local Governing Body Recommendation
LL-16-04 Interoffice Memos and Affidavit of Posting
LL-16-04 Liquor License Application



































   
ARF-3921     Regular Agenda Item      3. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  
Submitted For: Debora Savage, Treasurer 
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board
Department: Treasurer's Office

Information
Request/Subject
6 - Certificates of Removal and Abatement of Tax
24 - Certificates of Clearance for Removal of Uncollectible Personal
Property

Background Information
The 24 Certificates of Clearance for uncollectible taxes are for mobile
homes that are no longer in Gila County and have been certified by the
Gila County Sheriff's Office as such. The 6 Certificates of Removal and
Abatement of Tax have been certified as uncollectible by the Gila County
Assessor; therefore, these delinquent taxes need to be abated and
removed from the tax rolls.

Evaluation

Arizona Revised Statute §42-18351:  Circumstances for abating tax and
removing tax lien

Arizona Revised Statute §42-18353:  Certificate of removal and
abatement; purging record of tax, penalty and interest

Arizona Revised Statute  §42-19118:  Clearing uncollectible tax

Each of the 30 properties has a detailed history and documentation as to
the reasons for the abatement which is attached to this agenda item.

Conclusion
It is in the best interest of Gila County to abate these taxes and remove
them from the tax rolls.

Recommendation
The Gila County Treasurer recommends that the Board of Supervisors



The Gila County Treasurer recommends that the Board of Supervisors
approve 6 Certificates of Removal and Abatement of Tax, and 24
Certificates of Clearance in accordance with Arizona Revised Statutes.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Treasurer's Office
to abate the taxes, interest and fees on 30 properties, and authorize the
Chairman's signature on each of the related Certificates of Removal and
Abatement of Tax and Certificates of Clearance.  (Debi Savage/Denise
Cox)

Attachments
6-Certificates of Removal and Abatement of Tax
24-Certificates of Clearance
A.R.S. 42-18351
A.R.S. 42-18353
A.R.S. 42-19118





















































































































   

ARF-3909     Regular Agenda Item      3. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  

Submitted By: Don McDaniel
Jr., County
Manager

Department: County Manager
Fiscal Year: 2016-2017 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2016 -
June 30, 2017

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Approve Intergovernmental Agreement No. 080416 between Gila County (County) and
Gila County Community College District (College) for Maintenance of College Facilities.

Background Information
On November 15, 2011, Gila County deeded all of its interest in the buildings and most
of the real property upon which Gila County Community College campuses are located
to the College's governing board.  Prior to that action, the County assumed the
responsibility for all maintenance, utilities and communication services at the Gila
Pueblo Campus, Occupational Center and Payson Campus.

The County and College jointly acknowledged that: (1) poor economic conditions had
led to a dramatic decrease in funding to the College and that (2) preservation of the
College’s presence within the County was of vital importance in workforce
development.  The County and the College wanted to avoid cuts in services and classes
by allowing the College to expend its limited resources in furtherance of educational
opportunities, vocational preparation for a changing job market, and small business
development and not on utilities and building maintenance.

On February 7, 2012, the Board of Supervisors approved an Intergovernmental
Agreement (IGA) in the amount of $135,000 for utilities, communication services and
maintenance of the facilities and real property of Gila County Community College for
the period November 16, 2011, through June 30, 2012.

On August 20, 2012, the Board of Supervisors approved an IGA in the amount of
$275,000 for utilities, communication services and maintenance of the facilities and
real property of Gila County Community College for the period of July 1, 2012, to June
30, 2013.

On September 3, 2013, the Board of Supervisors approved an IGA in the amount of
$250,000 for utilities, communication services and maintenance of the facilities and
real property of Gila County Community College for the period of July 1, 2013, to June



real property of Gila County Community College for the period of July 1, 2013, to June
30, 2014.

On October 28, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved an IGA in the amount of
$250,000 for utilities, communication services and maintenance of the facilities and
real property of Gila County Community College for the period of July 1, 2014, to June
30, 2015.

On June 23, 2015, the Board of Supervisors approved an IGA in the amount of
$250,000 for utilities, communication services, and maintenance of the facilities and
real property of Gila County Community College for the period of July 1, 2015 to June
30, 2016.

Evaluation
Economic conditions have not improved significantly since the original
understanding.  Because the College and the County have a mutual interest in
economic development, they desire to continue the previous relationship in an IGA in
order for the College to continue to focus on vocational education and retraining of
dislocated workers.

The College and the County have a long standing partnership which has existed solely
to provide educational and vocational opportunities for Gila County residents of all
ages.  Approval of this IGA will continue that relationship and will allow the College to
focus its efforts on preparing young people for a job market that has changed
markedly as a result of technology and retraining mature workers to reenter that job
market.

The County will provide $250,000 in quarterly payments of $62,500 for utilities,
communication services and maintenance of the facilities and real property of
Gila County Community College.  The College agrees to enhance its vocational training
curriculum to prepare County residents to enter the job market.

Conclusion
Approval of this IGA will allow the County to continue to partner with Gila County
Community College to promote economic development in Gila County.  The term of
this IGA is from July 1, 2016, to June 30, 2017.

Recommendation
Staff recommends approval of this IGA between the Gila County Community College
District and Gila County.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Intergovernmental Agreement No. 080416
between Gila County (County) and the Gila County Community College District
(Provisional) (College) for the County to provide $250,000 in four quarterly payments of
$62,500 to the College for utility expenses and repair and maintenance of the facilities
and real property at its Globe and Payson campuses commencing July 1, 2016, and
ending June 30, 2017.  (Don McDaniel)



Attachments
IGA No. 080416 GC Community College













   
ARF-3947     Regular Agenda Item      3. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  
Submitted For: Don McDaniel Jr., County Manager 
Submitted By: Don McDaniel Jr., County Manager
Department: County Manager

Information
Request/Subject
University of Arizona (U of A), Gila County Cooperative Extension Fiscal
Year (FY) 2016-2017 Funding Request

Background Information
Each year the Gila County Cooperative Extension Director presents the
Board of Supervisors with the U of A, Gila County Cooperative Extension
Office's Annual Report and a funding request for the upcoming fiscal year
to be considered during the County's regular budget process.  Richard
(Rick) Gibson, Regional Director, recently assumed responsibilities for the
Cooperative Extension programs in Gila and Pinal Counties and made the
June 7, 2016 Annual Report and request for funding to the Board of
Supervisors.

For a number of years the request has been for $60,000. This year the
request has increased by $40,000 for a total of $100,000. The justification
given for the increase is to help them maintain momentum in developing
in-school programs in their newly developing Family, Consumer, and
Health Sciences curriculum. The request letter (attached) explains
that continuation of the in-school program is threatened because Gila
County was awarded the SnapEd grant that the U of A had previously
received.

In 2015, the Arizona Department of Health Services (ADHS) notified all
SnapEd grant recipients (U of A Coop Ext) and county health directors
that the grant would be utilizing a research based approach to population
health and they would be requiring grant recipients to partner with local
health departments (Gila County Health Department).

Gila County Health Department staff met with the U of A Coop Ext. staff
to discuss the partnership under the new guidelines and were told on two
different occasions that the Coop Ext. was not interested in a partnership
and would continue to go it alone. County staff was a little confused since



and would continue to go it alone. County staff was a little confused since
the ADHS had made it clear that they were requiring partnerships with
county health departments.

Gila County subsequently received the SnapEd grant rather than the U of
A Coop Ext.  Staff assumes that services provided by the Coop Ext. with
those grant funds have been discontinued.

Evaluation
Gila County continues to value its partnership with the U of A Coop Ext.
and is very appreciative of the very important work they do for
our residents.  The existing $60,000 funding level provided by Gila
County has remained unchanged for many years without recognition of
the increase in the cost of providing the same services.  Increasing the
amount by $10,000 to $70,000 would appear appropriate in
consideration of several years of increases in the U.S. Consumer Price
Index.

However, an increase in their annual funding to provide services
previously paid for by grant funds, which are now provided by Gila
County, does not appear appropriate.

Conclusion
The Gila County FY 2016-2017 Adopted Budget contains sufficient funds
to increase the U of A Coop Ext annual grant by $10,000 to $70,000.  The
increase appears appropriate because the grant has not been increased
for a number of years despite acknowledged increases in the U.S.
Consumer Price Index.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors increase the annual
funding amount to the University of Arizona Cooperative Extension
Program in Gila County from $60,000 to $70,000 to offset increases in the
U. S. Consumer Price Index; and, further that the Board instruct staff to
return with an appropriate Intergovernmental Agreement at a
future Board of Supervisors meeting.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve an increase in the annual
funding amount to the University of Arizona Cooperative Extension
Program in Gila County from $60,000 to $70,000, which the Board of
Supervisors determines will improve or enhance the economic welfare of
the inhabitants of Gila County, and instruct staff to return to a
future Board meeting with the appropriate Intergovernmental Agreement



for Board consideration.  (Don McDaniel)

Attachments
U of A Coop Ext Funding Request 2016/2017
Annual Report/Budget Request





 
Gila County Cooperative Extension FY 16-17 

Payson 

Globe 
San Carlos 



Land Ownership

2%

1%

4%

38%
55%

USFS
Indian Reservation
Private
AZ State Land
BLM & NPS

Gila County Population: 53,597 

http://factfinder2.census.gov/faces/tableservices/jsf/pages/productview.xhtml?pid=DEC_10_PL_GCTPL2.ST13&prodType=table 

666 

2,924 

4,038 1,837 7,532 

15,301 

2,310 

2010 Census Data 

1.1%

0.5%
0.4%

14.2%

17.9%

65.9%

White
Hispanic
American Indian
Black
Asian
Other

Ethnicity1 

1http://factfinder2.census.gov/faces/tableservices/jsf/pages/pro
ductview.xhtml?src=bkmk 

Least Healthy of 15 AZ Counties2 

2http://www.countyhealthrankings.org/arizon
a/gila 



Since its earliest beginnings, Cooperative Extension has been 
helping people solve problems and improve lives with 
research and education. 



 
Gila County 4-H 



Master Gardening Farmer’s Market 

Range Monitoring Master Watershed 



Family Consumer Health Science 

Ag Awareness Days in Tonto Basin 

Food Demonstration in Payson 

Headstart Gardening in Peridot 



Gila County Funds FY 16-17 
Current 

Travel $31,500  

Operations $28,500  

TOTAL $60,000  

Proposed $60,000  

Salaries & ERE $40,000  

TOTAL: $100,000  



Questions? 



   
ARF-3665     Regular Agenda Item      3. D.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  
Submitted By: Marian

Sheppard, Clerk
of the Board

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Old Dominion Historic Mine Park Funding Request

Background Information
On January 18, 2011, the Board of Supervisors authorized the award of
an economic development grant in the amount of $65,000 to the City of
Globe (City) for the Old Dominion Historic Mine Park Project upon the
condition that an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) between the County
and the City would be presented to the Board for its approval.  The funds
were slated to be used to construct 2 large picnic pavilions, bathroom,
foot bridges, an extra ramada, and some covered benches.  The IGA would
outline the scope of work, anticipated costs, timelines, etc. for this
construction project.

On April 5, 2011, the Board of Supervisors approved an IGA to provide an
economic development grant to the City in the amount of $65,000 for the
Old Dominion Historic Mine Park Project.

On March 1, 2016, the Board of Supervisors received an update from
Thea Wilshire, Chairperson of the Old Dominion Historic Mine Park
Committee, on the recent activities and fund-raising efforts for the
completion of the Park.  The last and biggest phase of the Park is to build
a mining-themed playground.  Ms. Wilshire advised that the Committee
has raised a substantial amount of funds for this project; however, it is
anticipated that $110,000 must be raised to begin the project.  At that
time, Chairman Pastor suggested that the Board not make a decision to
contribute to this project until after the Gila County Final Budget was
adopted on July 26, 2016.  The Board unanimously voted to table any
action on this agenda item until after the Gila County Final Budget was
adopted for FY 2016-2017.

Evaluation



It would be beneficial to receive another update from Ms. Wilshire on the
amount of additional funds that have been raised by the Committee to
build the mining-themed playground, and for the Board to then decide if
the County would be able to provide an economic development grant to
the City of Globe to assist with this project.

While the FY2017 Final Budget does not contain line items for economic
development funding, there are sufficient funds to in the budget to
approve a $10,000 grant to the City of Globe for use in the continued
construction of the Old Dominion Historic Mine Park. 

Conclusion
It would be beneficial for the Board and the public to receive an update on
the recent activities related to the Old Dominion Historic Mine Park
Project, and to consider providing an economic development grant of
$10,000 to the City to assist with this project.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors agree to provide an
economic development grant of $10,000 to the City of Globe for the
continued development of the Old Dominion Historic Mine Park and
instruct staff to prepare an Intergovernmental Agreement with the City
and return it as soon as possible for Board of Supervisors action.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to agree to provide an economic
development grant of $10,000 to the City of Globe for the construction
of a mining-themed playground at the Old Dominion Historic Mine Park,
and instruct staff to return to a future Board meeting with the
appropriate Intergovernmental Agreement for Board consideration.  (Don
McDaniel)

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   

ARF-3942     Regular Agenda Item      3. E.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  

Submitted For: Don McDaniel Jr., County Manager 
Submitted By: Don McDaniel Jr., County Manager
Department: County Manager
Fiscal Year: 2016-2017 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

2016-2017 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
The Town of Payson (Town) requests an economic development grant to support the
activities of the Greater Payson Area Economic Development Strategic Plan.

Background Information
At its September 17, 2013 Regular Meeting, the Board of Supervisors approved an
economic development grant with the Town of Payson in the amount of $43,400 for
funding for sponsorship of a fiddlers contest, sponsorship of the Mountain High
Games, sponsorship of a soccer tournament, and funding for a northern Gila County
economic development publicity program, a regional web site/software, and a regional
economic development plan.

In May of 2016, the Town met individually with each member of the Board of
Supervisors to present and discuss the $16M Greater Payson Area Economic
Development Strategic Plan. A letter was submitted at that time which requested
consideration and funding for several initiatives (May 23, 2016, request letter
attached).

Evaluation
The County has limited funds in the adopted 2016/2017 Gila County Budget for
Community Agency and Economic Development projects.

The Town decided in 2009 to withdraw from the County sponsored Northern Gila
County Economic Development Corporation (NGCEDC) and establish its own Payson
Regional Economic Development Committee. The  NGCEDC has since discontinued
operation and no longer receives funding.

Each of the six (6) incorporated communities and many of the unincorporated
communities in northern and southern Gila County continue to seek ways to improve
upon the economic condition of their own areas by establishing economic development
activities. Gila County government is concerned about the economic well being of all of
its citizens throughout the County whether incorporated or unincorporated. This was



best demonstrated by the County funding both the Northern and Southern Gila
County Economic Development Corporations for several years.

Conclusion
It is important for Gila County to show fair and equitable support for economic
development activities throughout the County. While the County should and will
continue to provide economic development grants to cities and towns for specific
projects (fiddlers contest, mountain high games, park development, way finding
projects, etc.), a unified and coordinated approach to economic development planning
is required County-wide.

Gila County has proposed Vision 20/20-The Foundation for Retention and Expansion
of Commerce in Gila County. This vision establishes a structure of government
leadership, business leadership and administrative leadership from all areas of the
County. The new structure would allow for coordinated economic planning of the
entire County, while allowing for the differences of the individual communities.
Otherwise, County funding of economic development planning is not based upon a
plan, but rather based upon the arbitrary and random approval requests from those
who know to ask.

Until the County is successful in gaining support for this more comprehensive
approach, it is appropriate to continue to fund such projects as the request to begin
phase I of the grading and landscaping for the American Gulch Project for $8,500. The
American Gulch Project will provide road access in and through the American Gulch
with the probable positive impact of improving economic development opportunities on
the west side of Payson including unincorporated areas of Gila County.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve an economic development
grant to the Town in an amount not to exceed $8,500 to begin phase I of the grading
and landscaping for the American Gulch Project; and, further for staff to return at a
future meeting with the appropriate Intergovernmental Agreement for Board
consideration. 

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve an economic development grant to the
Town of Payson in an amount not to exceed $8,500 to begin phase I of the grading and
landscaping for the American Gulch Project, which the Board of Supervisors
determines will improve or enhance the economic welfare of the inhabitants of Gila
County, and instruct staff to return to a future Board meeting with the
appropriate Intergovernmental Agreement for Board consideration.  (Don McDaniel)

Attachments
Payson Request Letter 2016







   
ARF-3910     Regular Agenda Item      3. F.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Shannon Boyer, Executive Administrative Asst.
Department: Public Works

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution No. 16-09-01 accepting a grant of roadway easement for
portions of Pinal Creek Road in the Globe area.

Background Information
Pinal Creek Road begins at U.S. Hwy. 60 and traverses through several
private parcels of land ending at Bixby Road. Gila County maintains the
road once it leaves the Globe City limits. The County has easements over
portions of the road and has been attempting to acquire easements for the
entire road in the County. There are two easement requests currently
pending from property owners along the road. Approval of this resolution
will grant the County easements from the majority of property owners
along the roadway and accept roadway easements from Mitch Holder (Fee
No. 2015-010075) and Monty and Clara Nichols (Fee No. 2015-010262).

Evaluation
Pinal Creek Road provides access to a number of homes in the area. The
road can also be used as an emergency bypass in the event U.S. Hwy. 60
is closed between Cobre Valley Motors and the intersection of U.S. Hwy.
60 and State Route 188.

Conclusion
It is the best interest of the County to hold easements on Pinal Creek
Road.

Recommendation
The Gila County Public Works Director recommends the Board approve
and adopt Resolution No. 16-09-01.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 16-09-01 to



Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 16-09-01 to
accept a Grant of Easement from Monty and Clara Nichols, and Mitch
Holder; and, to accept and sign a Grant of Easement with BHP Copper,
Inc., and an Access Easement Agreement with Freeport-McMoRan Miami,
Inc., all of which pertain to roadway easements for portions of Pinal Creek
Road in the Globe area.  (Steve Sanders)

Attachments
Resolution No. 16-09-01
BHP Copper, Inc. Grant of Roadway Easement
Freeport McMoRan Miami Inc. Access Easement Agreement
Mitch Holder Grant of Roadway Easement
Monty and Clara Nichols Grant of Roadway Easement
Approval as to Form



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-09-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
ACCEPTING AN ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT FOR ROADWAY 
AND DRAINAGE PURPOSES FROM FREEPORT-MCMORAN MIAMI 
INC.; A GRANT OF EASEMENT FOR ROADWAY PURPOSES FROM BHP 
COPPER, INC.; A GRANT OF  EASEMENT FOR ROADWAY PURPOSES 
FROM MONTY P. AND CLARA L. NICHOLS AS SHOWN ON FEE NO. 
2015-010262, GILA COUNTY RECORDS; A GRANT OF EASEMENT FOR 
ROADWAY PURPOSES ON PORTIONS OF PINAL CREEK ROAD FROM 
MITCH HOLDER AS SHOWN ON FEE NO. 2015-010075, GILA COUNTY 
RECORDS; AND, AUTHORIZING ITS CHAIRMAN TO EXECUTE THE 
DOCUMENTS ON BEHALF OF GILA COUNTY.  
 

 
WHEREAS, Freeport-McMoRan Miami Inc. has agreed to grant Gila County a roadway and 
drainage easement; and, BHP Copper Inc., Monty P. and Clara L. Nichols, and Mitch Holder 
have agreed to grant Gila County a roadway easement, all for the purpose of a public roadway 
easement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors finds that the public interest will be served by the 
acceptance of the foregoing easements upon the terms and conditions set forth therein; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors hereby accepts the 
foregoing Access Easement Agreement from Freeport-McMoRan Miami Inc., and three 
separate Grant of Easement from BHP Copper Inc., Monty P. and Clara L. Nichols, and Mitch 
Holder upon the terms and conditions set forth therein, and authorizes its Chairman to execute the 
documents on behalf of Gila County. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 6th day of September 2016 at Globe, Gila County, Arizona. 
 
Attest: GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
_______________________________ ____________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
_______________________________ 
Jefferson R. Dalton 
Deputy Gila County Attorney 
Civil Bureau Chief 





































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   

ARF-3937     Regular Agenda Item      3. G.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  

Submitted For: Steve
Sanders,
Director 

Submitted By: Steve Sanders, Director

Department: Public Works
Fiscal Year: FY16/17 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

Sept. 2016 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

Yes Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution No. 16-09-02 to sign IGA/JPA 16-0005916-I with the Arizona Department
of Transportation (ADOT)

Background Information
Gila County has a USDA Easement from the Tonto National Forest for Colcord Road.
The easement has been in place since 1987. Gila County is responsible for
maintaining the road along with culverts, signs, bridges, box culverts, etc. associated
with the road.
The bridge over Gordon Canyon was built sometime in the 1930s. The bridge is a
single lane bridge about 19 feet wide.
ADOT has a bridge replacement program that provides money for local entities to
replace bridges. A 5.7% match is required from local agencies for funds acquired
through the bridge replacement program. Gila County has applied to ADOT for
$1,000,000 in bridge funds to replace the bridge on Colcord Road over Gordon
Canyon. The bridge meets the requirements of the bridge replacement program.
Gila County has also applied to Central Arizona Governments (CAG) for Surface
Transportation Program (STP) funds in the amount $400,160 for design and
construction of the bridge. Gila County has also offered to provide $90,000 in addition
to the required 5.7% match.
The total estimated cost to Gila County to replace the bridge on Colcord Road over
Gordon Canyon is $156,499. Those funds will come from the County’s ½ cent
transportation excise tax. The total cost of the project is estimated to be $1,556,659.

Evaluation
Without funding from ADOT and CAG Gila County could not replace this bridge. Over
time the bridge will continue to deteriorate until it becomes unsafe to use. A two lane
bridge built to current standards will provide access to residents and visitors to the
area.

Conclusion



It is the best interest of the County to replace the bridge on Colcord Road over Gordon
Canyon.

Recommendation
The Public Works Division Director recommends that the Gila County Board of
Supervisors adopt Resolution No. 16-09-02 approving IGA/JPA 16-0005916-I between
the State of Arizona, Department of Transportation, and Gila County.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 16-09-02 which authorizes the
execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA/JPA 16-0005916-I) between Gila
County and the State of Arizona, Department of Transportation, to replace the bridge
on Colcord Road over Gordon Canyon east of Payson in Gila County.  (Steve Sanders)

Attachments
IGA/JPA 16-0005916-I
Resolution 16-09-02
Approval as to Form



ADOT File No.: IGA/JPA 16-0005916-I 
AG Contract No.: P001 2016 002054 
Project Name: Colcord Rd BR11465 - 
.8M West of Chamberlin Trail 
Project Location: Colcord Rd BR11465 - 
.8M West of Chamberlin Trail       
Federal-aid No.: GGI-0(215)T 
ADOT Project No.: T0087 01D/03D/01C 
TIP/STIP No.: GIL17-01D & GIL20-01C 
Budget Source Item No.: N/A 

 
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
 

BETWEEN 
THE STATE OF ARIZONA 

AND 
GILA COUNTY 

 
THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this date ________________________________, 2016, pursuant to 
the Arizona Revised Statutes §§ 11-951 through 11-954, as amended, between the STATE OF 
ARIZONA, acting by and through its DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (the “State” or “ADOT”) and 
the GILA COUNTY, acting by and through its CHAIRMAN and BOARD OF SUPERVISORS (the 
“”County”). The State and the County  are collectively referred to as “Parties.” 
 
 
I. RECITALS 
 

1. The State is empowered by Arizona Revised Statutes § 28-401 to enter into this Agreement and 
has delegated to the undersigned the authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of the State. 

 
2. The County is empowered by Arizona Revised Statutes § 11-251 to enter into this Agreement 

and has by resolution, a copy of which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, resolved to 
enter into this Agreement and has authorized the undersigned to execute this Agreement on 
behalf of the County. 

 
3. The work proposed under this Agreement, hereinafter referred to as the “Project”, consists of 

design and construction of a bridge across Gordon Canyon on Colcord Rd, .8 miles west of 
Chamberlin Trail. The State will advertise, bid, award and administer the scoping, design and 
construction of the Project. The plans, estimates and specifications for the Project will be 
prepared and, as required, submitted to Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) for approval. 

 
4. The County, in order to obtain federal funds for the design and/or construction of the Project, is 

willing to provide County funds to match federal funds in the ratio required or as finally fixed and 
determined by the County and FHWA. The Federal funds expended on the project are not to 
exceed $1,400,160.00. The County is responsible for, and agrees to pay, any and all actual costs 
exceeding the $1,400,160.00 threshold. 

 
5. The interest of the State in this Project is the acquisition of federal funds for the use and benefit of 

the County and the authorization of such federal funds for the Project pursuant to federal law and 
regulations. The State shall be the designated agent for the County for the Project, if the Project 
is approved by FHWA and funds for the Project are available. The Project will be performed, 
completed, accepted and paid for in accordance with the requirements of the Project 
specifications and terms and conditions. 

 
6. The Parties will perform their responsibilities consistent with this Agreement; any change or 

modification to the Project will only occur with the mutual written consent of both Parties. 
 



 
 Page 2  IGA/JPA 16-0005916-I 
 
 

7. The federal funds will be used for the scoping/design and construction of the Project, including 
the construction engineering and administration cost (CE).  The estimated Project costs are as 
follows: 

 
T0087 03D (scoping/design): 
 
Federal-aid funds @ 94.3% (capped)  $   100,160.00        
 County’s match @ 5.7%  $      6,054.00    
  
Subtotal – Scoping/Design/PMDR*  $   106,214.00  
 
T0087 01C (construction): 
 
Federal-aid STP funds @ 94.3% (capped)  $   300,000.00     
County’s match @ 5.7%   $     18,134.00       
County’s contribution @ 100%   $     71,866.00 
Federal-aid Off-System Bridge funds @ 94.3% (capped)   $ 1,000,000.00 
County’s match @ 5.7%   $     60,445.00 
 
Subtotal – Construction**   $1,450,445.00               
 
Total Estimated County Funds    $   156,499.00             
Total Federal Funds    $1,400,160.00           
 
Estimated TOTAL Project Cost                         $1,556,659.00           
   
 * (Includes ADOT Project Management & Design Review (PMDR) Costs) 
** (Includes 15% CE (this percentage is subject to change, any change will require concurrence 

from the County) and 5% Project contingencies) 
 
8. The Parties acknowledge that the final Project costs may exceed the initial estimate(s) shown 

above, and in such case, the Federal Off-System Bridge funds expended on the project are not to 
exceed $1,000,000.00. Any budget increasing scope change proposed by the County must first 
be approved by the State or it will not be eligible for Federal funds. The County is responsible for, 
and agrees to pay, any and all actual costs exceeding the $1,000,000.00 Federal Off-System 
Bridge funds and the $400,160.00 Federal Surface Transportation Program funds threshold. If the 
final bid amount is less than the initial estimate, the difference between the final bid amount and 
the initial estimate will be de-obligated or otherwise released from the Project. The County 
acknowledges it remains responsible for, and agrees to pay according to the terms of this 
Agreement, any and all actual costs exceeding the final bid amount if the final bid amount 
exceeds the sum of $1,400,160.00 between the two federal funding sources. 

 
THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual Agreements expressed herein, it is agreed as follows: 
 
 
II. SCOPE OF WORK 
 
 1. The State will: 

 
a. Execute this Agreement, and if the Project is approved by FHWA and funds for the Project 

are available, be the County's designated agent for the Project. 
 
b. Execute this Agreement, and prior to performing or authorizing any work, invoice the  County 

for the County's share of the Project design costs, estimated at $6,054.00.  If actual PMDR 
costs exceed the estimate during the development of design, notify the County and obtain 



 
 Page 3  IGA/JPA 16-0005916-I 
 
 

concurrence prior to continuing with the development of design. Once the Project costs have 
been finalized, the State will either invoice or reimburse the County for the difference 
between estimated and actual costs. 
 

c. After receipt of the County's estimated share of the Project design costs, on behalf of the 
County, prepare and provide all documents pertaining to the design and post-design of the 
Project, incorporating comments from the County, as appropriate; and review and approve 
documents required by FHWA to qualify the Project for and to receive federal funds.  Such 
work may consist of, but is not specifically limited to, preparation of environmental 
documents; analysis and documentation of environmental categorical exclusion 
determinations; geologic materials testing and analysis; right-of-way related activities; 
preparation of reports, design plans, maps, specifications and cost estimates and such other 
related tasks essential to the achievement of the objectives of this Agreement. 

 
d. Submit all required documentation pertaining to the Project to FHWA with the 

recommendation that the maximum federal funds programmed for this Project be approved 
for scoping/design.  With FHWA authorization, proceed to advertise for and enter into 
contract(s) with the consultant(s) for the design and post design of the Project. Should costs 
exceed the maximum federal funds available it is understood and agreed that the County will 
be responsible for any overage. 

 
e. After completion of design and prior to bid advertisement, invoice the County for the County’s 

share of the Project construction costs, estimated at $150,445.00.  Once the Project costs 
have been finalized, the State will either invoice or reimburse the County for the difference 
between estimated and actual costs; de-obligate or otherwise release any remaining federal 
funds from the scoping/design phase of the Project. 

 
f. After receipt of the County’s estimated share of the Project construction costs, submit all 

required documentation to FHWA with the recommendation that the maximum federal funds 
programmed for construction of this Project be approved.  Should costs exceed the maximum 
federal funds available, it is understood and agreed that the County will be responsible for 
any overage. 

 
g. With FHWA authorization, proceed to administer construction, advertise for, receive and open 

bids, award and enter into a contract with the firm for the construction of the Project.  If the 
bid amounts exceed the construction cost estimate, obtain County concurrence prior to 
awarding the contract.  Once awarded, invoice the County for the difference between 
estimated and actual costs, if applicable. 

 
h. Be granted, without cost requirements, the right to enter  County right-of-way as required to 

conduct any and all construction and pre-construction related activities for said Project, 
including without limitation, temporary construction easements or temporary rights of entry on 
to and over said rights-of-way of the County. 

 
i. Not be obligated to maintain the Project, should the  County fail to budget or provide for 

proper and perpetual maintenance as set forth in this Agreement. 
 

 
2. The County will: 
 

a. Designate the State as the  County's authorized agent for the Project. 
 
b. Within 30 days of receipt of an invoice from the State, pay the County's  Project design costs, 

estimated at $6,054.00.  If, during the development of design, additional funding to cover 
PMDR costs is required, pay the invoiced amount to the State within 30 days of receipt. Be 



 
 Page 4  IGA/JPA 16-0005916-I 
 
 

responsible for any difference between the estimated and actual PMDR and design costs of 
the Project. 

 
c. Review design plans, specifications, cost estimates and other such documents required for 

the construction bidding and construction of the Project, including scoping/design plans and 
documents required by FHWA to qualify projects for and to receive federal funds; provide 
design review comments to the State as appropriate.   

 
d. After completion of design, within 30 days of receipt of an invoice from the State and prior to 

bid advertisement, pay to the State, the  County's Project construction costs, estimated at 
$150,445.00.  Once the Project costs have been finalized, the State will either invoice or 
reimburse the County for the difference between estimated and actual costs. 

 
e. Be responsible for all costs incurred in performing and accomplishing the work as set forth 

under this Agreement, that are not covered by federal funding. Should costs be deemed 
ineligible or exceed the maximum federal funds available, it is understood and agreed that 
the County is responsible for these costs; payment for these costs shall be made within 30 
days of receipt of an invoice from the State. 

 
f. Certify that all necessary rights-of-way have been or will be acquired prior to advertisement 

for bid and that all obstructions or unauthorized encroachments of any nature, either above or 
below the surface of the Project area, shall be removed from the proposed right-of-way or will 
be removed prior to the start of construction, in accordance with The Uniform Relocation 
Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 as amended; 49 CFR 24.102 
Basic Acquisition Policies; 49 CFR 24.4 Assurances, Monitoring and Corrective Action, parts 
(a) & (b) and ADOT ROW Manual: 8.02 Responsibilities, 8.03 Prime Functions, 9.06 
Monitoring Process and 9.07 Certification of Compliance. Coordinate with the appropriate 
State’s Right-of-Way personnel during any right-of-way process performed by the County, if 
applicable. 

 
g. Not permit or allow any encroachments on or private use of the right-of-way, except those 

authorized by permit. In the event of any unauthorized encroachment or improper use, the  
County shall take all necessary steps to remove or prevent any such encroachment or use. 

 
h. Grant the State, its agents and/or contractors, without cost, the right to enter  County rights-

of-way, as required, to conduct any and all construction and preconstruction related activities, 
including without limitation, temporary construction easements or temporary rights of entry to 
accomplish among other things, soil and foundation investigations.   

 
i. Be obligated to incur any expenditure should unforeseen conditions or circumstances 

increase Project costs. Be responsible for the cost of any  County requested changes to the 
scope of work of the Project, such changes will require State and FHWA approval.  Be 
responsible for any contractor claims for additional compensation caused by Project delay 
attributable to the  County. Payment for these costs will be made to the State within 30 days 
of receipt of an invoice from the State. 

 
j. Upon notification of Project completion, agree to accept, maintain and assume full 

responsibility of the Project and all Project components in writing.  
 

 
III. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 

1. The terms, conditions and provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect until 
completion of the Project and all related deposits and/or reimbursements are made.  Any 
provisions for maintenance shall be perpetual, unless assumed by another competent entity. This 



 
 Page 5  IGA/JPA 16-0005916-I 
 
 

Agreement may be cancelled at any time prior to the award of the Project contract and after 30 
days written notice to the other Party. It is understood and agreed that, in the event the County 
terminates this Agreement, the County will be responsible for all costs incurred by the State up to 
the time of termination.  It is further understood and agreed that in the event the County 
terminates this Agreement, the State shall in no way be obligated to complete or maintain the 
Project.  Upon termination of this agreement, each Party shall retain its respective property and 
property belonging to one which was furnished to the other shall be returned to the furnishing 
party. 
 

2. The County shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the State, any of its departments, 
agencies, officers or employees (collectively referred to in this paragraph as the “State”) from any 
and all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, loss, cost and damages of every kind and 
description, including reasonable attorneys' fees and/or litigation expenses (collectively referred 
to in this paragraph as the “Claims”), which may be brought or made against or incurred by the 
State on account of loss of or damage to any property or for injuries to or death of any person, to 
the extent caused by, arising out of, or contributed to, by reasons of any alleged act, omission, 
professional error, fault, mistake, or negligence of the County, its employees, officers, directors, 
agents, representatives, or contractors, their employees, agents, or representatives in connection 
with or incident to the performance of this Agreement. The County’s obligations under this 
paragraph shall not extend to any Claims to the extent caused by the negligence of the State, 
except the obligation does apply to any negligence of the County which may be legally imputed to 
the State by virtue of the State’s ownership or possession of land.  The County’s obligations 
under this paragraph shall survive the termination of this Agreement.   
 

3. The State shall include Section 107.13 of the 2008 version of the Arizona Department of 
Transportation Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction, incorporated to this 
Agreement by reference, in the State’s contract with any and all contractors, of which the County
shall be specifically named as a third-party beneficiary.  This provision may not be amended 
without the approval of the County. 
 

4. The cost of scoping, design, construction and construction engineering work under this 
Agreement is to be covered by the federal funds set aside for this Project, up to the maximum 
available.   The County acknowledges that the actual costs may exceed the maximum available 
amount of federal funds, or that certain costs may not be accepted by the federal government as 
eligible for federal funds.  Therefore, the  County agrees to pay the difference between actual 
Project costs and the federal funds received. 
 

5. Each party is responsible to provide financing and establish and maintain a budget for its 
respective obligations under this agreement. 
 

6. Should the federal funding related to this Project be terminated or reduced by the federal 
government, or Congress rescinds, fails to renew, or otherwise reduces apportionments or 
obligation authority, the State shall in no way be obligated for funding or liable for any past, 
current or future expenses under this Agreement. 

 
7. The cost of the project under this Agreement includes indirect costs approved by FHWA, as 

applicable. 
 
8. The Parties warrant compliance with the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 

2006 and associated 2008 Amendments (the “Act”).  Additionally, in a timely manner, the County 
will provide information that is requested by the State to enable the State to comply with the 
requirements of the Act, as may be applicable. 

 
9. The County acknowledges compliance with federal laws and regulations and may be subject to 

the Office of Management and Budget (OMB), Single Audit, Circular A-133 (Audits of States, 



 
 Page 6  IGA/JPA 16-0005916-I 
 
 

Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations).  Entities that expend $500,000.00 or more 
(prior to 12/26/14) and $750,000.00 or more (on or after 12/26/14) of federal assistance (federal 
funds, federal grants, or federal awards) are required to comply by having an independent audit. 
Either an electronic or hardcopy of the Single Audit is to be sent to Arizona Department of 
Transportation Financial Management Services within the required deadline of nine months of the 
sub recipient fiscal year end.   

ADOT – FMS 
Attn: Cost Accounting Administrator 
206 S 17th Ave. Mail Drop 204B 
Phoenix, AZ 85007 
SingleAudit@azdot.gov                        

 
10. This Agreement shall become effective upon signing and dating of the Determination Letter by 

the State’s Attorney General. 
 
11. This Agreement may be cancelled in accordance with Arizona Revised Statutes § 38-511. 
 
12. To the extent applicable under law, the provisions set forth in Arizona Revised Statutes §§ 35-214 

and 35-215 shall apply to this Agreement. 
 
13. This Agreement is subject to all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act 

(Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213) and all applicable federal regulations under the 
Act, including 28 CFR Parts 35 and 36. The parties to this Agreement shall comply with Executive 
Order Number 2009-09 issued by the Governor of the State of Arizona and incorporated herein 
by reference regarding “Non-Discrimination”. 

 
14. Non-Availability of Funds: Every obligation of the State under this Agreement is conditioned upon 

the availability of funds appropriated or allocated for the fulfillment of such obligations. If funds are 
not allocated and available for the continuance of this Agreement, this Agreement may be 
terminated by the State at the end of the period for which the funds are available. No liability shall 
accrue to the State in the event this provision is exercised, and the State shall not be obligated or 
liable for any future payments as a result of termination under this paragraph. 

 
15. In the event of any controversy, which may arise out of this Agreement, the Parties hereto agree 

to abide by required arbitration as is set forth for public works contracts in Arizona Revised 
Statutes § 12-1518. 

 
16. The Parties shall comply with the applicable requirements of Arizona Revised Statutes § 41-4401. 

That each contractor and subcontractor warrants their compliance with all federal immigration 
laws and regulations that relate to their employees and their compliance with section 23-214, 
subsection A. 2. That a breach of a warranty under paragraph 1 shall be deemed a material 
breach of the contract that is subject to penalties up to and including termination of the contract.  
That the government entity retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any contractor or 
subcontractor employee who works on the contract to ensure that the contractor or subcontractor 
is complying with the warrant under paragraph 1. 

 
17. The Parties hereto shall comply with all applicable laws, rules, regulations and ordinances, as 

may be amended. 
 
18. All notices or demands upon any Party to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be delivered 

in person or sent by mail, addressed as follows: 
 

For Agreement Administration: 
Arizona Department of Transportation 
Joint Project Administration 

 
Gila County  
Attn: Steve Sanders 

mailto:SingleAudit@azdot.gov


 
 Page 7  IGA/JPA 16-0005916-I 
 
 

205 S. 17th Avenue, Mail Drop 637E 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 
(602) 712-7124 
(602) 712-3132 Fax 
 
For Project Administration: 
Arizona Department of Transportation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
For Financial Administration:  
Arizona Department of Transportation 
Joint Project Administration 
205 S. 17th Avenue, Mail Drop 637E 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 
(602) 712-7124 
(602) 712-3132 Fax 

745 N Rose Mofford Way 
Globe, AZ  85501 
(928) 402-8521 
(928) 402-8104 Fax 
 
 
Gila County  
Attn: Steve Sanders 
745 N Rose Mofford Way 
Globe, AZ  85501 
(928) 402-8521 
(928) 402-8104 Fax 
 
 
Gila County  
Attn: Finance Department 
745 N Rose Mofford Way 
Globe, AZ  85501 
(928) 402-8521 
(928) 402-8104 Fax 

 
19. In accordance with Arizona Revised Statutes § 11-952 (D) attached hereto and incorporated 

herein is the written determination of each Party’s legal counsel that the Parties are authorized 
under the laws of this State to enter into this Agreement and that the Agreement is in proper form. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement the day and year first above written. 
 
GILA COUNTY 
 
 
 
By ______________________________ 
        MICHAEL A. PASTOR, Chairman 
        Board of Supervisors 
         

STATE OF ARIZONA 
Department of Transportation 
 
 
By ______________________________ 
       STEVE BOSCHEN, P.E. 
       IDO Assistant Director 
 

  
ATTEST: 
 
 
By ______________________________ 
        MARIAN SHEPPARD, Clerk 
        Board of Supervisors 

 



IGA/JPA 16-0005916-I 

 
ATTORNEY APPROVAL FORM FOR GILA COUNTY 

 

 I have reviewed the above referenced Intergovernmental Agreement between the State of 

Arizona, acting by and through its DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, and GILA COUNTY an 

agreement among public agencies which, has been reviewed pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes §§ 

11-951 through 11-954 and declare this Agreement to be in proper form and within the powers and 

authority granted to the County under the laws of the State of Arizona. 

 

 No opinion is expressed as to the authority of the State to enter into this Agreement. 

 

  DATED this __________________ day of __________________, 2016. 

 

           

   _____________________________________________________ 

Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy County Attorney/Civil Bureau Chief 

 



 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-09-02 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA/JPA 16-0005916-I,) 
BETWEEN GILA COUNTY AND THE STATE OF ARIZONA, 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, FOR THE DESIGN AND 
CONSTRUCTION OF A BRIDGE ON COLCORD ROAD OVER 
GORDON CANYON EAST OF THE PAYSON AREA OF GILA COUNTY 
 

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors is desirous of undertaking the design and 
construction of a bridge on Colcord Road over Gordon Canyon east of the Payson area of Gila 
County; and 
 
WHEREAS, an Intergovernmental Agreement requires a resolution of Gila County to authorize 
execution of the agreement. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors 
authorizes the execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA/JPA 16-0005916-I) between 
Gila County and the State of Arizona, Department of Transportation, for the design and 
construction of a bridge on Colcord Road over Gordon Canyon east of the Payson area of Gila 
County. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 6th day of September 2016 at Globe, Gila County, Arizona. 
 

 
Attest:  GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
______________________________ __________________________________  
Marian Sheppard, Clerk  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Jefferson R. Dalton 
Deputy Gila County Attorney 
Civil Bureau Chief 



 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-3939     Regular Agenda Item      3. H.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  

Submitted For: Steve
Sanders,
Director 

Submitted By: Steve Sanders, Director

Department: Public Works
Fiscal Year: FY16/17 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

Sept. 2016 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

Yes Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution No. 16-09-03 to sign IGA/JPA 16-0005917-I with the Arizona Department
of Transportation (ADOT).

Background Information
Gila County and the City of Globe have received funds from Central Arizona
Governments (CAG) for a sidewalk along Main Street. The sidewalk will begin at the
intersection of U.S. 60 and Main Street and terminate at the Main Street /Golden Hill
Road intersection. Construction is expected to begin early next year.
This Intergovernmental Agreement with ADOT is for the next phase of the project. The
sidewalk will begin at the intersection of U.S. 60 and Russell Road and continue along
Russell Road to Golden Hill and then along Golden Hill until it meets the Main Street
Sidewalk.
Gila County applied to Central Arizona Governments (CAG) for Surface Transportation
Program (STP) funds in the amount $350,000 for the design and construction of the
sidewalk. Gila County has also offered to provide $50,000 in addition to the required
5.7% match.

Evaluation
Without funding from ADOT and CAG, Gila County could not construct the sidewalk.
Golden Hill and Russell Road have a significant amount of daily traffic.  A sidewalk will
provide the residents a safe place to walk without having to walk in the roadway.

Conclusion
It is the best interest of the County to construct a sidewalk along Golden Hill Road.

Recommendation
The Public Works Division Director recommends that the Gila County Board of
Supervisors adopt Resolution No. 16-09-03 which authorizes IGA/JPA 16-0005917-I
between the State of Arizona, Department of Transportation, and Gila County.



Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 16-09-03 which authorizes the
execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA/JPA 16-0005917-I) between Gila
County and the State of Arizona, Department of Transportation, to construct a
sidewalk along Golden Hill Road in the Globe-Miami area of Gila County.  (Steve
Sanders)

Attachments
IGA/JPA 16-0005917-I
Resolution No. 16-09-03
Approval as to Form



ADOT File No.: IGA/JPA 16-0005917-I 
AG Contract No.: P001 2016 001968 
Project Name: Golden Hill Rd - Russell 
Rd to Main St. 
Project Location: Golden Hill Rd - 
Russell Rd to Main St.    
Federal-aid No.: GGI-0(216)T 
ADOT Project No.: T0090 01D/03D/01C 
TIP/STIP No.: GIL18-01D & GIL22-01C 
Budget Source Item No.: N/A 

 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
 

BETWEEN 
THE STATE OF ARIZONA 

AND 
GILA COUNTY 

 
THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this date ________________________________, 2016, pursuant to 
the Arizona Revised Statutes §§ 11-951 through 11-954, as amended, between the STATE OF 
ARIZONA, acting by and through its DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (the “State” or “ADOT”) and 
the GILA COUNTY, acting by and through its CHAIRMAN and BOARD OF SUPERVISORS (the 
“County”). The State and the County  are collectively referred to as “Parties.” 
 
I. RECITALS 
 

1. The State is empowered by Arizona Revised Statutes § 28-401 to enter into this Agreement and 
has delegated to the undersigned the authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of the State. 
 

2. The County is empowered by Arizona Revised Statutes § 11-251 to enter into this Agreement 
and has by resolution, a copy of which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, resolved to 
enter into this Agreement and has authorized the undersigned to execute this Agreement on 
behalf of the County. 
 

3. The improvements proposed in this Agreement, include the design and construction of sidewalks 
on Golden Hilll Road from Russell Road to Main Street, (the “Project”).   The Project will tie into 
the Main Street Sidewalk Project.  The State will administer the design and advertise, bid and 
award the construction phase of the Project. 

 
4. The County, in order to obtain federal funds for the design and/or construction of the Project, is 

willing to provide County funds to match federal funds in the ratio required or as finally fixed and 
determined by the County and FHWA. 

 
5. The interest of the State in this Project is the acquisition of federal funds for the use and benefit of 

the County and the authorization of such federal funds for the Project pursuant to federal law and 
regulations.  The State will be the designated agent for the County for the Project, if the Project is 
approved by FHWA and funding for the Project is available. The Project will be performed, 
completed, accepted and paid for in accordance with the requirements of the Project 
specifications and terms and conditions. 
 

6. The Parties shall perform their responsibilities consistent with this Agreement; any change or 
modification to the Project will only occur with the mutual written consent of both Parties. 



Page 2  JPA/IGA 16-0005917 
 
 

7. The federal funds will be used for the scoping/design and construction of the Project, including 
the construction engineering and administration cost (CE).   The estimated Project costs are as 
follows:  

 
T0090 01D (ADOT Project Management & Design Review (PMDR) Cost, non-federal-aid): 
 
PMDR costs* $ 30,000.00     

 
T0090 03D (scoping/design): 
 
Federal-aid funds @ 94.3% (capped)  $ 125,000.00        
 County’s match @ 5.7%  $     7,556.00    
  
Subtotal – Scoping/Design/PMDR  $ 162,556.00  
 
T0090 01C (construction): 
 
Federal-aid funds @ 94.3% (capped)  $ 225,000.00     
County’s match @ 5.7%   $   13,600.00       
County’s contribution @ 100%   $   26,400.00 
 
Subtotal – Construction**   $ 265,000.00               
 
Total Estimated County Funds    $   77,556.00             
Total Federal Funds    $ 350,000.00           
 
Estimated TOTAL Project Cost   $ 427,556.00 
 
 * (Included in the County Estimated Funds) 
** (Includes 15% CE (this percentage is subject to change, any change will require concurrence 

from the County) and 5% Project contingencies) 
 

8. The Parties acknowledge that the final Project amount may exceed the initial estimate(s) shown 
above, and in such case, the County is responsible for, and agrees to pay, any and all actual 
costs exceeding the initial estimate. If the final bid amount is less than the initial estimate, the 
difference between the final bid amount and the initial estimate will be de-obligated or otherwise 
released from the Project. The County acknowledges it remains responsible for, and agrees to 
pay according to the terms of this Agreement, any and all actual costs exceeding the final bid 
amount. 
 

THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual Agreements expressed herein, it is agreed as follows: 

II. SCOPE OF WORK 
 
 1. The State will: 

 
a. Execute this Agreement, and if the Project is approved by FHWA and funds for the Project 

are available, be the County's designated agent for the Project. 
 
b. Execute this Agreement, and prior to performing or authorizing any work, invoice the  County 

for the initial PMDR costs, estimated at $30,000.00 and the County's share of the Project 
design costs, estimated at $7,556.00. If actual PMDR costs exceed the estimate during the 
development of design, notify the County and obtain concurrence prior to continuing with the 
development of design. Once the Project costs have been finalized, the State will either 
invoice or reimburse the County for the difference between estimated and actual costs. 



Page 3  JPA/IGA 16-0005917 
 
 

c. After receipt of the PMDR costs and the County's estimated share of the Project design 
costs, on behalf of the County, prepare and provide all documents pertaining to the design 
and post-design of the Project, incorporating comments from the County, as appropriate; and 
review and approve documents required by FHWA to qualify the Project for and to 
receive federal funds.  Such work may consist of, but is not specifically limited to, preparation 
of environmental documents; analysis and documentation of environmental categorical 
exclusion determinations; geologic materials testing and analysis; right-of-way related 
activities; preparation of reports, design plans, maps, specifications and cost estimates and 
such other related tasks essential to the achievement of the objectives of this Agreement. 

 
d. Submit all required documentation pertaining to the Project to FHWA with the 

recommendation that the maximum federal funds programmed for this Project be approved 
for scoping/design.  With FHWA authorization, proceed to advertise for and enter into 
contract(s) with the consultant(s) for the design and post design of the Project. Should costs 
exceed the maximum federal funds available it is understood and agreed that the County will 
be responsible for any overage. 

 
e. After completion of design and prior to bid advertisement, invoice the County for the County’s 

share of the Project construction costs, estimated at $40,000.00.  Once the Project costs 
have been finalized, the State will either invoice or reimburse the County for the difference 
between estimated and actual costs; de-obligate or otherwise release any remaining federal 
funds from the scoping/design phase of the Project. 

 
f. After receipt of the County’s estimated share of the Project construction costs, submit all 

required documentation to FHWA with the recommendation that the maximum federal funds 
programmed for construction of this Project be approved.  Should costs exceed the maximum 
federal funds available, it is understood and agreed that the County will be responsible for 
any overage. 

 
g. With FHWA authorization, proceed to administer construction, advertise for, receive and open 

bids, award and enter into a contract with the firm for the construction of the Project.  If the 
bid amounts exceed the construction cost estimate, obtain County concurrence prior to 
awarding the contract.  Once awarded, invoice the County for the difference between 
estimated and actual costs, if applicable. 

 
h. Be granted, without cost requirements, the right to enter  County right-of-way as required to 

conduct any and all construction and pre-construction related activities for said Project, 
including without limitation, temporary construction easements or temporary rights of entry on 
to and over said rights-of-way of the County. 

 
i. Not be obligated to maintain the Project, should the  County fail to budget or provide for 

proper and perpetual maintenance as set forth in this Agreement. 
 

  
2. The County will: 
 

a. Designate the State as the  County's authorized agent for the Project. 
 
b. Within 30 days of receipt of an invoice from the State, pay the initial PMDR costs, estimated 

at $30,000.00 and the  County's  Project design costs, estimated at $7,556.00.  Agree to be 
responsible for actual PMDR costs, if during the development of design, PMDR costs exceed 
the initial estimate. Be responsible for any difference between the estimated and actual 
PMDR and design costs of the Project within 30 days of receipt of an invoice. 

c. Review design plans, specifications, cost estimates and other such documents required for 
the construction bidding and construction of the Project, including scoping/design plans and 



Page 4  JPA/IGA 16-0005917 
 
 

documents required by FHWA to qualify projects for and to receive federal funds; provide 
design review comments to the State as appropriate.   

 
d. After completion of design, within 30 days of receipt of an invoice from the State and prior to 

bid advertisement, pay to the State, the  County's Project construction costs, estimated at 
$40,000.00.  Once the Project costs have been finalized, the State will either invoice or 
reimburse the County for the difference between estimated and actual costs. 

 
e. Be responsible for all costs incurred in performing and accomplishing the work as set forth 

under this Agreement, that are not covered by federal funding. Should costs be deemed 
ineligible or exceed the maximum federal funds available, it is understood and agreed that 
the County is responsible for these costs; payment for these costs shall be made within 30 
days of receipt of an invoice from the State. 

 
f. Certify that all necessary rights-of-way have been or will be acquired prior to advertisement 

for bid and that all obstructions or unauthorized encroachments of any nature, either above or 
below the surface of the Project area, shall be removed from the proposed right-of-way or will 
be removed prior to the start of construction, in accordance with The Uniform Relocation 
Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 as amended; 49 CFR 24.102 
Basic Acquisition Policies; 49 CFR 24.4 Assurances, Monitoring and Corrective Action, parts 
(a) & (b) and ADOT ROW Manual: 8.02 Responsibilities, 8.03 Prime Functions, 9.06 
Monitoring Process and 9.07 Certification of Compliance. Coordinate with the appropriate 
State’s Right-of-Way personnel during any right-of-way process performed by the County, if 
applicable. 

 
g. Not permit or allow any encroachments on or private use of the right-of-way, except those 

authorized by permit. In the event of any unauthorized encroachment or improper use, the  
County shall take all necessary steps to remove or prevent any such encroachment or use. 

 
h. Grant the State, its agents and/or contractors, without cost, the right to enter  County rights-

of-way, as required, to conduct any and all construction and preconstruction related activities, 
including without limitation, temporary construction easements or temporary rights of entry to 
accomplish among other things, soil and foundation investigations.   

 
i. Be obligated to incur any expenditure should unforeseen conditions or circumstances 

increase Project costs. Be responsible for the cost of any  County requested changes to the 
scope of work of the Project, such changes will require State and FHWA approval.  Be 
responsible for any contractor claims for additional compensation caused by Project delay 
attributable to the  County. Payment for these costs will be made to the State within 30 days 
of receipt of an invoice from the State. 

 
j. Upon notification of Project completion, agree to accept, maintain and assume full 

responsibility of the Project and all Project components in writing.  
 
 
III. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

1. The terms, conditions and provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect until 
completion of the Project and all related deposits and/or reimbursements are made.  Any 
provisions for maintenance shall be perpetual, unless assumed by another competent entity. This 
Agreement may be cancelled at any time prior to the award of the Project contract and after 30 
days written notice to the other Party. It is understood and agreed that, in the event the County 
terminates this Agreement, the County will be responsible for all costs incurred by the State up to 
the time of termination.  It is further understood and agreed that in the event the County 
terminates this Agreement, the State shall in no way be obligated to complete or maintain the 
Project.  Upon termination of this agreement, each Party shall retain its respective property and 



Page 5  JPA/IGA 16-0005917 
 
 

property belonging to one which was furnished to the other shall be returned to the furnishing 
party. 
 

2. The County shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the State, any of its departments, 
agencies, officers or employees (collectively referred to in this paragraph as the “State”) from any 
and all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, loss, cost and damages of every kind and 
description, including reasonable attorneys' fees and/or litigation expenses (collectively referred 
to in this paragraph as the “Claims”), which may be brought or made against or incurred by the 
State on account of loss of or damage to any property or for injuries to or death of any person, to 
the extent caused by, arising out of, or contributed to, by reasons of any alleged act, omission, 
professional error, fault, mistake, or negligence of the County, its employees, officers, directors, 
agents, representatives, or contractors, their employees, agents, or representatives in connection 
with or incident to the performance of this Agreement. The County’s obligations under this 
paragraph shall not extend to any Claims to the extent caused by the negligence of the State, 
except the obligation does apply to any negligence of the County which may be legally imputed to 
the State by virtue of the State’s ownership or possession of land.  The County’s obligations 
under this paragraph shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 
  

3. The State shall include Section 107.13 of the 2008 version of the Arizona Department of 
Transportation Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction, incorporated to this 
Agreement by reference, in the State’s contract with any and all contractors, of which the County
shall be specifically named as a third-party beneficiary.  This provision may not be amended 
without the approval of the County. 
 

4. The cost of scoping, design, construction and construction engineering work under this 
Agreement is to be covered by the federal funds set aside for this Project, up to the maximum 
available.   The County acknowledges that the actual costs may exceed the maximum available 
amount of federal funds, or that certain costs may not be accepted by the federal government as 
eligible for federal funds.  Therefore, the  County agrees to pay the difference between actual 
Project costs and the federal funds received. 
 

5. Each party is responsible to provide financing and establish and maintain a budget for its 
respective obligations under this agreement. 
 

6. Should the federal funding related to this Project be terminated or reduced by the federal 
government, or Congress rescinds, fails to renew, or otherwise reduces apportionments or 
obligation authority, the State shall in no way be obligated for funding or liable for any past, 
current or future expenses under this Agreement. 

 
7. The cost of the project under this Agreement includes indirect costs approved by FHWA, as 

applicable. 
 
8. The Parties warrant compliance with the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 

2006 and associated 2008 Amendments (the “Act”).  Additionally, in a timely manner, the County 
will provide information that is requested by the State to enable the State to comply with the 
requirements of the Act, as may be applicable. 

 
9. The County acknowledges compliance with federal laws and regulations and may be subject to 

the Office of Management and Budget (OMB), Single Audit, Circular A-133 (Audits of States, 
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations).  Entities that expend $500,000.00 or more 
(prior to 12/26/14) and $750,000.00 or more (on or after 12/26/14) of federal assistance (federal 
funds, federal grants, or federal awards) are required to comply by having an independent audit. 
Either an electronic or hardcopy of the Single Audit is to be sent to Arizona Department of 
Transportation Financial Management Services within the required deadline of nine months of the 
sub recipient fiscal year end.   

 



Page 6  JPA/IGA 16-0005917 
 
 

ADOT – FMS 
Attn: Cost Accounting Administrator 
206 S 17th Ave. Mail Drop 204B 
Phoenix, AZ 85007 
SingleAudit@azdot.gov                        

 
10. This Agreement shall become effective upon signing and dating of the Determination Letter by 

the State’s Attorney General. 
 
11. This Agreement may be cancelled in accordance with Arizona Revised Statutes § 38-511. 
 
12. To the extent applicable under law, the provisions set forth in Arizona Revised Statutes §§ 35-214 

and 35-215 shall apply to this Agreement. 
 
13. This Agreement is subject to all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act 

(Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213) and all applicable federal regulations under the 
Act, including 28 CFR Parts 35 and 36. The parties to this Agreement shall comply with Executive 
Order Number 2009-09 issued by the Governor of the State of Arizona and incorporated herein 
by reference regarding “Non-Discrimination”. 

 
14. Non-Availability of Funds: Every obligation of the State under this Agreement is conditioned upon 

the availability of funds appropriated or allocated for the fulfillment of such obligations. If funds are 
not allocated and available for the continuance of this Agreement, this Agreement may be 
terminated by the State at the end of the period for which the funds are available. No liability shall 
accrue to the State in the event this provision is exercised, and the State shall not be obligated or 
liable for any future payments as a result of termination under this paragraph. 

 
15. In the event of any controversy, which may arise out of this Agreement, the Parties hereto agree 

to abide by required arbitration as is set forth for public works contracts in Arizona Revised 
Statutes § 12-1518. 

 
16. The Parties shall comply with the applicable requirements of Arizona Revised Statutes § 41-4401. 

That each contractor and subcontractor warrants their compliance with all federal immigration 
laws and regulations that relate to their employees and their compliance with section 23-214, 
subsection A. 2. That a breach of a warranty under paragraph 1 shall be deemed a material 
breach of the contract that is subject to penalties up to and including termination of the 
contract.  That the government entity retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any contractor 
or subcontractor employee who works on the contract to ensure that the contractor or 
subcontractor is complying with the warrant under paragraph 1. 

 
17. The Parties hereto shall comply with all applicable laws, rules, regulations and ordinances, as 

may be amended. 
 
18. All notices or demands upon any Party to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be delivered 

in person or sent by mail, addressed as follows: 
 

For Agreement Administration: 
Arizona Department of Transportation 
Joint Project Administration 
205 S. 17th Avenue, Mail Drop 637E 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 
(602) 712-7124 
(602) 712-3132 Fax 
 
For Project Administration: 
Arizona Department of Transportation 

 
Gila County  
Attn: Steve Sanders 
745 N Rose Mofford Way 
Globe, AZ  85501 
(928) 402-8521 
(928) 402-8104 Fax 
 
 
Gila County  

mailto:SingleAudit@azdot.gov


Page 7  JPA/IGA 16-0005917 
 
 

Project Management Group 
1615 W Jackson St. 
Phoenix, AZ  85007 
(602) 712-4428 
 
 
For Financial Administration:  
Arizona Department of Transportation 
Joint Project Administration 
205 S. 17th Avenue, Mail Drop 637E 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 
(602) 712-7124 
(602) 712-3132 Fax 

Attn: Steve Sanders 
745 N Rose Mofford Way 
Globe, AZ  85501 
(928) 402-8521 
(928) 402-8104 Fax 
 
 
Gila County  
Attn: Steve Sanders 
745 N Rose Mofford Way 
Globe, AZ  85501 
(928) 402-8521 
(928) 402-8104 Fax 

 
19. In accordance with Arizona Revised Statutes § 11-952 (D) attached hereto and incorporated 

herein is the written determination of each Party’s legal counsel that the Parties are authorized 
under the laws of this State to enter into this Agreement and that the Agreement is in proper form. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement the day and year first above written. 
 
GILA COUNTY 

 
 
By ______________________________ 
        MICHAEL A. PASTOR, Chairman 
        Board of Supervisors 
         

STATE OF ARIZONA 
Department of Transportation 
 
 
By ______________________________ 
       STEVE BOSCHEN, P.E. 
       IDO Assistant Director 
 

  
ATTEST: 
 
 
By ______________________________ 
        MARIAN SHEPPARD, Clerk 
        Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 



IGA/JPA 16-0005917-I 

ATTORNEY APPROVAL FORM FOR GILA COUNTY 

 I have reviewed the above referenced Intergovernmental Agreement between the State of 

Arizona, acting by and through its DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, and GILA COUNTY an 

agreement among public agencies which, has been reviewed pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes §§ 

11-951 through 11-954 and declare this Agreement to be in proper form and within the powers and 

authority granted to the County under the laws of the State of Arizona. 

 No opinion is expressed as to the authority of the State to enter into this Agreement. 

  DATED this __________________ day of __________________, 2016. 

 

_____________________________________________________ 
Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy County Attorney/Civil Bureau Chief 

 

 



 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-09-03 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA/JPA 16-0005917-I) 
BETWEEN GILA COUNTY AND THE STATE OF ARIZONA, 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, FOR THE DESIGN AND 
CONSTRUCTION OF SIDEWALKS ON GOLDEN HILL ROAD FROM 
RUSSELL ROAD TO MAIN STREET IN THE GLOBE MIAMI AREA OF 
GILA COUNTY 
 

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors is desirous of undertaking the design and 
construction of a sidewalk on Golden Hill Road from Russell Road to Main Street in the Globe 
Miami area of Gila County; and 
 
WHEREAS, an Intergovernmental Agreement requires a resolution of Gila County to authorize 
execution of the agreement. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Gila County Board of Supervisors 
authorizes the execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA/JPA 16-0005917-I) between 
Gila County and the State of Arizona, Department of Transportation, for the design and 
construction of a sidewalk on Golden Hill Road from Russell Road to Main Street in the Globe 
Miami area of Gila County. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 6th day of September 2016 at Globe, Gila County, Arizona. 

 
 

Attest:  GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
______________________________ __________________________________  
Marian Sheppard, Clerk  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Jefferson R. Dalton 
Deputy Gila County Attorney 
Civil Bureau Chief 



 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-3915     Regular Agenda Item      3. I.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  

Submitted For: Eric Mariscal,
Director 

Submitted By: Cate Gore, Elections Assistant

Department: Elections Department

Information
Request/Subject
Official Canvass of the August 30, 2016, Primary Election Results.

Background Information
A Primary Election was held on August 30, 2016. In accordance with Arizona Revised
Statute §16-642, the Board of Supervisors must canvass the election results and
declare them to be official.

Evaluation
Arizona Revised Statute §16-642 provides that the governing body holding an election
shall meet and canvass the election not less than six days nor more than twenty days
following the election.

The last day to submit the canvass of the election results to the Secretary of State's
Office is September 9, 2016.

Conclusion
The Primary Election was conducted in Gila County on August 30, 2016, and the
Board of Supervisors is required by law to canvass the returns of the election and send
a certified copy of the canvass to the Secretary of State.

Recommendation
The Elections Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors canvass the election
returns for the Primary Election held, August 30, 2016, and declare the results of the
election official.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to canvass the election results contained in the Official
Canvass of the Primary Election held on August 30, 2016, in Gila County, Arizona, and
declare the results official.  (Eric Mariscal)

Attachments
ARS 16-642





   

ARF-3918     Regular Agenda Item      3. J.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  

Submitted For: Michael
O'Driscoll,
Director 

Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Buyer

Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: 2016-2017 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

10-01-16 to
09-30-17

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Authorization to Advertise Request for Proposals No. 080316-Sub-Grantee for Public
Health Support Services

Background Information
Gila County will contract with one Arizona-based organization employing a Registered
Dietitian Nutritionist (RDN), Physical Activity Specialist, and Marketing and
Communications specialist to implement Policy, System, and Environmental (PSE)
food systems, active living, and school health strategies; to provide nutrition education
and physical activity promotion; design and implement public health marketing and
communications tools including social media promotion; and, support the
development of partnerships and stakeholder engagement with a focus on low-income
individuals and families and children and youth with special healthcare needs. The
overall goal of the consultation and marketing support is to apply comprehensive
evidence-based strategies to improve health outcomes and wellbeing for Gila County
residents.
 
The current contract with Pinnacle Prevention Consulting was approved by the Board
of Supervisors (BOS) on August 2, 2016, to allow the contract to be mutually
terminated as of September 30, 2016. This new contract for public health support
services will allow for continuation of grant deliverables and align the contract with the
federal annual budget year. The new contract additionally adds services such as
marketing and communications, a certified fitness professional, and includes a new
one-year funding source from ADHS for Zika Virus prevention services.

Evaluation
The purpose of this request is to implement collaborative and comprehensive public



The purpose of this request is to implement collaborative and comprehensive public
health approaches and public health marketing supporting Supplemental Nutrition
Assistance Program Education (SNAP-Ed), the Healthy People Healthy Communities
(HPHC) strategies, and Public Health Emergency Preparedness (PHEP) marketing and
communications for Gila County. In order to comply with mandated grant guidelines,
Gila County must consult with a certified health professional, registered dietitian, and
an experienced social media, communications expert. Without consulting these
services Gila County would have to employee someone part-time that has these skills
and without a guarantee for long-term funding.

Conclusion
The contract for the sub grantee will provide public health support services, maintain
grant compliance, and align contract with fiscal budget year.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Health & Emergency Services Division Director that
the Board of Supervisors authorize the advertisement of Request for Proposals No.
080316-Sub-Grantee for Public Health Support Services to be published for two
consecutive weeks in the Arizona Silver Belt newspaper.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of Request for
Proposals No. 080316-Sub-Grantee for Public Health Support Services such as
physical activity education, nutrition education classes, and services that are
mandated by a Registered Dietician Nutritionist (RDN) and Physical Activity Specialist. 
(Michael O'Driscoll)

Attachments
RFP No. 080316-Sub-Grantee for Public Health Support Services
Request to Advertise for Bids Form



RFP NO. 080316/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT  
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

GILA COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 080316 
 
 

SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES 
 
 
 
 
  

BIDDER’S INFORMATION 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

*BOARD OF SUPERVISORS* 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 

Tommie C. Martin, Vice Chairman 
John D. Marcanti, Member 

 
 
 

*COUNTY MANAGER* 
Don E. McDaniel, Jr. 

 
 

 

 



RFP NO. 080316/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES Page 1 
 

                                                              GILA COUNTY 
NOTICE OF REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 080316 

SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES 

 

Notice is hereby given that Gila County is requesting proposals from qualified Contractors to develop a 
program for Sub-Grantee for Public Health Support Services.  
 
SUBMITTAL DUE DATE:      4:00 PM, MST, Wednesday, September 28, 2016 
 

RETURN PROPOSAL TO:      GILA COUNTY FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
        GUERRERO COMPLEX 
        1400 EAST ASH STREET 
        GLOBE, ARIZONA  85501 
 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that sealed competitive Proposals for the material or services as specified will be 
received by the Gila County Finance Department, until the time and date cited. 
 
Proposals received by the correct time and date will be publicly opened and recorded thereafter in the Finance 
Department Guerrero Conference Room or other site, which may be designated.  Any proposals received later 
than the date and time specified above will be returned unopened.  Late proposals shall not be considered.  The 
prevailing clock shall be the atomic clock in the reception area of the Guerrero Complex building. 
 
All proposals shall be made on the Request for Sealed Proposals forms included in this RFP No. 080316 package, 
and shall include all applicable taxes. 
 
Interested Bidders may obtain a copy of this solicitation by calling the Gila County Finance Department at 928-
402-4355 or by clicking on the link: 
http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/finance/procurement/current_bids.php and downloading the file.  
Bidders are strongly encouraged to carefully read the entire Request for Proposal. 
 
Any questions regarding this Request for Proposals shall be submitted in writing and directed to:  Betty Hurst, 
Contracts Administrator, at bhurst@gilacountyaz.gov, 928-402-4355. 
 
The Board of Supervisors reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, or to accept any proposal, or to waive 
any informality in any proposal, or to withhold the award if deemed in the best interest of Gila County.  All 
procurement activities conducted by Gila County are in conformance with the rules and regulations of the Gila 
County Procurement Code.  A copy of the Code is available for review in the Clerk of the Board’s office, Globe, 
AZ. 
  
Dates advertised in the Arizona Silver Belt:  September 14, 2016 and September 21, 2016 
 
 
Signed:_____________________________________________  Date:  _____/_____/_____ 
 Michael A. Pastor, Chairman of the Board of Supervisors 
 
 
Signed: _____________________________________________  Date:  _____/_____/_____ 
 Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief 
 for Bradley D. Beauchamp, County Attorney 
 
 

http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/finance/procurement/current_bids.php
mailto:bhurst@gilacountyaz.gov


RFP NO. 080316/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES Page 2 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

     CONTENT           PAGE 
 

 

Notice of Solicitation ..................................................................................................................... 1 

Table of Contents .......................................................................................................................... 2 

Intent ........................................................................................................................................... 3 

Scope of Work ........................................................................................................................... 4-6 

Exhibit “A”; Instructions to Bidders............................................................................................. 7-9 

 Preparation of Sealed Bid ................................................................................................................... 7 
 Amendments ...................................................................................................................................... 8 
 Inquiries .............................................................................................................................................. 8 
 Late Proposals .................................................................................................................................... 8 
 Submittal Bid Format ..................................................................................................................... 8-9 

General Terms and Conditions .................................................................................................10-11 

 Award of Contract ............................................................................................................................ 10 
 Protests ............................................................................................................................................ 10 
 Laws & Ordinances ........................................................................................................................... 11 

Exhibit “B”; Contract Award Agreement ..................................................................................12-17 

 Overcharges by Antitrust Violations ................................................................................................ 12 
 Authority to Contract ....................................................................................................................... 12 
 Contract Amendments ..................................................................................................................... 12 
 Contract Default ............................................................................................................................... 13 
 Right to Assurance ........................................................................................................................... 13 
 Co-op Intergovernmental Purchasing Agreement ........................................................................... 13 
 Cancellation of County Contracts ..................................................................................................... 13 
 Termination of Contract ............................................................................................................. 13-14 

Indemnification Clause ..................................................................................................................... 14 
Israel Boycott Certification Clause……………………………………………………………………………………………….14 
Insurance Requirements ............................................................................................................ 15-17 

 Exhibit “C”; Minimum Specifications/Information ....................................................................18-20 

 Section 1.0; General Purpose ........................................................................................................... 18 
 Section 2.0; Bid Pricing & Term ........................................................................................................ 19 
 Section 3.0; Negotiations ........................................................................................................... 19-20 
  

Qualification and Certification Forms .......................................................................................21-22 

Price Sheet ................................................................................................................................. 23 

Reference List ............................................................................................................................. 24 

No Collusion Form ...................................................................................................................... 25 

Intentions Concerning Subcontracting ......................................................................................... 26 

Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance ........................................................................................ 27 

Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment ....................................................................................... 28 

Offer Page .................................................................................................................................. 29 

Acceptance of Offer Page ............................................................................................................ 30 



RFP NO. 080316/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES Page 3 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 080316 
SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
INTENT 

 

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR: Sub-Grantee for Public Health Support Services 
 

INTENT: 
 

The purpose of this request is to implement collaborative and comprehensive public health approaches 
and public health marketing supporting Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Education 
Supplemental nutrition Assistance Program-Education (SNAP-ED) the Healthy People Healthy 
Communities (HPHC) strategies, and Public Health Emergency Preparedness (PHEP) marketing and 
communications for Gila County. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



RFP NO. 080316/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES Page 4 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 080316 
SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
SCOPE OF WORK:  
 
The Contractor shall: 

 Implement the Gila County Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program-Education Supplemental 
nutrition Assistance Program-Education (SNAP-ED) food systems and active living strategies in alignment 
with Arizona Nutrition Network (AzNN).  

 Implement the Gila County Healthy People Healthy Communities (HPHC) strategies and PHEP (Public 
Health Emergency Preparedness) marketing in alignment with Arizona Department of Health Services 
(ADHS) guidelines. 

 Provide technical assistance and subject matter expertise in Supplemental Nutrition Assistance 
Program-Education Supplemental nutrition Assistance Program-Education (SNAP-ED) administration, 
including, but not limited to, implementation of Policy Systems and Environmental Policy Systems and 
Environmental (PSE) strategies consistent with state and federal regulations. 

 Work directly with Gila County stakeholders in all aspects of strategy and marketing implementation. 

 Maintain staffing requirements for a Registered Dietitian Nutritionist Registered Dietitian Nutritionist 
(RDN) and Physical Activity Specialist. 

 Attend and participate in any required Gila County ADHS trainings and meetings. 

 Abide by the most current Policies and Procedures for respective public health and emergency 
preparedness programs. 

 Follow the current USDA Dietary Guidelines for Americans and the USDA Food Guidance System. 

 Follow the current Physical Activity Guidelines for Americans. 

 
DELIVERABLES: 
The Contractor shall submit: 

 Prepare and submit monthly reports utilizing the standard reporting forms. 

 Prepare and submit quarterly narrative reports utilizing the standard reporting forms. 

 Prepare and submit quarterly evaluation reports utilizing the standard reporting forms. 

 Prepare and submit fourth quarter narrative reports summarizing the year’s program activities, any 
results from both quantitative and qualitative evaluations conducted, and any other relevant program 
information utilizing the standard reporting forms. 
 
PROPOSAL RESPONSE REQUIREMENTS: 
A concise proposal narrative based on the following weighted criteria: 
 

 Description of Organization 

 Key Staff Qualifications and Resume/CV outlining experience in the administration, implementation, and 
evaluation of Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program-Education Supplemental nutrition Assistance 
Program-Education (SNAP-ED) programs, Policy Systems and Environmental Policy Systems and 
Environmental (PSE) experience, Public Health experience, marketing and communications experience, 
and experience working in Gila County. 

  Annual Cost 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



RFP NO. 080316/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES Page 5 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 080316 
SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
Scope of Work Continued… 

SELECTION CRITERIA: 
 

  Experience successfully completing similar projects 40 Points 

 Experience and capability of principal applicant and key personnel 30 Points 

 The proposal indicates a clear understanding of the project and is appropriate to the charge 20 Points 
 The budget is appropriate for the scope of work submitted 10 Points 

 
Total  100 Points 
 

 

1.0 MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS:    

 
Qualifying experience includes: 

 Arizona-based organization employing a Registered Dietitian Nutritionist Registered Dietitian 
Nutritionist (RDN) and Physical Activity Specialist. 

 Experience working with Gila County communities and children and youth with special health care 
needs. 

 A minimum of three years of experience in the administration of Supplemental nutrition Assistance 
Program-Education Supplemental nutrition Assistance Program-Education (SNAP-ED). 

 A minimum of three years of experience in food systems, active living, and school health policy, 
system, and environmental Policy Systems and Environmental Policy Systems and Environmental (PSE) 
approaches, and marketing and communications in public health programs. 
 

EXAMINATION INFORMATION:  

Special care should be taken to submitting a complete description of organizational education and 
experience relevant to the typical tasks, scope, and minimum qualifications stated on this 
announcement. Supplemental information will be accepted but competitors should read the 
announcement carefully to determine what kind of information will be useful to those individuals 
completing the evaluation.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



RFP NO. 080316/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES Page 6 
 

It is the intent of Gila County to award a contract to a qualified Contractor for the Sub-Grantee for Public Health 

Support Services.   

 

See page 23 of Bid Packet for Price Proposal. 

 

INFORMATION REQUESTS 

All requests for additional information shall be put in writing and directed to: Betty Hurst, Contracts 

Administrator, (928) 402-4355,  bhurst@gilacountyaz.gov.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:bhurst@gilacountyaz.gov


RFP NO. 080316/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES Page 7 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 080316 
SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 

 
IMPORTANT:  EXHIBIT “A”, INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS AND EXHIBIT “B”, BIDDERS AWARD AGREEMENT ARE 
BASIC CONTENT TO GILA COUNTY BID PACKAGES.  INDIVIDUAL BIDS MAY REQUIRE DIFFERENT LANGUAGE FOR 
INSTRUCTIONS AND AWARD AGREEMENTS.  WHERE APPLICABLE, SUCH CHANGES WILL APPEAR IN EXHIBIT 
“C”, MINIMUM PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS AND INFORMATION AND TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER THE LANGUAGE 
APPEARING IN EXHIBITS “A” & “B”. 
 

EXHIBIT “A” INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
 
Preparation of Sealed Proposal 

A. Sealed Proposals will be received by the Gila County Finance Department, from individuals and 
Contractors to deliver the product(s), goods and services contained, to establish a contract for 
specified locations within Gila County.  The County seeks sealed Proposals only from qualified, 
experienced Contractors able to provide services which are, in all respects, responsive to the 
specifications.  All Proposals shall be on the forms provided in this Request for Sealed Proposal 
package.  It is permissible to copy these forms if required but copies must have original signatures. 

 
B. Before submitting its Proposal and Qualification Form each Contractor shall familiarize itself with the 

Scope of Work, laws, regulations and other factors affecting performance of work.  It shall carefully 
correlate its observations with requirements of the Contract and otherwise satisfy itself of the 
expense and difficulties attending the performance of the work.  The submission of a Proposal will 
constitute a representation of compliance by the Contractor.  There will be no subsequent financial 
adjustment, other than that provided for by the Contract, for lack of such familiarization. 

 
C. Contractors must complete the Proposal and Qualifications Forms provided in this Request for 

Proposal package in full, original signature in ink, by the person(s) authorized to sign the Proposal and 
to be submitted at the time of bid, and made a part of this contract.  The County will use the Proposal 
and Qualifications Form in evaluating the capacity of Contractor(s) to perform the Scope of Services 
as set forth in the Contract.  Failure of any Contractor to complete and submit the Price Sheet and 
Signature/Offer Page at time and place of opening shall be grounds for automatic disqualification of 
the Contractor(s) from further consideration. 

 
D. The names of all persons authorized to sign the Proposal must also be legibly printed below the 

signature. Evidence of the authority of the person signing shall be furnished. 
 

E. The full name of each person or company interested in the Request for Proposal shall be listed on the 
Proposal. 

 
F. No alterations in Proposals, or in the printed forms, by erasures, interpolations, or otherwise will be 

acceptable unless each such alteration is signed or initialed by the Contractor; if initialed, the County 
may require the Contractor to identify any alteration so initialed. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 080316/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES Page 8 
 

 
REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 080316 

SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
Instructions to Bidders continued…. 

 
Addendum 

Any addendum issued as a result of any change in this Request for Sealed Proposal must be acknowledged by all 
Contractors in the following manner: 
 

1. Completion of the Bidder Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment form, page 28. 
2. Copies of all addenda must be attached to the submittal. 
 

Failure to indicate receipt of addenda in the above manner may result in a Proposal being rejected as non-
responsive. 
 

Inquiries 

Any questions related to this Request for Proposal must be directed to those whose names appear on the Notice.  
The Gila County Supervisors may require all questions be submitted in writing.  Any correspondence related to 
a Request for Proposals should refer to the appropriate Request for Proposals number, page, and paragraph 
number.  However, the Contractor(s) must not place the Request for Proposal number on the outside of an 
envelope containing questions since such an envelope may be identified as a sealed Proposal and may not be 
opened until after the official Request for Proposal due date and time.  Questions received after 3:00 P.M., 
Monday, September 26, 2016 will not be answered.   Only questions answered by formal written addenda will 
be binding.  Oral and other interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. 
 

 

Late Proposals 

Any proposal received later than the date and time specified on Notice for Sealed Proposal will be returned 
unopened.  Late Proposals shall not be considered.  Any Contractor submitting a late Proposal shall be so notified. 
 

 

Submittal Proposal Format: 

It is required that One (1) Original and Two (2) copies ( 3 TOTAL) with original signatures on all three (3) of the 
Proposal and all Forms shall be submitted.  The County will not be liable for any cost incident to the preparation 
of Proposal, materials, reproductions, presentations, copy-right infringements, etc.  It is permissible to copy 
these forms if required.  Facsimiles or mailgrams shall not be considered.   Spiral bound proposals are not 
permitted. Failure to include all required documents, all with original signatures, may invalidate the bid. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 080316/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES Page 9 
 

 
REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 080316 

SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
Instructions to Bidders continued… 

 
1. By signature in the offer section of the Offer and Acceptance page, Contractor certifies: 
 

A. The submission of the offer did not involve collusion or other anti-competitive practices. 
 

B. The Contractor has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at any time hereafter, any 
economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor, or 
service to a public servant in connection with the submitted offer. 
 

C. In order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs, improve timely acquisition and cost of 
supplies and to improve efficiency and economy of procurement, any political subdivision, County, 
City, Town, etc., of the State of Arizona, will be allowed by the Contractor awarded the contract to 
provide the same services, at the same prices stated in the Proposal.  Delivery charges may 
differentiate depending on geographical location. 

 
2. Proposals submitted early may be modified or withdrawn by notice to the party receiving proposals at the 

place and prior to the time designated for receipts of Proposals. 
 
3. The County is not responsible for any Contractor’s errors or omissions.  Negligence in preparing an offer 

confers no right to the Contractor unless the Contractor discovers and corrects such errors prior to the 
Proposal deadline. 

 

 

The Proposal shall be submitted in a sealed envelope, a minimum of Three (3) copies with original signatures 
shall be provided by the Bidder.  The words “SEALED PROPOSAL” with Proposal Title “SUB-GRANTEE FOR 
PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES”, Proposal No., “080316”, Date “September 28, 2016”, and time “4:00 PM” 
of Proposal opening shall be written on the envelope.  The Bidder(s) shall assume full responsibility for timely 
delivery at the location designated in the Notice.  Spiral bound proposals are not permitted. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 080316/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES Page 10 
 

 
REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 080316 

SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
Award of Contract   
 

1. The Gila County Board of Supervisors reserves the right to award any Proposal by individual line item, 
by group of line items or as total, or any part thereof, whichever is deemed to be in the best interest, 
most advantageous of the County of Gila. 

 
a.   Notwithstanding any or other provisions of the RFP, the County reserves the right to:  

1.   Waive any immaterial defects or informalities; or 
2.   Reject any or all Proposals; or portions thereof; or 
3.   Reissue a Request for Proposal. 

 
2. It is the responsibility of the Gila County Board of Supervisors to let the County contracts to the lowest 

responsive and responsible Contractor(s).  To ensure that all Contractors are experienced, reasonably 
equipped and adequately financed to meet their contractual obligations, a determination of 
responsibility shall be made by the Gila County Board of Supervisors prior to contract award. 

 
3. Further, the County reserves the right to reject the Proposal of any Contractor(s) who has previously 

failed to perform adequately after having once been awarded a prior Proposal for furnishing and 
installing materials similar in nature. 

 
4. All submitted forms provided in this Request for Proposal will be reviewed by the Gila County attorney 

and Gila County Board of Supervisors. 
 

5. Those Contractor(s) who, in the opinion of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, are best qualified and 
whose Proposals are most advantageous of the County may be invited to appear before the Board for 
an oral review. 

 
6. The apparent successful Contractor shall sign and file with the County, within ten (10) days after Notice 

of Intent to Award, all documents necessary to successfully execute the contract. 
 

Protests 

Only other Contractors who have submitted a bid proposal have the right to protest.  A protest of an award must 
be filed within ten (10) days after the award by the Board of Supervisors.  A protest must be in writing and must 
include the following: 
 

A. Name, address and telephone number of the protester. 
B. Signature of the protester or its representative, and evidence of authority to sign. 
C. Identification of the contract and the solicitation or contract number. 
D. Detailed statement of the legal and factual grounds of protest including copies of relevant documents. 
E. The form of relief requested. 

 
All protests shall be sent to the attention of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, 1400 East Ash Street, Globe, 
Arizona  85501. 

 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 080316/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES Page 11 
 

 
REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 080316 

SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
General Terms & Conditions continued… 

 
 
Laws and Ordinances 

This agreement shall be enforced under the laws of the State of Arizona and Gila County.  Contractor shall 
maintain in current status all Federal, State and Local licenses and permits required for the operation of the 
business conducted by the Contractor.  The Contractor shall comply with the applicable provisions of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213) and applicable federal regulations 
under the act. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 080316/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES Page 12 
 

 
REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 080316 

SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
 

 
EXHIBIT “B” CONTRACT AWARD AGREEMENT 

This exhibit shall serve as an example of the contract agreement to any Contractor, their agents, subcontractors 
and/or representatives, awarded this or any portion of this contract by the County, by submitting Proposals to 
this or any other solicitation requiring sealed Proposals, does hereby agree to the following provisions.  Proof of 
acceptance of these provisions will be the Contractor’s signature(s) appearing on all forms contained on pages 
21 through 30. 

 

Overcharges by Antitrust Violations 

The County maintains that, in actual practice, overcharges resulting from antitrust violations are borne by the 
purchaser.  Therefore, to the extent permitted by law, the Contractor hereby assigns to the County any and all 
claims for such overcharges as to the goods or services used to fulfill the contract. 
 

Authority to Contract 

This contract shall be based upon the Request for Proposal issued by the County and the offer submitted by the 
Contractor in response to the RFP.  The offer shall substantially conform to the terms, conditions, specifications 
and other requirements set forth within the text of the RFP.  The County reserves the right to clarify any 
contractual terms with the concurrence of the Contractor; however, any substantial non-conformity in the offer, 
as determined by the County Attorney, shall be deemed non-responsive and the offer rejected.  The contract 
shall contain the entire agreement between Gila County and the Contractor relating to these requirements and 
shall prevail over any and all previous agreements, contracts, proposals, negotiations, purchase orders, or master 
agreement in any form.  The contract activity is issued under the authority of the Board of Supervisors.  No 
alteration of any portion of the contract, any items or services awarded, or any other agreement that is based 
upon this contract may be made without express written approval of Gila County in the form of an official 
contract amendment.  Any attempt to alter any documents on the part of the Contractor or any agency is a 
violation of the County Procurement Code.  Any such action is subject to the legal and contractual remedies 
available to the County inclusive, but not limited to, contract cancellation, suspension and/or debarment of the 
Contractor. 

 

Contract Amendments 

The contract shall be modified only by a written contract amendment signed by the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors and persons duly authorized to enter into contracts on behalf of the Contractor. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 080316/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES Page 13 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 080316 
SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
Contract Award Agreement continued… 
 
 

Contract Default 

A. The County, by written notice of default to the Contractor, may terminate the whole or any part of this 
contract in any one of the following circumstances: 

 
1. If  the Contractor fails to make delivery of the supplies or to perform the services within the times 

specified; or 
 

2. If the Contractor fails to perform any of the other provisions of this contract; and fails to remedy 
the situation within a period of ten (10) days after receipt of notice. 

 
B. In the event the County terminates this contract in whole or part, the County may procure supplies or 

services similar to those terminated, and the Contractor shall be liable to the County for any excess costs 
for such similar supplies or services. 

 

Right to Assurance 

Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question the other party’s intent to perform, 
the other party may demand that the other party give a written assurance of this intent to perform.  In the event 
that a demand is made and no written assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party may treat 
this failure as an anticipatory repudiation of this contract. 
 

Co-op Use of Contract – Intergovernmental Purchasing 

Gila County has entered into an active purchasing agreement with other political subdivisions, cities, and towns 
of the State of Arizona in order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs and improve timely acquisition 
and cost of supplies, equipment and services.  The Contractor to whom this contract is awarded may be 
requested by other parties of said interactive purchasing agreements to extend to those parties the right to 
purchase supplies, equipment and services provided by the Contractor under this contract, pursuant to the terms 
and conditions stated herein.  Any such usage by other entities must be in accord with the rules and regulations 
of the respective entity and the approval of the Contractor. 
 

Cancellation of County Contracts 

This contract is subject to the cancellation provisions of A.R.S. §38-511. 
 

Termination of Contract 

The County, with or without cause, may terminate this contract at any time by mutual written consent, or by 
giving thirty (30) days written notice to you.  The County at its convenience, by written notice, may terminate 
this contract, in whole or in part.  If this contract is terminated, the County shall be liable only for payment under 
the payment provisions of this contract for the services rendered and accepted material received by the County 
before the effective date of termination. 
 
 
 
 
 

 



RFP NO. 080316/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES Page 14 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 080316 
SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
Contract Award Agreement continued… 

 
 
The County reserves the right to cancel the whole or any part of this contract due to failure of the Contractor to 
carry out any term, promise, or condition of the contract.  The County will issue a written ten (10) day notice of 
default to Contractor for acting or failing to act as in any of the following: 
 

1. In the opinion of the County, the Contractor fails to perform adequately the stipulations, conditions 
or services/specifications required in the contract. 

2. In the opinion of the County, the Contractor attempts to impose on the County material products, or 
workmanship, which is of unacceptable quality.  

3. Contractor fails to furnish the required service and/or product within the time stipulated in the 
contract. 

4. In the opinion of the County, the Contractor fails to make progress in the performance of the 
requirements of the contract and/or give the County a positive indication that Contractor will not or 
cannot perform to the requirements of the contract. 

 
Each payment obligation of the County created hereby is conditioned upon the availability of County, State and 
Federal funds, which are appropriated or allocated for the payment of such an obligation.   
 
If funds are not allocated by the County and available for the continuance of service herein contemplated, the 
contract period for the service may be terminated by the County at the end of the period for which funds are 
available.  The County shall notify the Contractor at the earliest possible time which service may be affected by 
a shortage of funds.  No penalty shall accrue to the County in the event this provision is exercised, and the County 
shall not be obligated or liable for any future payments due or for any damages as a result of termination under 
this paragraph. 
 
 
Indemnification Clause 

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the County of Gila and its officers, officials, agents, 
and employees (hereinafter referred to as “Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, 
damages, losses, or expenses (including court costs, attorneys’ fees, and costs of claim processing, investigation 
and litigation) (hereinafter referred to as “Claims”) for bodily injury or personal injury (including death), or loss 
or damage to tangible or intangible property caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent 
or willful acts or omissions of Contractor or any of its owners, officers, directors, agents, employees or 
subcontractors.  This indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or recovered under the Workers’ 
Compensation Law or arising out of the failure of such Contractor to conform to any federal, state or local law, 
statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree.  It is the specific intention of the parties that the Indemnitee 
shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the 
Indemnitee, be indemnified by Contractor from and against any and all claims.  It is agreed that the Contractor 
will be responsible for primary loss investigation, defense and judgment costs. 
 
Israel Boycott Certification Clause 
 
Contractor hereby certifies that it is not currently engaged in and will not, for the duration of this agreement, 
engage in, a boycott of Israel as defined by A.R.S. § 35-393.01. Violation of this certification by Contractor may 
result in action by County up to and including termination of this Agreement. 
 
 

 



RFP NO. 080316/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES Page 15 
 

 
REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 080316 

SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
Contract Award Agreement continued… 

 
General 

After receipt of all proposals, each submittal shall be screened to determine if any shall be deemed non-
responsive.  Unsigned proposals, unacknowledged Addenda, incomplete proposals, non-conformance with 
mandatory requirements, etc., may result in the determination of non-responsive. 
 
Subsequent to the initial review, all remaining proposals shall be reviewed by the Gila County Finance 
Department to evaluate the information submitted, perform tests when necessary and make comparisons in 
order to approve or reject the Request.  If rejected, the purchasing department shall give written notice to the 
Bidder submitting this request. 

 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  Contractor and subcontractors shall procure and maintain until all of their 
obligations have been discharged, including any warranty periods under this Contract are satisfied, insurance 
against claims for injury to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in connection with the 
performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or 
subcontractors.   
 
The insurance requirements herein are minimum requirements for this Contract and in no way limit the 
indemnity covenants contained in this Contract.  The County in no way warrants that the minimum limits 
contained herein are sufficient to protect the Contractor from liabilities that might arise out of the performance 
of the work under this contract by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors and 
Contractor is free to purchase additional insurance as may be determined necessary. 
 
A. MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMITS OF INSURANCE:  Contractor shall provide coverage with limits of liability 

not less than those stated below. 
 

1. Commercial General Liability – Occurrence Form 
Policy shall include bodily injury, property damage and broad form contractual liability coverage. 

 General Aggregate $2,000,000 

 Products – Completed Operations Aggregate $1,000,000 

 Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000 

 Each Occurrence $1,000,000 

a. The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured language: "The County of 
Gila shall be named as an additional insured with respect to liability arising out of the activities 
performed by, or on behalf of the Contractor". 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 080316/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES Page 16 
 

 
REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 080316 

SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
Contract Award Agreement continued… 

 
2. Worker's Compensation and Employers' Liability 

 Workers' Compensation Statutory 
 Employers' Liability  

 Each Accident $100,000 
 Disease – Each Employee $100,000 
 Disease – Policy Limit $500,000 

a. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the County of Gila. 
 

 
3. Automobile Liability 

Bodily injury and property damage for any owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles used 
in the performance of this Contract. 
 Combined Single Limit (CSL) $1,000,000 

 
 

4. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions Liability) 
 Each Claim $1,000,000 
 Annual Aggregate $2,000,000 

a. In the event that the professional liability insurance required by this Contract is written on a 
claims-made basis, Contractor warrants that any retroactive date under the policy shall precede 
the effective date of this Contract; and that either continuous coverage will be maintained or an 
extended discovery period will be exercised for a period of two (2) years beginning at the time 
work under this Contract is completed. 

 

B. ADDITIONAL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  The policies shall include, or be endorsed to include, the 
following provisions: 

1. On insurance policies where the County of Gila is named as an additional insured, the County of Gila 
shall be an additional insured to the full limits of liability purchased by the Contractor even if those 
limits of liability are in excess of those required by this Contract. 

2 The Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance and non-contributory with respect to 
all other available sources. 

3. Coverage provided by the Contractor shall not be limited to the liability assumed under the 
indemnification provisions of this Contract. 

 
C. NOTICE OF CANCELLATION: Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of this Contract 

shall provide the required coverage and shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or 
endorsed to lower limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to the County.  
Such notice shall be sent directly to Gila County Purchasing Department, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ, 85501 
or and shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested. 

 
D. ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS:  Insurance is to be placed with insurers duly licensed or approved 

unlicensed companies in the state of Arizona and with an “A.M. Best” rating of not less than B+ VI.  The 
County in no way warrants that the above-required minimum insurer rating is sufficient to protect the 
Contractor from potential insurer insolvency. 

 



RFP NO. 080316/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES Page 17 
 

 
REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 080316 

SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
Contract Award Agreement continued… 

 
E. VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:  Contractor shall furnish the County with certificates of insurance (ACORD 

form or equivalent approved by the County) as required by this Contract.  The certificates for each 
insurance policy are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. 

 
 All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the County before work 

commences.  Each insurance policy required by this Contract must be in effect at or prior to 
commencement of work under this Contract and remain in effect for the duration of the project.  Failure 
to maintain the insurance policies as required by this Contract or to provide evidence of renewal is a 
material breach of contract.   

 
 All certificates required by this Contract shall be sent directly to Gila County Purchasing Department, 1400 

E. Ash St., Globe, AZ, 85501 or email to bhurst@gilacountyaz.gov. The County project/contract number 
and project description shall be noted on the certificate of insurance.  The County reserves the right to 
require complete, certified copies of all insurance policies required by this Contract at any time.   

 
F. SUBCONTRACTORS:  Contractors’ certificate(s) shall include all subcontractors as additional insured’s 

under its policies or Contractor shall furnish to the County separate certificates and endorsements for 
each subcontractor.  All coverage’s for subcontractors shall be subject to the minimum requirements 
identified above. 

 
G. APPROVAL:  Any modification or variation from the insurance requirements in this Contract shall be made 

by the County Attorney, whose decision shall be final.  Such action will not require a formal Contract 
amendment, but may be made by administrative action. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 080316/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES Page 18 
 

 
REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 080316 

SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
 

MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS 
 
 

EXHIBIT “C” MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS – PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS 
 
Purpose 
It is the intent of this Invitation for Proposals to enter into a contract with a qualified Contractor to provide SUB-
GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES for Gila County.  
 

This specification is intended to describe the type, size, and quality, which will best meet the demands of the 
using department.  It is NOT intended to favor any one brand or make.  The mention of brand names or 
components merely serves to specify the quality or general type required. 

 
 
SECTION 1.0 
 
General Purpose 

 
1.1 All Proposals must represent the entire package.  Partial awards will not be made unless otherwise 

stated in the Proposal specifications. 
 
1.2 The parties specifically understand and agree that the quantities used for bidding purposes are 

estimates of County needs and in no event shall the County be obligated to purchase the exact 
quantities of any item set forth in the Proposal.  The County does not guarantee any maximum or 
minimum amounts of purchase. 

 
1.3 Contractor shall review its Proposal submission to assure the following requirements are met. 

 
1.3.1 One (1) original and two (2) copies, total of three (3), all with original signatures, shall be 

submitted at time of bid opening. 
1.3.2 Qualification and Certification Form (page 21-22) 
1.3.3 Price Sheet (page 23) 
1.3.4 References List (page 24) 
1.3.5 No Collusion Certification (page 25) 
1.3.6 Intentions Concerning Subcontracting (page 26) 
1.3.7 Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance  (page 27) 
1.3.8 Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment  (page 28) 
1.3.9 Offer Page  (page 29) 
1.3.10 Acceptance of Offer (page 30) 

 
 

 

 

 

 



RFP NO. 080316/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES Page 19 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 080316 
SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
Minimum Specifications continued…. 

 

 

SECTION 2.0 

Proposal Pricing & Term 

2.1 Prices shall be in effect for the duration of the contract period.  Contractor shall incorporate all profit 
and discount into their price.  The exception will be any price reduction, which will be applied to the 
contract immediately upon the Contractor’s or Gila County’s discovery of any such price reduction. 

 
2.2 The term of the contract shall commence on October 1, 2016 and shall remain in effect for one year 

from the date of award.  The County shall have the option to renew the contract for two (2) additional 
one (1) year periods upon agreement of both parties. 

 
2.3 Profit costs may be negotiated should the Contractor provide information indicating the necessity for 

such price increases and must meet the Board of Supervisor’s approval by an amendment to the contract 
prior to any such extension.  

 

 

SECTION 3.0 

3.1 Evaluation of Proposal and Negotiations 

The Finance Director may appoint a selection committee to evaluate the proposals and make a 
recommendation based on the criteria set forth in the Request for Proposals.  The Board of Supervisors 
shall not act in capacity of the selection committee.  Proposals shall be evaluated on the factors set forth 
in the Request for Proposals. 

 
For the purpose of conducting Negotiations, the County shall determine what Proposals are susceptible 
for being selected for award.  A determination that a Proposal is unacceptable shall be in writing, state 
the basis of the determination and be retained in the County files.  If it is determined a Proposal is not 
reasonably susceptible of being selected for Award, the Contractor shall be notified and shall not be 
afforded an opportunity to modify its Proposal. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 080316/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES Page 20 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 080316 
SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
 

QUALIFICATION AND CERTIFICATION FORM 

 
EXHIBIT “D” Bidder Qualifications and Certification 
 
Purpose 
 
This exhibit shall serve as a requirement to enable the evaluation team to assess the qualifications of Contractors 
under consideration for final award. 
 
The information may or may not be a determining factor in award. 
 
 
Contract Number 080316 SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES 
 
The applicant submitting this Proposal warrants the following: 
 
1. Name, Address, and Telephone Number of Principal Contractor: 

   _____________________________________________________________________ 

   _____________________________________________________________________ 

   _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
2. Has Contractor (under its present or any previous name) ever failed to complete a contract? 

________Yes    ________No.   If “Yes, give details, including the date, the contracting agency, and the 
reasons Contractor failed to perform in the narrative part of this Contract. 

 
3. Has Contractor (under its present or any previous name) ever been disbarred or prohibited from 

competing for a contract?  ________Yes   ________No.   If “Yes”, give details, including the date, the 
contracting agency, the reasons for the Contractors disqualification, and whether this disqualification 
remains in effect in the narrative part of this Contract. 

 
4. Has a contracting agency ever terminated a contract for cause with Contractor (under your Contractor’s 

present or any previous name)?  ________Yes   ________No.   If “Yes”, give details including the date, the 
contracting agency, and the reasons Contractor was terminated in the narrative part of this Contract. 

 
5. Contractor must also provide at least the following information:   

a. A brief history of the Contractor. 
b. A Cost Proposal shall be submitted on the Price Sheet, attached hereon and made a full part of 

this contract by this reference. 
c. A list of previous and current customers, which are considered identical or similar to the Scope 

of Services described herein; shall be submitted on the Reference List, attached hereon and 
made a full part of this contract by this reference. 

d. List the specific qualifications the Contractor has in supplying the specified services. 
e. Gila County reserves the right to request additional information. 

 
 
 
 
 

 



RFP NO. 080316/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES Page 21 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 080316 
SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
Qualification & Certification continued…. 

 

 
6. Contractor Experience Modifier (e-mod) Rating in Arizona:  _____________________________ 

                                     (If Applicable) 

A method the National Council on Compensation Insurance (NCCI) uses to measure a business’ computed 
loss ratio and determine a factor, which when multiplied by premium, can reward policyholders with lower 
losses.  E-mod rate may be a determining factor in bid award. 

 

7. Current Contractor Business Arizona License Number:  __________________________________ 
(If Applicable) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

________________________________________ 
       Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Printed Name 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Title 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 080316/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES Page 22 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 080316 
SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
 

PRICE SHEET 

Please complete price sheet in its entirety for the services provided in RFP 080316 SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC 
HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES.   

 

 

Contractor Name:  _____________________________________            Phone No.:  __________________ 
 

 

    
 

 

 
 

COSTS 

 

Annual Rate 
 
(Contractor shall be paid per 
monthly expenditure report.  
Monthly expenditure report to be 
submitted to Gila County by the 15th 
of the following month) 
 
 

 

$ _________________ 
 
 

  

 

TOTAL COST 

 

$ _________________ 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
**All applicable taxes shall be included in proposed amount. 
 
 

      
 ________________________________________ 

       Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Printed Name 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Title 
 
 

 



RFP NO. 080316/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES Page 23 
 

 
REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 080316 

SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
 

REFERENCE LIST 

These references are required to enable the evaluation team to assess the qualifications of the Contractor under 
consideration for final award.       
 
References 

Please list a minimum of three (3) references for contracts of similar size and scope as this Request for Proposals 
during the past twenty-four (24) months, in or as close to Gila County as possible.  Bidder may attach further 
reference information as necessary. 
 

1. Company:  ________________________________________________ 

Contact:   ________________________________________________ 

Phone:    ________________________________________________ 

Address:   ________________________________________________ 

Job Description:  _______________________________________________________________ 

    _______________________________________________________________ 

                 _______________________________________________________________  

 

2. Company:  ________________________________________________ 

Contact:   ________________________________________________ 

Phone:    ________________________________________________ 

Address:   ________________________________________________ 

Job Description:  _______________________________________________________________ 

     _______________________________________________________________ 

                   _______________________________________________________________ 

 

3. Company:  ________________________________________________ 

Contact:   ________________________________________________ 

Phone:    ________________________________________________ 

Address:   ________________________________________________ 

Job Description:  _______________________________________________________________ 

     _______________________________________________________________ 

                               _______________________________________________________________ 

 
 
        _______________________________________ 

           Name of Business 

________________________________________ 
           Signature of Authorized Representative 

________________________________________ 
           Title 

 



RFP NO. 080316/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES Page 24 
 

 
REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 080316 

SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
 

AFFIDAVIT BY BIDDER 
CERTIFYING THAT THERE WAS NO COLLUSION 

IN BIDDING FOR CONTRACT 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA  ) 
    )ss 
COUNTY OF GILA  ) 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
(Name of Individual) 
 

being first duly sworn, deposes and says: 
 
That he/she is ___________________________________________________________________________ 

(Title) 
 
Of _____________________________________________________________________________  and 

(Name of Business) 
 

 That he/she is submitting a proposal on SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES, RFP 
NO. 080316 and, 
 
 That pursuant to Section 112 (C) of Title 23 USC, he certifies as follows: 
 
 That neither he nor anyone associated with the said ___________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 

(Name of Business) 
 

has, directly or indirectly entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion or otherwise taken any action 
in restraint of free competitive bidding in connection with the above mentioned service. 
   
      ____________________________________________ 
      Name of Business 
 
      ____________________________________________ 
      By 
 
      ____________________________________________ 
      Title 
 
       
Subscribed and sworn to before me this _________ day of ____________________________, 2016. 
 
__________________________________ My Commission expires:  ______________________ 
Notary Public 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 080316/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES Page 25 
 

 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 080316 
SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
 

CERTIFICATION:  INTENTIONS CONCERNING SUBCONTRACTING 
 
 
 At the time of the submission of bids on Bid No. 080316 SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT 
SERVICES, my intention concerning subcontracting a portion of the work is as indicated below. 
 
 A list of any subcontractors (if applicable) to be used in performing the service must accompany the Bid.  
The list must include the subcontractors name, address, phone number, and Arizona ROC.  List must be provided 
in a sealed envelope marked “List of Subcontractors”. 

 
 
 
 
 

     YES, it is my intention to subcontract a portion of the work. 
 

     NO,   it is not my intention to subcontract a portion of the work. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________ 
      Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Printed Name 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Title 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 080316/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES Page 26 
 

 
REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 080316 

SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
 

LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE 
 

Contractor hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this Contract  comply with all federal 
immigration laws applicable to Contractor’s employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. 
§ 23-214 (A) (together the “State and Federal Immigration Laws”).  Contractor shall further ensure that each 
subcontractor who performs any work for Contractor under this contract likewise complies with the State and 
Federal Immigration Laws. 
  
County shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and records of Contractor and any subcontractor in 
order to verify such party’s compliance with the State and Federal Immigration Laws.   
 
 Any breach of Contractor’s or any subcontractor’s warranty of compliance with the State and Federal 
Immigration Laws, or of any other provision of this section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this 
Contract subjecting Contractor to penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this Contract. If the 
breach is by a subcontractor, and the subcontract is suspended or terminated as a result, Contractor shall be 
required to take such steps as may be necessary to either self-perform the services that would have been 
provided under the subcontract or retain a replacement subcontractor, as soon as possible so as not to delay 
delivery of services.   
 
 Contractor shall advise each subcontractor of County’s rights, and the subcontractor’s obligations, under this 
Article by including a provision in each subcontract substantially in the following form:  “Subcontractor hereby 
warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all federal immigration laws 
applicable to Subcontractor’s employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A). Subcontractor 
further agrees that County may inspect the Subcontractor’s books and records to insure that Subcontractor is in 
compliance with these requirements.  Any breach of this paragraph by Subcontractor will be deemed to be a 
material breach of this contract subjecting Subcontractor to penalties up to and including suspension or 
termination of this contract.”  
  
Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action under this Article shall be the 
responsibility of Contractor. 
 

 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 

      Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Printed Name 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Title 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 080316/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES Page 27 
 

 
REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 080316 

SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
 

BIDDER CHECKLIST  &  ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that all Bid Documents shall be completed and/or executed and submitted with this 
RFP.  If Contractor fails to complete and/or execute any portion of the Bid documents, all with original signatures, 
the RFP may be determined to be “non-responsive” and rejected. 
 
CHECKLIST: 
 

REQUIRED DOCUMENT      COMPLETED / EXECUTED 
 
QUALIFICATION & CERTIFICATION FORM              ______________ 

PRICE SHEET              ______________ 

REFERENCE LIST             ______________ 

NO COLLUSION FORM            ______________ 

INTENTIONS IN SUBCONTRACTING           ______________ 

LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE          ______________ 

CHECKLIST & ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGMENT          ______________ 

OFFER PAGE              ______________ 

      
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF ADDENDA: 

 

    #1  #2             #3             #4           #5 

Initials         ________        ________          ________           ________          ________ 

Date         ________           ________          ________            ________          ________  
 

 

Signed and dated this _________ day of ______________________, 2016 
 
           ______________________________________ 
                                      Contractor: 

           ______________________________________ 
                                By:   
 
 
Each proposal shall be sealed in an envelope addressed to the Finance Department, Gila County and bearing the following 
statement on the outside of the envelope:  Request for Sealed Proposals:  Bid No. 080316 SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH 
SUPPORT SERVICES.  All proposals shall be filed with the Gila County Finance Department Division in the Guerrero Building 
at 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ on or before September 28, 2016, by 4:00 PM. 

 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 080316/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES Page 28 
 

 
REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 080316 

SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
 

OFFER PAGE  

TO GILA COUNTY: 

The undersigned hereby offers and agrees to furnish the material or service in compliance with all terms and 
conditions, instruction, specifications, and any amendments contained in this Request for Proposal document. 
 
Signature also certifies the Contractors bid proposal is genuine, and is not in any way collusive or a sham; that 
the bid proposal is not made with the intent to restrict or prohibit competition; that the Contractor submitting 
the proposal has not revealed the contents of the proposal to, or in any way colluded with, any other Contractor 
which may compete for the contract; and that no other Contractor which may compete for the contract has 
revealed the contents of a proposal to, or in any way colluded with, the Contractor submitting this proposal. 
 

CONTRACT NUMBER:  080316 SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES 
 
 
 
Contractor Submitting Proposal:    For clarification of this offer, contact: 

 
 
________________________________________  Name:  __________________________________ 
Company Name 
 
________________________________________  Phone No.:  ______________________________ 
Address   
       Fax   ____________________________________ 
_________________________________________ 
City                                State                                Zip  Email:  __________________________________ 
       
 
 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Signature of Authorized Person to Sign 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Printed Name 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Title 
 
 
Proposal must be signed by a duly authorized officer(s) eligible to sign contract documents for the Contractor. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 080316/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES Page 29 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 080316 
SUB-GRANTEE FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF OFFER 
(For Gila County use only) 

 
 
 
 

The Offer is hereby Accepted: 
 

The Contractor                         is now bound to provide the materials or services listed 

in RFP No.: 080316 including all terms and conditions, specifications, amendments, etc. and the Contractor’s 

Offer as accepted by County/public entity. 

 

The contract shall henceforth be referenced to as    Contract No. 080316   . The Contractor has been cautioned 

not to commence any billable work or to provide any material or service under this Contract until Contractor 

receives written notice to proceed from Gila County. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, three (3) identical counterparts of this contract, each which shall include original 
signatures and for all purposes be deemed an original thereof, have been duly executed by the parties 
hereinabove named, on this __________________ day of _________________________________, 20___. 
 
GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:    CONTRACTOR: 
 
 
              
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman of the Board   Authorized Signature 
 
 
ATTEST:              
        Print Name 
 
         
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney 
Civil Bureau Chief 
  for Bradley D. Beauchamp, County Attorney 
 

 



  

Bids X Proposals
     

      

 

FUNDING PROJECTS:

Fund 2527 Dept No. 404 Program Location Account

INTENT

Signed:  Date

DATE Department Receipt Placed on Agenda

Presented to Board Approved to Call

Delivered to Paper Paper Name

Advertised          From To

Closing Date Bid Award Date

Awarded To Pre-Bid Meeting Date
  

Department Name:

Date

Department Name:

Date

Finance Director Signature Date

EXHIBIT "H"

GILA COUNTY DEPARTMENTAL REQUEST TO ADVERTISE FOR BIDS

8/9/2016

Qualifications

REQUEST NUMBER

(For Procurement Use Only)

IS THIS A REQUEST FOR         Check one

 

All departments procuring purchases in excess of $50,000 that requires advertising for bids must follow the Procurement Procedures and 

must complete Item "I" of this form prior to such purchase.  The requesting department is responsible for writing necessary specifications

and routing them, including this form and completed Bid Reqeust Form to the Purchasing Department.  This Form must be completed and

have a copy of the specifciations attached before routing begins.  All Requests and Specifications will be in accordance with the Arizona

Revised Statutes and the latest version of the Gila County Purchasing Policy and Procedures.

8/5/2016

9/14/2016

9/6/2016

9/8/2016

It is the intent of this solicitation to estblish a contract with a contractor to provide for nutrition education, wellness and fitness education, 

and zika virus public outreach and surveillance education.

Elected Official or Department Head

II.  DEPARTMENTAL INFORMATION ONLY:    Action Dates

I.  DESCRIPTION:    List item(s) to be purchased, purpose, specific summary, estimated cost and funding  source.  

4260.99

 

9/6/2016

Arizona Silver Belt

10/4/20169/21/2016

Department Head Signature

IV.  APPROVED 

III.  OTHER APPROVAL:     Only as necessary

Department Head Signature



   
ARF-3931     Regular Agenda Item      3. K.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  

Submitted By: Kelly Riggs, Information Technology
Director

Department: Asst County Manager/Library District Division: Information Technology
Fiscal Year: FY2017 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

9/6/2016 to 9/5/2021 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Information
Request/Subject
Contract with Dell Financial Services, LLC to purchase replacement Dell server hardware and VMWare software
licensing over a 5 year term.

Background Information
The County maintains more than 85 virtual servers on an aging hardware platform of 5 physical servers and 2
storage arrays that are interconnected to share resources. This is the first generation of the County VMWare
platform, which started with 2 servers and 1 storage array almost 6 years ago. By adding 3 additional servers and 1
additional storage array over the last 5 years, it has allowed the County to expand its digital needs to the current
size.  In this time, the County has grown considerably from an estimated 15 original virtual servers and has almost
outstripped the resources available across that environment. The age of the storage arrays and the first servers are
now liabilities as it is hard to find replacement parts and some parts of the environment are outside of warranty and
considered end of life by the manufacturer. In an effort to meet the scalable needs of the County, the I.T. Department
has received hardware quotes and software licensing quotes through approved Arizona State Contract vendors.

Also currently, the County does not have a true method of Disaster Recovery for its stored digital data. The County
has relied on retrieving the information through data backups, and while this has worked successfully in the past, it
is not the recommended method of securing data in the event of a disaster. To this end, the provided quotes contain
enough hardware and licensing to duplicate the VMWare environment, as well as special software to replicate the
data from our County data facility to an offsite location away from the Main Data Facility. This will allow us to
achieve true Disaster Recovery for data and satisfy the State of Arizona, which recommends having a disaster
recovery scenario.

Evaluation
To meet the future needs of the County, staff believes that we need considerably more storage space in the new
equipment, as well as increased size in memory and processors to drive the virtual servers. As the County adds
more virtual machines, they also grow in complexity and require many more resources than older, smaller systems.
This is especially true of storage space, as newer operating systems and enterprise-class programs can have a much
larger footprint and need more dedicated space. The new equipment will provide the County with more than 5 times
the current storage (going from about 20TB of storage to more than 100TB), as well as 3 times the memory, going
from 512GB of memory to 1536GB of memory.

Through protracted discussions and evaluations of 3 different hardware platforms, staff feels that continuing with a
Dell hardware-based solution is still in the best interests of the County. We believe the hardware will integrate better
and Dell pricing is also better in both the hardware and licensing quotes, compared to other vendors. They are also
offering a 0% (Zero) lease agreement over 5 years to assist the County with affordability.

Conclusion
The purchase of the recommended hardware and software licensing would provide at least 5 more years of
supported service through Dell, on a proven hardware platform. It should also be more than sufficient for the
expected growth of County data in that duration. The Tax Exempt Lease Purchase (TELP) agreement with Dell
Financial Services will allow the County to pay for this equipment through an affordable 5 year program with no
cost (0%) financing.

Recommendation
The Information Technology Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the purchase of the
replacement hardware, upgraded software licenses and associated professional services through a lease to purchase
agreement provided by Dell Financial Services, LLC.



Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Master Lease Agreement No. 107446102-19308 between Dell Financial
Services, L.L.C. and Gila County in the amount of $453,835.77 to purchase replacement Dell server hardware and
associated VMWare software licensing at 0% interest rate over a period of five years, from September 6, 2016,
through September 5, 2021.  (Kelly Riggs)

Attachments

Dell Master Lease Agreement
NASPO Contract Addendum
State of Arizona - Dell Approved Vendor Listing
Dell combined pricing quote with Lease options
Dell VMWare Licensing Quote
SHI VMWare Licensing Quote
Dell Hardware Quote
HPE Hardware Quote
Lenovo Hardware Quote
Dell Limited Warranty
Dell Co-pilot Support
Dell Pro-support information
Tax Document for Finance
Public SCC
Billing Information
Terms of Sale
Dell Return Policy
Email County Attorney Approval 
Statement of Work















Shaunda_Bullock
New Stamp

Shaunda_Bullock
Reviewed

























































Master Blanket Purchase Order ADSPO16-098163

Header Information
Purchase Order
Number:

ADSPO16-098163 Release
Number:

0 Short
Description:

Computer
Hardware and
Support

Status: 3PS - Sent Purchaser: Reem
Prendiville

Receipt
Method:

Quantity

Fiscal Year: 2016 PO Type: Blanket Minor Status:
Organization: State of Arizona

Department: ADSPO - State Procurement Office Location: STRGC - SPO
Strategic

Type Code: Statewide

Alternate ID: Entered
Date:

07/10/2015
11:41:43 AM

Control Code:

Days ARO: 0 Retainage
%:

0.00% Discount %: 0.00%

Print Dest Detail: If Different

Catalog ID: Release
Type:

Direct Release Pcard
Enabled:

No

Contact
Instructions:

Reem Prendiville 602-542-9155 or
Reem.Prendiville@azdoa.gov

Tax Rate: Actual Cost: $0.00

Master
Blanket/Contract
End Date
(Maximum):

03/31/2020 11:59:59 PM

Project No.:
Building Code:
Cost Code:
Special Purchase
Types:
PIJ NUMBER:
Coop Spend To
Date:
Commodity
Reference Id:
PO External Doc
Type: None

Agency
Attachments:

PO Terms & Conditions - OLD Arizona NASPO Participating Addendum NASPO Master Contract Amendment 1
Executed A2

State of Arizona - Master Blanket https://procure.az.gov/bso/external/purchaseorder/poSummary.sdo?docI...

1 of 5 8/29/2016 3:16 PM



Vendor
Attachments:
Agency Attachment
Forms:
Vendor Attachment
Forms:
Primary Vendor Information & PO Terms
Vendor: 9000003000 - DELL MARKETING LP

April Rider
One Dell Way, RR8
Round Rock, TX 78746
US
Email: michael_mccollum@dell.com
Phone: (800)981-3355
FAX: (512)283-7558
Alt. Reference: Z0001

Payment
Terms:

Net 30 Shipping
Method:

Best Way

Shipping
Terms:

F.O.B.,
Destination

Freight
Terms:

Freight Allowed

PO
Acknowledgements:

Document Notifications Acknowledged Date/Time

Purchase Order Emailed to april_rider@dell.com at 07/10/2015 01:50:00 PM 07/21/2015 05:34:11 AM

Change Order 1 Emailed to april_rider@dell.com at 08/03/2015 02:18:15 PM

Change Order 2 Emailed to april_rider@dell.com at 08/03/2015 02:23:22 PM 08/05/2015 01:06:58 PM

Change Order 3 Emailed to april_rider@dell.com at 12/29/2015 12:14:46 PM 01/11/2016 08:15:53 AM

Change Order 4 Emailed to michael_mccollum@dell.com at 03/17/2016 01:54:29 PM

Change Order 5 Emailed to michael_mccollum@dell.com at 03/17/2016 02:53:45 PM

Change Order 6 Emailed to michael_mccollum@dell.com at 06/30/2016 02:38:55 PM

Change Order 7 Emailed to michael_mccollum@dell.com at 07/26/2016 03:40:56 PM

Change Order 8 Emailed to michael_mccollum@dell.com at 08/17/2016 01:04:37 PM

Master Blanket/Contract Vendor Distributor List

Vendor ID Alternative ID Vendor Name Preferred Delivery
Method

Vendor Distributor
Status

000000396 PZ000000396 SHI INTERNATIONAL CORP Email Active

000001603 PZ000001603 QCM TECHNOLOGIES INC Email Active

000006173 PZ000006173 iT1 Source, LLC Email Active

000007612 PZ000007612 FRONTIER TECHNOLOGY LLC dba
MicroAge

Email Active

000015265 PZ000015265 CDW Government LLC. Email Active

9000002163 PZ9000002163 INSIGHT PUBLIC SECTOR INC Email Active

9000003000 PZ9000003000 DELL MARKETING LP Email Active

Master Blanket/Contract Controls

Master Blanket/Contract Begin Date: 07/01/2015 Master Blanket/Contract End Date: 03/31/2017

Cooperative Purchasing Allowed: Yes

Organization Department Dollar
Limit

Dollars Spent to
Date

Minimum Order
Amount

State of Arizona - Master Blanket https://procure.az.gov/bso/external/purchaseorder/poSummary.sdo?docI...

2 of 5 8/29/2016 3:16 PM



Organization Department Dollar
Limit

Dollars Spent to
Date

Minimum Order
Amount

ALL ORG - Organization Umbrella Master
Control

AGY - Agency Umbrella Master
Control

$0.00 $5,193,323.79 $0.00

PO Vendor Subcontractor List

Vendor ID Alternative ID Vendor Name Effective Date Expiration Date Estimated Percent Deactivated
(Date Deactivated)

000002845 PZ000002845 VMWARE INC 06/21/2016 0.00% No

Item Information

1-5 of 10
1 2

Print Sequence # 1.0, Item # 1: Computer Hardware - Desktops. Price is percentage off of published product price list or
Contractor website

3PS -
Sent

NIGP Code: 204-53
   Microcomputers, Desktop or Tower based

Receipt Method Qty Unit Cost UOM Discount % Total Discount Amt. Tax Rate Tax Amount Total Cost

Quantity 0.0 $0.00 EA - Each 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Manufacturer: Brand: Model:

Make: Packaging:

Project No.:

Building Code:

Cost Code:

Property Number:

Print Sequence # 2.0, Item # 2: Computer Hardware - Laptops. Price is percentage off published price list or Contractor
website

3PS -
Sent

NIGP Code: 204-54
   Microcomputers, Handheld, Laptop, and Notebook

Receipt Method Qty Unit Cost UOM Discount % Total Discount Amt. Tax Rate Tax Amount Total Cost

Quantity 0.0 $0.00 EA - Each 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Manufacturer: Brand: Model:

Make: Packaging:

Project No.:

Building Code:

Cost Code:

Property Number:

State of Arizona - Master Blanket https://procure.az.gov/bso/external/purchaseorder/poSummary.sdo?docI...

3 of 5 8/29/2016 3:16 PM



Print Sequence # 3.0, Item # 3: Computer Hardware - Tablets. Price is percentage off published price list or see
Contractor website

3PS -
Sent

NIGP Code: 204-54
   Microcomputers, Handheld, Laptop, and Notebook

Receipt Method Qty Unit Cost UOM Discount % Total Discount Amt. Tax Rate Tax Amount Total Cost

Quantity 0.0 $0.00 EA - Each 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Manufacturer: Brand: Model:

Make: Packaging:

Project No.:

Building Code:

Cost Code:

Property Number:

Print Sequence # 4.0, Item # 4: Computer Hardware - Servers. Price is percentage off published price list or see
Contractor website

3PS -
Sent

NIGP Code: 204-91
   Servers, Microcomputer (Application, Database, File, Mail, Network, Web, etc)

Receipt Method Qty Unit Cost UOM Discount % Total Discount Amt. Tax Rate Tax Amount Total Cost

Quantity 0.0 $0.00 EA - Each 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Manufacturer: Brand: Model:

Make: Packaging:

Project No.:

Building Code:

Cost Code:

Property Number:

Print Sequence # 5.0, Item # 5: Peripherals - Printers, monitors or other devices that provide additional functionality to
the processor

3PS -
Sent

NIGP Code: 204-82
   Printers, Microcomputer (Not Otherwise Classified)

Receipt Method Qty Unit Cost UOM Discount % Total Discount Amt. Tax Rate Tax Amount Total Cost

Quantity 0.0 $0.00 EA - Each 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Manufacturer: Brand: Model:

Make: Packaging:

Project No.:

Building Code:

Cost Code:

State of Arizona - Master Blanket https://procure.az.gov/bso/external/purchaseorder/poSummary.sdo?docI...

4 of 5 8/29/2016 3:16 PM



Property Number:

1-5 of 10
1 2

Copyright © 2016 Periscope Holdings, Inc. - All Rights Reserved. AZ-PAS5

State of Arizona - Master Blanket https://procure.az.gov/bso/external/purchaseorder/poSummary.sdo?docI...

5 of 5 8/29/2016 3:16 PM



Prepared For:

September 2, 2016

Term 36 Term 60

Thank you for giving Dell Financial Services L.L.C. (“DFS”) the opportunity to provide a technology financing solution.   Option TELP  Option TELP

Enclosed is a financing proposal for your new technology needs.  We look forward to discussing this opportunity in Payments: Annual Payments: Annual

further detail with you.  If you have any questions, please contact me at the phone number or email address below. Consolidation: Monthly Consolidation: Monthly

Payments Due: Advance Payments Due: Advance

Interim Rent: None Interim Rent: None

 Dell 3 5

Quote Number Payments Payments

Servers, Storage, Networking Hardware $304,230.39 1 $304,230.39 0.33334 $101,412.16 0.20000 $60,846.08

723055175 VMWare Licensing $131,205.38 1 $131,205.38 0.33334 $43,736.00 0.20000 $26,241.08

SOW SRM Implementation Services $18,400.00 1 $18,400.00 0.33334 $6,133.46 0.20000 $3,680.00

TOTALS $453,835.77 $151,281.62 $90,767.15

Proposal Expiration Date:

October 2, 2016

PLEASE NOTE:

End of Term Options:  

Tax Exempt Lease Purchase (TELP):

• Exercise the option to purchase the products for $1.00. 

• Return all products to lessor at the lessee’s expense.

Andre Williams

Inside Financial Sales Rep

Dell | Financial Services 

office + 1 512 728 4037

andre_d_williams@dell.com

Personal Property Taxes (PPT) do not apply to this lease.

Leasing and financing provided by Dell Financial Services L.L.C. or its affiliate or designee (“DFS”) to qualified customers. Offers may not be available or may vary in certain countries. Where 
available, offers may be changed without notice and are subject to product availability, credit approval, execution of documentation provided by and acceptable to DFS, and may be subject 
to minimum transaction size. Offers not available for personal, family or household use. Dell and the Dell logo are trademarks of Dell Inc. Proposal is property of DFS, contains confidential 
information and shall not be duplicated or disclosed in whole or part. Proposal is not a firm offer of financing. Pricing and rates based upon the final amount, configuration and specification 
of the supplied equipment, software, services or fees. Prorata payment may be due in the first payment cycle. Proposal excludes additional costs to customer such as shipping, 
maintenance, filing fees, applicable taxes, insurance and similar items. Proposal valid through the expiration date shown above, or if none is specified, for 30 calendar days from date of 
presentation.

Gila County, AZ

Summary Product Description Product Price Quantity Extended Price Rate Factor Rate Factor

Page 1 of 2



Prepared For:

September 2, 2016

Gila County, AZ

Additional Information:

LEASE QUOTE:  The Lease Quote is exclusive of shipping costs, maintenance fees, filing fees, licensing fees, property or use taxes, insurance premiums and 

similar items which shall be for Lessee's account.  Lessee will pay payments and all other amounts without set-off, abatement or reduction for any reason 

whatsoever.  Additionally, Lessee shall declare and pay all sales, use and personal property taxes to the appropriate taxing authorities. If you are sales tax 

exempt, please provide a copy of your Exemption Certificate with the Lease Contract.  If Lessee provides the appropriate tax exemption certificates to DFS, 

sales and use taxes will not be collected by DFS.  However, if your taxing authority assesses a personal property tax on leased equipment, and if DFS pays that 

tax under your lease structure, Lessee must reimburse DFS for that tax expense in connection with the Lessee's lease. 

PURCHASE ORDER:  The Purchase Order must be made out to Dell Financial Services L.L.C., One Dell Way, RR8-23, Round Rock, TX 78682. The Purchase 

Order will need to include the quote number, quantity and description of the equipment.  Please be sure to indicate that the PO is for a lease order and shows 

the type of lease, the term length, and payment frequency.  The date of the lease quote referenced should be included.  Please be sure to include any applicable 

shipping costs as a line item and include your address as the SHIP TO destination.

INSURANCE:  The risk of loss on the equipment is borne solely by the Lessee.  Lessee shall be required to purchase and maintain during the Term 

(i) comprehensive public liability insurance naming Lessor as additional insured; and (ii) "all-risk" physical damage insurance in a minimum amount of the 

Purchase Price, naming DFS as first loss payee.

APPROPRIATION COVENANT:  The Lease will contain an appropriation of funds clause. The Lessee will covenant that it shall do all things legally within its 

power to obtain and maintain funds from which the payments may be paid.

DOCUMENTATION:  In addition to a duly executed Agreement, other documents as reasonably requested by DFS may be required, such as but not limited to, 

opinions of counsel, IRS tax exemption forms (if applicable), and audited financials.

PROPOSAL VALIDITY / APPROVALS:  This is a proposal based upon market conditions and is valid for 30 days, is subject to final credit approval, review of the 

economics of the transaction, and execution of mutually acceptable documentation. 

Page 2 of 2



QUOTATION
Quote #: 723055175
Customer #: 26666606
Contract #: 70137
CustomerAgreement #: Dell Std Terms
Quote Date: 01/19/2016

Date:  1/19/2016 Customer Name: GILA COUNTY IT

Thanks for choosing Dell! Your quote is detailed below; please review the quote for product and 
informational accuracy. If you find errors or desire certain changes please contact your sales 
professional as soon as possible. 

Sales Professional Information 
SALES REP: B CARPENTER PHONE: 1800 - 4563355
Email Address: Taylor_Wilson@Dell.com Phone Ext: 80000

SOFTWARE & ACCESSORIES GROUP TOTAL: $124,247.51

Product Quantity Unit Price Total
VLA ORAN VPP L3 UPGD VSPHERE 6 ENT TO VSPHERE 
6 W/ OPS MGNT ENT PLUS FOR 1 PROC (A8501484) 10 $1,000.80 $10,008.00
VLA VMWARE PROD VSPH 6 W/ OPERAT MGMT ENT 
PLUS 1YR (A8572182) 50 $879.46 $43,973.00
VLA VMWARE ORAN VPP L3 VSPH6 OPERAT MGMT 
ENT+ 1 PROC (A8535179) 6 $2,813.51 $16,881.06
VLA VMWARE PROD VSPH 6 W/ OPERAT MGMT ENT 
PLUS 1YR (A8572182) 30 $879.46 $26,383.80
VLA VMWARE ORAN VPP L3 VCTR SVR 6 STD VSPH6 
PER INSTAN (A8534571) 2 $4,027.89 $8,055.78
VLA VMWARE PROD SUP/SUB VMWARE VCENTER 
SERVER 6 STANDARD FOR VSPHERE 6 1YR (A8737152) 10 $1,019.92 $10,199.20
VLA ORAN VPP L3 VCENTER SITE RECOVERY 
MANAGER 6 STANDARD (25 VM PACK) (A8302717) 1 $3,769.57 $3,769.57
VLA VMWARE PROD SNS FOR VMWARE VCENTER FOR 
SITE RECOVERY MNGR 6 STD 25PK 1YR (A8737153) 5 $995.42 $4,977.10

*Total Purchase Price: $131,205.38
Product Subtotal: $124,247.51
Tax: $6,957.87
Shipping & Handling: $0.00
State Environmental Fee: $0.00
Shipping Method: UNAUTHORIZED

(* Amount denoted in $) 

Order this quote easily online through your Premier page, or if you do not have Premier, using Quote to 
Order

Page 1 of 3Quote Summary_723055175

1/20/2016file:///C:/Users/Tim_Mathena/Dropbox/Clients/Gila-County/Updated-VMWare-01202016/...



Statement of Conditions
The information in this document is believed to be accurate. However, Dell assumes no responsibility for 
inaccuracies, errors, or omissions, and shall not be liable for direct, indirect, special, incidental, or 
consequential damages resulting from any such error or omission. Dell is not responsible for pricing or 
other errors, and reserves the right to cancel orders arising from such errors. 
Dell may make changes to this proposal including changes or updates to the products and services 
described, including pricing, without notice or obligation. 
Terms of Sale 

This quote is valid for 30 days unless otherwise stated. Unless you have a separate written 
agreement that specifically applies to this order, your order will be subject to and governed by the 
following agreements, each of which are incorporated herein by reference and available in hardcopy 
from Dell at your request: 

If this purchase is for your internal use only: Dell's Commercial Terms of Sale 
(www.dell.com/CTS), which incorporate Dell's U.S. Return Policy (www.dell.com/returnpolicy) and 
Warranty (www.dell.com/warrantyterms). 

If this purchase is intended for resale: Dell's Reseller Terms of Sale 
(www.dell.com/resellerterms). 

If this purchase includes services: in addition to the foregoing applicable terms, Dell's Service 
Terms (www.dell.com/servicecontracts/global). 

If this purchase includes software: in addition to the foregoing applicable terms, your use of the 
software is subject to the license terms accompanying the software, and in the absence of such terms, 
then use of the Dell-branded application software is subject to the Dell End User License Agreement -
Type A (www.dell.com/AEULA) and use of the Dell-branded system software is subject to the Dell End 
User License Agreement - Type S (www.dell.com/SEULA). 

You acknowledge having read and agree to be bound by the foregoing applicable terms in their 
entirety. Any terms and conditions set forth in your purchase order or any other correspondence that are 
in addition to, inconsistent or in conflict with, the foregoing applicable online terms will be of no force or 
effect unless specifically agreed to in a writing signed by Dell that expressly references such terms. 
Additional Terms for Public Customers 

If you are a department, agency, division, or office of any district, state, county or municipal 
government within the United States ("Public Customer"), the following terms ("Public Customer Terms") 
apply in addition to the foregoing terms: A. If any portion of the foregoing terms and conditions (or any 
terms referenced therein) is prohibited by law, such portion shall not apply to you. Notwithstanding 
anything to the contrary, the End User License Agreements shall take precedence in all conflicts 
relevant to your use of any software. B. By placing your order, you confirm that (1) you are a contracting 
officer or other authorized representative of Public Customer with authority to bind the Public Customer 
to these terms and conditions, and (2) you have read and agree to be bound by these terms and 
conditions. 
Pricing, Taxes, and Additional Information 

All product, pricing, and other information is valid for U.S. customers and U.S. addresses only, and is 
based on the latest information available and may be subject to change. Dell reserves the right to cancel 
quotes and orders arising from pricing or other errors. Sales tax on products shipped is based on your 
"Ship To" address, and for software downloads is based on your "Bill To" address. Please indicate any 
tax-exempt status on your PO, and fax your exemption certificate, including your Customer Number, to 
the Dell Tax Department at 800-433-9023. Please ensure that your tax-exemption certificate reflects the 
correct Dell entity name: Dell Marketing L.P. Note: All tax quoted above is an estimate; final taxes will be 
listed on the invoice. If you have any questions regarding tax please send an e-mail to 
Tax_Department@dell.com.
For certain products shipped to end-users in California, a State Environmental Fee will be applied to 
your invoice. Dell encourages customers to dispose of electronic equipment properly. 
All information supplied to GILA COUNTY IT for the purpose of this proposal is to be considered 
confidential information belonging to Dell. 
About Dell
Dell Inc. listens to customers and delivers innovative technology and services they trust and value. 
Uniquely enabled by its direct business model, Dell is a leading global systems and services company 
and No. 34 on the Fortune 500. For more information, visit http://www.dell.com/. 
Privacy Policy
Dell respects your privacy. Across our business, around the world, Dell will collect, store, and use 
customer information only to support and enhance our relationship with your organization, for example, 

Page 2 of 3Quote Summary_723055175

1/20/2016file:///C:/Users/Tim_Mathena/Dropbox/Clients/Gila-County/Updated-VMWare-01202016/...



to process your purchase, provide service and support, and share product, service, and company news 
and offerings with you. Dell does not sell your personal information. For a complete statement of our 
Global Privacy Policy, please visit dell.com/privacy. 

Page 3 of 3Quote Summary_723055175

1/20/2016file:///C:/Users/Tim_Mathena/Dropbox/Clients/Gila-County/Updated-VMWare-01202016/...



 
Pricing Proposal
Quotation #:  12024436
Created On:  8/10/2016
Valid Until:   9/9/2016

 
Gila County

 
Inside Sales Account
Manager

 
Kelly Riggs
1400 E. Ash Street
Globe, Arizona 85501
United States
Phone:  
Fax:  
Email: kriggs@gilacountyaz.gov

 

Nirav Patel
290 Davidson Avenue
Somerset,NJ 08873
United States
Phone: 732-564-8383
Fax: 1-866-941-6845
Email: Nirav_Patel@shi.com

All Prices are in US Dollar (USD) 
  Product Qty Your Price Total

 
1 Upgrade: VMware vSphere 6 Enterprise to vSphere 6 with Operations Management

Enterprise Plus for 1 Processor Promo VMware vSphere 6 with Operations
Management Enterprise Plus 
   VMware - Part#: VS6-EN-OEPL-UG-PRO 
   Note: Active license key/serial number(s) required for upgrades at the time of PO

10 $707.00 $7,070.00

 
2 Production Support/Subscription VMware vSphere 6 with Operations Management

Enterprise Plus for 5 years Technical Support, 24 Hour Sev 1 Support -- 7 days a
week. 
   VMware - Part#: VS6-OEPL-P-SSS-C 
   Note:  5 years Support

50 $882.00 $44,100.00

 
3 VPP L3 VMware vSphere 6 with Operations Management Enterprise Plus for 1

processor . 
   VMware - Part#: VS6-OEPL-C-L3 
   Note: vSphere with Operations Management Enterprise Plus includes features,
such as: Health Monitoring and Performance Analytics, Capacity Management,
Operations Dashboard, vMotion, High Availability, Data Protection, Replication,
Distributed Resource Scheduler, Big Data Extensions, Distributed Switch.

6 $3,373.00 $20,238.00

 
4 Production Support/Subscription VMware vSphere 6 with Operations Management

Enterprise Plus for 5 years Technical Support, 24 Hour Sev 1 Support -- 7 days a
week. 
   VMware - Part#: VS6-OEPL-P-SSS-C 
   Note:  5 years Support

30 $882.00 $26,460.00

 
5 VPP L3 VMware vCenter Server 6 Standard for vSphere 6 (Per Instance) 

   VMware - Part#: VCS6-STD-C-L3
2 $4,769.00 $9,538.00

 
6 Production Support/Subscription VMware vCenter Server 6 Standard for vSphere 6

(Per Instance) for 5 years Technical Support, 24 Hour Sev 1 Support -- 7 days a
week. 
   VMware - Part#: VCS6-STD-P-SSS-C 
   Note:  5 years Support

10 $1,203.00 $12,030.00

 
7 VPP L3 VMware Site Recovery Manager 6 Standard (25 VM Pack) EA  1 $3,741.00 $3,741.00



   VMware - Part#: VC-SRM6-25S-C-L3

 
8 Production Support/Subscription for VMware Site Recovery Manager 6 Standard (25

VM Pack) for 5 Years EA 
   VMware - Part#: VC-SRM6-25S-P-SSS-C 
   Note:  5 years Support

5 $978.00 $4,890.00

 
Subtotal $128,067.00

*Tax $8,452.42

Total $136,519.42

  *Tax is estimated. Invoice will include the full and final tax due.

Additional Comments

WSCA Contract AZ: ADSPO11-007500

SHI has recently been awarded as an Direct Reseller for Arizona’s HP / WSCA Contract." Now there are no boundaries to using
SHI for your HP solutions”

First time user for SHI Direct website? Please use the following information when registering.

Arizona K-12:
http://www.publicsector.shidirect.com/k12/azi
Token: 8442
Access Key: BB5WNY5L7A

Arizona Gov't:
http://www.publicsector.shidirect.com/slg/az
Token: 8496
Access Key: BWB!UPBWYA

Arizona Hi-Ed:
http://www.publicsector.shidirect.com/hied/az
Token:8393
Access Key:UW9R45KM3!

Colorado Gov't:
http://www.publicsector.shidirect.com/slg/co
Token:8499
Access Key:3PQT94B6WZ

Colorado Hi-Ed:
http://www.publicsector.shidirect.com/hied/co
Token:8396
Access Key:HNN2I33U65

Colorado K-12
http://www.publicsector.shidirect.com/k12/co
Token: 8445
Access Key: 45KMYUXE8X

The Products offered under this proposal are subject to the SHI Return Policy posted at www.shi.com/returnpolicy, unless there is
an existing agreement between SHI and the Customer.

http://www.shi.com/returnpolicy


Company

Quote Date 8/2/16 Customer #
Quote # Product Description QTY Subtotal Tax Shipping Extended

733534208 PowerEdge FX2 1 $54,190.88 $3,034.71 $0.00 $57,225.59
733534213 Dell Networking N4032F, 24x 10GbE SFP+ Ports, 1x Modular bay, 2x AC PSU, IO to PSU Airflow 2 $15,077.62 $844.34 $0.00 $15,921.96
732284957 SC4020 10Gb iSCSI - 4ports 1 $74,780.00 $4,187.65 $0.00 $78,967.65
733534161 PowerEdge FX2 1 $54,190.88 $3,034.71 $0.00 $57,225.59
733534167 Dell Networking N4032F, 24x 10GbE SFP+ Ports, 1x Modular bay, 2x AC PSU, IO to PSU Airflow 2 $15,077.62 $844.34 $0.00 $15,921.96
732286213 SC4020 10Gb iSCSI - 4ports 1 $74,780.00 $4,187.64 $0.00 $78,967.64

Non tied Software and Peripherals

Enterprise Solutions Consultant $288,097.00
Garrick Funderburk $0.00
Garrick_Funderburk@dell.com $0.00
512-513-8281 $16,133.39

$304,230.39

GILA COUNTY FINANCE DEPT

26666606

Site 2

Site 1

Grand Total

Hardware

Shipping
Sales Tax

Project Totals

Software and Peripherals

Application Description



Quote #: 732286213
Customer #: 26666606
Contract #: WN01AGW
CustomerAgreement #: ADSPO16-098163
Quote Date: 8/2/2016
Customer Name: GILA COUNTY FINANCE DEPT

SALES REP: B CARPENTER PHONE: 1800 - 4563355
Email Address: Lindsey_Christopher@Dell.com Phone Ext: 7285186

GROUP: 1 QUANTITY: 1 SYSTEM PRICE: $46,823.39 GROUP TOTAL: $46,823.39
Quantity

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

12
12
1
1

GROUP: 2 QUANTITY: 1 SYSTEM PRICE: $11,472.34 GROUP TOTAL: $11,472.34
Quantity

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

12
1
1
1

GROUP: 3 QUANTITY: 1 SYSTEM PRICE: $11,461.54 GROUP TOTAL: $11,461.54
Quantity

1
1
1
1
1
1

ReadyRails II Static Rails for 4-post Racks (770-BBCM)
Thank you choosing Dell. For tech support, visit http://www.compellent.com/Support-Services.aspx or call 1-866 (931-
Dell Hardware Limited Warranty Initial Year (968-0652)
Dell Hardware Limited Warranty Extended Year(s) (968-0653)

C13 to C14, PDU Style, 10 AMP, 6.5 Feet (2m), Power Cord, Qty2 (331-7993)
(* )

Description
Compellent SC200 Enclosure (add-on enclosure) (225-3873)
US / Canada Shipment - SC200 (331-9142)

ProDeploy Plus Dell Storage SC Disk Series 200/220 2U Exp Enclosure - Deployment (804-2127)
ProDeploy Plus Dell Storage SC Disk Series 200/220 2U Exp Enclosure - Deployment Verification (804-2130)
ProDeploy Plus Training Credits 200 Redeem at www.LearnDell.com Expires 1Yr from Order Date (804-6759)
SC200, 4TB NL SAS 6Gb, 7.2K, 3.5 HDD (342-5836)
6Gb Mini-SAS to Mini-SAS Cable, 2M, Qty 2 (331-9146)

Dell Hardware Limited Warranty Extended Year(s) (968-0653)
Dell Compellent Copilot: 4-Hour 7x24 On-site Service After Problem Diagnosis, Initial Year (972-5332)
Dell Compellent Copilot: 4-Hour 7x24 On-site Service After Problem Diagnosis, 4 Year Extended (972-5335)
Dell Compellent Copilot: 7x24 HW / SW Tech Support and Assistance , 5 Year (972-5342)
HARDWARE INSTALL INCLUDED IN SAN/DAS IMP/INST BUNDLE (984-4327)

US / Canada Shipment - SC200 (331-9142)
ReadyRails II Static Rails for 4-post Racks (770-BBCM)
Thank you choosing Dell. For tech support, visit http://www.compellent.com/Support-Services.aspx or call 1-866 (931-
Dell Hardware Limited Warranty Initial Year (968-0652)

Enclosure Blank, SAS, Drive Bay Blanks, 2.5" (400-ADOJ)
Jumper Cord, 12A,2M,C13,C14 (TW/APCC countries except ANZ, EU), 2 Pcs (450-ADHH)
(* )

Description
Compellent SC200 Enclosure (add-on enclosure) (225-3873)

Software Support, Remote Data Protection Live Volume Base Bundle License,7X24,5YRS (975-8531)
Software Support, Performance Bundle Base License, 7X24, 5 Year (976-1818)
SHIP,SC4020,DAO (340-AIZT)
Info SKU - No Hard Drive (400-ACPB)
Dell 1.92TB, SAS, 12Gb, 2.5 Mainstream RI SSD (400-AJFE)

ProDeploy Plus Training Credits 700 Redeem at www.LearnDell.com Expires 1Yr from Order Date (804-2141)
SC4020 Storage Center Software Bundle, Base 48 License (632-BBCM)
SC4020 Storage Optimization Bundle, Base 48 License (632-BBCK)
Remote Data Protection + Live Volume Base 48 License (634-BDSF)
Software Support, 7X24, Storage Center Software Base Bundle License, 5 Year (976-1812)

Dell Compellent Copilot: 7x24 HW / SW Tech Support and Assistance , 5 Year (976-1807)
Hardware Installation IncludedIn SAN/DAS Implementation Installation (981-9069)
US Order (332-1286)
ProDeploy Plus Dell Storage SC Series 4XXX SAN - Deployment (804-2137)
ProDeploy Plus Dell Storage SC Series 4XXX SAN - Deployment Verification (804-2138)

QUOTATION

Date:  8/2/2016

Thanks for choosing Dell! Your quote is detailed below; please review the quote for product and informational accuracy. If you find errors or desire certain

Description
SC4020 10Gb iSCSI - 4ports (210-ACRR)
Thank you choosing Dell. For tech support, visit http://www.compellent.com/Support-Services.aspx or call 1-866 (931-
Dell Hardware Limited Warranty Initial Year (973-8834)

Sales Professional Information

Dell Hardware Limited Warranty Extended Year(s) (973-8835)
Dell Compellent Copilot: 4-Hour 7x24 On-site Service After Problem Diagnosis, Initial Year (976-1795)
Dell Compellent Copilot: 4-Hour 7x24 On-site Service After Problem Diagnosis, 4 Year Extended (976-1806)



1
1
1
1
1
1
1

12
1
1
1

GROUP: 4 QUANTITY: 1 SYSTEM PRICE: $0.00 GROUP TOTAL: $0.00
Quantity

1
1

SOFTWARE & ACCESSORIES
Product Quantity Unit Price Total
6Gb Mini-SAS to Mini-SAS Cable, 2M, Qty 2,
Customer Kit (331-9833) 1 $52.70 $52.70
Dell Education Services - Dell SC Storage
Center Administration and Management
4day Training ILT - PRICEPERUSE (973-
7428) 1 $4,970.03 $4,970.03

COMMENT
DLA123159
DLA123159
DLA123159
DLA123159

*Total Purchase Price:
Product Subtotal:
Tax:
Shipping & Handling:
State Environmental Fee:
Shipping Method:

Statement of Conditions

The information in this document is believed
to be accurate. However, Dell assumes no
responsibility for inaccuracies, errors, or
omissions, and shall not be liable for direct,
indirect, special, incidental, or consequential
damages resulting from any such error or
omission. Dell is not responsible for pricing
or other errors, and reserves the right to
cancel orders arising from such errors.

Dell may make changes to this proposal
including changes or updates to the products
and services described, including pricing,
without notice or obligation.
Terms of Sale

(* Amount denoted in $)

GROUP TOTAL: $5,022.73

$74,780.00
$4,187.64

$0.00

ProDeploy Plus Training Credits 200 Redeem at www.LearnDell.com Expires 1Yr from Order Date (804-6759)
SC200, 4TB NL SAS 6Gb, 7.2K, 3.5 HDD (342-5836)

$0.00
LTL 5 DAY OR LESS

6Gb Mini-SAS to Mini-SAS Cable, 0.6M, Qty 2 (331-9144)
C13 to C14, PDU Style, 10 AMP, 6.5 Feet (2m), Power Cord, Qty2 (331-7993)
(* )

Description
SC200/SC220/SC280/SC4020 Customer Kits, Spares (469-3411)
(* )

Dell Compellent Copilot: 4-Hour 7x24 On-site Service After Problem Diagnosis, 4 Year Extended (972-5335)
Dell Compellent Copilot: 7x24 HW / SW Tech Support and Assistance , 5 Year (972-5342)
HARDWARE INSTALL INCLUDED IN SAN/DAS IMP/INST BUNDLE (984-4327)
ProDeploy Plus Dell Storage SC Disk Series 200/220 2U Exp Enclosure - Deployment (804-2127)
ProDeploy Plus Dell Storage SC Disk Series 200/220 2U Exp Enclosure - Deployment Verification (804-2130)

Dell Compellent Copilot: 4-Hour 7x24 On-site Service After Problem Diagnosis, Initial Year (972-5332)

$78,967.64

Order this quote easily online through your Premier page, or if you do not have Premier, using Quote to Order



This quote is valid for 30 days unless
otherwise stated. Unless you have a
separate written agreement that specifically
applies to this order, your order will be
subject to and governed by the following
agreements, each of which are incorporated
herein by reference and available in
hardcopy from Dell at your request:
If this purchase is for your internal use only:
Dell's Commercial Terms of Sale
(www.dell.com/CTS), which incorporate
Dell's U.S. Return Policy
(www.dell.com/returnpolicy) and Warranty
(www.dell.com/warrantyterms).
If this purchase is intended for resale: Dell's
Reseller Terms of Sale
(www.dell.com/resellerterms).

If this purchase includes services: in
addition to the foregoing applicable terms,
Dell's Service Terms
(www.dell.com/servicecontracts/global).

If this purchase includes software: in addition
to the foregoing applicable terms, your use of
the software is subject to the license terms
accompanying the software, and in the
absence of such terms, then use of the Dell-
branded application software is subject to the
Dell End User License Agreement - Type A
(www.dell.com/AEULA) and use of the Dell-
branded system software is subject to the
Dell End User License Agreement - Type S
(www.dell.com/SEULA).
You acknowledge having read and agree to
be bound by the foregoing applicable terms
in their entirety. Any terms and conditions set
forth in your purchase order or any other
correspondence that are in addition to,
inconsistent or in conflict with, the foregoing
applicable online terms will be of no force or
effect unless specifically agreed to in a
writing signed by Dell that expressly
references such terms.
Additional Terms for Public Customers

If you are a department, agency, division, or
office of any district, state, county or
municipal government within the United
States ("Public Customer"), the following
terms ("Public Customer Terms") apply in
addition to the foregoing terms: A. If any
portion of the foregoing terms and conditions
(or any terms referenced therein) is
prohibited by law, such portion shall not
apply to you. Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary, the End User License Agreements
shall take precedence in all conflicts relevant
to your use of any software. B. By placing
your order, you confirm that (1) you are a
contracting officer or other authorized
representative of Public Customer with
authority to bind the Public Customer to
these terms and conditions, and (2) you have
read and agree to be bound by these terms
and conditions.

Pricing, Taxes, and Additional Information



All product, pricing, and other information is
valid for U.S. customers and U.S. addresses
only, and is based on the latest information
available and may be subject to change. Dell
reserves the right to cancel quotes and
orders arising from pricing or other errors.
Sales tax on products shipped is based on
your "Ship To" address, and for software
downloads is based on your "Bill To"
address. Please indicate any tax-exempt
status on your PO, and fax your exemption
certificate, including your Customer Number,
to the Dell Tax Department at 800-433-9023.
Please ensure that your tax-exemption
certificate reflects the correct Dell entity
name: Dell Marketing L.P. Note: All tax
quoted above is an estimate; final taxes will
be listed on the invoice. If you have any
questions regarding tax please send an e-
mail to Tax_Department@dell.com.
For certain products shipped to end-users in
California, a State Environmental Fee will be
applied to your invoice. Dell encourages
customers to dispose of electronic
equipment properly.
All information supplied to GILA COUNTY
FINANCE DEPT for the purpose of this
proposal is to be considered confidential
information belonging to Dell.
About Dell

Dell Inc. listens to customers and delivers
innovative technology and services they
trust and value. Uniquely enabled by its
direct business model, Dell is a leading
global systems and services company and
No. 34 on the Fortune 500. For more
information, visit www.dell.com.
Privacy Policy

Dell respects your privacy. Across our
business, around the world, Dell will collect,
store, and use customer information only
to support and enhance our relationship
with your organization, for example, to
process your purchase, provide service and
support, and share product, service, and
company news and offerings with you. Dell
does not sell your personal information. For
a complete statement of our Global Privacy
Policy, please visit dell.com/privacy.



Quote #: 732284957
Customer #: 26666606
Contract #: WN01AGW
CustomerAgreement #: ADSPO16-098163
Quote Date: 8/2/2016
Customer Name: GILA COUNTY FINANCE DEPT

SALES REP: LINDSEY CHRISTOPHER PHONE: 1800 - 4563355
Email Address: Lindsey_Christopher@Dell.com Phone Ext: 7285186

GROUP: 1 QUANTITY: 1 SYSTEM PRICE: $46,918.94 GROUP TOTAL: $46,918.94
Quantity

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

12
12
1
1

GROUP: 2 QUANTITY: 1 SYSTEM PRICE: $11,424.65 GROUP TOTAL: $11,424.65
Quantity

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

12
1
1
1

GROUP: 3 QUANTITY: 1 SYSTEM PRICE: $11,413.90 GROUP TOTAL: $11,413.90
Quantity

1
1
1
1
1

Thank you choosing Dell. For tech support, visit http://www.compellent.com/Support-Services.aspx or call 1-866 (931-
Dell Hardware Limited Warranty Initial Year (968-0652)

(* )

Description
Compellent SC200 Enclosure (add-on enclosure) (225-3873)
US / Canada Shipment - SC200 (331-9142)
ReadyRails II Static Rails for 4-post Racks (770-BBCM)

ProDeploy Plus Dell Storage SC Disk Series 200/220 2U Exp Enclosure - Deployment Verification (804-2130)
ProDeploy Plus Training Credits 200 Redeem at www.LearnDell.com Expires 1Yr from Order Date (804-6759)
SC200, 4TB NL SAS 6Gb, 7.2K, 3.5 HDD (342-5836)
6Gb Mini-SAS to Mini-SAS Cable, 2M, Qty 2 (331-9146)
C13 to C14, PDU Style, 10 AMP, 6.5 Feet (2m), Power Cord, Qty2 (331-7993)

Dell Compellent Copilot: 4-Hour 7x24 On-site Service After Problem Diagnosis, Initial Year (972-5332)
Dell Compellent Copilot: 4-Hour 7x24 On-site Service After Problem Diagnosis, 4 Year Extended (972-5335)
Dell Compellent Copilot: 7x24 HW / SW Tech Support and Assistance , 5 Year (972-5342)
HARDWARE INSTALL INCLUDED IN SAN/DAS IMP/INST BUNDLE (984-4327)
ProDeploy Plus Dell Storage SC Disk Series 200/220 2U Exp Enclosure - Deployment (804-2127)

US / Canada Shipment - SC200 (331-9142)
ReadyRails II Static Rails for 4-post Racks (770-BBCM)
Thank you choosing Dell. For tech support, visit http://www.compellent.com/Support-Services.aspx or call 1-866 (931-
Dell Hardware Limited Warranty Initial Year (968-0652)
Dell Hardware Limited Warranty Extended Year(s) (968-0653)

Enclosure Blank, SAS, Drive Bay Blanks, 2.5" (400-ADOJ)
Jumper Cord, 12A,2M,C13,C14 (TW/APCC countries except ANZ, EU), 2 Pcs (450-ADHH)
(* )

Description
Compellent SC200 Enclosure (add-on enclosure) (225-3873)

Software Support, Performance Bundle Base License, 7X24, 5 Year (976-1818)
Software Support, Remote Data Protection Live Volume Base Bundle License,7X24,5YRS (975-8531)
SHIP,SC4020,DAO (340-AIZT)
Info SKU - No Hard Drive (400-ACPB)
Dell 1.92TB, SAS, 12Gb, 2.5 Mainstream RI SSD (400-AJFE)

SC4020 Storage Center Software Bundle, Base 48 License (632-BBCM)
SC4020 Storage Optimization Bundle, Base 48 License (632-BBCK)
Remote Data Protection + Live Volume Base 48 License (634-BDSF)
ProDeploy Plus Add-On: Replication Services for Dell Storage (Requires ProDeploy Plus) (804-2163)
Software Support, 7X24, Storage Center Software Base Bundle License, 5 Year (976-1812)

Hardware Installation IncludedIn SAN/DAS Implementation Installation (981-9069)
US Order (332-1286)
ProDeploy Plus Dell Storage SC Series 4XXX SAN - Deployment (804-2137)
ProDeploy Plus Dell Storage SC Series 4XXX SAN - Deployment Verification (804-2138)
ProDeploy Plus Training Credits 700 Redeem at www.LearnDell.com Expires 1Yr from Order Date (804-2141)

QUOTATION

Date:  8/2/2016

Thanks for choosing Dell! Your quote is detailed below; please review the quote for product and informational accuracy. If you find errors or desire certain

Description
SC4020 10Gb iSCSI - 4ports (210-ACRR)
Thank you choosing Dell. For tech support, visit http://www.compellent.com/Support-Services.aspx or call 1-866 (931-
Dell Hardware Limited Warranty Initial Year (973-8834)

Sales Professional Information

Dell Hardware Limited Warranty Extended Year(s) (973-8835)
Dell Compellent Copilot: 4-Hour 7x24 On-site Service After Problem Diagnosis, Initial Year (976-1795)
Dell Compellent Copilot: 4-Hour 7x24 On-site Service After Problem Diagnosis, 4 Year Extended (976-1806)
Dell Compellent Copilot: 7x24 HW / SW Tech Support and Assistance , 5 Year (976-1807)



1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

12
1
1
1

GROUP: 4 QUANTITY: 1 SYSTEM PRICE: $0.00 GROUP TOTAL: $0.00
Quantity

1
1

SOFTWARE & ACCESSORIES
Product Quantity Unit Price Total
6Gb Mini-SAS to Mini-SAS Cable, 2M, Qty 2,
Customer Kit (331-9833) 1 $52.48 $52.48
Dell Education Services - Dell SC Storage
Center Administration and Management
4day Training ILT - PRICEPERUSE (973-
7428) 1 $4,970.03 $4,970.03

COMMENT
DLA123154
DLA123154
DLA123154
DLA123154

*Total Purchase Price:
Product Subtotal:
Tax:
Shipping & Handling:
State Environmental Fee:
Shipping Method:

Statement of Conditions

The information in this document is believed
to be accurate. However, Dell assumes no
responsibility for inaccuracies, errors, or
omissions, and shall not be liable for direct,
indirect, special, incidental, or consequential
damages resulting from any such error or
omission. Dell is not responsible for pricing
or other errors, and reserves the right to
cancel orders arising from such errors.

Dell may make changes to this proposal
including changes or updates to the products
and services described, including pricing,
without notice or obligation.
Terms of Sale

(* Amount denoted in $)
LTL 5 DAY OR LESS

$0.00

SC200, 4TB NL SAS 6Gb, 7.2K, 3.5 HDD (342-5836)
6Gb Mini-SAS to Mini-SAS Cable, 0.6M, Qty 2 (331-9144)
C13 to C14, PDU Style, 10 AMP, 6.5 Feet (2m), Power Cord, Qty2 (331-7993)
(* )

Description

$4,187.65
$0.00

Dell Compellent Copilot: 7x24 HW / SW Tech Support and Assistance , 5 Year (972-5342)
HARDWARE INSTALL INCLUDED IN SAN/DAS IMP/INST BUNDLE (984-4327)
ProDeploy Plus Dell Storage SC Disk Series 200/220 2U Exp Enclosure - Deployment (804-2127)
ProDeploy Plus Dell Storage SC Disk Series 200/220 2U Exp Enclosure - Deployment Verification (804-2130)
ProDeploy Plus Training Credits 200 Redeem at www.LearnDell.com Expires 1Yr from Order Date (804-6759)

SC200/SC220/SC280/SC4020 Customer Kits, Spares (469-3411)
(* )

GROUP TOTAL: $5,022.51

$74,780.00

Dell Hardware Limited Warranty Extended Year(s) (968-0653)
Dell Compellent Copilot: 4-Hour 7x24 On-site Service After Problem Diagnosis, Initial Year (972-5332)
Dell Compellent Copilot: 4-Hour 7x24 On-site Service After Problem Diagnosis, 4 Year Extended (972-5335)

$78,967.65

Order this quote easily online through your Premier page, or if you do not have Premier, using Quote to Order



This quote is valid for 30 days unless
otherwise stated. Unless you have a
separate written agreement that specifically
applies to this order, your order will be
subject to and governed by the following
agreements, each of which are incorporated
herein by reference and available in
hardcopy from Dell at your request:
If this purchase is for your internal use only:
Dell's Commercial Terms of Sale
(www.dell.com/CTS), which incorporate
Dell's U.S. Return Policy
(www.dell.com/returnpolicy) and Warranty
(www.dell.com/warrantyterms).
If this purchase is intended for resale: Dell's
Reseller Terms of Sale
(www.dell.com/resellerterms).

If this purchase includes services: in
addition to the foregoing applicable terms,
Dell's Service Terms
(www.dell.com/servicecontracts/global).

If this purchase includes software: in addition
to the foregoing applicable terms, your use of
the software is subject to the license terms
accompanying the software, and in the
absence of such terms, then use of the Dell-
branded application software is subject to the
Dell End User License Agreement - Type A
(www.dell.com/AEULA) and use of the Dell-
branded system software is subject to the
Dell End User License Agreement - Type S
(www.dell.com/SEULA).
You acknowledge having read and agree to
be bound by the foregoing applicable terms
in their entirety. Any terms and conditions set
forth in your purchase order or any other
correspondence that are in addition to,
inconsistent or in conflict with, the foregoing
applicable online terms will be of no force or
effect unless specifically agreed to in a
writing signed by Dell that expressly
references such terms.
Additional Terms for Public Customers

If you are a department, agency, division, or
office of any district, state, county or
municipal government within the United
States ("Public Customer"), the following
terms ("Public Customer Terms") apply in
addition to the foregoing terms: A. If any
portion of the foregoing terms and conditions
(or any terms referenced therein) is
prohibited by law, such portion shall not
apply to you. Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary, the End User License Agreements
shall take precedence in all conflicts relevant
to your use of any software. B. By placing
your order, you confirm that (1) you are a
contracting officer or other authorized
representative of Public Customer with
authority to bind the Public Customer to
these terms and conditions, and (2) you have
read and agree to be bound by these terms
and conditions.

Pricing, Taxes, and Additional Information



All product, pricing, and other information is
valid for U.S. customers and U.S. addresses
only, and is based on the latest information
available and may be subject to change. Dell
reserves the right to cancel quotes and
orders arising from pricing or other errors.
Sales tax on products shipped is based on
your "Ship To" address, and for software
downloads is based on your "Bill To"
address. Please indicate any tax-exempt
status on your PO, and fax your exemption
certificate, including your Customer Number,
to the Dell Tax Department at 800-433-9023.
Please ensure that your tax-exemption
certificate reflects the correct Dell entity
name: Dell Marketing L.P. Note: All tax
quoted above is an estimate; final taxes will
be listed on the invoice. If you have any
questions regarding tax please send an e-
mail to Tax_Department@dell.com.
For certain products shipped to end-users in
California, a State Environmental Fee will be
applied to your invoice. Dell encourages
customers to dispose of electronic
equipment properly.
All information supplied to GILA COUNTY
FINANCE DEPT for the purpose of this
proposal is to be considered confidential
information belonging to Dell.
About Dell

Dell Inc. listens to customers and delivers
innovative technology and services they
trust and value. Uniquely enabled by its
direct business model, Dell is a leading
global systems and services company and
No. 34 on the Fortune 500. For more
information, visit www.dell.com.
Privacy Policy

Dell respects your privacy. Across our
business, around the world, Dell will collect,
store, and use customer information only
to support and enhance our relationship
with your organization, for example, to
process your purchase, provide service and
support, and share product, service, and
company news and offerings with you. Dell
does not sell your personal information. For
a complete statement of our Global Privacy
Policy, please visit dell.com/privacy.



Quote #: 733534213
Customer #: 26666606
Contract #: WN01AGW
CustomerAgreement #: ADSPO16-098163
Quote Date: 8/31/2016
Customer Name: GILA COUNTY IT

SALES REP: B CARPENTER PHONE: 1800 - 4563355
Email Address: B_Carpenter@Dell.com Phone Ext: 5138192

GROUP: 1 QUANTITY: 2 SYSTEM PRICE: $7,538.81 GROUP TOTAL: $15,077.62
Quantity

2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
4
6
6

*Total Purchase Price:
Product Subtotal:
Tax:
Shipping & Handling:
State Environmental Fee:
Shipping Method:

Statement of Conditions

The information in this document is believed
to be accurate. However, Dell assumes no
responsibility for inaccuracies, errors, or
omissions, and shall not be liable for direct,
indirect, special, incidental, or consequential
damages resulting from any such error or
omission. Dell is not responsible for pricing
or other errors, and reserves the right to
cancel orders arising from such errors.

QUOTATION

Date:  8/31/2016

Thanks for choosing Dell! Your quote is detailed below; please review the quote for product and informational accuracy. If you find errors or

$15,921.96

Documentation Kit, N4000 Series Switch (340-AGNR)
Power Cord, 125V, 15A, 10 Feet, NEMA 5-15/C13 (450-AAFH)

Thank you for choosing Dell ProSupport Plus. For tech support, visit http://www.dell.com/contactdell (951-
Dell Hardware Limited Warranty Initial Year (966-6411)

Sales Professional Information

Power Cord, 125V, 15A, 10 Feet, NEMA 5-15/C13 (450-AAFH)

Order this quote easily online through your Premier page, or if you do not have Premier, using Quote to Order

Description
Dell Networking N4032F, 24x 10GbE SFP+ Ports, 1x Modular bay, 2x AC PSU, IO to PSU Airflow (210-

ProSupport Plus: Next Business Day Onsite Service After Problem Diagnosis, Initial Year (966-6574)
ProSupport Plus: Next Business Day Onsite Service After Problem Diagnosis, 4 Year Extended (966-6582)
ProSupport Plus: 7x24 HW/SW Tech Support and Assistance, 5 Year (966-6600)

Dell Networking, Cable, SFP+ to SFP+, 10GbE, Copper Twinax Direct Attach Cable, 1 Meter (470-AAGN)
Dell Networking, Cable, SFP+ to SFP+, 10GbE, Copper Twinax Direct Attach Cable, 3 Meter (470-AAGP)

$15,077.62
$844.34

$0.00

US Order (332-1286)
ProDeploy Dell Networking N Series 4XXX Switch - Deployment (805-2382)
ProDeploy Dell Networking L3 N Series 4XXX Switch - Deployment Verification (805-2383)

(* Amount denoted in $)

$0.00
LTL 5 DAY OR LESS

Dell Networking, Cable, SFP+ to SFP+, 10GbE, Copper Twinax Direct Attach Cable, 0.5 Meter (470-AAGL)

Dell Hardware Limited Warranty Extended Year(s) (966-6413)
Lifetime Limited Hardware Warranty with Basic Hardware Service Next Business Day Parts Only on Your
Software Support,NW,90 Day (966-6423)



Dell may make changes to this proposal
including changes or updates to the products
and services described, including pricing,
without notice or obligation.
Terms of Sale

This quote is valid for 30 days unless
otherwise stated. Unless you have a
separate written agreement that specifically
applies to this order, your order will be
subject to and governed by the following
agreements, each of which are incorporated
herein by reference and available in
hardcopy from Dell at your request:
If this purchase is for your internal use only:
Dell's Commercial Terms of Sale
(www.dell.com/CTS), which incorporate
Dell's U.S. Return Policy
(www.dell.com/returnpolicy) and Warranty
(www.dell.com/warrantyterms).
If this purchase is intended for resale: Dell's
Reseller Terms of Sale
(www.dell.com/resellerterms).

If this purchase includes services: in addition
to the foregoing applicable terms, Dell's
Service Terms
(www.dell.com/servicecontracts/global).

If this purchase includes software: in addition
to the foregoing applicable terms, your use of
the software is subject to the license terms
accompanying the software, and in the
absence of such terms, then use of the Dell-
branded application software is subject to the
Dell End User License Agreement - Type A
(www.dell.com/AEULA) and use of the Dell-
branded system software is subject to the
Dell End User License Agreement - Type S
(www.dell.com/SEULA).
You acknowledge having read and agree to
be bound by the foregoing applicable terms
in their entirety. Any terms and conditions set
forth in your purchase order or any other
correspondence that are in addition to,
inconsistent or in conflict with, the foregoing
applicable online terms will be of no force or
effect unless specifically agreed to in a
writing signed by Dell that expressly
references such terms.
Additional Terms for Public Customers



If you are a department, agency, division, or
office of any district, state, county or
municipal government within the United
States ("Public Customer"), the following
terms ("Public Customer Terms") apply in
addition to the foregoing terms: A. If any
portion of the foregoing terms and conditions
(or any terms referenced therein) is
prohibited by law, such portion shall not
apply to you. Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary, the End User License Agreements
shall take precedence in all conflicts relevant
to your use of any software. B. By placing
your order, you confirm that (1) you are a
contracting officer or other authorized
representative of Public Customer with
authority to bind the Public Customer to
these terms and conditions, and (2) you have
read and agree to be bound by these terms
and conditions.

Pricing, Taxes, and Additional Information

All product, pricing, and other information is
valid for U.S. customers and U.S. addresses
only, and is based on the latest information
available and may be subject to change. Dell
reserves the right to cancel quotes and
orders arising from pricing or other errors.
Sales tax on products shipped is based on
your "Ship To" address, and for software
downloads is based on your "Bill To"
address. Please indicate any tax-exempt
status on your PO, and fax your exemption
certificate, including your Customer Number,
to the Dell Tax Department at 800-433-9023.
Please ensure that your tax-exemption
certificate reflects the correct Dell entity
name: Dell Marketing L.P. Note: All tax
quoted above is an estimate; final taxes will
be listed on the invoice. If you have any
questions regarding tax please send an e-
mail to Tax_Department@dell.com.
For certain products shipped to end-users in
California, a State Environmental Fee will be
applied to your invoice. Dell encourages
customers to dispose of electronic
equipment properly.
All information supplied to GILA COUNTY IT
for the purpose of this proposal is to be
considered confidential information
belonging to Dell.
About Dell

Dell Inc. listens to customers and delivers
innovative technology and services they
trust and value. Uniquely enabled by its
direct business model, Dell is a leading
global systems and services company and
No. 34 on the Fortune 500. For more
information, visit www.dell.com.
Privacy Policy



Dell respects your privacy. Across our
business, around the world, Dell will collect,
store, and use customer information only to
support and enhance our relationship with
your organization, for example, to process
your purchase, provide service and support,
and share product, service, and company
news and offerings with you. Dell does not
sell your personal information. For a
complete statement of our Global Privacy
Policy, please visit dell.com/privacy.



Quote #: 733534208
Customer #: 26666606
Contract #: WN01AGW
CustomerAgreement #: ADSPO16-098163
Quote Date: 8/31/2016
Customer Name: GILA COUNTY IT

SALES REP: B CARPENTER PHONE: 1800 - 4563355
Email Address: B_Carpenter@Dell.com Phone Ext: 5138192

GROUP: 1 QUANTITY: 1 SYSTEM PRICE: $9,984.30 GROUP TOTAL: $9,984.30
Quantity

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
2
1
1

GROUP: 2 QUANTITY: 4 SYSTEM PRICE: $8,805.09 GROUP TOTAL: $35,220.36
Quantity

4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4

Dell Proactive Systems Management - Declined - www.dell.com/Proactive (909-0259)

QUOTATION

Description

PowerEdge FX2S Chassis Configuration with Flexible IO (up to 8 PCIe Slots) (321-BBGH)
SD Storage for Chassis Management Controller (403-BBEQ)

Date:  8/31/2016

Thanks for choosing Dell! Your quote is detailed below; please review the quote for product and informational accuracy. If you find errors or

PowerEdge FX2 (210-ABUX)
PowerEdge FX2 Chassis for up to 4 Half-Width Nodes (321-BBFM)
Thank you for choosing Dell ProSupport Plus. For tech support, visit http://www.dell.com/contactdell (951-

Sales Professional Information

Dual, Hot-plug, Power Supply, 2000W, C19/C20 Power Cord Required (450-AENU)
Power Cord, C20 to C19, PDU Style, 16A, 250V, 2ft (0.6m) (492-BBEI)
Serial I/O Management Cable, for Ethernet Blade Switches (310-9696)

US Order (332-1286)
ProDeploy Plus Dell Server FX2 Converged - Deployment (804-6780)
ProDeploy Plus Dell Server FX2 Converged - Deployment Verification (804-6781)
ProDeploy Plus Training Credits 800 Redeem at www.LearnDell.com Expires 1Yr from Order Date (805-
PowerEdge FX2 Shipping (340-AGKB)
Redundant Ethernet Switch Configuration (540-BBQM)
FX2S Chassis Configuration Label (321-BBFZ)

CMC Enterprise for FX2 (634-0287)
USER Guide, FX2 Chassis (343-BBBW)
Dell OpenManage CD Kit for PowerEdge FC630 Server Node (631-AAJT)
PowerEdge FN I/O Module User Documentation (340-AKBN)
FX2 ReadyRails Sliding Rails (770-BBER)
Power Supply, Redundancy Alerting Enabled Configuration (450-ADTZ)

Dell Hardware Limited Warranty Plus On Site Service Initial Year (973-9866)
Dell Hardware Limited Warranty Plus On Site Service Extended Year (973-9867)
ProSupport Plus: Mission Critical 4-Hour 7x24 On-Site Service with Emergency Dispatch, Initial Year (973-
ProSupport Plus: Mission Critical 4-Hour 7x24 On-Site Service with Emergency Dispatch, 4 Year Extended
ProSupport Plus: 7x24 HW/SW Tech Support and Assistance, 5 Year (973-9992)

No Media Required (421-5736)

Description
PowerEdge FC630 Server Node (210-ACWK)
PowerEdge FC630 Motherboard MLK (329-BCZL)
PowerEdge FC630 Regulatory Label, DAO (389-BESB)
Thank you for choosing Dell ProSupport Plus. For tech support, visit http://www.dell.com/contactdell (951-
Dell Hardware Limited Warranty Plus On Site Service Extended Year (955-9041)
Dell Hardware Limited Warranty Plus On Site Service (997-0181)
ProSupport Plus: Mission Critical 4-Hour 7x24 On-Site Service with Emergency Dispatch,EXT to 2 Year (997-
ProSupport Plus: Mission Critical 4-Hour 7x24 On-Site Service with Emergency Dispatch, 3 Year (997-0236)
ProSupport Plus: 7x24 HW/SW Tech Support and Assistance, 5 Year (997-0252)
Dell Proactive Systems Management - Declined - www.dell.com/Proactive (909-0259)
US Order (332-1286)
ProDeploy Plus Training Credits 300 Redeem at www.LearnDell.com Expires 1Yr from Order Date (804-
ProDeploy Plus Dell Server M or F Series 3XX/4XX/5XX/6XX - Deployment (804-6758)
ProDeploy Plus Dell Server M or F Series 3XX/4XX/5XX/6XX - Deployment Verification (804-6760)
System ordered as part of Multipack order (750-AADI)
PowerEdge FC PCIE Mezzanine Adapter (492-BBQT)
QLogic 57840S 10Gb Quad Port KR Blade Network Daughter Card (540-BBCQ)
iDRAC8 Enterprise, integrated Dell Remote Access Controller, Enterprise (385-BBHO)



4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4

48
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4

GROUP: 3 QUANTITY: 2 SYSTEM PRICE: $4,336.06 GROUP TOTAL: $8,672.12
Quantity

2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2

SOFTWARE & ACCESSORIES
Product Quantity Unit Price Total
Software, Full-Switch Version, FN I/O
Module, Customer Kit (634-BEZP) 2 $157.05 $314.10

*Total Purchase Price:
Product Subtotal:
Tax:
Shipping & Handling:
State Environmental Fee:
Shipping Method:

Statement of Conditions

Order this quote easily online through your Premier page, or if you do not have Premier, using Quote to Order

$57,225.59

Dell PowerEdge FN410S I/O Module, 8x Internal to 4x SFP+ external ports, Factory Installed (210-AHBX)
Dell Hardware Limited Warranty Plus On Site Service (807-9776)
ProSupport Plus: Mission Critical 4-Hour 7x24 On-Site Service with Emergency Dispatch, 3 Years (807-

No Systems Documentation, No OpenManage DVD Kit (631-AACK)
Internal Dual SD Module (330-BBCV)
Redundant SD Cards Enabled (385-BBCF)

OpenManage Essentials, Server Configuration Management (634-BBWU)
2.5" Backplane with up to 2 Hard Drives and PERC RAID Controller (406-BBFE)
Standard Cooling,FC630 (384-BBDS)
Performance BIOS Settings (384-BBBL)
Diskless Configuration, PERC Controller (780-BBKQ)

Intel Xeon E5-2640 v4 2.4GHz,25M Cache,8.0GT/s QPI,Turbo,HT,10C/20T (90W) Max Mem 2133MHz (338-
32GB RDIMM, 2400MT/s, Dual Rank, x4 Data Width (370-ACNS)
2400MT/s RDIMMs (370-ACPH)
Performance Optimized (370-AAIP)
No Hard Drive (400-ABHL)
No Trusted Platform Module (461-AADZ)

H730 Controller (405-AAEU)
Intel Xeon E5-2640 v4 2.4GHz,25M Cache,8.0GT/s QPI,Turbo,HT,10C/20T (90W) Max Mem 2133MHz (338-

16GB SD Card For IDSDM (385-BBJL)
16GB SD Card For IDSDM (385-BBJL)
No OS, No Utility Partition (421-2869)
No Media Required (421-5736)
DIMM Blanks for System with 2 Processors (374-BBHL)
68MM Heatsink for PowerEdge FC630 Processor 1 (412-AAEJ)
68MM Heatsink for PowerEdge FC630 Processor 2 (412-AAEK)
68MM Processor Heatsink Shroud for PowerEdge FC630 (750-AAFG)

Description

$0.00

ProSupport Plus: Mission Critical 7x24 HW/SW Technical Support and Assistance, 5 Years (807-9798)
ProSupport Plus: Mission Critical 4-Hour 7x24 On-Site Service with Emergency Dispatch,Extended to 2
Thank you for choosing Dell ProSupport Plus. For tech support, visit http://www.dell.com/contactdell (951-
Dell Limited Hardware Warranty Plus Service, Extended Year(s) (975-3462)
US Order (332-1286)

(* Amount denoted in $)

$0.00
LTL 5 DAY OR LESS

$3,034.71

ProDeploy Dell Networking M or FN Series IOM, Switch - Deployment (805-2420)
ProDeploy Dell Networking M or FN Series IOM, Switch - Deployment Verification (805-2421)
Software, Rights to use Full-Switch Mode, FN I/O Module (634-BFBL)

GROUP TOTAL: $314.10

$54,190.88



The information in this document is believed
to be accurate. However, Dell assumes no
responsibility for inaccuracies, errors, or
omissions, and shall not be liable for direct,
indirect, special, incidental, or consequential
damages resulting from any such error or
omission. Dell is not responsible for pricing
or other errors, and reserves the right to
cancel orders arising from such errors.

Dell may make changes to this proposal
including changes or updates to the products
and services described, including pricing,
without notice or obligation.
Terms of Sale

This quote is valid for 30 days unless
otherwise stated. Unless you have a
separate written agreement that specifically
applies to this order, your order will be
subject to and governed by the following
agreements, each of which are incorporated
herein by reference and available in
hardcopy from Dell at your request:
If this purchase is for your internal use only:
Dell's Commercial Terms of Sale
(www.dell.com/CTS), which incorporate
Dell's U.S. Return Policy
(www.dell.com/returnpolicy) and Warranty
(www.dell.com/warrantyterms).
If this purchase is intended for resale: Dell's
Reseller Terms of Sale
(www.dell.com/resellerterms).

If this purchase includes services: in addition
to the foregoing applicable terms, Dell's
Service Terms
(www.dell.com/servicecontracts/global).

If this purchase includes software: in addition
to the foregoing applicable terms, your use of
the software is subject to the license terms
accompanying the software, and in the
absence of such terms, then use of the Dell-
branded application software is subject to the
Dell End User License Agreement - Type A
(www.dell.com/AEULA) and use of the Dell-
branded system software is subject to the
Dell End User License Agreement - Type S
(www.dell.com/SEULA).
You acknowledge having read and agree to
be bound by the foregoing applicable terms
in their entirety. Any terms and conditions set
forth in your purchase order or any other
correspondence that are in addition to,
inconsistent or in conflict with, the foregoing
applicable online terms will be of no force or
effect unless specifically agreed to in a
writing signed by Dell that expressly
references such terms.
Additional Terms for Public Customers



If you are a department, agency, division, or
office of any district, state, county or
municipal government within the United
States ("Public Customer"), the following
terms ("Public Customer Terms") apply in
addition to the foregoing terms: A. If any
portion of the foregoing terms and conditions
(or any terms referenced therein) is
prohibited by law, such portion shall not
apply to you. Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary, the End User License Agreements
shall take precedence in all conflicts relevant
to your use of any software. B. By placing
your order, you confirm that (1) you are a
contracting officer or other authorized
representative of Public Customer with
authority to bind the Public Customer to
these terms and conditions, and (2) you have
read and agree to be bound by these terms
and conditions.

Pricing, Taxes, and Additional Information

All product, pricing, and other information is
valid for U.S. customers and U.S. addresses
only, and is based on the latest information
available and may be subject to change. Dell
reserves the right to cancel quotes and
orders arising from pricing or other errors.
Sales tax on products shipped is based on
your "Ship To" address, and for software
downloads is based on your "Bill To"
address. Please indicate any tax-exempt
status on your PO, and fax your exemption
certificate, including your Customer Number,
to the Dell Tax Department at 800-433-9023.
Please ensure that your tax-exemption
certificate reflects the correct Dell entity
name: Dell Marketing L.P. Note: All tax
quoted above is an estimate; final taxes will
be listed on the invoice. If you have any
questions regarding tax please send an e-
mail to Tax_Department@dell.com.
For certain products shipped to end-users in
California, a State Environmental Fee will be
applied to your invoice. Dell encourages
customers to dispose of electronic
equipment properly.
All information supplied to GILA COUNTY IT
for the purpose of this proposal is to be
considered confidential information
belonging to Dell.
About Dell

Dell Inc. listens to customers and delivers
innovative technology and services they
trust and value. Uniquely enabled by its
direct business model, Dell is a leading
global systems and services company and
No. 34 on the Fortune 500. For more
information, visit www.dell.com.
Privacy Policy



Dell respects your privacy. Across our
business, around the world, Dell will collect,
store, and use customer information only to
support and enhance our relationship with
your organization, for example, to process
your purchase, provide service and support,
and share product, service, and company
news and offerings with you. Dell does not
sell your personal information. For a
complete statement of our Global Privacy
Policy, please visit dell.com/privacy.



Quote #: 733534167
Customer #: 26666606
Contract #: WN01AGW
CustomerAgreement #: ADSPO16-098163
Quote Date: 8/31/2016
Customer Name: GILA COUNTY IT

SALES REP: B CARPENTER PHONE: 1800 - 4563355
Email Address: B_Carpenter@Dell.com Phone Ext: 5138192

GROUP: 1 QUANTITY: 2 SYSTEM PRICE: $7,538.81 GROUP TOTAL: $15,077.62
Quantity

2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
4
6
6

*Total Purchase Price:
Product Subtotal:
Tax:
Shipping & Handling:
State Environmental Fee:
Shipping Method:

Statement of Conditions

The information in this document is believed
to be accurate. However, Dell assumes no
responsibility for inaccuracies, errors, or
omissions, and shall not be liable for direct,
indirect, special, incidental, or consequential
damages resulting from any such error or
omission. Dell is not responsible for pricing
or other errors, and reserves the right to
cancel orders arising from such errors.

QUOTATION

Date:  8/31/2016

Thanks for choosing Dell! Your quote is detailed below; please review the quote for product and informational accuracy. If you find errors or

$15,921.96

Documentation Kit, N4000 Series Switch (340-AGNR)
Power Cord, 125V, 15A, 10 Feet, NEMA 5-15/C13 (450-AAFH)

Thank you for choosing Dell ProSupport Plus. For tech support, visit http://www.dell.com/contactdell (951-
Dell Hardware Limited Warranty Initial Year (966-6411)

Sales Professional Information

Power Cord, 125V, 15A, 10 Feet, NEMA 5-15/C13 (450-AAFH)

Order this quote easily online through your Premier page, or if you do not have Premier, using Quote to Order

Description
Dell Networking N4032F, 24x 10GbE SFP+ Ports, 1x Modular bay, 2x AC PSU, IO to PSU Airflow (210-

ProSupport Plus: Next Business Day Onsite Service After Problem Diagnosis, Initial Year (966-6574)
ProSupport Plus: Next Business Day Onsite Service After Problem Diagnosis, 4 Year Extended (966-6582)
ProSupport Plus: 7x24 HW/SW Tech Support and Assistance, 5 Year (966-6600)

Dell Networking, Cable, SFP+ to SFP+, 10GbE, Copper Twinax Direct Attach Cable, 1 Meter (470-AAGN)
Dell Networking, Cable, SFP+ to SFP+, 10GbE, Copper Twinax Direct Attach Cable, 3 Meter (470-AAGP)

$15,077.62
$844.34

$0.00

US Order (332-1286)
ProDeploy Dell Networking N Series 4XXX Switch - Deployment (805-2382)
ProDeploy Dell Networking L3 N Series 4XXX Switch - Deployment Verification (805-2383)

(* Amount denoted in $)

$0.00
LTL 5 DAY OR LESS

Dell Networking, Cable, SFP+ to SFP+, 10GbE, Copper Twinax Direct Attach Cable, 0.5 Meter (470-AAGL)

Dell Hardware Limited Warranty Extended Year(s) (966-6413)
Lifetime Limited Hardware Warranty with Basic Hardware Service Next Business Day Parts Only on Your
Software Support,NW,90 Day (966-6423)



Dell may make changes to this proposal
including changes or updates to the products
and services described, including pricing,
without notice or obligation.
Terms of Sale

This quote is valid for 30 days unless
otherwise stated. Unless you have a
separate written agreement that specifically
applies to this order, your order will be
subject to and governed by the following
agreements, each of which are incorporated
herein by reference and available in
hardcopy from Dell at your request:
If this purchase is for your internal use only:
Dell's Commercial Terms of Sale
(www.dell.com/CTS), which incorporate
Dell's U.S. Return Policy
(www.dell.com/returnpolicy) and Warranty
(www.dell.com/warrantyterms).
If this purchase is intended for resale: Dell's
Reseller Terms of Sale
(www.dell.com/resellerterms).

If this purchase includes services: in addition
to the foregoing applicable terms, Dell's
Service Terms
(www.dell.com/servicecontracts/global).

If this purchase includes software: in addition
to the foregoing applicable terms, your use of
the software is subject to the license terms
accompanying the software, and in the
absence of such terms, then use of the Dell-
branded application software is subject to the
Dell End User License Agreement - Type A
(www.dell.com/AEULA) and use of the Dell-
branded system software is subject to the
Dell End User License Agreement - Type S
(www.dell.com/SEULA).
You acknowledge having read and agree to
be bound by the foregoing applicable terms
in their entirety. Any terms and conditions set
forth in your purchase order or any other
correspondence that are in addition to,
inconsistent or in conflict with, the foregoing
applicable online terms will be of no force or
effect unless specifically agreed to in a
writing signed by Dell that expressly
references such terms.
Additional Terms for Public Customers



If you are a department, agency, division, or
office of any district, state, county or
municipal government within the United
States ("Public Customer"), the following
terms ("Public Customer Terms") apply in
addition to the foregoing terms: A. If any
portion of the foregoing terms and conditions
(or any terms referenced therein) is
prohibited by law, such portion shall not
apply to you. Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary, the End User License Agreements
shall take precedence in all conflicts relevant
to your use of any software. B. By placing
your order, you confirm that (1) you are a
contracting officer or other authorized
representative of Public Customer with
authority to bind the Public Customer to
these terms and conditions, and (2) you have
read and agree to be bound by these terms
and conditions.

Pricing, Taxes, and Additional Information

All product, pricing, and other information is
valid for U.S. customers and U.S. addresses
only, and is based on the latest information
available and may be subject to change. Dell
reserves the right to cancel quotes and
orders arising from pricing or other errors.
Sales tax on products shipped is based on
your "Ship To" address, and for software
downloads is based on your "Bill To"
address. Please indicate any tax-exempt
status on your PO, and fax your exemption
certificate, including your Customer Number,
to the Dell Tax Department at 800-433-9023.
Please ensure that your tax-exemption
certificate reflects the correct Dell entity
name: Dell Marketing L.P. Note: All tax
quoted above is an estimate; final taxes will
be listed on the invoice. If you have any
questions regarding tax please send an e-
mail to Tax_Department@dell.com.
For certain products shipped to end-users in
California, a State Environmental Fee will be
applied to your invoice. Dell encourages
customers to dispose of electronic
equipment properly.
All information supplied to GILA COUNTY IT
for the purpose of this proposal is to be
considered confidential information
belonging to Dell.
About Dell

Dell Inc. listens to customers and delivers
innovative technology and services they
trust and value. Uniquely enabled by its
direct business model, Dell is a leading
global systems and services company and
No. 34 on the Fortune 500. For more
information, visit www.dell.com.
Privacy Policy



Dell respects your privacy. Across our
business, around the world, Dell will collect,
store, and use customer information only to
support and enhance our relationship with
your organization, for example, to process
your purchase, provide service and support,
and share product, service, and company
news and offerings with you. Dell does not
sell your personal information. For a
complete statement of our Global Privacy
Policy, please visit dell.com/privacy.



Quote #: 733534161
Customer #: 26666606
Contract #: WN01AGW
CustomerAgreement #: ADSPO16-098163
Quote Date: 8/31/2016
Customer Name: GILA COUNTY IT

SALES REP: B CARPENTER PHONE: 1800 - 4563355
Email Address: B_Carpenter@Dell.com Phone Ext: 5138192

GROUP: 1 QUANTITY: 1 SYSTEM PRICE: $9,984.30 GROUP TOTAL: $9,984.30
Quantity

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
2
1
1

GROUP: 2 QUANTITY: 4 SYSTEM PRICE: $8,805.09 GROUP TOTAL: $35,220.36
Quantity

4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4

Dell Proactive Systems Management - Declined - www.dell.com/Proactive (909-0259)

QUOTATION

Description

PowerEdge FX2S Chassis Configuration with Flexible IO (up to 8 PCIe Slots) (321-BBGH)
SD Storage for Chassis Management Controller (403-BBEQ)

Date:  8/31/2016

Thanks for choosing Dell! Your quote is detailed below; please review the quote for product and informational accuracy. If you find errors or

PowerEdge FX2 (210-ABUX)
PowerEdge FX2 Chassis for up to 4 Half-Width Nodes (321-BBFM)
Thank you for choosing Dell ProSupport Plus. For tech support, visit http://www.dell.com/contactdell (951-

Sales Professional Information

Dual, Hot-plug, Power Supply, 2000W, C19/C20 Power Cord Required (450-AENU)
Power Cord, C20 to C19, PDU Style, 16A, 250V, 2ft (0.6m) (492-BBEI)
Serial I/O Management Cable, for Ethernet Blade Switches (310-9696)

US Order (332-1286)
ProDeploy Plus Dell Server FX2 Converged - Deployment (804-6780)
ProDeploy Plus Dell Server FX2 Converged - Deployment Verification (804-6781)
ProDeploy Plus Training Credits 800 Redeem at www.LearnDell.com Expires 1Yr from Order Date (805-
PowerEdge FX2 Shipping (340-AGKB)
Redundant Ethernet Switch Configuration (540-BBQM)
FX2S Chassis Configuration Label (321-BBFZ)

CMC Enterprise for FX2 (634-0287)
USER Guide, FX2 Chassis (343-BBBW)
Dell OpenManage CD Kit for PowerEdge FC630 Server Node (631-AAJT)
PowerEdge FN I/O Module User Documentation (340-AKBN)
FX2 ReadyRails Sliding Rails (770-BBER)
Power Supply, Redundancy Alerting Enabled Configuration (450-ADTZ)

Dell Hardware Limited Warranty Plus On Site Service Initial Year (973-9866)
Dell Hardware Limited Warranty Plus On Site Service Extended Year (973-9867)
ProSupport Plus: Mission Critical 4-Hour 7x24 On-Site Service with Emergency Dispatch, Initial Year (973-
ProSupport Plus: Mission Critical 4-Hour 7x24 On-Site Service with Emergency Dispatch, 4 Year Extended
ProSupport Plus: 7x24 HW/SW Tech Support and Assistance, 5 Year (973-9992)

No Media Required (421-5736)

Description
PowerEdge FC630 Server Node (210-ACWK)
PowerEdge FC630 Motherboard MLK (329-BCZL)
PowerEdge FC630 Regulatory Label, DAO (389-BESB)
Thank you for choosing Dell ProSupport Plus. For tech support, visit http://www.dell.com/contactdell (951-
Dell Hardware Limited Warranty Plus On Site Service Extended Year (955-9041)
Dell Hardware Limited Warranty Plus On Site Service (997-0181)
ProSupport Plus: Mission Critical 4-Hour 7x24 On-Site Service with Emergency Dispatch,EXT to 2 Year (997-
ProSupport Plus: Mission Critical 4-Hour 7x24 On-Site Service with Emergency Dispatch, 3 Year (997-0236)
ProSupport Plus: 7x24 HW/SW Tech Support and Assistance, 5 Year (997-0252)
Dell Proactive Systems Management - Declined - www.dell.com/Proactive (909-0259)
US Order (332-1286)
ProDeploy Plus Training Credits 300 Redeem at www.LearnDell.com Expires 1Yr from Order Date (804-
ProDeploy Plus Dell Server M or F Series 3XX/4XX/5XX/6XX - Deployment (804-6758)
ProDeploy Plus Dell Server M or F Series 3XX/4XX/5XX/6XX - Deployment Verification (804-6760)
System ordered as part of Multipack order (750-AADI)
PowerEdge FC PCIE Mezzanine Adapter (492-BBQT)
QLogic 57840S 10Gb Quad Port KR Blade Network Daughter Card (540-BBCQ)
iDRAC8 Enterprise, integrated Dell Remote Access Controller, Enterprise (385-BBHO)



4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4

48
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4

GROUP: 3 QUANTITY: 2 SYSTEM PRICE: $4,336.06 GROUP TOTAL: $8,672.12
Quantity

2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2

SOFTWARE & ACCESSORIES
Product Quantity Unit Price Total
Software, Full-Switch Version, FN I/O
Module, Customer Kit (634-BEZP) 2 $157.05 $314.10

*Total Purchase Price:
Product Subtotal:
Tax:
Shipping & Handling:
State Environmental Fee:
Shipping Method:

Statement of Conditions

Order this quote easily online through your Premier page, or if you do not have Premier, using Quote to Order

$57,225.59

Dell PowerEdge FN410S I/O Module, 8x Internal to 4x SFP+ external ports, Factory Installed (210-AHBX)
Dell Hardware Limited Warranty Plus On Site Service (807-9776)
ProSupport Plus: Mission Critical 4-Hour 7x24 On-Site Service with Emergency Dispatch, 3 Years (807-

No Systems Documentation, No OpenManage DVD Kit (631-AACK)
Internal Dual SD Module (330-BBCV)
Redundant SD Cards Enabled (385-BBCF)

OpenManage Essentials, Server Configuration Management (634-BBWU)
2.5" Backplane with up to 2 Hard Drives and PERC RAID Controller (406-BBFE)
Standard Cooling,FC630 (384-BBDS)
Performance BIOS Settings (384-BBBL)
Diskless Configuration, PERC Controller (780-BBKQ)

Intel Xeon E5-2640 v4 2.4GHz,25M Cache,8.0GT/s QPI,Turbo,HT,10C/20T (90W) Max Mem 2133MHz (338-
32GB RDIMM, 2400MT/s, Dual Rank, x4 Data Width (370-ACNS)
2400MT/s RDIMMs (370-ACPH)
Performance Optimized (370-AAIP)
No Hard Drive (400-ABHL)
No Trusted Platform Module (461-AADZ)

H730 Controller (405-AAEU)
Intel Xeon E5-2640 v4 2.4GHz,25M Cache,8.0GT/s QPI,Turbo,HT,10C/20T (90W) Max Mem 2133MHz (338-

16GB SD Card For IDSDM (385-BBJL)
16GB SD Card For IDSDM (385-BBJL)
No OS, No Utility Partition (421-2869)
No Media Required (421-5736)
DIMM Blanks for System with 2 Processors (374-BBHL)
68MM Heatsink for PowerEdge FC630 Processor 1 (412-AAEJ)
68MM Heatsink for PowerEdge FC630 Processor 2 (412-AAEK)
68MM Processor Heatsink Shroud for PowerEdge FC630 (750-AAFG)

Description

$0.00

ProSupport Plus: Mission Critical 7x24 HW/SW Technical Support and Assistance, 5 Years (807-9798)
ProSupport Plus: Mission Critical 4-Hour 7x24 On-Site Service with Emergency Dispatch,Extended to 2
Thank you for choosing Dell ProSupport Plus. For tech support, visit http://www.dell.com/contactdell (951-
Dell Limited Hardware Warranty Plus Service, Extended Year(s) (975-3462)
US Order (332-1286)

(* Amount denoted in $)

$0.00
LTL 5 DAY OR LESS

$3,034.71

ProDeploy Dell Networking M or FN Series IOM, Switch - Deployment (805-2420)
ProDeploy Dell Networking M or FN Series IOM, Switch - Deployment Verification (805-2421)
Software, Rights to use Full-Switch Mode, FN I/O Module (634-BFBL)

GROUP TOTAL: $314.10

$54,190.88



The information in this document is believed
to be accurate. However, Dell assumes no
responsibility for inaccuracies, errors, or
omissions, and shall not be liable for direct,
indirect, special, incidental, or consequential
damages resulting from any such error or
omission. Dell is not responsible for pricing
or other errors, and reserves the right to
cancel orders arising from such errors.

Dell may make changes to this proposal
including changes or updates to the products
and services described, including pricing,
without notice or obligation.
Terms of Sale

This quote is valid for 30 days unless
otherwise stated. Unless you have a
separate written agreement that specifically
applies to this order, your order will be
subject to and governed by the following
agreements, each of which are incorporated
herein by reference and available in
hardcopy from Dell at your request:
If this purchase is for your internal use only:
Dell's Commercial Terms of Sale
(www.dell.com/CTS), which incorporate
Dell's U.S. Return Policy
(www.dell.com/returnpolicy) and Warranty
(www.dell.com/warrantyterms).
If this purchase is intended for resale: Dell's
Reseller Terms of Sale
(www.dell.com/resellerterms).

If this purchase includes services: in addition
to the foregoing applicable terms, Dell's
Service Terms
(www.dell.com/servicecontracts/global).

If this purchase includes software: in addition
to the foregoing applicable terms, your use of
the software is subject to the license terms
accompanying the software, and in the
absence of such terms, then use of the Dell-
branded application software is subject to the
Dell End User License Agreement - Type A
(www.dell.com/AEULA) and use of the Dell-
branded system software is subject to the
Dell End User License Agreement - Type S
(www.dell.com/SEULA).
You acknowledge having read and agree to
be bound by the foregoing applicable terms
in their entirety. Any terms and conditions set
forth in your purchase order or any other
correspondence that are in addition to,
inconsistent or in conflict with, the foregoing
applicable online terms will be of no force or
effect unless specifically agreed to in a
writing signed by Dell that expressly
references such terms.
Additional Terms for Public Customers



If you are a department, agency, division, or
office of any district, state, county or
municipal government within the United
States ("Public Customer"), the following
terms ("Public Customer Terms") apply in
addition to the foregoing terms: A. If any
portion of the foregoing terms and conditions
(or any terms referenced therein) is
prohibited by law, such portion shall not
apply to you. Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary, the End User License Agreements
shall take precedence in all conflicts relevant
to your use of any software. B. By placing
your order, you confirm that (1) you are a
contracting officer or other authorized
representative of Public Customer with
authority to bind the Public Customer to
these terms and conditions, and (2) you have
read and agree to be bound by these terms
and conditions.

Pricing, Taxes, and Additional Information

All product, pricing, and other information is
valid for U.S. customers and U.S. addresses
only, and is based on the latest information
available and may be subject to change. Dell
reserves the right to cancel quotes and
orders arising from pricing or other errors.
Sales tax on products shipped is based on
your "Ship To" address, and for software
downloads is based on your "Bill To"
address. Please indicate any tax-exempt
status on your PO, and fax your exemption
certificate, including your Customer Number,
to the Dell Tax Department at 800-433-9023.
Please ensure that your tax-exemption
certificate reflects the correct Dell entity
name: Dell Marketing L.P. Note: All tax
quoted above is an estimate; final taxes will
be listed on the invoice. If you have any
questions regarding tax please send an e-
mail to Tax_Department@dell.com.
For certain products shipped to end-users in
California, a State Environmental Fee will be
applied to your invoice. Dell encourages
customers to dispose of electronic
equipment properly.
All information supplied to GILA COUNTY IT
for the purpose of this proposal is to be
considered confidential information
belonging to Dell.
About Dell

Dell Inc. listens to customers and delivers
innovative technology and services they
trust and value. Uniquely enabled by its
direct business model, Dell is a leading
global systems and services company and
No. 34 on the Fortune 500. For more
information, visit www.dell.com.
Privacy Policy



Dell respects your privacy. Across our
business, around the world, Dell will collect,
store, and use customer information only to
support and enhance our relationship with
your organization, for example, to process
your purchase, provide service and support,
and share product, service, and company
news and offerings with you. Dell does not
sell your personal information. For a
complete statement of our Global Privacy
Policy, please visit dell.com/privacy.



CDW Confidential Page 1 of 1

Prepared For: Submitted By: Cassandra Miller
Customer #:    Account Manager

Attention: Phone: 866-334-9350
Project: E-Mail: cassmil@cdwg.com

Date: Quote #:

Qty.
8 M0T04B HPE HYPER CONVERGED 250 NODE
8 793020-B21 HP XL1X0R GEN9 E5-2640V3 KIT
8 793020-L21 HP XL1X0R GEN9 E5-2640V3 FIO KIT

64 728629-B21 HP 32GB 2RX4 PC4-2133P-R KIT
48 817011-B21 HP 1.92TB 6G SATA MU-3 SFF SC SSD
8 665243-B21 HP ETHERNET 10GB 2P 560FLR-SFP+ ADPTR
2 676277-B21 HP 36PIN SUV DONGLE CORD KIT
4 720620-B21 HP 1400W FS PLAT PL HT PLG PWR SPPLY KIT
2 F3J69A HP STOREVIRTUAL 4530 4TB MDL SAS STORAGE

Extended Sell
$220,291.44

2 M0T03B HPE HC 250 SYSTEM FOR VMWARE VSPHERE SYS
8 P9B50A HPE HC 250 SW LTU FOR VMWARE VSPHERE 5.5

Extended Sell
$40,575.68

2 H1K92A5     YMW HPE CS 250-HC STOREVIRTUAL SYSTEM SUPP
8 H1K92A5     YMX HPE CS 250-HC STOREVIRTUAL NODE SUPPORT
8 H1K92A5     YMY HPE CS 250-HC STOREVIRTUAL SW LTU SUPP
2 H1K92A5     RW4 HPE G3 STOREVIRTUAL 45XX 46XX 47XX SUPP

Extended Sell
$46,882.88

1 H1K92A5 HPE 5Y PROACTIVE CARE 24X7 SERVICE
1 H1K92A5 HPE 5Y PROACTIVE CARE 24X7 SERVICE

Extended Sell
$0.00

Extended Sell

$307,750.00

Prepared By: Jeff Kirkton (Solution Architect)
Prices are contingent on final pricing approval from Manufacturer
Quote provided based on specification provided by customer.  No workload validation has been done.
The terms and conditions provided on this link apply:  http://www.cdwg.com/content/terms-conditions/default.aspx
Applicable Taxes and Shipping not shown.

Gila County
1279721
Kelly
New Hyperconverged infrastructure
04/13/2016

Solution Total:

Su
pp

or
t

Support Total:

Se
rv

ic
es

Services Total:

Part Description

Ha
rd

w
ar

e

Hardware Total:

So
ft

w
ar

e

Software Total:

 4-node HC250 cluster per site 

119922161-1



OE400SPS

QUOTE NO. ACCOUNT NO. DATE

GZKZ815 1279721 4/15/2016

BILL TO: 
GILA COUNTY GCIT  
1400 E ASH ST  
 
 
Accounts Payable 
GLOBE , AZ 85501-1483  
 
 
Customer Phone #928.425.3231 

SHIP TO: 
GILA COUNTY GCIT  
Attention To: ATTN: GCIT 
1400 E ASH ST  
 
 
GLOBE , AZ 85501-1483  
Contact: KELLY RIGGS      928.402.8772  
              
Customer P.O. # GZKZ815 QUOTE 

 
  

  
 
  

ACCOUNT MANAGER SHIPPING METHOD TERMS EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE

CASSANDRA MILLER 866.334.9350 FEDEX Ground
Net 30 Days-Govt 

State/Local

QTY ITEM NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE

8 3529053 LVO TS X3650 M5 2U E5-2670V3 12C 
      Mfg#: 5462EEU 
      Contract: MARKET 

3,394.86 27,158.88

64 4079914 LVO 32GB TRUDDR4 MEMORY 
      Mfg#: 46W0800 
      Contract: MARKET 

541.62 34,663.68

8 3518646 LVO X3650 M5 PCIE RISER 
      Mfg#: 00KA498 
      Contract: MARKET 

79.06 632.48

8 2580788 LVO INTEL X520 DUAL PT 10GBE SFP+ 
      Mfg#: 49Y7960 
      Contract: MARKET 

553.42 4,427.36

8 3500889 LVO SYSTEM X 750W HE PLAT AC PWR SUP 
      Mfg#: 00FK932 
      Contract: MARKET 

305.62 2,444.96

8 4081562 LVO 1YR RTS F/SYSTEM X-BASE 
      Mfg#: 00LW730 
      Contract: MARKET 

328.04 2,624.32

8 3613562 LVO SYSTEM X ENT 2U CABLE MGT ARM 
      Mfg#: 00FK622 
      Contract: MARKET 

25.96 207.68

8 3592436 LVO SD MEDIA ADAPTER WITH 2 BLANK 
      Mfg#: 00ML706 
      Contract: MARKET 

267.86 2,142.88

8 3891820 LVO INTEGRATED MGMT MOD ADV UPG 
      Mfg#: 90Y3901 
      Contract: MARKET 

257.24 2,057.92

8 3710537 LVO TOPSELLER 5YR ONSITE REPAIR 24X7 
      Mfg#: 00WW502 
      Contract: MARKET 
Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA 

1,786.52 14,292.16

8 4088858 LVO XEON PROCESSOR E5-2670 V3 12 
      Mfg#: 00FK647 
      Contract: MARKET 

1,805.40 14,443.20

2 4093604 LVO STOR S3200 SFF CHAS DUAL FC/ISCS 
      Mfg#: 64116B4 
      Contract: MARKET 

4,102.86 8,205.72

40 4093602 LVO STOR 1.2TB 10K SAS 2.5" HDD 
      Mfg#: 00MM690 
      Contract: MARKET 

631.30 25,252.00

8 4093606 LENOVO 2.5IN 1.6TB SSD SAS 
      Mfg#: 00MM710 
      Contract: MARKET 

7,022.18 56,177.44

2 3899541 LVO 5YR ONSITE REPAIR 24X7X4HR 
      Mfg#: 00WX847 
      Contract: MARKET 
Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA 

2,479.18 4,958.36

2 3822550 LVO STOR SSD DATA TIERING UPG 
      Mfg#: 00WE764 
      Contract: MARKET 
Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA 

1,574.12 3,148.24



2 4094670 LVO STOR S2200/S3200 ASYNC REPL UPG 
      Mfg#: 00YG676 
      Contract: MARKET 
Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA 

2,446.14 4,892.28

16 3636143 PROLINE 1M SFP+ 10GBASE-CU DAC F/IBM 
      Mfg#: 90Y9427-PRO 
      Contract: MARKET 

109.75 1,756.00

2 4093608 LVO LFF DISK EXP W/DUAL SAS IO MOD 
      Mfg#: 64111B2 
      Contract: MARKET 

2,507.50 5,015.00

24 4093611 LVO STOR 4TB 7.2K 3.5" NL-SAS HDD 
      Mfg#: 00MM730 
      Contract: MARKET 

490.88 11,781.12

2 3865422 LVO 5YR ONSITE REPAIR 24X7X4HR 
      Mfg#: 00WX879 
      Contract: MARKET 
Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA 

1,585.92 3,171.84

4 3797767 LVO EXT MINISAS HD 8088/MINISAS 1M 
      Mfg#: 00WE755 
      Contract: MARKET 

112.10 448.40

2 4093608 LVO LFF DISK EXP W/DUAL SAS IO MOD 
      Mfg#: 64111B2 
      Contract: MARKET 

2,507.50 5,015.00

24 4093611 LVO STOR 4TB 7.2K 3.5" NL-SAS HDD 
      Mfg#: 00MM730 
      Contract: MARKET 

490.88 11,781.12

2 3865422 LVO 5YR ONSITE REPAIR 24X7X4HR 
      Mfg#: 00WX879 
      Contract: MARKET 
Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA 

1,585.92 3,171.84

4 3846642 LVO 0.6M EXT MINISAS 8088/MINISAS 
      Mfg#: 00WE754 
      Contract: MARKET 

67.26 269.04

2 3865419 LVO 2M EXT MINISAS 8088/MINISAS 8088 
      Mfg#: 00WE756 
      Contract: MARKET 

142.78 285.56

2 3797767 LVO EXT MINISAS HD 8088/MINISAS 1M 
      Mfg#: 00WE755 
      Contract: MARKET 

112.10 224.20

4 4093623 LVO RACKSWITCH G8124E FRONT TO REAR 
      Mfg#: 7159BF7 
      Contract: MARKET 

6,158.42 24,633.68

4 3096727 LVO 5YR ONSITE REPAIR 24X7X4HR 
      Mfg#: 91Y7329 
      Contract: MARKET 

5,078.72 20,314.88

4 3677581 LVO 1YR RTS F/SAN INFRASTRUCTURE 
      Mfg#: 00VL548 
      Contract: MARKET 
Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA 

276.12 1,104.48

4 3357954 LVO CONSOLE CABLE KIT SPARE 
      Mfg#: 90Y9462 
      Contract: MARKET 

27.14 108.56

8 4079912 LVO 14FT PWR CAB - C13/NEMA 5-15 
      Mfg#: 39Y7931 
      Contract: MARKET 

15.34 122.72

32 3496778 LVO SYSTEM X 1.5M PASSIVE DAC SFP+ 
      Mfg#: 00AY764 
      Contract: MARKET 

147.50 4,720.00

48 2396806 LVO 3M PASSIVE DAC SFP+ CAB 
      Mfg#: 90Y9430 
      Contract: MARKET 

116.82 5,607.36

SUBTOTAL 
FREIGHT 

TAX  
 

307,260.36 
2,750.43  

20,279.18  
 

330,289.97

CDW Government 
230 North Milwaukee Ave.  
Vernon Hills, IL 60061  Fax: 847.968.1514

Please remit payment to: 
CDW Government  
75 Remittance Drive  
Suite 1515 
Chicago, IL 60675-1515 

This quote is subject to CDW's Terms and Conditions of Sales and Service Projects at
http://www.cdwg.com/content/terms-conditions/product-sales.aspx
For more information, contact a CDW account manager.



Limited hardware warranties

Dell-branded hardware products purchased in the U.S. or Canada may come with a 90-day, 1-year, 2-year, 3-year, 4-year, 5-year or other limited hardware
warranty. Dell may offer different delivery methods for warranty service, including but not limited to parts and product dispatches, mail-in service and
onsite/in-home service. Renewals and extensions of your limited hardware warranty may also be available after you purchase your product(s). To determine
the warranty that came with your hardware product(s), or the warranty renewal or extension that you purchased, see your packing slip, invoice, receipt or
other sales documentation. Some components of the hardware you purchased may have a shorter warranty than that listed on your packing slip, invoice,
receipt or other sales documentation. Additional details related to warranty duration are listed below.

What is covered by this limited hardware warranty?

This limited hardware warranty covers defects in materials and workmanship in your Dell-branded hardware products, including Dell-branded peripheral
products.

What is not covered by this limited hardware warranty?

This limited hardware warranty does not cover:

Software, including without limitation, the operating system and software added to the Dell-branded hardware products through our factory-integration
system, third-party software or the reloading of software
Non Dell-branded products and accessories
Problems that result, directly or indirectly, from:

External causes such as accident, abuse, misuse or problems with electrical power.
Servicing not authorized by Dell.
Usage that is not in accordance with product instructions.
Failure to follow the product instructions or failure to perform preventive maintenance.
Using accessories, parts or components not supplied by Dell.

Commercial hardware products that use, or in which have been installed, products or components that have not been provided by Dell.
Products with missing or altered service tags or serial numbers
Products for which Dell has not received payment
Normal wear and tear

FOR COMMERCIAL CUSTOMERS (INCLUDING SMALL, MEDIUM AND LARGE BUSINESS AND GOVERNMENT AND PUBLIC SECTOR CUSTOMERS) AND RESELLERS.
This paragraph applies if you purchase Dell products for resale or for commercial or professional purposes. DELL'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR DEFECTS IN MATERIALS
OR WORKMANSHIP IS LIMITED TO REPAIR OR REPLACEMENT OF THE PRODUCT AS SET FORTH IN THIS WARRANTY STATEMENT. EXCEPT FOR THE LIMITED
WARRANTY EXPRESSLY STATED ABOVE FOR DELL-BRANDED PRODUCTS, DELL PROVIDES NO WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT
NOT LIMITED TO ANY WARRANTY OR CONDITION (1) OF MERCHANTABILITY, MERCHANTABLE QUALITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, PERFORMANCE,
SUITABILITY OR NONINFRINGEMENT; (2) RELATING TO ANY THIRD-PARTY PRODUCT OR SOFTWARE; OR (3) REGARDING THE RESULTS TO BE OBTAINED FROM THE
PRODUCT OR SOFTWARE. DELL EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES AND CONDITIONS NOT STATED IN THIS LIMITED WARRANTY.

FOR CONSUMERS. This section applies if you purchase Dell products that are normally used for personal, family or household purposes.

THIS WARRANTY GIVES YOU SPECIFIC LEGAL RIGHTS AND YOU MAY ALSO HAVE OTHER RIGHTS, WHICH VARY FROM STATE TO STATE, PROVINCE TO
PROVINCE OR JURISDICTION TO JURISDICTION.

DELL'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR MALFUNCTIONS AND DEFECTS IN HARDWARE IS LIMITED TO REPAIR OR REPLACEMENT AS SET FORTH IN THIS WARRANTY
STATEMENT.

FOR ANY INCIDENT COVERED BY THIS DELL LIMITED HARDWARE WARRANTY, YOU MUST USE DELL-PROVIDED PARTS AND PRODUCTS, WHICH DELL
WILL PROVIDE TO YOU FOR NO ADDITIONAL CHARGE.  FAILURE TO USE DELL-PROVIDED PRODUCTS WILL VOID THIS WARRANTY.

TO THE EXTENT NOT PROHIBITED BY LAW IN YOUR STATE, PROVINCE, JURISDICTION OR COUNTRY, THIS WARRANTY AND THE REMEDIES SET FORTH
ARE EXCLUSIVE AND IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, REMEDIES AND CONDITIONS, WHETHER ORAL, WRITTEN, STATUTORY, EXPRESS OR
IMPLIED.

EXCEPT FOR THE EXPRESS WARRANTIES CONTAINED IN THIS WARRANTY STATEMENT AND TO THE EXTENT NOT PROHIBITED BY LAW, DELL DISCLAIMS
ALL OTHER WARRANTIES AND CONDITIONS, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, STATUTORY OR OTHERWISE, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, WARRANTIES OF
MERCHANTABILITY, MERCHANTABLE QUALITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND WARRANTIES AND CONDITIONS AGAINST HIDDEN OR

Buy Online or Call 1-800-WWW-DELL Premier Login |

Search SearchFor Home For Work Support Kelly
not Kelly?

Dell Limited Hardware Warranty | Dell http://www.dell.com/learn/us/en/id/solutions/limited-hardware-warranties

1 of 7 9/5/2016 9:05 PM



LATENT DEFECTS. SOME STATES, PROVINCES, JURISDICTIONS OR COUNTRIES DO NOT ALLOW DISCLAIMERS OF IMPLIED WARRANTIES AND
CONDITIONS, SO THIS DISCLAIMER MAY NOT APPLY TO YOU.

TO THE EXTENT SUCH WARRANTIES AND CONDITIONS CANNOT BE DISCLAIMED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE UNITED STATES, CANADA (AND ITS
PROVINCES) OR OTHERWISE, DELL LIMITS THE DURATION AND REMEDIES OF SUCH WARRANTIES AND CONDITIONS TO THE DURATION OF THIS
EXPRESS LIMITED WARRANTY (AS REFLECTED ON YOUR PACKING SLIP, INVOICE, RECEIPT OR OTHER SALES DOCUMENTATION) AND, AT DELL'S
OPTION, THE REPAIR OR REPLACEMENT SERVICES DESCRIBED BELOW. SOME STATES, PROVINCES, JURISDICTIONS OR COUNTRIES MAY NOT ALLOW
LIMITATIONS ON HOW LONG AN IMPLIED WARRANTY OR CONDITION MAY LAST, SO THE LIMITATION DESCRIBED ABOVE MAY NOT APPLY TO YOU.

NO WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS, WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, WILL APPLY AFTER THE LIMITED WARRANTY PERIOD HAS EXPIRED. SOME STATES,
PROVINCES, JURISDICTIONS OR COUNTRIES DO NOT ALLOW LIMITATIONS ON HOW LONG AN IMPLIED WARRANTY OR CONDITION LASTS, SO THIS
LIMITATION MAY NOT APPLY TO YOU.

ADDITIONAL TERMS FOR U.S. CONSUMERS. YOU MAY CANCEL ANY RENEWED, EXTENDED OR ENHANCED WARRANTY BY PROVIDING TO DELL AT
LEAST THIRTY (30) DAYS WRITTEN NOTICE OF THE DECISION TO CANCEL. DELL WILL ISSUE A REFUND TO YOU FOR ANY UNUSED PORTION OF THE
WARRANTY TERM FOR WHICH YOU HAVE PAID. IF MORE THAN THIRTY (30) DAYS HAVE TRANSPIRED FOR THE CURRENT WARRANTY YEAR, THEN A
REFUND WILL NOT BE PAID FOR THAT CURRENT WARRANTY YEAR. THE BASE LIMITED HARDWARE WARRANTY MAY NOT BE CANCELLED.
CANCELLATION OF RENEWED, EXTENDED OR ENHANCED WARRANTIES AT ANY TIME AFTER THE ORDER IS PLACED MAY REDUCE ANY APPLICABLE
DISCOUNT AND, IF PURCHASED AS PART OF A PROMOTIONAL PACKAGE, MAY REQUIRE RETURN OF THE COMPLETE PACKAGE.

FOR ALL CUSTOMERS. WE DO NOT ACCEPT LIABILITY BEYOND THE REMEDIES PROVIDED FOR IN THIS LIMITED HARDWARE WARRANTY, AND WE DO NOT ACCEPT
LIABILITY FOR CONSEQUENTIAL OR INCIDENTAL DAMAGES, FOR THIRD-PARTY CLAIMS AGAINST YOU FOR DAMAGES, FOR PRODUCTS NOT BEING AVAILABLE FOR
USE, OR FOR LOST OR DAMAGED DATA OR SOFTWARE. DELL DOES NOT WARRANT THAT THE OPERATION OF ANY DELL PRODUCT WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED OR
ERROR FREE. OUR LIABILITY WILL BE NO MORE THAN THE AMOUNT YOU PAID FOR THE SPECIFIC PRODUCT THAT IS THE SUBJECT OF A CLAIM. THIS IS THE
MAXIMUM AMOUNT FOR WHICH WE ARE RESPONSIBLE.

SOME STATES, PROVINCES, JURISDICTIONS OR COUNTRIES DO NOT ALLOW THE EXCLUSION OR LIMITATION OF INCIDENTAL OR
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, SO THE ABOVE LIMITATION OR EXCLUSION MAY NOT APPLY TO YOU.

How long does this limited hardware warranty last?

This limited hardware warranty may be voided by Dell, at Dell's sole discretion, if third party products that were not provided by Dell are installed on your
Dell system.

Otherwise, this limited hardware warranty lasts for the time period indicated on your packing slip, invoice or receipt except for the following Dell-branded
hardware:

All variants of ioDrive® NAND Flash devices carry the length of the limited hardware warranty coverage for the Dell system with which the ioDrive NAND
Flash device is shipped. ioDrive NAND Flash devices are not eligible for purchase of extended warranty coverage beyond a total of 5 years of coverage
from the original shipment date. Additionally, ioDrive NAND Flash devices use a silicon technology that has a maximum number of physical bytes that
can be written to the device (the Rated Life). The applicable limited hardware warranty covers failures due to defects in workmanship and/or
materials, but does not cover problems related to the device reaching its maximum Rated Life. ioDrive is a registered trademark of Fusion-io.
As part of standard portable configuration, batteries carry a base 1-year limited hardware warranty regardless of the length of the system warranty. In
addition, for some products, a customer has the option of purchasing a battery that comes with a 3-year limited hardware warranty.
The warranty for a print head that is included as original equipment in the Dell mobile printer is for parts only and is effective for a period of 1-year
after the date of purchase of the printer or 1000 prints of printer usage, whichever occurs first.
Your series 5, 6 or 7 PowerEdge™ RAID Controller (PERC) battery may provide up to 72 hours of controller cache memory backup power when new. Under
the 1-year limited hardware warranty, we warrant that the battery will provide at least 24 hours of backup coverage during the 1-year limited hardware
warranty period. Service offerings, such as Dell ProSupport™, Dell ProSupport Plus and Dell ProSupport Flex services, may be available to provide longer
service periods for an additional fee.
Your Series 8/9 PERC controller battery comes with a 3-year limited hardware warranty, which cannot be extended beyond 3 years.  Service offerings,
such as Dell ProSupport™, Dell ProSupport Plus and Dell ProSupport Flex services, may be available to provide longer service periods for an additional
fee. 
Projector lamps carry a 1 year limited hardware warranty.
Dell-certified and Dell-branded memory purchased separately from a Dell system (Dell-certified memory) carries a lifetime limited hardware warranty.
The limited hardware warranty for monitors purchased independent of a system lasts for the time period indicated on your packing slip, invoice, receipt
or other sales documentation. Monitors purchased with a system are covered by the system limited hardware warranty.
The limited hardware warranty for a Dell external hard disk drive purchased simultaneously with a system lasts for the longer of (a) 2 years; or (b) the
duration of the system’s limited hardware warranty.
Earphones and remote in-line controls carry a 1-year limited hardware warranty.
Other add-on hardware carries longer hardware warranty of either a 1-year limited hardware warranty for new parts and a 90-day limited hardware
warranty for reconditioned parts or, for both new and reconditioned parts, the remainder of the warranty for the Dell product on which such parts are
installed.
Serial ATA (SATA) hard drives in PowerEdge and PowerVault™ systems carry a 1-year limited hardware warranty, independent of system warranty. Service
offerings, such as Dell ProSupport™, Dell ProSupport Plus and Dell ProSupport Flex services may be available to provide longer service periods for the
SATA hard drive for an additional fee.
Select PowerConnect™ products carry a lifetime limited hardware warranty with Basic Hardware Service (repair or replacement) for as long as you own
the product. Repair or replacement does not include configuration or other advanced service and support provided by Dell ProSupport Services. The
PowerConnect products covered by the lifetime limited hardware warranty are: the PowerConnect 2800 series, the PowerConnect 3500 series, the
PowerConnect 5500 series, the PowerConnect 6200 series, the PowerConnect 7000 series, the PowerConnect 8000 series and the PowerConnect 8100
series. The warranty does not apply to products purchased before first announcement in Spring 2011. Dates vary by region. Contact customer service to
verify if your product qualifies. See dell.com/LifetimeWarranty for more details.

Dell Limited Hardware Warranty | Dell http://www.dell.com/learn/us/en/id/solutions/limited-hardware-warranties

2 of 7 9/5/2016 9:05 PM



Select PowerConnect products carry an Extended Life Limited Hardware Warranty with Basic Hardware Service, which extends until 5 years after end of
product model sales, subject to the specific clarifications and limitations listed below. The Extended Life Limited Hardware Warranty does not include
configuration or other advanced service provided by Dell ProSupport™. The Extended Life Limited Hardware Warranty is not transferrable.

Clarifications and limitations pertaining to products with Extended Life Limited Hardware Warranty
• B-Series FCX/FCXs — Internal power supply and fans are covered; however, warranty excludes removable optics and LEDs.
• J-Series EX4200 — Warranty does not include optics and limits fan and power supply to 5 years from date of purchase.
• W-Series Access Points: W-AP92/93/93H, W-IAP92/93, W-AP104/105, W-IAP105, W-AP124/125, W-AP134/135, W-IAP134/135 — Warranty limits any
power supply, antennae or accessories to 1 year from date of purchase.

Enterprise SATA value/mix use solid-state drives (SSDs), enterprise SATA read intensive SSDs and slim SATA SSDs are not eligible for purchase of extended
warranty coverage beyond 3 years, unless purchased with a separate service offering, such as Dell ProSupport™, Dell ProSupport Plus or Dell ProSupport
Flex services, which may be available to provide longer service periods for an additional fee.

Dell power distribution units (PDUs) and keyboard/monitor/mouse consoles (KMMs) purchased independent of a system carry a 3-year limited hardware
warranty. Dell PDUs and KMMs purchased with a system are covered by the greater of 3 years or the term of the system limited hardware warranty.

All variants of PowerEdge Express Flash PCI Express (PCIe) SSD devices carry the length of the limited hardware warranty coverage for the Dell system
with which the PowerEdge Express Flash PCIe SSD device is shipped. PowerEdge Express Flash PCIe SSD devices are not eligible for purchase of extended
warranty coverage beyond a total of 5 years of coverage from the original shipment date unless purchased with a separate service offering, such as Dell
ProSupport™, Dell ProSupport Plus or Dell ProSupport Flex services. Additionally, PowerEdge Express Flash PCIe SSD devices use a silicon technology that
has a maximum number of physical bytes that can be written to the device (the Device Life). The applicable limited hardware warranty covers failures
due to defects in workmanship and/or materials, but does not cover problems related to the device reaching its maximum Device Life.

Except for SAS solid-state drives (SSDs) used in PS Series and SC Series products, enterprise SATA, SAS and NVMe SSDs are not eligible for purchase of
extended warranty coverage beyond 3 years from the original shipment date, unless purchased with a separate service offering, such as Dell
ProSupport™, Dell ProSupport Plus or Dell ProSupport Flex services, which may be available to provide longer service periods for an additional fee. All
such devices have a maximum number of physical bytes that can be written to the device (the Device Life). The applicable limited hardware warranty
covers failures due to defects in workmanship and/or materials, but does not cover problems related to the device reaching its maximum Device Life.

The limited hardware warranty on all Dell-branded products purchased directly from Dell begins on the date of the packing slip, invoice, receipt or other
sales documentation. For products purchased from third-party retailers or resellers, the limited hardware warranty begins on the date of your original sales
receipt. The warranty period is not extended if we repair or replace a warranted product or any parts. Dell may change the availability of limited hardware
warranties, at its discretion, but any changes will not be retroactive.

Important Notice Relating to Third Party Product 

Dell cannot guarantee the authenticity of the products, limited warranties, service or support, or the accuracy of the listings of products you purchase from a
third party.  In some cases, such as with battery packs and power adapters, use of third party product may pose an increased risk of reliability or safety
issues, including increased risk of fire or explosion.  This limited hardware warranty may be voided by Dell, at Dell's sole discretion, if you install or use in a
Dell system any third party product that was not provided by Dell.

What do I do if I need warranty service?

Before contacting Dell, please try one or more of the following:

Ensure that you have installed any updates or resolved any issues identified by the monitoring, diagnostic, and proactive support tools such as Dell

SupportAssist that are installed on your product. Dell SupportAssist may also be available for download onto your product if it is not already installed.

Visit dell.com/supportassist for download files and resources;

1.

Access dell.com/support for troubleshooting advice and directions on running hardware diagnostics; and2.

Consult your Owner's Manual.3.

If you need additional assistance, then, before the warranty expires, please use one of the following support options to contact Dell or our authorized
representatives: 

Online: Online, chat and other forms of remote support may be available. Contact information is available at dell.com/support1.

Telephone support requests: Contact information is included in the table below.  Long distance telephone carrier charges may apply. 2.

Please also have your Dell Service Tag or order number available when you contact Dell.

If you purchased through a retailer (not directly from Dell), you may be required to provide Dell with your original sales receipt from your purchase to
receive any warranty service from Dell.

If you purchased through Best Buy, you must have all original sales receipts from your purchase to receive any warranty service at a Best Buy store. For
Canada, if you purchased through Future Shop, you must have all original sales receipts from your purchase to receive any warranty service at a Future Shop
store.

 Contact                Web             

 Web Support                    

Dell Limited Hardware Warranty | Dell http://www.dell.com/learn/us/en/id/solutions/limited-hardware-warranties

3 of 7 9/5/2016 9:05 PM



Contact Phone (U.S. Only)
Service Desk
(U.S. Only)

Individual Home Consumers: U.S. Only

Hardware Warranty Support 1-800-624-9896

Customer Service 1-800-624-9897

Best Buy Customers Carry your Dell notebook, Dell desktop or Dell monitor purchased with a Dell desktop into any Best
Buy store. Visit bestbuy.com to locate the nearest Best Buy store.

Wireless Service Provider 1-800-308-3355

Your wireless service provider may also be able to provide hardware warranty service on your Dell
smartphone or tablet.

Individual Home Consumers who purchased through an Employee Purchase Program:

Hardware Warranty Support and
Customer Service

1-800-822-8965

Home and Home Office Customers:

Hardware Warranty Support and
Customer Service

1-800-456-3355

Small, Medium, Large or Global Commercial Customers, Healthcare Customers and Value-Added Resellers (VARs):

Support and Customer Service 1-800-822-8965

Government and Education Customers:

Support and Customer Service 1-800-234-1490

Dell-Certified Memory 1-800-BUY-DELL

Alienware™

Hardware Warranty Support and
Customer Service

1-800-ALIENWARE

Contact Phone (Canada Only) 

Individual Home Consumers, Home-Office:  1-800-847-4096

All Business, Government, Education Customers and
Value-Added Resellers (VARs): 

1-800-387-5757

Best Buy Customers  Carry your Dell notebook, Dell desktop or Dell monitor purchased with a Dell desktop into any Best Buy
store. Visit bestbuy.ca to locate the nearest Best Buy store. 

Future Shop Customers  Carry your Dell notebook, Dell desktop or Dell monitor purchased with a Dell desktop into any Future
Shop store. Visit futureshop.ca to locate the nearest Future Shop store. 

    
What will Dell do?
 
Upon contacting Dell, you will be required to engage in a remote diagnosis session to help determine the cause of your issue. Remote diagnosis may involve
customer access to the inside of the product and multiple or extended sessions. If Dell determines that your issue is the result of a defect in materials or
workmanship but the issue is not able to be resolved remotely, Dell, at its sole discretion, may dispatch a replacement part to you, arrange for you to send
your product or defective part back to Dell's repair depot or replace the part or product with a comparable part or product that may be new or
refurbished. If the Dell Limited Hardware Warranty for your product includes onsite/in-home warranty service, then Dell may also elect to dispatch a service
technician to your location to perform the repair or replacement (see Important Information about Onsite/In-Home Warranty Service After Remote Diagnosis
below).

If your limited hardware warranty has expired or if we determine that the problem is not covered under this limited hardware warranty, we may be able to
offer you service alternatives on a fee basis.

We use new and refurbished parts made by various manufacturers in performing warranty repairs and in building replacement parts and products.
Refurbished parts and products are parts or products that have been returned to Dell, some of which were never used by a customer. All parts and products
are inspected and tested for quality. Replacement parts and products are covered for the remaining period of the limited hardware warranty for the product
you purchased. Dell owns all parts removed from repaired products and, in most instances, you will be required to return defective parts to Dell.

Dell may use authorized representatives to provide any of the technical support or repair services under this limited hardware warranty.

Important information about returning products to Dell for repair or replacement:

For Mail-in Service: Customer supplies box, pays shipping: Upon a determination by Dell that your product should be returned to Dell for repair or
replacement, we will issue a Return Material Authorization (RMA) number that you must include with your return. You must return the product to us in its

Dell Limited Hardware Warranty | Dell http://www.dell.com/learn/us/en/id/solutions/limited-hardware-warranties

4 of 7 9/5/2016 9:05 PM



original or equivalent packaging, prepay shipping charges and insure the shipment or accept the risk if the product is lost or damaged in shipment, which
could void warranty coverage as customer-induced damage. We will return the repaired or replacement product to you. We will pay to ship the repaired or
replaced product to you if you use an address in the United States (excluding Puerto Rico and U.S. possessions and territories) or in Canada (in respect of
systems registered in Canada). Otherwise, we will ship the product to you freight collect.

For Mail-in Service: Customer supplies box, Dell pays shipping: Upon a determination by Dell that your product should be returned to Dell for repair or
replacement, shipping instructions will be provided to you. You must package the product in its original or equivalent packaging and call the carrier
designated on your shipping instructions to arrange a pickup time or, at your convenience, you may take the adequately packaged product to a designated
carrier pick up location. As long as you follow our shipping instructions, we will pay standard shipping charges for shipping the product in for repair and for
shipping it back to you if you use an address in the United States (excluding Puerto Rico and U.S. possessions and territories) or in Canada (in respect of
systems registered in Canada). Otherwise, we will ship the product to you freight collect.

For Mail in Service: Dell supplies box and pays shipping: Upon a determination by Dell that your product should be returned to Dell for repair or
replacement, packaging, shipping instructions and a prepaid shipping waybill will be sent to you. Upon receipt of the shipping supplies, you must package the
product in the material required and call the carrier designated on your shipping instructions to arrange a pickup time. As long as you follow our shipping
instructions, we will pay standard shipping charges for shipping the product in for repair and for shipping it back to you if you use an address in the United
States (excluding Puerto Rico and U.S. possessions and territories) or in Canada (in respect of systems registered in Canada).  Otherwise, we will ship the
product to you freight collect.

When you contact us regarding certain products, we may offer to ship you a replacement product prior to receiving your original product back. In such
instance, we may require a valid credit card number at the time you request a replacement product. We will not charge or invoice you for the replacement
product as long as you return the original product to us within 10 days of your receipt of the replacement product and we confirm that your product issue is
covered under this limited hardware warranty. If we do not receive your original product within 10 days, we will charge your credit card or invoice you for
the then-current standard price for the product. If upon receipt of your original product, we determine that your product issue is not covered under this
limited hardware warranty, you will be given the opportunity to return the replacement unit, at your sole expense, within 10 days from the date we contact
you regarding the lack of coverage for your issue or we will charge to your credit card or invoice you the then-current standard price for the product. In
addition, if you fail to pay Dell the amounts, Dell may suspend your limited hardware warranty support until the applicable amount is paid. A suspension of
your limited hardware warranty for failure to properly return a product or to pay an amount charged for such failure to return a product will not toll the
term of your limited hardware warranty and the limited hardware warranty will still expire in accordance with its original term.

NOTE: Before you ship the product(s) to us, make sure to back up the data on the hard drive(s) and any other storage device(s) in the product(s). You
are responsible for removing any confidential, proprietary or personal information and removable media such as storage cards or devices, DVDs/CDs or
PC Cards regardless of whether a technician is also providing in-home or onsite assistance. We are not responsible for any of your confidential,
proprietary or personal information; lost or corrupted data; data or voice charges incurred as a result of failing to remove all SIM cards; or damaged or
lost removable media. Please, only include the product components requested by Dell.

Important information about part dispatches by Dell:

For some issues, Dell may dispatch a new or refurbished part for you to replace a defective part, if we agree that the defective part needs to be replaced.
You must return the defective part to Dell. When you contact us, we may offer to ship you a replacement part prior to receiving your original part back. In
such instances, we may require a valid credit card number at the time you request a replacement part. We will not charge or invoice you for the replacement
part as long as you return the original part to us within 10 days of your receipt of the replacement part. Failure to timely return the defective part to Dell in
accordance with the written instructions provided with the replacement part may result in the suspension of your limited hardware warranty support or a
charge to your credit card or invoice in the amount of the then-current standard Dell price for that part. A suspension of your limited hardware warranty for
failure to properly return a part will not toll the term of your limited hardware warranty and the limited hardware warranty will still expire in accordance
with its original term.

We will pay to ship the part to you if you use an address in the United States (excluding Puerto Rico and U.S. possessions and territories) or in Canada (in
respect of systems registered in Canada). Otherwise, we will ship the part freight collect. We will also include a prepaid shipping container with each
replacement part for your use in returning the replaced part to us.

NOTE: Before you replace parts, make sure to back up the data on the hard drive(s) and any other storage device(s) in the product(s). You are
responsible for removing any confidential, proprietary or personal information and removable media such as storage cards or devices, DVDs/CDs or PC
Cards regardless of whether a technician is also providing in-home or onsite assistance. We are not responsible for any of your confidential,
proprietary or personal information; lost or corrupted data; data or voice charges incurred as a result of failing to remove all SIM cards; or damaged or
lost removable media. When returning parts to Dell, please only include the product components requested by Dell.

Important information about Onsite/In-Home Warranty Service After Remote Diagnosis:

If the Dell Limited Hardware Warranty for your product includes onsite/in-home warranty service, then if Dell determines that your issue is covered under
this limited hardware warranty and your problem cannot be resolved remotely or, if applicable, by dispatching a part or replacement product to you, then
Dell may dispatch a service technician to your location within the United States (including Puerto Rico, but excluding the other U.S. possessions and
territories) or in Canada (in respect of systems registered in Canada). Please tell the technician the full address of your system's location. Both the
performance of service and service response times depend upon the time of day your request is received by Dell, the service alternative you purchased, parts
availability, geographical restrictions, weather conditions and the terms of this limited hardware warranty. An adult must be present at all times during the
service technician's visit. You must grant the service technician full access to the system and (at no cost to Dell) have working space, electricity and a local
telephone line. If these requirements are lacking, Dell is not obligated to provide service. In addition, Dell is not obligated to provide service if you fail to
provide an environment that is conducive to computer repair, including for example, if you insist on service to be provided at varying locations, if you fail to
properly restrain a pet, if you threaten our technician either verbally or physically, or if your location or the general area where the system is located is
dangerous, infested with insects, rodents, pests, biohazards, human or animal excrement and/or chemicals as reasonably determined to be unsafe by our
technician. If you or your authorized representative is not at the location when the service technician arrives, the service technician will not be able to
service your system and you may be charged an additional amount for a follow-up service call.

If Dell determines that your system needs a replacement part, you authorize the on-site technician to act as your service agent to handle the delivery and
return of the warranty parts necessary to render on-site repairs. You may incur a charge if you fail to allow the on-site technician to return
nonworking/unused units/warranty parts to Dell.

What if I purchased a service contract?

If your service contract is with Dell, service will be provided to you under the terms of the service agreement. Please refer to that contract for details on

Dell Limited Hardware Warranty | Dell http://www.dell.com/learn/us/en/id/solutions/limited-hardware-warranties

5 of 7 9/5/2016 9:05 PM



how to obtain service.

If you purchased through us, a service contract with a third-party service provider, please refer to that contract for details on how to obtain service.

See dell.com/servicecontracts for more details.

May I transfer the limited hardware warranty?

Limited hardware warranties on systems may be transferred if the current owner transfers ownership of the system and records the transfer with us. The
limited hardware warranty on Dell-certified memory may not be transferred. For U.S. customers, you may record your transfer by going to Dell's website:

Customer Type: U.S.  Ownership Transfer Website:

Home and Home Office: http://support.dell.com/support/topics/global.aspx/support/change_order/tag_transfer?c=us&cs=19&l=en&s=dhs&~ck=mn

Small and Medium Business: http://support.dell.com/support/topics/global.aspx/support/change_order/tag_transfer?c=us&cs=04&l=en&s=bsd&~ck=mn

Large Enterprise: http://support.dell.com/support/topics/global.aspx/support/change_order/tag_transfer?c=us&cs=555&l=en&s=biz&~ck=mn

Federal Government: http://support.dell.com/support/topics/global.aspx/support/change_order/tag_transfer?c=us&cs=RC1009777&
l=en&s=fed&~ck=mn

State  and  Local
Government:

http://support.dell.com/support/topics/global.aspx/support/change_order/tag_transfer?c=us&cs=RC978219&
l=en&s=slg&~ck=mn

Higher Education: http://support.dell.com/support/topics/global.aspx/support/change_order/tag_transfer?c=us&cs=RC956904&
l=en&s=hied&~ck=mn

K-12 Education: http://support.dell.com/support/topics/global.aspx/support/change_order/tag_transfer?c=us&cs=RC1084719&
l=en&s=k12&~ck=mn

Healthcare: http://support.dell.com/support/topics/global.aspx/support/change_order/tag_transfer?c=us&cs=RC968571&
l=en&s=hea&~ck=mn

For Canadian customers, you may record your transfer by going to Dell's Canadian website:
http://www.dell.com/support/retail/ca/en/cadhs1/ownershiptransfer/IdentifySystem?~ck=mn

If you do not have internet access, call your customer care representative or call 1-800-624-9897.

All requests to transfer ownership are at Dell's sole discretion. All such transfers will be subject to the terms and conditions of the original service or limited
hardware warranty agreement and Dell's applicable terms and conditions of sale located at dell.com/terms (for U.S. customers), dell.ca/terms (for Canadian
customers — English) or dell.ca/conditions (for Canadian customers — French). Dell cannot guarantee the authenticity of the products, limited warranties,
service or support, or the accuracy of the listings of products you purchase from a third party.

Dell Printer Consumables Limited Warranties

The following sections describe the limited warranty for Dell-branded printer consumables (ink cartridges, toner cartridges, photo print packs and photo
paper) for the U.S., Canada and Latin America. Refer to the appropriate limited warranty accordingly.

Consumables Limited Warranty (U.S. and Canada Only)

Dell ink

Dell warrants to the original purchaser of genuine Dell-branded ink cartridges that they will be free from defects in material and workmanship for two years
beginning on the date of invoice.

Toner

Dell warrants to the original purchaser of genuine Dell-branded toner cartridges that they will be free from defects in material and workmanship for the life
of the cartridge under normal use and storage conditions.
Lifetime toner warranty applies to the original toner only and does not apply to refilled or remanufactured toner cartridges.

Dell paper

Dell warrants to the original purchaser of genuine Dell Premium Photo Paper and photo print packs that they will be free from defects in material and
workmanship for 90 days beginning on the date of invoice.

If any of these products prove defective in either material or workmanship, they will be replaced without charge during the limited warranty period if
returned to Dell. You must first call our toll-free number to get your return authorization. In the U.S., call 1-800-822-8965; in Canada, call 1-800-387-5757. If
we are not able to replace the product because it has been discontinued or is not available, we will either replace it with a comparable product or reimburse
you for the cartridge purchase cost, at Dell's sole option. This limited warranty does not apply to product damage resulting from misuse, abuse, accident,
cartridge refilling or remanufacturing by customer, neglect, mishandling or incorrect environments.

Limited Lifetime Warranty for Dell-branded tape media

Dell warrants to you, the end-user customer, that this product will be free from defects in material and workmanship for the lifetime of the product, if it is
properly used and maintained. If this product proves defective in either material or workmanship, Dell, at its option, will (a) repair the product, (b) replace
the product or (c) refund the purchase price of the product, provided that the product has been returned to Dell with proof of purchase, such as a purchase
order, invoice or sales receipt. You must first contact your local Dell support representative for your authorization option. To contact your local support
representative, please visit dell.com, choose your country using the drop down menu located at the top of the page and then click on services and support.
This limited lifetime warranty does not apply to failure of the product resulting from misuse, abuse, accident, neglect or mishandling, improperly adjusted or
maintained drives, incorrect environments or wear from ordinary use.

Dell Limited Hardware Warranty | Dell http://www.dell.com/learn/us/en/id/solutions/limited-hardware-warranties

6 of 7 9/5/2016 9:05 PM



Do more with Dell

Employee and Student
Discounts
PartnerDirect
Dell Outlet
TechCenter
Make a Payment

About Dell

Investors
Company Information
Corporate Social
Responsibility
Customer Engagement
Careers
Newsroom

Legal

Ads & Emails
Privacy Statement
Legal & Regulatory
Terms of Sale
Trademarks

Community

The Dell Community
Read Our Blog
Support Forums
Events

© 2016 Dell Terms of Sale Unresolved Issues Privacy Ads & Emails Contact Site Map Feedback

Ultrabook, Celeron, Celeron Inside, Core Inside, Intel, Intel Logo, Intel Atom, Intel Atom Inside, Intel Core, Intel Inside, Intel Inside Logo, Intel vPro, Itanium, Itanium Inside,
Pentium, Pentium Inside, vPro Inside, Xeon, Xeon Phi, and Xeon Inside are trademarks of Intel Corporation in the U.S. and/or other countries.

THIS LIMITED LIFETIME WARRANTY GIVES YOU SPECIFIC LEGAL RIGHTS AND YOU MAY ALSO HAVE OTHER RIGHTS, WHICH VARY FROM STATE TO STATE, PROVINCE
TO PROVINCE, JURISDICTION TO JURISDICTION OR COUNTRY TO COUNTRY. DELL'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR MALFUNCTIONS AND DEFECTS IN HARDWARE IS LIMITED
TO REPLACEMENT AS SET FORTH IN THIS LIMITED LIFETIME WARRANTY STATEMENT. EXCEPT FOR THE EXPRESS WARRANTIES CONTAINED IN THIS WARRANTY
STATEMENT, DELL DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER WARRANTIES AND CONDITIONS, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, STATUTORY OR OTHERWISE, FOR THE PRODUCT, INCLUDING BUT
NOT LIMITED TO ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES AND CONDITIONS OF MERCHANTABILITY, MERCHANTABLE QUALITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE,
PERFORMANCE, SUITABILITY OR NON-INFRINGEMENT. ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES AND CONDITIONS THAT MAY BE IMPOSED BY AND THAT ARE NOT PERMITTED TO
BE DISCLAIMED BY LAW ARE LIMITED IN DURATION TO THE LIMITED WARRANTY PERIOD. SOME STATES, PROVINCES, JURISDICTIONS OR COUNTRIES DO NOT
ALLOW THE EXCLUSION OF CERTAIN IMPLIED WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS, OR LIMITATIONS ON HOW LONG AN IMPLIED WARRANTY OR CONDITION LASTS, SO
THIS LIMITATION MAY NOT APPLY TO YOU. THIS LIMITED LIFETIME WARRANTY COVERAGE TERMINATES IF YOU SELL OR OTHERWISE TRANSFER THIS PRODUCT TO
ANOTHER PARTY.

DELL DOES NOT ACCEPT LIABILITY BEYOND THE REMEDIES PROVIDED FOR IN THIS LIMITED LIFETIME WARRANTY AND WE DO NOT ACCEPT LIABILITY FOR
SPECIAL, INDIRECT, CONSEQUENTIAL OR INCIDENTAL DAMAGES, FOR THIRD-PARTY CLAIMS AGAINST YOU FOR DAMAGES, FOR PRODUCTS NOT BEING AVAILABLE
FOR USE, OR FOR LOST DATA OR LOST SOFTWARE. DELL'S LIABILITY WILL BE NO MORE THAN THE AMOUNT YOU PAID FOR THE PRODUCT THAT IS THE SUBJECT
OF A CLAIM. THIS IS THE MAXIMUM AMOUNT FOR WHICH DELL IS RESPONSIBLE.

SOME STATES, PROVINCES, JURISDICTIONS OR COUNTRIES DO NOT ALLOW THE EXCLUSION OR LIMITATION OF SPECIAL, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL OR
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, SO THE ABOVE LIMITATION OR EXCLUSION MAY NOT APPLY TO YOU.

Rev. 05252016

Related Articles

Dell KACE Limited Hardware
Warranty and Support Information

Dell Force10 Limited Hardware
Warranty

Dell Compellent Storage Center
Standard Limited Warranty
Coverage

United States

Dell Limited Hardware Warranty | Dell http://www.dell.com/learn/us/en/id/solutions/limited-hardware-warranties

7 of 7 9/5/2016 9:05 PM



Identify and resolve issues before they 
become problems
With extensive storage knowledge and industry-leading support 
tools, Dell Copilot Support engineers provide prompt and 
exceptional technical support for customers—wherever they 
are, and whenever and however they need it. Our unique 
integrated PhoneHome technology proactively monitors your 
Storage Center™ SAN and provides real-time event notification 
to you and your Copilot Support team. With this sophisticated 
tool, Copilot is able to review and gather data to provide system 
recommendations and proactively resolve issues before they 
become problems. 

The Copilot team operates out of a state-of-the-art expert center. 
All customer support calls are answered by qualified, highly trained 
storage experts who are available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. 
Because of the team’s level of expertise, 90 percent of support 
cases are resolved in the level one stage of the call.

Get comprehensive support for your entire 
data center environment
No matter the issue, your Dell Copilot Support team takes 
ownership and drives resolution, quickly and efficiently, with 
no finger pointing involved. Copilot serves as a single point of 
contact for your entire Storage Center SAN infrastructure, working 
through issues with not only Compellent hardware and software, 
but also third-party partner products to expedite resolution. Our 
added ability to now tap into the global scale and resources of 
Dell ProSupport ensures seamless support and services for a wide 
range of data center hardware and software products. 

Whether you need call center support, on-site support or quick 
delivery of replacement parts, Copilot Support has you covered. 
Dell Compellent-certified technicians and sparing partners are 
strategically located worldwide to ensure prompt on-site support 
and delivery of replacement parts. Choose from a robust portfolio 
of Copilot Support options to best meet your needs.

Realize unmatched value in technical support
Copilot Support is the most cost-effective way to add Dell 
Compellent expertise to your staff. You always have someone 
monitoring your data to ensure continuous availability. In fact, on 
a given day, the Copilot team makes twice as many outbound 
customer calls as they receive incoming customer calls. Plus, every 
call is handled personally by a highly trained support engineer.

With Dell Compellent, perpetual software licensing provides added 
value by ensuring you automatically receive the latest releases, 
updates and patches. Also, Fluid Data storage isn’t tied to any 
particular hardware model or platform, so all software licenses 
transfer from one series controller to another during upgrades.

Dell Compellent Copilot Support
Like having a Dell Compellent expert on staff 
Your data is one of your organization’s most valuable assets, which makes supporting and protecting the 
systems that store your data a high priority. According to hundreds of customers, supporting your storage 
infrastructure is something Dell™ Compellent™ does better for you. Dell Compellent Copilot Support™ 
goes beyond traditional support offerings by identifying and resolving problems before they happen. 
And by combining the power of both Copilot and ProSupport, we can tailor the perfect combination 
of proactive processes, professional expertise and worldwide reach to help ensure your complete 
satisfaction. While your opinion is what counts, we’re proud to mention that our support has received 
glowing recognition. In fact, Copilot Support was recently voted best support by Storage magazine, and 
InfoPro’s independent survey of IT end users gave Copilot the industry’s highest marks.



Feature Dell Compellent Copilot Support

Support Options 24x7 Support,
Priority Response

24x7 Support,
Next Business Day Response

24x7 Support,
Call Center Only

Call Center Support 24x7 Support Center 24x7 Support Center 24x7 Support Center

On-Site Response Priority (4-, 8- or 24-hour) Next Business Day —

Parts Delivery Priority (4-, 8- or 24-hour) Next Business Day UPS Ground

Software Releases Perpetual Software Licensing Perpetual Software Licensing Perpetual Software Licensing

PhoneHome Technology 24x7 Monitoring & Response 24x7 Monitoring & Response 24x7 Monitoring & Response

Incident Fees $0 $0 Time & Material

Manage data differently at Dell.com/Compellent

Dell, the Dell logo, and Compellent are trademarks of Dell Inc. © Dell Inc. 2011.

© 2011 Dell Inc. All Rights Reserved. Dell and Compellent are trademarks of Dell Inc. 
SSCMLCS_021511



Dell ProSupport  
Mission Critical 

Get your business up and running in minutes, not hours or days  

Dell understands time is money 
Every minute of unplanned downtime is lost productivity; and quite often, lost revenue.  So that you can 
reduce recovery time from days to hours, Dell offers the Mission Critical option with Dell ProSupport.  
 
Mission Critical is Dell’s most rapid resolution option, allowing you to choose from 2, 4, or 8-hour onsite parts 
and/or labor.  Rely on Dell’s proven and reliable Critical Situation process to get you back up and running fast. 

Key features of Dell ProSupport with Mission Critical 
 
Onsite Response – 2-Hour, 4-Hour or 8-Hour onsite service* with 6-hour hardware repair available 24x7, 
including holidays. 2-hour response is not available on desktops; availability may vary by country 
  
CritSit Procedures – Severity level 1 issues will be reviewed by Dell and may be nominated for CritSit incident 
coverage through Dell Global Command Centers. 
  
Emergency dispatch – Onsite service technician dispatched in parallel with phone-based troubleshooting 
when you  declare a Severity level 1 incident.  
 

Priority production – In the event of a critical situation caused by natural disaster or other event normally 
excluded  from limited warranty, Dell will expedite production of a new system(s).  
 

Storage fault monitoring – Alerts from storage fault monitoring helps you maximize uptime by identifying 
and correcting potential issues before they occur.  

Shift Resources 
from Maintenance  
to Momentum. 



For more information about any of our service offerings, please contact your Dell representative or visit 
www.dell.com  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 

Applications   Business Process   Consulting   Infrastructure   Support 

**Priority Production  -  In the event of a critical situation caused by natural disaster or other event normally excluded from 
limited warranty, Dell will expedite production of a new system. 
 
Product and service availability varies by country. For more information, visit www.dell.com/servicedescriptions. *May be 
provided by third-party. Technician will be dispatched ,if necessary, following phone-based troubleshooting. Availability 
varies. See dell.com/service contracts for details . © 2010 Dell Inc. All rights reserved 

Dell ProSupport with Mission Critical is only available for purchase with a Dell ProSupport service contract. 

During critical situation events, Dell Global Command Centers will activate our CritSit Process to help ensure that our expert 
resources are mobilized to get you back up and running fast. 
 
Dell’s CritSit Process includes:  
A Dell Escalation Manager  is assigned to your escalation, from there… 

•Dell’s end-to-end Critical-Situation process helps ensure expert resources are  mobilized to get you back up and running 
fast 

• Emergency Dispatch for simultaneous phone and onsite troubleshooting to assist with Severity 1 situations 

• Priority Production** to expedite units for critical issues 

Key features of Dell ProSupport  

Customer Contacts 
Dell 

30 min 

At 30 minutes, 
the Escalation 
Manager sends 

Global 
notification that 

Crit-Sit in 
progress, 

Sr. Mgr notified. 
CritSat Decision– 
Assign Escalation 

Mgr  to own 
process engages 

analysis 

0 min 1 hr 

Situation Report 
released to 

stakeholders and 
segment 

leadership 

45 min 

Dell Team Bridge  
Conference Call 

At 45 minutes, a 
real-time call 

with 
stakeholders.  

Status & 
resolution plan 

discussed  

15 min 

Within 15 
minutes, a senior 

analyst takes 
ownership of the 
technical issue 

SDM 

TAM 

L1 

L2 

Others 

Escalation 
Manager 

TAM TAM TAM TAM 

Others 

SitRep 

Dell Team Bridge  
Conference Call 

SDM SDM SDM SDM 

Sr. Storage 
Analyst 

Sr. Server 
Analyst 

Sr. Network 
Analyst 

Vendor via 
CSA/TSA net 

Logistics 

Services 

Tech Suppt 

Acct. Team 

ESG 

Fast & focused resolution, during “critical situation” events 

http://www.dell.com/servicedescriptions


SAMPLE

Information Return for Tax-Exempt Governmental Obligations
Form 8038-G

� Under Internal Revenue Code section 149(e) OMB No. 1545-0720
(Rev. November 2000) � See separate Instructions.
Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service Caution: If the issue price is under $100,000, use Form 8038-GC.

If Amended Return, check here �Reporting Authority
2 Issuer’s employer identification number1 Issuer’s name

Report number43 Number and street (or P.O. box if mail is not delivered to street address)

3
5 City, town, or post office, state, and ZIP code Date of issue6

CUSIP number87 Name of issue

Type of Issue (check applicable box(es) and enter the issue price) See instructions and attach schedule

If obligations are TANs or RANs, check box � If obligations are BANs, check box �

If obligations are in the form of a lease or installment sale, check box �

Education11
Health and hospital12

13 Transportation
Public safety14
Environment (including sewage bonds)15
Housing16
Utilities

19
Other. Describe �

20
Description of Obligations. Complete for the entire issue for which this form is being filed.

(e) Yield(d) Weighted
average maturity(a) Final maturity date (b) Issue price (c) Stated redemption

price at maturity

$ %years
Uses of Proceeds of Bond Issue (including underwriters’ discount)

22Proceeds used for accrued interest

21

23Issue price of entire issue (enter amount from line 21, column (b))
22

24Proceeds used for bond issuance costs (including underwriters’ discount)
23

25Proceeds used for credit enhancement
24

26Proceeds allocated to reasonably required reserve or replacement fund
25

27Proceeds used to currently refund prior issues
26

Total (add lines 24 through 28) 2929
Nonrefunding proceeds of the issue (subtract line 29 from line 23 and enter amount here)30 30

Description of Refunded Bonds (Complete this part only for refunding bonds.)
yearsEnter the remaining weighted average maturity of the bonds to be currently refunded �31

33 Enter the last date on which the refunded bonds will be called �

Enter the date(s) the refunded bonds were issued �34
Miscellaneous

Enter the amount of the state volume cap allocated to the issue under section 141(b)(5)3535

Pooled financings: a Proceeds of this issue that are to be used to make loans to other governmental units37
b If this issue is a loan made from the proceeds of another tax-exempt issue, check box � and enter the name of the

issuer � and the date of the issue �

Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return and accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge
and belief, they are true, correct, and complete.

Sign
Here

Signature of issuer’s authorized representative Date Type or print name and title

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see page 2 of the Instructions. Form 8038-G (Rev. 11-2000)

Part VI

Part III

Part V

Part IV

Part I

Part II

Cat. No. 63773S

� �

Room/suite

39 If the issuer has elected to pay a penalty in lieu of arbitrage rebate, check box �

11
12
13
14
15
16

35

37a

40 If the issuer has identified a hedge, check box �

28 Proceeds used to advance refund prior issues 28

yearsEnter the remaining weighted average maturity of the bonds to be advance refunded �32

36a Enter the amount of gross proceeds invested or to be invested in a guaranteed investment contract (see instructions)
b Enter the final maturity date of the guaranteed investment contract �

36a

 

Telephone number of officer or legal representative109 Name and title of officer or legal representative whom the IRS may call for more information

( )

17
18

17
18

$

27

38 If the issuer has designated the issue under section 265(b)(3)(B)(i)(III) (small issuer exception), check box �







Unless otherwise agreed to by Dell in writing, the Commercial Terms of Sale apply to direct commercial purchasers (including Small, Medium and Large
Business, and Government and Public sector customers) of Dell hardware, software and services and commercial end-users who purchase through a reseller.
By placing your order, you accept and are bound to the Commercial Terms of Sale below:

1. Introduction

These Commercial Terms of Sale (the “Agreement”), made between you (“you” or “Customer”) and Dell, govern your purchase and use of Products and
Services from Dell. “Dell” means Dell Marketing L.P. or the Dell Affiliate identified on the Dell sales documentation. “Dell Affiliate” means a direct or
indirect subsidiary of Dell Inc. located in the United States. This Agreement is effective upon the earliest of (i) your issuance of a purchase order to Dell, (ii)
your acceptance of these terms, or (iii) your agreement with a reseller that references this Agreement. The Products and Services are solely for your internal
use and may not be resold. If you purchased through a reseller or distributor, final prices and sales terms will be between you and the reseller or distributor;
however, this Agreement applies to your possession and use of Products and Services.

A. Definitions. “Hardware” means computer hardware, related devices and other accessories including all embedded components (excluding Software).
“Software” means any software, library, utility, tool, or other computer or program code, in object (binary) form, and “Documentation” means the related
media, printed materials, online and electronic documentation, including copies. “Products” means Hardware, Software, or both. “Services” means services
and Deliverables provided by Dell. “Deliverables” means the tangible materials, including reports, studies, drawings, software, manuals or written
procedures and recommendations that Dell delivers to you under a Statement of Work. “Third-Party Products” means products, software, or services that
are not manufactured or performed by Dell.

B. Additional Agreements. This Agreement, the Service Agreements and the Software Agreements (each as defined below) form a legally binding contract
between you and Dell. In the event of a conflict or ambiguity, the applicable Service Agreement or Software Agreement will take precedence over this
Agreement.

2. Term; Auto-Renewal

This Agreement will continue until all Services, Product warranties, or licenses have expired or been terminated. If you purchased directly from Dell,
Hardware Service and non-perpetual Software licenses may be renewed if you pay a renewal invoice from Dell or continue to use the Hardware Service or
Software past its initial term. If you purchased through a reseller, the payment terms for renewal for the Hardware Service or Software licenses will be as
agreed between you and the reseller.

3. Quotes, Ordering, and Payment

Except for subsection B, this Section applies only to direct purchases from Dell.

A. Quotes and Orders. “Order” means your order of Products or Services, either through dell.com or other online process, by submitting a purchase order
that references a Dell quote, or by executing a Dell order form. Your Order is subject to acceptance by Dell. Acceptance of one Order is independent from
any other Order. Quoted prices are effective until the expiration date of the quote, but may change due to shortages in materials or resources, increase in
the cost of manufacturing, or other factors. Orders for Third-Party Products are subject to availability and are cancellable only by Dell. Dell is not responsible
for pricing, typographical, or other errors in any offer, and may cancel orders affected by such errors.

B. Changed or Discontinued Products or Services. Dell may revise or discontinue Products and Services at any time, including after Customer places an
Order, but prior to Dell’s shipment or performance. As a result, Products and Services Customer receives might differ from those ordered. However,
Dell-branded Products will materially meet or exceed all published specifications for the Products. Parts used in repairing or servicing Products may be new,
equivalent-to-new, or reconditioned.

C. Shipping Charges; Title; Risk of Loss. Shipping and handling charges are not included in Product prices unless expressly indicated at the time of sale. Title
to Hardware passes from Dell to Customer upon shipment. Delivery of Software is FOB Origin. Loss or damage that occurs during shipping (including returns)
is the responsibility of the party that selected the carrier. Shipping and delivery dates are estimates only. You must notify Dell within 21 days of your invoice
date if you believe any part of your Order is missing, wrong, or damaged.

D. Payment. Invoices are due and payable within the time period stated on your invoice, or if not stated, within 30 days from the invoice date. Payment
must be made in the method and currency identified by Dell. Credit approval may be revoked at any time. Dell may invoice parts of an Order separately or
together in one invoice. All invoices shall be deemed accurate unless Customer advises Dell in writing of a material error within 10 days following receipt. If
Customer advises Dell of a material error, (i) any amounts corrected by Dell in writing shall be paid within 14 days of correction and (ii) all other amounts
shall be paid by Customer by the due date. If Customer withholds payment upon an assertion that an invoiced amount is erroneous, and Dell concludes that
such amount is accurate, Customer shall pay interest as described below from the due date for such amounts until Dell’s receipt of those amounts. Customer
may not offset, defer or deduct any invoiced amounts that Dell determines are not erroneous following the notification process set forth above. Any
assignment of your payment obligations to a third-party financing company (other than Dell Financial Services, LLC) must be approved in advance in writing
by Dell, and you will not be excused from your obligations under this Agreement. Dell may charge a late penalty of 1.5% per month on undisputed overdue
amounts, or the maximum rate permitted by law, whichever is less. Late penalties will be recalculated every 30 days based on your current outstanding
balance. Dell, without waiving any other rights or remedies and without liability to Customer, may suspend or terminate any or all Services and refuse

Buy Online or Call 1-800-WWW-DELL Premier Login |

  Legal & Regulatory Compliance   Terms of Sale   Commercial & Public Sector   Terms of Sale

Keyword Search SearchAbout Dell Community Kelly
not Kelly?

Commercial Terms of Sale | Dell http://www.dell.com/learn/us/en/uscorp1/solutions/commercial-terms-of-...

1 of 5 9/5/2016 5:27 PM

Kel
Highlight
All of our pricing quotes are from Dell and do not list an identified Dell Affiliate, as per this form.



additional orders for Products until all overdue amounts are paid in full. Dell shall be entitled to all reasonable legal and attorney fees and associated costs
of collecting overdue amounts.

E. Taxes. You are responsible for sales tax and any other taxes or governmental fees associated with your Order. If you qualify for a tax exemption, you must
provide Dell with a valid certificate of exemption or other appropriate proof of exemption. The charges stated on each line item of the invoice shall include
all duties, levies or any similar charges and exclude VAT or equivalent sales or use tax. Customer shall also pay all freight, insurance, and taxes (including but
not limited to import or export duties, sales, use, value add, and excise taxes). Dell’s invoice shall be in accordance with applicable law. If Customer is
required by law to make a withholding or deduction from payment, Customer will make payments to Dell net of the required withholding or deduction.
Customer will supply to Dell satisfactory evidence (e.g. official withholding tax receipts) that Customer has accounted to the relevant authority for the sum
withheld or deducted.

F. Hardware Returns and Exchanges. You agree to Dell's return policy as stated at dell.com/returnspolicy. Before returning or exchanging Hardware, you
must contact Dell to obtain an authorization number for your return. You must return Hardware in its original or equivalent packaging, and you are
responsible for risk of loss and shipping and handling fees. Additional fees, including up to a 15% restocking fee, may apply. If you fail to follow the return or
exchange instructions, Dell will not be responsible for any loss, damage, or modification of Hardware, or processing of Hardware for disposal or resale. Credit
for partial returns may be less than invoice or individual component prices due to bundled or promotional pricing associated with your purchase. Title to
returned or exchanged Hardware shall pass to Dell upon receipt at the specified Dell facility.

4. Services and Software

A. Service Agreements. Dell may provide Services, Service-related Software, or Deliverables to you in accordance with one or more “Service Agreements.”
“Service Agreements” are service contracts, including “Service Descriptions” available at dell.com/servicecontracts/us, “Statements of Work,” and any
other mutually executed documents. Each Service Agreement will be interpreted separately from any other Service Agreement.

B. Hardware Services.

i. Exclusions. “Hardware Services” are Services necessary to repair a defect in materials or workmanship of Hardware. Hardware Services do not include
preventive maintenance or repairs required due to (a) software problems; (b) alteration, adjustment, or repair of the Hardware by anyone other than Dell or
Dell’s representatives; (c) accident, misuse, or abuse of the system or component (such as fire, water leakage, use of incorrect line voltages or fuses, use of
incompatible devices or accessories, improper or insufficient ventilation, or failure to follow operating instructions) that have not been caused by Dell; (d)
moving of the system from one geographic location or entity to another; or (e) an act of nature.

ii. Customer Authorization for Provision of Services. Some warranties or service contracts for Third-Party Products may become void if Dell provides
services for such products. DELL SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY EFFECT THAT THE HARDWARE SERVICES MAY HAVE ON THOSE WARRANTIES OR SERVICE
CONTRACTS. You authorize Dell to use or otherwise access any and all Third-Party Products you provide to us as may be necessary to perform the Services or
as requested by you, including but not limited to copying, storing, and reinstalling a backup system or data.

C. Software. The Software is subject to, and you are bound by, the applicable Software Agreement. “Software Agreement” means (i) the software license
agreements included with the software media packaging or presented to Customer during the installation or use of the Software, or (ii) if no license terms
accompany the Software or are not otherwise made available to you by Dell, the End User License Agreement – A Version, found at dell.com/aeula. For
Software listed at software.dell.com (the “DSG Software”), the terms and conditions of the applicable local agreement located at
software.dell.com/legal/sta shall govern the DSG Software and the maintenance and support services for such Software.

D. Customer & System Data. In connection with Dell’s performance or your use of the Services and Service-related Software, Dell may obtain, receive,
and/or collect data or information, including system-specific data (collectively, the “Data”). You grant Dell (i) a non-exclusive, worldwide, royalty-free,
perpetual, irrevocable license to use, compile, distribute, display, store, process, reproduce, or create derivative works of the Data solely to provide the
Services or Service-related Software; (ii) a license to aggregate and use the Data in an anonymous manner in support of Dell’s marketing and sales activities;
and (iii) the right to copy and maintain the Data on Dell’s or its suppliers’ servers as necessary to provide the Services. You represent and warrant that you
have obtained all rights, permissions, and consents necessary to use and transfer the Data within and outside of the country in which you are located.

5. Proprietary Rights

The Products and Software are protected pursuant to copyright laws and international copyright treaties, as well as other intellectual property laws and
treaties. All right, title, and interest in the intellectual property (including all copyrights, patents, trademarks, trade secrets, and trade dress) embodied in
the Software, Products and Deliverables, and the methods by which the Services are performed and the processes that make up the Services, shall belong
solely and exclusively to Dell or its suppliers or licensors. Subject to Dell’s receipt of payment in full for the applicable Services, Dell grants you a
non-exclusive, non-transferable, royalty-free right to use the Deliverables solely (i) in the country or countries in which you do business; (ii) for your internal
use; and (iii) as necessary for you to enjoy the benefit of the Services as stated in the applicable Service Agreements.

6 . Limited Warranty

A. THE LIMITED WARRANTIES FOR DELL-BRANDED OR DELL-LICENSED HARDWARE SHALL BE AS STATED IN THE DOCUMENTATION PROVIDED WITH THE HARDWARE.
IF THERE IS NO SUCH DOCUMENTATION, THEN THE WARRANTIES SHALL BE AS STATED AT DELL.COM/WARRANTYTERMS (“EXPRESS WARRANTIES”). THE LIMITED
WARRANTIES FOR SOFTWARE SHALL BE AS STATED IN THE APPLICABLE SOFTWARE AGREEMENT. THE SERVICES WILL BE PROVIDED IN A GOOD AND WORKMANLIKE
MANNER. CUSTOMER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY AND DELL'S SOLE OBLIGATION FOR ANY BREACH OF ANY SERVICES WARRANTY SHALL BE FOR DELL TO RE-PERFORM
THE NON-CONFORMING SERVICES.  

B. THE ABOVE WARRANTIES DO NOT COVER DAMAGE DUE TO EXTERNAL CAUSES, SUCH AS ACCIDENT, ABUSE, MISUSE, PROBLEMS WITH ELECTRICAL POWER,
SERVICES NOT PERFORMED OR AUTHORIZED BY DELL (INCLUDING INSTALLATION OR DE-INSTALLATION), USAGE NOT IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRODUCT
INSTRUCTIONS, NORMAL WEAR AND TEAR, OR USE OF PARTS AND COMPONENTS NOT SUPPLIED OR INTENDED FOR USE WITH THE PRODUCTS OR SERVICES. ANY
WARRANTY FOR A THIRD-PARTY PRODUCT IS PROVIDED BY THE PUBLISHER, PROVIDER, OR ORIGINAL MANUFACTURER. ALL THIRD-PARTY PRODUCTS ARE
PROVIDED BY DELL “AS IS.”

C. EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY STATED ABOVE OR IN THE EXPRESS WARRANTIES, AND TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, DELL (INCLUDING DELL
AFFILIATES, CONTRACTORS, AND AGENTS, AND EACH OF THEIR RESPECTIVE EMPLOYEES, DIRECTORS, AND OFFICERS), ON BEHALF OF ITSELF AND ITS SUPPLIERS
AND LICENSORS MAKES NO EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTY WITH RESPECT TO ANY OF THE PRODUCTS OR SERVICES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ANY
WARRANTY (i) OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, PERFORMANCE, SUITABILITY, OR NON-INFRINGEMENT; (ii) FOR ANY THIRD-PARTY
PRODUCTS; (iii) FOR THE PERFORMANCE OF OR RESULTS TO BE OBTAINED FROM ANY PRODUCTS OR SERVICES; OR (iv) THAT THE PRODUCTS OR SERVICES WILL
OPERATE OR BE PROVIDED WITHOUT INTERRUPTION OR ERROR. The Dell-branded Products and Services are not fault-tolerant and are not designed or
intended for use in hazardous environments requiring fail-safe performance, such as any application in which the failure of the Products or Services could
lead directly to death, personal injury, or severe physical or property damage (collectively, “High-Risk Activities”). Dell expressly disclaims any express or
implied warranty of fitness for High-Risk Activities.

Commercial Terms of Sale | Dell http://www.dell.com/learn/us/en/uscorp1/solutions/commercial-terms-of-...

2 of 5 9/5/2016 5:27 PM



7. Confidentiality

“Confidential Information” means information that is designated as confidential or should reasonably be understood to be confidential. Confidential
Information may only be disclosed to the receiving party’s personnel, professional advisors, agents, and subcontractors (“Representatives”), on a “need-
to-know” basis in connection with this Agreement. Representatives shall be bound to treat the Confidential Information under terms at least as restrictive as
those herein, and the receiving party shall be liable for unauthorized disclosures by its Representatives. Each party will use at least the same degree of care
as it employs with respect to its own Confidential Information, but not less than a commercially reasonable standard of care. The foregoing shall not apply to
information that (i) is independently developed without use of the other party’s Confidential Information; (ii) has been obtained from a source which is not
under a confidentiality obligation; or (iii) is or becomes publicly available without fault of the receiving party. If receiving party must disclose Confidential
Information as required by law, it shall give reasonable prior notice to the disclosing party. These obligations shall continue for 3 years from the initial date of
disclosure, except that obligations related to information about a party’s intellectual property shall never expire.

8. Indemnification

A. If you purchased Products or Services directly from Dell, Dell shall defend and indemnify you against any third-party claim that Dell-branded Products or
Services (excluding Third-Party Products and open source software) infringe or misappropriate that third party’s United States (“U.S.”) patent, copyright,
trade secret, or other intellectual property rights (“Claim(s)”). In addition, if Dell receives prompt notice of a Claim that Dell believes is likely to result in an
adverse ruling, then Dell shall at its option, (i) obtain a right for you to continue using such Products or Deliverables or for Dell to continue performing the
Services; (ii) modify such Products or Services to make them non-infringing; (iii) replace such Products or Services with a non-infringing equivalent; or (iv) if
you purchased directly from Dell, refund any pre-paid fees for the allegedly infringing Services that have not been performed or provide a reasonable
depreciated or pro rata refund for the allegedly infringing Product or Deliverables. Dell shall have no obligation for any claim arising from (a) modifications of
the Products and Services that were not performed by or on behalf of Dell; (b) misuse, or the combination or use with Third-Party Products (the combination
of which causes the claimed infringement); or (c) Dell’s compliance with your written specifications, including the incorporation of any software or other
materials or processes you provide or request. Dell’s duty to indemnify and defend the Claim is contingent upon: (x) your prompt written notice of the Claim;
(y) Dell’s right to solely control the defense and resolution of the Claim; and (z) your cooperation in defending and resolving the Claim. These are your
exclusive remedies for any third-party intellectual property claim, and nothing in this Agreement or elsewhere will obligate Dell to provide any greater
indemnity.

B. You shall defend and indemnify Dell against any third-party claim resulting or arising from: (i) your failure to obtain any appropriate license, intellectual
property rights, or other permissions, regulatory certifications, or approvals associated with technology or data provided by you, or associated with software
or components requested by you to be used with, or installed or integrated as part of the Products or Services; (ii) your violation of Dell’s intellectual
property rights; (iii) any inaccurate representation regarding the existence of an export license or any allegation made against Dell due to your alleged
violation of applicable export laws; or (iv) your transferring or providing access to Excluded Data (as defined below) to Dell.

C. Each party shall defend and indemnify the other against any third-party claim for personal bodily injury, including death, where the injury has been
exclusively caused by the indemnifying party’s gross negligence or willful misconduct in connection with this Agreement.

9. Compliance with Laws

A. In performing its obligations under this Agreement, each party agrees to comply with all laws and regulations applicable to such party including the
customs and export control laws and regulations of the U.S.; and the country in which the Products or Services are delivered or performed. Customer is
subject to and solely responsible for compliance with the export control and economic sanctions laws of the United States and other applicable jurisdictions.
Customer's purchase may not be used, sold, leased, exported, re-exported, or transferred except in compliance with such laws, including, without limitation,
export licensing requirements, end-user, end-use, and end-destination restrictions, and prohibitions on dealings with sanctioned individuals and entities,
including but not limited to persons on the Office of Foreign Assets Control's Specially Designated Nationals and Blocked Persons List or the U.S. Department
of Commerce Denied Persons List. Customer represents and warrants that it is not the subject or target of, and that Customer is not located in a country or
territory that is the subject or target of, economic sanctions of the United States and other applicable jurisdictions.

B. Customer certifies that all items (including hardware, software, technology and other materials) it provides to Dell for any reason that contain or enable
encryption functions either (i) satisfy the criteria in the Cryptography Note (Note 3) of Category 5, Part 2 of the Wassenaar Arrangement on Export Controls
for Conventional Arms and Dual-Use Goods and Technologies or (ii) employ key length of 56-bit or less symmetric, 512-bit asymmetric or less, and 112-bit or
less elliptic curve. Dell is not responsible for determining whether any Third-Party Product to be used in the Products and Services satisfies regulatory
requirements of the country to which such Products or Services are to be delivered or performed, and Dell shall not be obligated to provide any Product or
Service where the resulting Product or Service is prohibited by law or does not satisfy the local regulatory requirements.

C. Dell’s privacy policies explain how Dell treats your personal information and protects your privacy and can be found at dell.com/privacy.

10. Termination or Suspension

A. Suspension or Modification of Services. Dell may suspend, terminate, withdraw, or discontinue all or part of the Services when Dell believes, in its sole
judgment, that you are involved in any fraudulent or illegal activities.

B. Termination. Either party may terminate a Service Agreement or Software Agreement if the other party commits a material breach and the breach is not
cured within 90 days of receipt of written notice. Termination of any Service Agreement will not terminate other Service Agreements, and termination of all
Service Agreements will not terminate this Agreement. Dell may terminate this Agreement and all Service Agreements and Software Agreements
immediately, if (i) you fail to make any payment when due; (ii) you declare bankruptcy or are adjudicated bankrupt; (iii) a receiver or trustee is appointed
for you or substantially all of your assets; or (iv) you purchased through a reseller and, as applicable, the agreement between you and such reseller expires or
is terminated, the agreement between Dell and such reseller expires or is terminated, or your reseller is delinquent on its payment obligations to Dell.
Further, Dell may terminate a Service Agreement immediately if you are acquired by or merge with a competitor of Dell. Upon termination of this
Agreement, all rights and obligations under this Agreement will automatically terminate except for rights of action accruing prior to termination, payment
obligations, and any obligations that expressly or by implication are intended to survive termination.

11. Limitation of Liability

A. DELL WILL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT, PUNITIVE, SPECIAL, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH
THIS AGREEMENT OR THE PRODUCTS OR SERVICES. EXCEPT FOR YOUR BREACH OF SECTIONS 3(D) OR 7, OR YOUR VIOLATION OF DELL’S INTELLECTUAL
PROPERTY RIGHTS, NEITHER PARTY SHALL HAVE LIABILITY FOR THE FOLLOWING: (i) LOSS OF REVENUE, INCOME, PROFIT, OR SAVINGS; (ii) LOST OR CORRUPTED
DATA OR SOFTWARE, LOSS OF USE OF A SYSTEM OR NETWORK OR THE RECOVERY OF SUCH; (iii) LOSS OF BUSINESS OPPORTUNITY; (iv) BUSINESS INTERRUPTION
OR DOWNTIME; (v) THE PRODUCTS, DELIVERABLES OR THIRD-PARTY PRODUCTS NOT BEING AVAILABLE FOR USE; OR (vi) THE PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE
PRODUCTS OR SERVICES.

B. DELL’S TOTAL LIABILITY FOR ANY AND ALL CLAIMS ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT (INCLUDING PRODUCTS AND SERVICES) IN

Commercial Terms of Sale | Dell http://www.dell.com/learn/us/en/uscorp1/solutions/commercial-terms-of-...

3 of 5 9/5/2016 5:27 PM



ANY 12 MONTH PERIOD SHALL NOT EXCEED THE TOTAL AMOUNT RECEIVED BY DELL DURING THE PRIOR 12 MONTHS OF THIS AGREEMENT FOR THE SPECIFIC
PRODUCT OR SERVICE GIVING RISE TO SUCH CLAIM(S).

C. THESE LIMITATIONS, EXCLUSIONS, AND DISCLAIMERS APPLY TO ALL CLAIMS FOR DAMAGES, WHETHER BASED IN CONTRACT, WARRANTY, STRICT LIABILITY,
NEGLIGENCE, TORT, OR OTHERWISE. THESE LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY ARE AGREED ALLOCATIONS OF RISK CONSTITUTING IN PART THE CONSIDERATION FOR
DELL’S SALE OF PRODUCTS OR SERVICES TO CUSTOMER, AND WILL APPLY NOTWITHSTANDING THE FAILURE OF ESSENTIAL PURPOSE OF ANY LIMITED REMEDY
AND EVEN IF A PARTY HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH LIABILITIES.

12. Additional Terms

A. Independent Subcontractor Relationship; Assignment; Subcontracting. The parties are independent contractors. Neither party will have any rights,
power or authority to act or create an obligation on behalf of the other party except as specified in this Agreement. Neither party’s employees, agents, nor
consultants shall be considered under any circumstances to be employees of the other party. Dell has the right to assign, subcontract, or delegate in whole or
in part this Agreement, or any of its rights, duties, obligations or liabilities provided that if it subcontracts its duties in providing Services, Dell shall remain
responsible for the performance of such Services under this Agreement. You may not assign this Agreement without Dell’s permission.

B. Excused Performance. A party shall not be liable to the other for any delay in performing its obligations if the delay is caused by circumstances beyond
its reasonable control, provided that the other party is promptly notified in writing. If the circumstance lasts longer than 30 days, then the other party may
terminate, in whole or in part, this Agreement or the affected Service Agreement or Software Agreement by giving written notice to the delayed party. This
Section shall not relieve either party of its obligations under this Agreement (including payment), but rather will only excuse a delay in performance.

C. Excluded Data. Customer acknowledges that Products and Services provided under this Agreement are not designed to process, store or be used in
connection with any of the following categories of data: (i) data that is classified and/or used on the U.S. Munitions list, including software and technical
data; (ii) articles, services and related technical data designated as defense articles and defense services; (iii) ITAR (International Traffic in Arms Regulations)
related data; and (iv) except for certain DSG Software, other personally identifiable information that is subject to heightened security requirements as a
result of Customer’s internal policies or practices or by law (collectively referred to as “Excluded Data”). You are solely responsible for reviewing data that
will be provided to or accessed by Dell to ensure that it does not contain Excluded Data.

D. U.S. Government Restricted Rights. The software and documentation provided with the Products and Services are “commercial items” as that term is
defined at 48 C.F.R. 12.101, consisting of “commercial computer software” and “commercial computer software documentation” as such terms are used in 48
C.F.R. 12.212. Consistent with 48 C.F.R. 12.212 and 48 C.F.R. 227.7202-1 through 227.7202-4, all U.S. Government end-users acquire the software and
documentation with only those rights set forth herein. Contractor/manufacturer of (i) Dell-branded Software (other than DSG Software) and Dell-branded
Products is Dell Products L.P., One Dell Way, Round Rock, Texas 78682, and (ii) DSG Software is Dell Software Inc., 5 Polaris Way, Aliso Viejo, California 92656.

E. Governing Law. This Agreement and any related Service Agreement(s), and ANY CLAIM, DISPUTE, OR CONTROVERSY (WHETHER IN CONTRACT, TORT, OR
OTHERWISE, INCLUDING STATUTORY, CONSUMER PROTECTION, COMMON LAW, INTENTIONAL TORT AND EQUITABLE CLAIMS) BETWEEN CUSTOMER AND DELL,
including their affiliates, contractors, and agents, and each of their respective employees, directors, and officers (a “Dispute”) will be governed by the laws
of the State of Texas, without regard to conflicts of law. The UN Convention for the International Sale of Goods and the Uniform Computer Information
Transactions Act will not apply.

F. Venue. The parties agree that any Dispute shall be brought exclusively in the state or federal courts located in Travis or Williamson County, Texas. The
parties agree to submit to the personal jurisdiction of such courts.

G. Bench Trial. The parties agree to waive, to the maximum extent permitted by law, any right to a jury trial with respect to any Dispute.

H. No Class Actions. NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE ENTITLED TO JOIN OR CONSOLIDATE CLAIMS BY OR AGAINST OTHER CUSTOMERS, OR PURSUE ANY CLAIM AS A
REPRESENTATIVE OR CLASS ACTION OR IN A PRIVATE ATTORNEY GENERAL CAPACITY.

I. Limitation Period. NEITHER PARTY Shall be liable for any claim brought more than 2 years after the cause of action for such claim first arose.

J. Dispute Resolution. Customer and Dell will attempt to resolve any Dispute through negotiation or by utilizing a mediator agreed to by the parties, rather
than through litigation. Negotiations and mediations will be treated as confidential. If the parties are unable to reach a resolution within 30 days of notice of
the Dispute to the other party, the parties may pursue all other courses of action available at law or in equity.

K. Notices. Notice to Dell under this Agreement or any related Service Agreement must be in writing and sent by registered or certified mail (postage prepaid
first-class mail and return receipt requested) by overnight delivery service or by electronic mail to the address below, and will be effective upon receipt.

                                            Dell Marketing L.P., Attn: Contracts Manager
                                            One Dell Way RR1-33, Round Rock, Texas 78682
                                            Dell_Legal_Notices@dell.com

L. Entire Agreement; Severability. This Agreement is the entire agreement with respect to its subject matter and supersedes all prior or contemporaneous
communications or agreements that may exist. In entering into this Agreement, neither party is relying upon any representations or statements of the other
that are not fully expressed in this Agreement; rather each party is relying on its own judgment and due diligence and expressly disclaims reliance upon any
representations or statements not expressly set forth in this Agreement. If you purchased directly from Dell, any preprinted terms on your purchase order
shall be of no force or effect. Modifications to this Agreement will be made only through a written amendment signed by both parties. If any provision of this
Agreement is found to be void or unenforceable, such provision will be stricken or modified, but only to the extent necessary to comply with the law, and the
remainder of this Agreement will remain in full force. No rights may arise by implication or estoppel, other than those expressly granted herein. 

Commercial Terms of Sale (United States)
Revision Date 4/5/2016

Related Articles

Dell Professional Services
Agreement

Dell Cloud Solutions Agreement (2

Commercial Terms of Sale | Dell http://www.dell.com/learn/us/en/uscorp1/solutions/commercial-terms-of-...

4 of 5 9/5/2016 5:27 PM



Do more with Dell

Employee and Student
Discounts
PartnerDirect
Dell Outlet
TechCenter
Make a Payment

About Dell

Investors
Company Information
Corporate Social
Responsibility
Customer Engagement
Careers
Newsroom

Legal

Ads & Emails
Privacy Statement
Legal & Regulatory
Terms of Sale
Trademarks

Community

The Dell Community
Read Our Blog
Support Forums
Events

© 2016 Dell Terms of Sale Unresolved Issues Privacy Ads & Emails Contact Site Map Feedback

Ultrabook, Celeron, Celeron Inside, Core Inside, Intel, Intel Logo, Intel Atom, Intel Atom Inside, Intel Core, Intel Inside, Intel Inside Logo, Intel vPro, Itanium, Itanium Inside,
Pentium, Pentium Inside, vPro Inside, Xeon, Xeon Phi, and Xeon Inside are trademarks of Intel Corporation in the U.S. and/or other countries.

of 2)

United States

Commercial Terms of Sale | Dell http://www.dell.com/learn/us/en/uscorp1/solutions/commercial-terms-of-...

5 of 5 9/5/2016 5:27 PM



 

U.S. Return Policy
Direct (applies only to purchases directly from Dell)

Dell values its relationship with you, and offers you the option to return most products you purchase directly from Dell.   For all purchases not made
directly from Dell, please check the return policy of the location from which you purchased your product.

30-Day Return Period for Certain Products and Accessories: Unless you have a separate agreement with Dell, or except as provided below, all hardware,
accessories, peripherals, parts may be returned within 30 days from the date on the packing slip or invoice for a credit or a refund of the purchase price
paid, less shipping and handling, and any applicable restocking fees (as further described below). Any product returned to Dell without prior authorization
from Dell will be considered an unauthorized return, and you will not receive credit for the product and Dell will not ship the product back to you.

Exceptions to Dell's 30-Day Return Period:

Software may not be returned at any time, unless the software being returned is:

Application software or operating systems installed by Dell on a returnable system which is being returned within the applicable return period; or1.
Media-based software that is unopened and still in its sealed package or, if delivered electronically, software that you have not accepted by
clicking "I agree to these Terms and Conditions."

2.

Dell EqualLogic™ and EqualLogic-branded products, Dell|EMC, EMC and VCE-branded products, Dell Compellent™ and Compellent-branded products,
Dell KACE™ and KACE-branded products, Dell Force10™ and Force10-branded products, PowerVault ML6000 tape libraries, PowerVault DL and DR
products, Dell SonicWALL™ and SonicWALL-branded products, Dell Wyse™ and Wyse-branded products, Dell Quest™, Quest™, ScriptLogic™ and
VKernel™ branded products, Dell Software branded products, Dell Data Protection | Rapid Recovery and Dell Data Protection | Rapid Recovery
branded products, Dell StatSoft and StatSoft-branded products, non-Dell-branded enterprise products, enterprise software, and customized products
may not be returned at any time.
Licenses purchased under any type of volume license agreement may be returned only with the express approval of the publisher, which in many
circumstances will not be granted.
Non-Dell branded mobile phone offers fulfilled by third-party partners are subject to partner return policies, which may have shorter return periods.

 

Restocking Fees: Unless the product is defective or the return is a direct result of a Dell error, Dell may charge a restocking fee of up to 15% of the purchase
price paid, plus any applicable sales tax.
 
Promotional Items: If you return a purchased item that qualified you for a discount, promotional item or promotional card (for example, buy a service, get a
computer half off; buy a computer, get a free printer; buy a TV, get a promotional gift card) and either (i) do not also return the discounted or promotional
item or (ii) have already redeemed the promotional card, Dell may deduct the value of the discount, promotional item or redeemed card from any refund
you receive for the return of the purchased item.

How to Return a Product: Before returning a product, you MUST first contact Dell customer service and obtain a Credit Return Authorization (CRA) number
before the end of the applicable return period. Dell will not accept returns without a CRA number. To find the appropriate phone number or to send an email
to customer service to request a CRA number, go to Dell.com/contact or see the "Contacting Dell" or "Getting Help" section of your customer documentation.
To initiate a return online, please click here. NOTE:  You must  ship the product to  Dell  within 5 days of the date that Dell  issues the Credit  Return
Authorization number and MUST follow these steps:

Ship back all products you are seeking to return to Dell and for which you received a CRA number. For partial returns, your credit may be less than the
invoice or individual component price due to bundled or promotional pricing or any unadvertised discounts or concessions.
Return the products in their original packaging, in as-new condition, along with any media, documentation and any other items that were included in
your original shipment.
Ship the products at your expense, and insure the shipment or accept the risk of loss or damage during shipment.

Upon receipt of your return, Dell will issue a credit or a refund of the purchase price paid, less shipping and handling, and any applicable restocking fees
subject to this policy.

Note: Before you return the product to Dell, make sure to back up any data on the hard drive(s) and on any other storage device in the product.
Remove any and all confidential, proprietary and personal information as well as removable media such as flash drives, CDs and PC Cards. Dell is not
responsible for any confidential,  proprietary or personal information; lost  or corrupted data; or damaged or lost  removable media that may be
included with your return.

Buy Online or Call 1-800-WWW-DELL Premier Login |

  Legal & Regulatory Compliance   Terms of Sale   Commercial & Public Sector   Returns

Keyword Search SearchAbout Dell Community My Account

U.S. Return Policy | Dell http://www.dell.com/learn/us/en/uscorp1/solutions/us-return-policy

1 of 2 9/8/2016 4:59 PM



Do more with Dell

Employee and Student
Discounts
PartnerDirect
Dell Outlet
TechCenter
Make a Payment

About Dell

Investors
Company Information
Corporate Social
Responsibility
Customer Engagement
Careers
Dell Newsroom
Dell Technologies

Legal

Ads & Emails
Privacy Statement
Legal & Regulatory
Terms of Sale
Trademarks

Community

The Dell Community
Read Our Blog
Support Forums
Events

© 2016 Dell Terms of Sale Unresolved Issues Privacy Ads & Emails Contact Site Map Feedback

Ultrabook, Celeron, Celeron Inside, Core Inside, Intel, Intel Logo, Intel Atom, Intel Atom Inside, Intel Core, Intel Inside, Intel Inside Logo, Intel vPro, Itanium, Itanium Inside,
Pentium, Pentium Inside, vPro Inside, Xeon, Xeon Phi, and Xeon Inside are trademarks of Intel Corporation in the U.S. and/or other countries.

Rev. 04052016

 

United States

U.S. Return Policy | Dell http://www.dell.com/learn/us/en/uscorp1/solutions/us-return-policy

2 of 2 9/8/2016 4:59 PM





 

 

 
 
 
 

Statement of Work for  
 
Gila County Arizona 

vSphere SRM 

 

   



 
 

Page 2 of 13  

  

Dell - Internal Use - Confidential  

Contents 

1 INTRODUCTION ........................................................................ 3 

2 TERM .................................................................................... 3 

3 SUMMARY OF SERVICE ................................................................ 3 

4 SCOPE OF SERVICE .................................................................... 3 

4.1 Introduction ..................................................................................... 3 

4.2 Detailed Description ........................................................................... 4 

4.3 Customer Responsibilities .................................................................... 5 

4.4 Assumptions ..................................................................................... 6 

4.5 Out of Scope .................................................................................... 7 

4.6 Schedule / Timeline / Milestones ........................................................... 7 

4.7 Service Hours ................................................................................... 7 

4.8 Deliverables ..................................................................................... 7 

5 PRICING ................................................................................. 8 

5.1 Purchase Order Amount ....................................................................... 8 

5.2 Pricing Clauses: ................................................................................. 8 

6 CHANGE MANAGEMENT PROCESS ................................................... 9 

7 OTHER PROVISIONS ................................................................... 9 

8 GENERAL .............................................................................. 10 

9 SIGNATURES .......................................................................... 11 

Appendix A  Supported Sites ........................................................... 12 

  

© Copyright 2016. Dell Inc. All rights reserved.  



 

Page 3 of 13  

  

Dell - Internal Use - Confidential  

1 INTRODUCTION 

This Statement of Work (“SOW”) sets forth the Services (as defined herein) to be performed by Dell 
Marketing LP (“Dell”) to Gila County Arizona (“Customer”).  The Services performed, provided under 
this SOW, are governed by and subject to the terms and conditions specified in: Customer’s separately 
signed master agreement to the extent that agreement expressly authorizes Customer to purchase the 
Services described herein; or in the absence of such master agreement, the Professional Services 
Agreement (“PSA”), which is available at www.dell.com/PSATerms and in hardcopy from Dell upon 
request, and, if applicable, is incorporated by reference in its entirety herein, and the parties 
acknowledge having read and agree to be bound by such terms (the master agreement or PSA, as 
applicable, the “Agreement”). The following appendices are attached hereto and incorporated by 
reference: 

● Appendix A - Definitions 

● Appendix B – Supported Sites 

2 TERM 

The term of this SOW shall begin on the date of the last signature (“Effective Date”) as set forth in the 
Signature Section of this SOW and unless terminated in accordance with this SOW or the Agreement, 
shall expire on the date that Dell completes the provision of Services in accordance with this SOW 
provided, however, in the event the Customer has not engaged Dell to perform such Services and three 
(3) months have passed since the later of the Effective Date and Dell’s completion of the last requested 
Service-related deliverable, Dell may terminate this SOW by providing thirty (30) days prior written 
notice.  Further, in the event the term of this SOW extends beyond one (1) year, Dell reserves the right 
to revisit the pricing on each anniversary of the Effective Date. 

3 SUMMARY OF SERVICE 

Dell will provide the services as specifically described herein (the “Services”), which include the 
following: 

● vSphere SRM Implementation  

4 SCOPE OF SERVICE 

4.1 Introduction 
Gila County Arizona has requested Dells assistance with the implementation of VMware SRM (Site 
Recovery Manager) 6.1.   

 

 



 
 

Page 4 of 13  

  

Dell - Internal Use - Confidential  

 

At the time of the engagement the vSphere environments will consist of the following:   

Production:  

● (1) Dell FX2 chassis 

● (4) FC630 server nodes acting as ESXi 6.0 hosts 

● (1) vCenter 6.0 server  

● Shared storage resides on a Compellent iSCSI SAN 

DR:  

● (1) Dell FX2 chassis 

● (4) FC630 server nodes acting as ESXi 6.0 hosts 

● (1) vCenter 6.0 server  

● Shared storage resides on a Compellent iSCSI SAN 

The SOW assumes that the following tasks will have been completed prior to the Dell SRM Consultant’s 
beginning the engagement: 

● Both vSphere environments will be implemented and in production or be production ready. 

● SAN to SAN replication will be configured between the two vSphere environments. 

● VMs to be failed over by SRM will be present in vSphere environment and placed on separate 
Datastores from VMs that will not be failed over   

● SAN firmware must be at current levels.   

This engagement will utilize Dell best practices and will begin with a project kickoff meeting which will 
be followed by up to one day of planning and environment review.  Next, working with Gila County 
Arizona IT staff, Dell will implement SRM and perform a test failover to validate functionality.  A test 
failover executes the recovery plan, bringing up the VMs at the DR site in an isolated environment.  This 
allows for the validation of the functionality of the vSphere environment without impacting the 
production environment. 

Upon completion of the engagement Dell will provide detailed documentation which will include: 

● Layout of SRM environment as implemented at of the completion of the engagement. 

● Recommendation/Best Practices. 

● Installation/configuration methodologies and failover/failback process.  

4.2 Detailed Description 
Dell will perform the tasks for this Service as follows: 

● vSphere environment review 

● Patch vSphere environments to current levels (if required) 

● Site Recovery Manager planning and design including: 

― Protection Groups 

― Recovery Plans 

● Implement VMware Site Recovery Manager including: 

― Installation of the SRM server 



 

Page 5 of 13  

  

Dell - Internal Use - Confidential  

― Installation of the SRM Plugin into the VI Client  

― Installation of the Storage Replication Adapter (SRA) 

― Configure SRM inventory mappings 

― Create protection groups 

― Create recovery plans  

● Perform test failover and validate SRM functionality.  

● Provide knowledge transfer SRM implementation and usage 

 

Complete written document which will include: 

● Layout of SRM environment as implemented at of the completion of the engagement. 

● Recommendation/Best Practices. 

● Installation/configuration methodologies and failover/failback process.  

4.3 Customer Responsibilities 
Customer agrees generally to cooperate with Dell in its delivery of the Services. Customer agrees to the 
following responsibilities:  

1) During the term of this SOW, Customer is responsible for promptly notifying Dell in writing of a) 
any changes Customer makes to its information technology environment that may impact Dell’s 
delivery of the Services; and b) if Customer becomes aware that any of the Assumptions set forth 
herein  are incorrect. 

2) Customer will maintain a backup of all  data and programs on affected systems prior to Dell 
performing the Services and during the term of the SOW.  Dell will have no liability for loss or 
recovery of data, programs or loss of use of system(s) arising out of or in connection with the 
Services provided under this SOW. 

3) Prior to the start of this SOW, Customer will indicate to Dell in writing a person to be the single 
point of contact, according to project plan, to ensure that all tasks can be completed within the 
specified time period. All Services communications will be addressed to such point of contact 
(the “Customer Contact”).  Failure to do so might result in an increase in project hours and/or 
length in schedule. 

4) Customer agrees to make available suitable resources, space, personnel, documentation, and 
systems. 

5) Customer will provide technical points-of-contact, who have a working knowledge of the 
enterprise components to be considered during the Services (“Technical Contacts”).  Dell may 
request that meetings be scheduled with Technical Contacts. 

6) Customer Contact will have the authority to act for Customer in all aspects of the Service 
including bringing issues to the attention of the appropriate persons within Customer’s 
organization and resolving conflicting requirements. 

7) Customer Contact will ensure that any communication between Customer and Dell, including any 
scope-related questions or requests, are made through the appropriate Dell Project Manager. 

8) Customer Contact will provide timely access to technical and business points of contact and 
required data/information for matters related to the scope of Service. 

9) Customer Contact will ensure attendance by key Customer contacts at Customer meetings and 
deliverable presentations. 



 
 

Page 6 of 13  

  

Dell - Internal Use - Confidential  

10) Customer Contact will obtain and provide project requirements, information, data, decisions and 
approvals within one working day of the request, unless both parties agree to a different 
response time. 

11) Customer may be responsible for developing or providing documentation, materials and 
assistance to Dell and agrees to do so in a timely manner. Dell shall not be responsible for any 
delays in completing its assigned tasks to the extent that they result from Customer’s failure to 
provide such timely documentation, materials and assistance. 

12) Customer Contact will ensure the Services personnel have reasonable and safe access to the 
Project site, a safe working environment, an adequate office space, and parking as required. 

13) Customer will inform Dell of all access issues and security measures, and provide access to all 
necessary hardware and facilities. 

14) Customer is responsible for providing all hardware, software, internet access, and facilities for 
the successful completion of the Services. Facilities and power must meet Dell’s requirements for 
the products and Services purchased. 

15) Customer is responsible for any and all software licensing requirements. Unless otherwise 
directed by Customer in writing, during the installation process, Technician will “accept” on 
Customer’s behalf any and all electronic agreements provided with the installed hardware and/or 
software, including without limitation licenses, terms of sale, and other terms and conditions.  
Customer agrees that its purchase, license, and/or use of any hardware or software installed by 
Technician under this SOW shall be subject to and governed by such electronic agreements to the 
same degree as if Customer had itself accepted the electronic agreements.  

16) Customer IT staff will be available to work with the onsite consultant as needed. 

17) All configuration of physical network environment including the configuration of VLANS and 
trunking will be the responsibility of the Customer. 

18) Unless quoted separately, Customer is responsible for all Rack/Stack and cabling of all 
equipment. 

19) Dell assumes the Customer's Wide Area Network (WAN) will support the replication of data from 
site to site as needed by the solution. Dell is not responsible for diagnosing WAN traffic or "bottle 
neck" issues. Dell can bring in additional resources to perform this type of diagnostic service for 
additional fees via a Change Order  

20) Dell assumes that necessary infrastructure (power, cooling, network connectivity, Directory 
services, etc...) is in place and functional at DR site.  

21) Adequate SAN space must be available to support the replication requirement of SRM.   

4.4 Assumptions 
Dell has made the following specific assumptions while specifying the Services detailed in this SOW:  

1) The provision of the Services does not include the development of any intellectual property 
created solely and specifically for the Customer under this SOW.  

2) The following tasks will have been completed prior to the Dell SRM Consultant’s beginning the 
engagement: 

a) Both vSphere environments will be implemented and functional. 

b) SAN to SAN replication will be configured and functioning between the two vSphere 
environments. 

c) VMs to be failed over by SRM will be placed on separate Datastores from VMs that will not 
be failed over   



 

Page 7 of 13  

  

Dell - Internal Use - Confidential  

d) SAN firmware must be at current levels.   

 

4.5 Out of Scope  
For the avoidance of doubt, the parties acknowledge that the following activities are not included in 
the scope of this SOW.   

1) Any services, tasks or activities other than those specifically noted in this SOW. 

2) Any Dell training or certification services not specifically described in this SOW. 

3) Except as set forth herein, Dell is not responsible (including financial responsibility) for any 
Customer and/or third party personnel, hardware, software, equipment or other assets currently 
utilized in the Customer’s operating environment.  

Upon request by Customer, Dell will provide a proposal for such out of scope services pursuant to the 
Change Management Process as defined in Section 6.  

4.6 Schedule / Timeline / Milestones 
Dell anticipates the Services will span an estimated period of 2 contiguous business weeks. 

Once this Service has been scheduled, any changes to the schedule must occur at least 8 business days 
prior to the scheduled date.  If Customer reschedules this service within 7 business days of the 
scheduled date, this may necessitate invoking the Change Control Process to determine the impact, if 
any, and any related price adjustments.  

4.7 Service Hours 
Dell intends to provide the Services during the scheduled hours stated below (the “Service Hours”).  

This Service will be performed during normal business hours typically 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday 
through Friday, Customer local time and will include travel time to and from the Customer location and 
excludes local holidays, unless other arrangements have been made in writing between Dell and 
Customer.  

4.8 Deliverables 
The following is a list of tangible material provided as part of the Service performed by Dell for 
Customer under this SOW.  

Implementation Deliverable 

a) Layout of SRM environment as implemented at of the completion of the engagement. 

b) Recommendation/Best Practices. 

c) Installation/configuration methodologies and failover/failback process. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

Page 8 of 13  

  

Dell - Internal Use - Confidential  

5 PRICING 

This section describes the methodology for determining invoice amounts (the “Charges”) for the 
Services provided under this SOW.  Customer hereby agrees to pay the Charges in accordance with the 
Invoicing and Payment terms of the Agreement and as further supplemented within this SOW. 

Charges shall be as follows: 

5.1 Purchase Order Amount 
Except as otherwise provided below, the Total amount to be noted on the Purchase Order provided to 
Dell for this SOW is: USD $18,400. If this SOW includes estimates, invoices will be based on actuals 
usage or expenses incurred.  

5.1.1 One-Time Charge Following Customer Signature 

Dell will invoice Customer upon Customer signature of the SOW the following One-Time Charge: 

One-Time Charge: USD $18,400 

5.1.2 Expenses 

Expenses are included in the Charges under this SOW.  Unless the Scope changes, pursuant to the 
Change Management Process, Dell will not charge any additional expenses in connection with delivering 
the Services without the express written consent of Customer. Additional expenses could include 
Service-related expenses such as actual, reasonable and necessary travel and living expense.  

5.2 Pricing Clauses: 
1) Pricing – The terms of this SOW (including but not limited to the pricing) shall be valid for thirty 

(30) days following initial delivery date (“Initial Delivery Date”) of this SOW to Customer.  In the 
event this SOW is executed by Customer and returned to Dell after such thirty (30) day period, 
Dell may, in its sole discretion, (i) accept the SOW on the stated terms or (ii) reject the SOW and 
provide Customer with a revised SOW setting forth any necessary updates to the terms of the 
previous SOW. 

2) The price for the Service is based on Customer’s environment as disclosed to Dell.  If the 
assumptions, Customer responsibilities and parameters within the scope of the Service used to 
develop the SOW are found to be incorrect or have changed, the parties agree to pursue 
resolution through the Change Management Process set forth in this SOW.  

3) If any of the volumetric assumptions used in this SOW (including, time on task, locations, service 
consumption, and/or configuration factors and excluding estimated hours or expenses) relied 
upon by Dell vary by +/- five (5%) percent, Dell has the right to adjust the pricing to reflect such 
changes. 

4) Taxes - All prices are in USD and are exclusive of all applicable taxes 



 

Page 9 of 13  

  

Dell - Internal Use - Confidential  

6 CHANGE MANAGEMENT PROCESS 

The Change Management Process (“Change Management Process”) is the process that governs changes 
to the scope of the Service during the Term of this SOW, as described below.  The Change Management 
Process may be used to modify the Service described in this SOW, then, if required, a subsequent 
Contract Modification. 

Changes permitted to be made pursuant to this Change Management Process will be limited to changes 
to Section 3 (Summary of Service) and Section 4 (Scope of Service) and adjustments in Section 5 
(Pricing) associated with changes to Sections 3 and 4 of this SOW.   

Either party may request a permitted change in the Scope of the Service by completing a Change Order 
Form at 

www.dell.com/servicecontracts/RFC 

The receiving party will review the proposed Change Order and will (i) approve it, (ii) agree to further 
investigation, or (iii) reject it.  Changes agreed pursuant to the Change Management Process will not be 
effective until mutually executed by both parties.  

Any desired modifications to this SOW which are not permitted above in this Section 6, will require that 
a written amendment to this SOW or a new SOW be mutually executed by the parties.  

7 OTHER PROVISIONS 

 

1) Dell may use affiliates and subcontractors to perform Services. 

2) Dell may perform all or part of the Services off-site at a Dell or other location. 

3) Services may be performed outside the country in which Customer and/or Dell is located.  From 
time to time, Dell may change the location where Services are performed and/or the party 
performing the Services; provided however, Dell shall remain responsible to Customer for the 
delivery of Services. 

4) Customer acknowledges that Dell will request Customer’s participation in a Customer feedback 
survey.  Additionally, Dell may approach Customer to serve as reference regarding Dell’s 
performance of the Services.  If Customer agrees to be a reference, Customer and Dell will agree 
in writing to the terms of such reference.  The Infrastructure Consulting References Program has 
been developed to facilitate the confidential conversations between Dell customers and 
prospective accounts. 

a) Customers are invited to join the program at the conclusion of their project for a period of 
one year. 

b) We will only share your contact information to a potential customer who is interested in 
contacting you for a discussion on your previous experiences. 

c) We limit usage of your reference to no more than once/month. 

d) We will not publish your name, organization, or any customer identifiable details based on 
participation in this program. 

5) If a conflict arises between the terms of the Purchase Order, SOW and Agreement, the following 
order of precedence shall be followed: first, the SOW; second, the Agreement; and third, the 
Purchase Order (if any).  Provided, however, in no event will any terms and conditions contained 



 
 

Page 10 of 13  

  

Dell - Internal Use - Confidential  

in any Purchase Order apply irrespective of whether such terms and conditions are in conflict 
with or merely ancillary to any terms and conditions in the SOW or Agreement. 

6) At Dell’s request, Customer agrees to cooperate with Dell to provide the following marketing 
assistance to Dell.  

― Provide reference calls to potential Dell customers for similar Services with reasonable 
limits on the number of requested calls.  

― Participate in and approve a success story detailing business benefits Customer has derived 
from utilizing the Services provided by Dell.  All content developed by Dell is subject to 
Customer's final approval.  

8 GENERAL 

Dell shall not be responsible for any delay or failure to provide Service to the extent caused by: (1) 
failures by Customer to perform its responsibilities under this SOW; (2) materially inaccurate 
assumptions; (3) a defect, deficiency or failure with respect to Customer’s network, systems, software, 
data or other equipment; or (4) modifications to Customer’s network, systems, or other equipment 
made by a party other than Dell or its representatives.  In the event that either party becomes aware of 
the occurrence of one or more of the foregoing events, they shall notify the other party accordingly.  
Notwithstanding such occurrence, Dell may, following discussion with Customer regarding the impact of 
such incident, continue to provide the Service and shall use commercially reasonable efforts to perform 
the Service under this SOW.  Customer shall reimburse Dell for its reasonable additional costs of 
providing the Service and out of pocket expenses for such efforts and only to the extent attributable to 
the items defined above.  





 
 

Page 12 of 13  

  

Dell - Internal Use - Confidential  

Appendix A  Supported Sites 

The Services will be provided for the following supported sites during the term of this SOW.  Additional 
supported sites may be included as mutually agreed using the Change Management process as defined in 
section 6. 

Supported Site Address City State  Zip Qty 

Production 745 N Rose Mofford Way 

 

Globe AZ 85501  

      

      

      

      

      

 



 

Page 13 of 13  

  

Dell - Internal Use - Confidential  

Contact Summary 

Customer  Gila County Arizona  

Contact Name: Kelly Riggs 

Phone: 928-402-8772 

Email: kriggs@gilacountyaz.gov 

Initial Delivery Date  8/1/2016 

Document Author Name: Hector Moreno 

Title: ISA 

Organization:           Dell Global Solution Design Center 

Phone: 972-577-7000 x332 3662 

Email: hector_moreno@dell.com 

Principal Consultant  Name:  Edward Roberts 

Customer Billing Contact Name: Kelly Riggs 

Address: 745 N Rose Mofford Way, Globe, Az 85501 

Phone number: 928-402-8772 

Dell Segment Contact Name: Larry Dean Moore 

Phone: 512-513-2749 

Email:  larry_moore@dell.com 

Locations where work will be 
performed 

 745 N Rose Mofford Way 

 Globe, Az 85501 

Dell Opportunity Number  11572424 

RFS #  RFS-2016-11469 

 

 



   
ARF-3925     Regular Agenda Item      3. L.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  

Submitted For: Jacque Sanders, Asst. County Manager/Librarian 
Submitted By: Elaine Votruba, Public Services Librarian
Department: Asst County Manager/Library District Division: Library District
Fiscal Year: 2016-2017 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Library Service Agreements for Globe, Hayden, Isabelle Hunt (Pine), Miami, Payson, Tonto Basin, and Young public
libraries for FY 16/17.

Background Information
The  Gila County Library District contracts annually with the eight affiliate public libraries to cooperate in the
provision of library services to the citizens of the District.  These Library Service Agreements serve as contracts for
facilitating funding and resource sharing.  Currently we have seven of eight Library Service Agreements returned.

Evaluation
Library funding is based on the aggregate percentages of the four library service measures, from the baseline FY 12,
along with a base amount for each of the community libraries.  This year's funding totals are as follows:

Globe Public Library - $113,600.00
Hayden Public Library - $49,600.00
Isabelle Hunt Memorial Public Library (Pine) - $108,400.00
Miami Memorial Public Library -$54,400.00
Payson Public Library - $230,400.00
Tonto Basin Public Library - $70,000.00
Young Public Library - $57,600.00.

The Library District will distribute these amounts in two installments -- the first in November 2016 and the second
in May 2017.

Conclusion
Approval of the FY 16/17 Library Service Agreements will facilitate funding and resource sharing with the affiliate
libraries of the Gila County Library District.

Recommendation
The Gila County District Librarian recommends approval of the FY 17 Library Service Agreements between the Gila
County Library District and City of Globe, Town of Hayden, Isabelle Hunt Memorial Public Library, Town of Miami,
Town of Payson, Tonto Basin Public Library, and Young Public Library.

Suggested Motion

(Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and convene as the Gila County
Library District Board of Directors.)  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Library Service Agreements
for Globe, Hayden, Isabelle Hunt (Pine), Miami, Payson, San Carlos, Tonto Basin, and Young public libraries for the
period July 1, 2016, to June 30, 2017.  (Jacque Sanders)

Attachments

FY17 Globe LSA
FY17 Globe Library Budget
FY17 Hayden LSA
FY17 Hayden Library Budget



FY17 Hayden Library Budget
FY17 New Isabelle Hunt LSA 
FY17 Isabelle Hunt Library Budget
FY17 Miami Library LSA
FY17 Miami Library Budget
FY17 Payson Library LSA
FY17 Payson Library Budget
FY17 New Tonto Basin LSA
FY17 Tonto Basin Library Budget
FY17 New Young LSA
FY17 Young Library Budget





















































































































































   
ARF-3950     Regular Agenda Item      3. M.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  

Submitted By: Jacque Sanders, Asst. County
Manager/Librarian

Department: Asst County Manager/Library District Division: Library District
Fiscal Year: 2017 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

7/1/2016 6/30/2017 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
State Grants-in-Aid Application 2017 for the Gila County Library District.

Background Information
State Grants-in-Aid (SGIA) is a recurring grant from the Arizona State Library Archives and Public Records provided
to county library districts and large municipal libraries. The funding comes from the State of Arizona to benefit
libraries throughout Arizona. This grant money is to be used for programming, supplies, equipment, training, and
materials and cannot be used for salaries or as match money for other grants.

Evaluation
The Gila County Library District will be using the SGIA 2017 monies to provide training, travel, equipment upgrades,
collection development, and provide for special projects throughout the Gila County Library District. We will keep a
portion of the funds at the district level, and give a portion of the funds to each of the libraries.

FOR THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE: 30% or $7,000
We use these funds in various ways to supplement our services to the eight affiliate libraries.
Part of SGIA funds are earmarked for conferences to encourage networking with other library peers, travel and
training opportunities, both for the district staff, and staff at the eight libraries. We will continue to provide
materials, (books, electronic resources) as well as marketing/promotional material for the electronic resources. The
District will again bulk purchase Movie Licensing USA for the Affiliate Libraries in order for all to comply with the
copyright laws.

FOR THE INDIVIDUAL LIBRARIES: 70% OR $16,000
Each library in the District will be allocated $2,000 to be spent on programs, projects or materials that the local
librarian has determined is important to them, but that they do not have funds for in their regular budgets. These
projects may include computer upgrades, collection development of both print and non-print materials, supplies,
equipment, and summer reading supplies. In past years, SGIA funds have been used at the local level to provide for
special programs, such as guest speakers and workshops in connection with Summer Reading Programs. Since the
eight libraries are vastly different, their needs are also vastly different and varied. In fact, the only common thread is
that they all have needs that their regular budgets do not cover.

Conclusion
The SGIA grant provides for programming, supplies, training, and equipment that benefit library services in all of
Gila County, and it is a valued grant.

Recommendation
The District recommends that the County apply for SGIA 2017 to enhance needed services, materials, resources and
supplies for the library patrons of Gila County.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the submission and subsequent acceptance of a State Grants-In-Aid
Application by the Gila County Library District to the Arizona State Library, Archives and Public Records, Library
Development Division, for fiscal year 2017 in the amount of $23,000 designated to Gila County for the period July 1,
2016, through June 30, 2017.  (Jacque Sanders) (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Library District
Board of Directors and reconvene as the Gila County Board of Supervisors.)



Attachments

2017 SGIA Award Notification
SGIA 2017 Application 
Certification of Application SGIA 2017
Resource Access Attainment Policy 2017
SGIA 2017 FAQs













 1 

Arizona State Library 
Resource Access and Attainment Policy 
July 1, 2013 
 
The Arizona State Library, Archives and Public Records is committed to working with public, 
academic, school and special libraries to help all Arizonans find information they need and 
want, and to attain material needed for that information. 
 
The State Library does this through: 
 
1) Funding for FirstSearch WorldCat, and Unlimited ILL for Arizona public libraries, to 
facilitate the sharing of resources among libraries. 
 
2) Support, with county library districts, of statewide databases on a broad range of topics 
available to all Arizonans and to all public and K-12 public and charter school libraries at no 
cost. Materials include both full-text and bibliographic sources.  
 
4) Support of pilot projects allowing libraries to test new technologies to meet patrons’ needs, 
such as e-readers, and alternative means, such as purchase-on-demand. 
 
5) Training for library staff members on reference services, including helping patrons find 
materials through virtual services. 
 
Arizona Resource Access and Attainment Policy (AzRAP) for Public Libraries 
Agreement: 

 
Receive:  

• Access to FirstSearch WorldCat;  
• Worldcat Resource Sharing Subscription (public libraries). 

 
Agree To:  

• Work with patrons, at no charge, to locate materials.  
• Provide specific information on attaining material. Patrons may be offered several 

options to attain material including: patron purchase of low-cost materials; library 
purchase of materials; database and web sources; and inter-library loan (ILL). 

• When materials can only be attained through ILL, offer to secure the loan for the 
patron. With prior notice to patrons, postage costs for materials sent to any and from 
any library will be capped at $6 per item, and fees charged by non-Arizona public, 
regent or community college libraries, may be passed on to the patron; no other fees 
or charges may be passed on to the patron. Libraries may limit ILL requests to six per 
patron at any one time and may limit requests to print materials published more than 
one year ago; not currently on a nationally recognized best-seller list; or not needed by 
the library’s own patrons. The sharing of circulating non-print materials is encouraged, 
but not required. 

• Write and publish a detailed Resource Access and Attainment Policy, and provide an 
electronic copy to the Arizona State Library each time the policy is updated. 

 
 
 



 2 

 
Arizona Resource Access and Attainment Policy (AzRAP) for Regents and Community 
Colleges: 

 
Receive:  

• Access to FirstSearch Worldcat to all regent and community college members. 
 

Agree To:  
• ILL materials to other Arizona public, regent or community college members, with 

postage charges capped at $6 per item.  
• Write and publish a detailed Resource Access and Attainment Policy, and provide an 

electronic copy to the Arizona State Library each time the policy is updated. 
 

 
SGIA and LSTA 
 
All county and municipal library systems receiving regular SGIA allotments must be AzRAP 
compliant. All public libraries applying for LSTA must be AzRAP compliant. To be eligible for 
LSTA competitive grants, any type of library must be AzRAP compliant. 
 
 



State Grants-in-Aid (SGIA) 

What is SGIA? 
In 1981, the Arizona legislature developed State Grants-in-Aid (SGIA) to help Arizona libraries meet the 
information needs of Arizona residents. SGIA provides limited construction funding to public libraries, and 
annual awards to county library districts and to cities with populations of 100,000 or more. 

Who Qualifies? 
In order to qualify for SGIA, libraries must: 

• Be organized as a governmental unit or a non-profit organization. 
• Agree to the Arizona State Library Resource Access and Attainment Policy. 
• Provide library services free of charge to all residents within the library area. 
• Be open to the public on a regular basis with regular, posted hours. 
• Be in good standing with the State Library by submitting library statistics and all other reports in a 

complete, accurate and timely manner. 
• Adhere to any requirements specified in the Arizona Revised Statutes, including but not limited to ARS 9-

411 through 9-420 (Cities and Towns/Public Libraries); ARS 11-901 through 11-914 (Counties/Public 
Libraries); and ARS 34-502 (Computer Access/Harmful to Minors). 

How Can Funds Be Used? 

• State funds will be used for library services county or citywide. Funds will not be used for indirect or 
administrative costs. 

• County/city will expend no less than the amount of state grants-in-aid awarded in the same fiscal year for 
county/citywide library services. SGIA requires a dollar-for-dollar cash match. State money may not be 
substituted for local match. 

• The recipient agrees to submit a final report, which includes a narrative, budget and certification. 

From Arizona State Library Website at:  

http://www.azlibrary.gov/libdev/funding/sgia 

 

http://www.azlibrary.gov/sites/azlibrary.gov/files/libdev-resource-access-attainment-policy.pdf
http://www.azlibrary.gov/libdev/funding/sgia


   
ARF-3952     Regular Agenda Item      3. N.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  

Submitted By: Jacque Sanders, Asst. County
Manager/Librarian

Department: Asst County Manager/Library District Division: Administrative Services

Information
Request/Subject
Provide comments on the proposed Tonto Basin Green Waste Disposal Site project on the Tonto Basin Ranger
District, Tonto National Forest.

Background Information
On August 12, 2016, the Tonto Basin Ranger District, Tonto National Forest issued a letter soliciting comments on
the proposed Tonto Basin Green Waste Disposal Site project on the Tonto Basin Ranger District.  In a cooperative
effort with community leaders and local representatives, a Southern Gila County Community Wildfire Prevention
Plan was created to look at options that would reduce wild land fire risks around various communities including
Tonto Basin. The planning process identified that an additional green waste disposal site near the Tonto Basin
community could reduce the random dumping of green waste on National Forest land near the community.  So that
they are most useful to the planning process, comments need to be submitted by September 9, 2016.

Evaluation
Creating an additional green waste disposal site near the Tonto Basin community could reduce the random
dumping, as well as provide a site for accumulating the waste and managing the removal through scheduled
controlled burning.  The proposed project would develop a site adjacent to Forest Service Road 491, just off Highway
188, and one half mile east of an existing waste transfer station.  Development would include clearing of vegetation
on the one acre site, fencing and installing a cattle guard and a gate. The site would be maintained through a
cooperative agreement with the Community that would address limiting unwanted trash and keeping the site area
clean.

Conclusion
This proposed action would be beneficial for the area to assist with the collection and disposal of green waste in the
Tonto Basin area. One green waste disposal site exists near the community of Roosevelt.  This site has been
successful in engaging the community in management and centralizing the accumulation of a large volume of green
waste.  The addition of another green waste disposal site near the community of Tonto Basin will be similarly
beneficial and provide more convenient access for the residents of Tonto Basin.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors consider issuing official comments to the Tonto Basin Ranger
District, Tonto National Forest, regarding the proposed Tonto Basin Green Waste Disposal Site Project.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to consider issuing official comments to the Tonto Basin Ranger District, Tonto
National Forest, regarding the proposed Tonto Basin Green Waste Disposal Site Project located near the Tonto
Basin community.  (Jacque Sanders)

Attachments

Comment letter Tonto Basin Ranger District Green Waste Disposal Site project
Green Waste Disposal Site proposal letter Tonto Basin



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
September 6, 2016 
 
 
Mr. Kelly Jardine, District Ranger 
Tonto Basin Ranger District /Tonto National Forest 
28079 N. AZ Hwy 188 
Roosevelt, AZ 85545 
 
File Code: 1950 
 
Re: Gila County Comments regarding the proposed Tonto Basin Green Waste Disposal Site 
project on the Tonto Basin Ranger District. 
 
 
Dear District Ranger Jardine, 
 
In response to the request for public comment regarding the proposed Tonto Basin Green 
Waste Disposal Site, the Gila County Board of Supervisors would like to provide the 
following comments. The Board of Supervisors of Gila County strongly supports this 
proposal to provide a solution for green waste collection and disposal for the residents of 
the Tonto Basin area.   
 
Gila County is a stakeholder and partner in reducing the risks of catastrophic fire and 
protecting private property.  With 96% Federal land in Gila County we recognize and 
understand the importance of protecting our natural resources and reducing wildland fire 
risks around all of the local communities. Creating a convenient location to properly handle 
green waste will greatly assist with controlling random dumping of waste and accumulation 
of fuels in the National Forest. This proposed action will also provide support of the 
community in compliance with the Southern Gila County Community Wildfire Prevention 
Plan. 
 
 
 

Tommie C. Martin, District I 
610 E. Hwy 260, Payson, 85547 
(928) 474-2029 
tmartin@gilacountyaz.gov 
 
Michael A. Pastor, District II 
(928) 402-8753 
mpastor@gilacountyaz.gov  
 
John D. Marcanti, District III 
(928) 402-8726 
jmarcanti@gilacountyaz.gov  
 
 
 

 

Don E. McDaniel, Jr.,  
County Manager 

(928) 402-4344 
dmcdaniel@gilacountyaz.gov 

 
 

Marian Sheppard, 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

(928) 402-8757 
msheppard@gilacountyaz.gov 

  
 
 

 

GILA COUNTY 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

1400 E. Ash Street 
Globe, Arizona 85501 

 

Phone (928) 425-3231 Fax (928) 425-0319            T.D.D. (928) 425-0839 

mailto:tmartin
mailto:mpastor@gilacountyaz.gov
mailto:jmarcanti@gilacountyaz.gov


The Gila County Board of Supervisors thanks you for the opportunity to comment and 
requests to be kept informed and included in the process as this proposed project 
continues. 

Respectfully submitted, 

____________________ 

Date 

_______________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor 
Chairman 
Gila County Board of Supervisors 

Phone (928) 425-3231 Fax (928) 425-0319   T.D.D. (928) 425-0839 







   

ARF-3961     Consent Agenda Item      4. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  

Submitted For: Jefferson Dalton, Deputy County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief 
Submitted By: Athena Gooding, Legal Secretary, Lead
Department: County Attorney
Fiscal Year: 2016-2017 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2016 -
June 30, 2017

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

Yes Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Arizona Criminal Justice Commission Drug, Gang and Crime Control Grant Agreement
(ACJC No.  DC -17-023).

Background Information
DC-017-023 - This grant has been in effect for 26 years and it is also known as the
Byrne Prosecution Grant.  This grant assists with funding a full-time prosecutor for
drug and violent crime prosecution.  This grant requires a match in the amount of
$14,874 which will come from the County's General Fund.

Evaluation
DC-17-023 - The Drug, Gang and Crime Control Grant is essential to provide funding
for the salary and benefits of a prosecutor who works in tandem with the Gila County
Narcotics Task Force.

Conclusion
DC-17-023 - The Drug, Gang and Crime Control Program allows state, county, local
and tribal governments to support activities that combat drug, gangs and violent
crime.  This grant provides a significant portion of the funding for a full-time
prosecutor to work in tandem with the Gila County Narcotics Task Forces in effort to
curb crime in Gila County through investigation, arrest and prosecution.

Recommendation
DC-17-023 - That the Gila County Board of Supervisors approve the Arizona Criminal
Justice Commission Drug, Gang and Crime Control Grant Agreement in the amount of
$63,656.  The Chairman's signature is required.

Suggested Motion
Approval of a FY2017 Drug, Gang and Crime Control Grant Agreement (ACJC No.



Approval of a FY2017 Drug, Gang and Crime Control Grant Agreement (ACJC No.
DC-17-023) between Gila County and the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission in the
amount of $59,495 for the period of July 1, 2016, to June 30, 2017.

Attachments
DC-17-023 Grant Agreement











































   

ARF-3962     Consent Agenda Item      4. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  

Submitted For: Jefferson Dalton, Deputy County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief 
Submitted By: Athena Gooding, Legal Secretary, Lead
Department: County Attorney
Fiscal Year: 2016-2017 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2016 to
June 30, 2017

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of Arizona Criminal Justice Commission Crime Victim Compensation Grant
Agreement VC-17-052.

Background Information
VC-17-052 – The Crime Victim Compensation Program receives its funding through
three state sources and one federal source. Program monies are appropriated each year
by the state legislature and state funds are distributed to each county based upon a
formula approved annually by the Commission.  These funds are used to provide
compensation awards to victims of criminally injurious conduct occurring within Gila
County jurisdiction. Gila County’s allotment for FY 2017 is $58,125 and this grant has
no financial impact on the County.  The funding will be distributed to the Gila County
Attorney's Office as a monthly reimbursement of compensation program expenditures. 
A financial reimbursement request form is required for reimbursement of those
expenditures.

Evaluation
VC-17-052 - The Arizona Criminal Justice Commission Crime Victim Compensation
Grant Agreement is essential to provide financial assistance to victims of crime in Gila
County for medical and dental expenses, mental health expenses, wage loss, funeral
expenses, and crime scene clean-up expenses based on program rules and
requirements.  The maximum award to a claimant is $25,000 for all economic loss
sustained as a result of a particular incident of criminal conduct.

Conclusion
VC-17-052 - Claims are filed by victims of criminally injurious conduct in the county
in the which the crime occurred.  The Gila County Victim Compensation Coordinator
investigates each claim filed and then presents the claim to the volunteer Crime Victim
Compensation Board for review.  The Board approves or denies each compensation
claim in accordance with program rules.  The Victim Compensation Program would not
exist without these State and Federal Funds and it is a vital program in the Gila
County Attorney's Office.



Recommendation
The Gila County Attorney's Office recommends that the Gila County Board of
Supervisors approve the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission Crime Victim
Compensation Grant Agreement for FY 2014 in the amount $58,125.

Suggested Motion
Approval to accept a Victim Compensation Grant Agreement (ACJC Grant No.
VC-17-052) between Gila County and the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission in the
amount of $58,125 for the period of July 1, 2016, to June 30, 2017.

Attachments
VC-17-052 Victim Compensation Grant Agreement





































   

ARF-3963     Consent Agenda Item      4. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  

Submitted For: Jefferson Dalton, Deputy County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief 
Submitted By: Athena Gooding, Legal Secretary, Lead
Department: County Attorney
Fiscal Year: 2016-2017 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2016 -
June 30, 2017

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

Yes Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
The Gila County Attorney requests that the Board of Supervisors accept a Victim
Assistance Grant No. VA-17-020 for fiscal year 2017 from the Arizona Criminal Justice
Commission in the amount of $17,600. 

Background Information
The Gila County Attorney's Office has been receiving Victim Assistance Grants for
approximately 20 years.  The money from the grant helps fund the salary of the victim
witness advocate.  The grant requires a fifty percent match from the County which has
been budgeted in the 2017 fiscal budget.

Evaluation
The Victim Assistance grant enables the County Attorney's Office to fund the salary of
a victim witness advocate.

Conclusion
Accepting the Victim Assistance Grant will enable the County Attorney's Office to
continue to employ a victim witness advocate.

Recommendation
The Gila County Attorney's Office recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve
the acceptance of the Victim Assistance Grant from the Arizona Criminal Justice
Commission in the amount of $17,600.

Suggested Motion
Approval to accept Arizona Criminal Justice Commission FY 2017 Crime Victim
Assistance Program Grant No. VA-17-020 in the amount of $17,600 for the period of
July 1, 2016, to June 30, 2017.

Attachments



VA-17-020 Victim Assistance Grant





























   

ARF-3924     Consent Agenda Item      4. D.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  

Submitted For: Dorothy Little, Justice of the Peace-Payson Region 
Submitted By: Jonathan Bearup, Court Administrator
Department: Superior Court Division: Superior Court Administration

Information
Request/Subject
Appointment of Justice of the Peace Pro Tempore for the Payson Regional Justice
Court.

Background Information
The Presiding Judge of the Superior Court in Gila County has requested the
appointment of Jerrilee Antunes to serve as Justice of the Peace Pro Tempore.
 
The Justice of the Peace Pro Tempore for the Payson Regional Justice Court will serve
until December 31, 2016, unless terminated earlier by order of the Presiding Judge,
pursuant to A.R.S. 22-121 for the purpose of enhancing the court's ability to process
cases.

Evaluation
Because of exigent circumstances requiring qualified judicial officers when conflicts
arise, or, in the event the Justice of the Peace is absent or unavailable, pursuant to
A.R.S. 22-121, the following appointment is requested for a Justice of the Peace Pro
Tempore of the Globe Regional Justice Court: Jerrilee Antunes, to serve from time to
time as requested and subject to the availability of funds for the Payson Regional
Justice Court.  The term of this appointment shall expire on December 31, 2016,
unless terminated earlier by order of the Presiding Judge.

Conclusion
The Presiding Judge of the Superior Court in Gila County has requested the
appointment of Jerrilee Antunes, pursuant to A.R.S. 22-121, for the purpose of
enhancing the court's ability to process cases.

Recommendation
Presiding Judge Timothy M. Wright recommends that the Gila County Board of
Supervisors approve the appointment of Jerrilee Antunes as Justice of the Peace Pro
Tempore for the Payson Regional Justice Court, with the term to expire on December
31, 2016.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the appointment of Jerrilee Antunes as Justice of the Peace Pro Tempore of



Approval of the appointment of Jerrilee Antunes as Justice of the Peace Pro Tempore of
the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office with the term expiring on December
31, 2016.

Attachments
BOS Approval of Appointment
Superior Court Memo to BOS
Administrative Order - Antunes



APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENT OF 
JUSTICE OF THE PEACE PRO TEMPORE

The Presiding Judge of the Superior Court in Gila County has requested the 

appointment of JERRILEE ANTUNES as a Justice of the Peace Pro Tempore of 

the Payson Regional Justice Court in Gila County until December 31, 2016, unless 

terminated earlier by Order of the Presiding Judge, pursuant to A.R.S. §22-121 for 

the purpose of enhancing the court’s ability to process cases.

NOW, THEREFORE, be it known that the Gila County Board of 

Supervisors approves such appointment. 

Dated  ________________________________________________ 2016.

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

By: _____________________________

Michael A. Pastor, Chairman



BRYAN CHAMBERS
Judge, Division I
Extension 8686

JON BEARUP
Court Administrator

Extension 8671

Superior Court
of Gila County

TIMOTHY WRIGHT
Presiding Judge, Division II

Extension 8690

Gila County Courthouse
1400 East Ash

Globe, Arizona 85501
(928) 425-3231

MEMORANDUM

DATE: August 12, 2016

TO: Gila County Board of Supervisors

FROM: Timothy M. Wright, Presiding Judge

RE: Appointment of Justice of the Peace Pro Tempore for Gila County

Judge Dorothy Little has requested appointment of JERRILEE ANTUNES as a Justice of the Peace Pro 
Tempore for the Payson Regional Justice Courts, and Superior Court is requesting your approval of this 
appointment pursuant to A.R.S. §22-121. (A copy of the Administrative Order is enclosed.)

Judge Little recommended that Ms. Antunes receive this appointment, which will be effective until 
expiration on December 31, 2016. Compensation for Ms. Antunes is subject to availability of funds in the 
justice court budget. Funds are included in the current fiscal year budget.

We have enclosed a proposed form approving Ms Antunes’ appointment for the Board to consider. Thank 
you for your consideration of this request.





   
ARF-3908     Consent Agenda Item      4. E.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  

Submitted For: Ginnie Scales, Health Services Program Manager 
Submitted By: Paula Horn, Deputy Director of Health
Department: Health & Emergency Management Division: Health Services
Fiscal Year: 2013 through 2018 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

7/1/2013 to 6/30/2018 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No.1 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS13-049248) for a Tuberculosis Control
Program.

Background Information
The purpose of this funding is to continue to supplement Gila County Health Department's tuberculosis (TB)
prevention and control activities within Gila County. This includes identifying active TB cases and ensuring
completion of therapy, conducting surveillance and reporting activities, and providing TB training and education to
the public and medical professionals. The original contract was approved by the Board on August 6, 2013.
Amendment No. 1 is a revision to the Price Sheet to continue services through 2018.

Evaluation
The Gila County Health Department is required to provide tuberculosis (TB) testing, screening and treatment, along
with outbreak investigations. The objective of the TB program is to enhance prevention activities and provide
medical treatment to reduce transmission of the disease in Gila County. 

Conclusion
The Tuberculosis Control Program is used to enhance prevention activities, increase surveillance, and treat cases in
Gila County to reduce transmission risks. 

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Gila County Health and Emergency Management Division Director that the Board of
Supervisors approve Amendment No. 1 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS13-049248) with the
Arizona Department of Health Services for the period 7/1/2013 to 6/30/2018 in the amount of $12,000 annually.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 1 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS13-049248) between Gila
County and the Arizona Department of Health Services to replace the price sheet in the contract, all of which is to
provide tuberculosis prevention services for the period of July 1, 2013, through June 30, 2018, in the annual
amount of $12,000.

Attachments

Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. ADHS13-049248
IGA-Contract No. ADHS13-049248
Approval as to Form



 
 

 
 

 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

AMENDMENT 

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH SERVICES 

150 North 18
th

 Ave., Suite 280 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

(602) 542-1040 
(602) 542-1741 FAX 

Agreement No. ADHS13-049248 Amendment No. 1 
Procurement Officer: 

Delilah Gonzalez 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

TUBERCULOSIS CONTROL  

 
  Effective upon signature, it is mutually agreed that the referenced Agreement is amended as follows: 
 

1. Pursuant to Terms and Conditions of the Agreement, Provision Six (6) Contract Changes, Section 6.1 
Amendments, Purchase Orders and Change Orders, the Price Sheet shall be replaced with the Price Sheet in this 
Amendment.  The Price Sheet total dollar amount remains the same; funds are reallocated due to an increase 
Professional and Outside Services and other operating expenses. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
(Continued on the next page) 

 
 

Gila County Health Department 

  

Contractor Name 

 
1400 E. Ash St. 

Authorized Signature 

 
 

Address 

Globe AZ                          85501 

Print Name 
 

 

City State Zip Title 

CONTRACTOR ATTORNEY SIGNATURE 
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952, the undersigned public agency attorney has 
determined that this Intergovernmental Agreement is in proper form and is 
within the powers and authority granted under the laws of Arizona. 

This Intergovernmental Agreement Amendment shall be effective 
the date indicated. The Public Agency is hereby cautioned not to 
commence any billable work or provide any material, service or 
construction under this IGA until the IGA has been executed by an 
authorized ADHS signatory. 

 
State of Arizona 

 
 

Signed this                 day  of                                           2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Signature Date 

Print Name 

Attorney General Contract No.: P0012014000078, which is an Agreement 
between public agencies, has been reviewed pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952 
by the undersigned Assistant Attorney, who has determined that it is in 
proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under the laws 
of the State of Arizona. 
 
 

Signature                                                                        Date 
 

 

Assistant Attorney General Print Name 
 

Procurement Officer 
 

gscales
Typewritten Text
Michael A. Pastor

gscales
Typewritten Text
Chairman, Board of Supervisors

gscales
Typewritten Text

gscales
Typewritten Text

gscales
Typewritten Text

gscales
Typewritten Text

gscales
Typewritten Text

gscales
Typewritten Text

gscales
Typewritten Text

gscales
Typewritten Text
Jefferson R. Dalton

gscales
Typewritten Text

gscales
Typewritten Text
Deputy Gila County AttorneyCivil Bureau Chief

gscales
Typewritten Text

gscales
Typewritten Text

gscales
Typewritten Text

gscales
Typewritten Text

gscales
Typewritten Text

gscales
Typewritten Text



 
 

 
 

 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

AMENDMENT 

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH SERVICES 

150 North 18
th

 Ave., Suite 280 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

(602) 542-1040 
(602) 542-1741 FAX 

Agreement No. ADHS13-049248 Amendment No. 1 
Procurement Officer: 

Delilah Gonzalez 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 

 

 

Revised Price Sheet  

 

 

 Account Classification Amount 

   

1. Personnel Services and ERE $4,410.00 

2. Professional and Outlets Services $3,600.00 

3. Travel Expenses $800.00 

4. Other Operating Expenses $2,099.00 

5. Capital Outlay Expenses $0.00 

6. Other $1,091.00 

   

 TOTAL $12,000.00 

 

 

 
LINE ITEM BUDGET TRANSFERS 
 
With prior approval from the ADHS TB Program Manager, the contractor is authorized to transfer up to a 

maximum of thirty-five percent (35%) of the total budget amount between line items. Transfers of funds are 

only allowed between funded line items.  Transfers exceeding thirty-five percent (35%) or to a non-funded 

item shall require an Agreement Amendment. 

 











































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   
ARF-3912     Consent Agenda Item      4. F.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  

Submitted By: Samantha Jerome, Nutrition Manager
Department: Health & Emergency Management Division: Health Services
Fiscal Year: 2017 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

10/01/16 to 9/30/21 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS17-132851) with the Arizona Department of Health
Services (ADHS) to continue the Commodity Supplemental Foods Program (CSFP) and the Senior Farmers' Market
Nutrition Program (SFMNP).

Background Information
The Board of Supervisors originally adopted this Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) on October 18, 2011.
Currently, the CSFP provides approximately 200 low-income individuals, mostly seniors, with a box of commodities
each month that provides vital nutrients that participants might not otherwise receive; and, Farmers' Markets are
now featured events during the summer in Payson and Globe.

Contract No. ADHS 17-132851 replaces the original Contract No. ADHS 12-010890 and the four amendments to
continue CSFP and SFMNP programs through September 30, 2021. There have been no changes from the previous
contract.

Evaluation
This contract replaces the previous contract to continue CSFP and SFMNP services. CSFP funding will remain the
same at $5,448 and the SFMNP will remain fee for service at the rate of $1.25 for each voucher issued.

Conclusion
This IGA provides funding of $5,488 for the continuation of the CSFP from October 1, 2016, to September 30, 2021,
and level funding for the SFMNP.

Recommendation
The Health & Emergency Management Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve this
IGA between the ADHS and Gila County Health & Emergency Management to continue CSFP and SFMNP services to
the residents of Gila County.Gila County Attorney reviewed and noted the contract is a five year contract and policy
BOS-FIN-002 states that contract should not obligate the County for more than four years.  The contract has been
issued from the Arizona Department of Health Services in five years increments since the beginning of the program.
The acronym GAAP is defined as General Accepted Accounting Principles.

Suggested Motion
Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS17-132851) between Gila County Health and
Emergency Management and the Arizona Department of Health Services for the Commodity Supplemental Foods
Program and the Senior Farmers' Market Nutrition Program for the period of October 1, 2016, through September
30, 2021.

Attachments

IGA No. ADHS17-132851 
County Attorney's Comment



 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

 
AGREEMENT No.  ADHS17-132851 

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH SERVICES 

1740 West Adams, Room 303 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

(602) 542-1040 
(602) 542-1741 FAX 

 

Page 1 of 20 
 

Project Title:   Commodity Supplemental Food Program (CSFP) /  
                         Senior Farmers’ Market Nutrition Program (SFMNP)  
 
Geographic Service Area:  Gila County Health Services 

Begin Date:  October 1, 2016 
 
 
Termination Date: September 30, 2021 

 
Arizona Department of Health Services has authority to contract for services specified herein in accordance with A.R.S. §§ 11-951, 11-952, 36-
104 and 36-132.  The Contractor represents that it has authority to contract for the performance of the services provided herein pursuant to:  

X   Counties:  A.R.S. §§ 11-201, 11-951, 11-952 and 36-182. 
   Indian Tribes:  A.R.S. §§ 11-951, 11-952 and the rules and sovereign authority of the contracting Indian Nation. 
   School Districts:   A.R.S. §§ 11-951, 11-952, and 15-342. 
   City of Phoenix:    Chapter II, §§ 1 & 2, Charter, City of Phoenix. 
   City of Tempe: Chapter 1, Article 1, §§ 1.01 & 1.03, Charter, City of Tempe. 

 
Amendments signed by each of the parties and attached hereto are hereby adopted by reference as a part of this Contract, from the effective 
date of the Amendment, as if fully set out herein.                              

Arizona Transaction (Sales) Privilege:   
 
Federal Employer Identification No.:  
 
Tax License No.:  
 
Contractor Name:  Gila County Health Services  
 
Address:                1400 East Ash Street 

Globe, Arizona  85501 

 FOR CLARIFICATION, CONTACT: 
 

Name:  Paula Horn, Deputy Director of Health & Emergency Serv. 
 
Phone:  (928) 402-8813 
 
FAX No:  
 
E-mail: phorn@gilacountyaz.gov  
 

 

 
CONTRACTOR SIGNATURE: 

The Contractor agrees to perform all the services set forth in the 
Agreement and Work Statement.   
 

  
This Contract shall henceforth be referred to as  
Agreement No.  ADHS17-132851     The Contractor is hereby 
cautioned not to commence any billable work or provide any 
material, service or construction under this Contract until Contractor 
receives a fully executed copy of the Contract. 
 

 

 
Signature of Person Authorized to Sign               Date    
 
 
 
 

State of Arizona 

Signed this   day of    , 20_____                           

 
Print Name and Title 

Chief Procurement Officer 

 
CONTRACTOR ATTORNEY SIGNATURE: 
 
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952, the undersigned Contractor’s Attorney 
has determined that this Intergovernmental Agreement is in proper 
form and is within the powers and authority granted under the laws 
of Arizona.  
 
 
 

  
Attorney General Contract, No. P0012014000078, which is an 
Agreement between public agencies, has been reviewed pursuant to 
A.R.S. § 11-952 by the undersigned Assistant Attorney General, who 
has determined that it is in the proper form and is within the powers 
granted under the laws of the State of Arizona to those parties to the 
Agreement represented by the Attorney General. 
The Attorney General, By: 
 
 
 
Signature                           Date 
 
Assistant Attorney General:   

 
Signature of Person Authorized to Sign               Date    
 
 
 
 
Print Name and Title 

mailto:phorn@gilacountyaz.gov
gscales
Typewritten Text

gscales
Typewritten Text
Michael A. Pastor   Chairman, Board of Supervisors

gscales
Typewritten Text
Jefferson R. Dalton

gscales
Typewritten Text
Deputy Gila County AttorneyCivil Bureau Chief

gscales
Typewritten Text

gscales
Typewritten Text

gscales
Typewritten Text



AGREEMENT NUMBER INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
 TERMS AND CONDITIONS ADHS17-132851 

 

Page 2 of 20 
 

1. DEFINITION OF TERMS 
 
As used in this Contract, the terms listed below are defined as follows: 

 
1.1 “Attachment” means any document attached to the Contract and incorporated into the Contract.  

 
1.2 “ADHS” means Arizona Department of Health Services.  

 
1.3 “Budget Term” means the period of time for which the contract budget has been created and during which funds 

should be expended.   
 

1.4 “Change Order” means a written order that is signed by a Procurement Officer and that directs the Contractor to 
make changes authorized by the Uniform Terms and Conditions of the Contract.   

 
1.5 “Contract” means the combination of the Uniform and Special Terms and Conditions, the Specifications and 

Statement or Scope of Work, Attachments, Referenced Documents, any Contract Amendments and any terms 
applied by law.   

 
1.6 “Contract Amendment” means a written document signed by the Procurement Officer and the Contractor that is 

issued for the purpose of making changes in the Contract.   
 

1.7 “Contractor” means any person who has a Contract with the Arizona Department of Health Services.  
 

1.8 “Cost Reimbursement” means a contract under which a contractor is reimbursed for costs, which are reasonable, 
allowable and allocable in accordance with the contract terms and approved by ADHS.  

 
1.9 “Days” means calendar days unless otherwise specified.   

 
1.10 “Fixed Price” establishes a set price per unit of service.  The set price shall be based on costs, which are 

reasonable, allowable and allocable.   
 

1.11 “Gratuity” means a payment, loan, subscription, advance, deposit of money, services, or anything of more than 
nominal value, present or promised, unless consideration of substantially equal or greater value is received.   

 
1.12 “Materials” unless otherwise stated herein, means all property, including but not limited to equipment’s, supplies, 

printing, insurance and leases of property.   
 

1.13 “Procurement Officer” means the person duly authorized by the State to enter into and administer Contracts and 
make written determinations with respect to the Contract.   

 
1.14 “Purchase Order” means a written document that is signed by a Procurement Officer, that requests a vendor to 

deliver described goods or services at a specific price and that, on delivery and acceptance of the goods or 
services by ADHS, becomes an obligation of the State.   

 
1.15 “Services” means the furnishing of labor, time or effort by a Contractor or Subcontractor.   

 
1.16 “Subcontract” means any contract, express or implied, between the Contractor and another party or between a 

subcontractor and another party delegating or assigning, in whole or in part, the making or furnishing of any 
material or any service required for the performance of this Contract.   

 
1.17 “State” means the State of Arizona and/or the ADHS.  For purposes of this Contract, the term “State” shall not 

include the Contractor. 



AGREEMENT NUMBER INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS ADHS17-132851 

 

Page 3 of 20 
 

2. CONTRACT TYPE 
  

 This Contract shall be:   
 

        X Cost Reimbursement.  
  

3. CONTRACT INTERPRETATION 
 

3.1 Arizona Law. The law of Arizona applies to this Contract including, where applicable, the Uniform Commercial 
Code as adopted by the State of Arizona. 
 

3.2 Implied Contract Terms.  Each provision of law and any terms required by law to be in this Contract are a part of 
this Contract as if fully stated in it. 
 

3.3 Contract Order of Precedence.  In the event of a conflict in the provisions of the Contract, as accepted by the 
State and as they may be amended, the following shall prevail in the order set forth below: 

 
3.3.1 Terms and Conditions; 
 
3.3.2 Statement or Scope of Work; 
 
3.3.3 Attachments; 
 
3.3.4 Referenced Documents. 

 
3.4 Relationship of Parties.  The Contractor under this Contract is an independent Contractor.  Neither party to this 

Contract shall be deemed to be the employee or agent of the other party to the Contract. 
 

3.5 Severability.  The provisions of this Contract are severable.  Any term or condition deemed illegal or invalid shall 
not affect any other term or condition of the Contract. 
 

3.6 No Parole Evidence.  This Contract is intended by the parties as a final and complete expression of their 
agreement.  No course of prior dealings between the parties and no usage of the trade shall supplement or 
explain any terms used in this document. 
 

3.7 No Waiver.  Either party’s failure to insist on strict performance of any term or condition of the Contract shall not 
be deemed a waiver of that term or condition even if the party accepting or acquiescing in the nonconforming 
performance knows of the nature of the performance and fails to object to it. 
 

3.8 Headings.  Headings are for organizational purposes only and shall not be interpreted as having legal significance 
or meaning. 

 
4. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION AND OPERATION 

  
4.1. Term.  As indicated on the signature page of the Contract, the Contract shall be effective as of the Begin Date 

and shall remain effective until the Termination Date.  
 

4.2. Contract Renewal.  This Contract shall not bind, nor purport to bind, the State for any contractual commitment in 
excess of the original Contract period.  The term of the Contract shall not exceed five years.  However, if the 
original Contract period is for less than five years, the State shall have the right, at its sole option, to renew the 
Contract, so long as the original Contract period together with the renewal periods does not exceed five years.  If 
the State exercises such rights, all terms, conditions and provisions of the original Contract shall remain the 
same and apply during the renewal period with the exception of price and Scope of Work, which may be 
renegotiated.   

 
4.3. New Budget Term. If a budget term has been completed in a multi-term Contract, the parties may agree to 

change the amount and type of funding to accommodate new circumstances in the next budget term. Any 
increase or decrease in funding at the time of the new budget term shall coincide with a change in the Scope of 
Work or change in cost of services as approved by the Arizona Department of Health Services. 



AGREEMENT NUMBER INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS ADHS17-132851 

 

Page 4 of 20 
 

4.4. Non-Discrimination.  The Contractor shall comply with State Executive Order No. 2009-09 and all other 
applicable Federal and State laws, rules and regulations, including the Americans with Disabilities Act. 

 
4.5. Records and Audit.  Under A.R.S. § 35-214 and A.R.S. § 35-215, the Contractor shall retain and shall 

contractually require each subcontractor to retain all data and other records (“records”) relating to the acquisition 
and performance of the Contract for a period of five years after the completion of the Contract.  All records shall 
be subject to inspection and audit by the State and where applicable the Federal Government at reasonable 
times.  Upon request, the Contractor shall produce a legible copy of any or all such records. 

 
4.6. Financial Management.  For all contracts, the practices, procedures, and standards specified in and required by 

the Accounting and Auditing Procedures Manual for the ADHS funded programs shall be used by the Contractor 
in the management of Contract funds and by the State when performing a Contract audit.  Funds collected by the 
Contractor in the form of fees, donations and/or charges for the delivery of these Contract services shall be 
accounted for in a separate fund.   

 
4.6.1 Federal Funding. Contractors receiving federal funds under this Contract shall comply with the certified 

finance and compliance audit provision of the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, 
if applicable.  The federal financial assistance information shall be stated in a Change Order or Purchase 
Order. 

 
4.6.2 State Funding.  Contractors receiving state funds under this Contract shall comply with the certified 

compliance provisions of A.R.S. § 35-181.03. 
 

4.7. Inspection and Testing.  The Contractor agrees to permit access, at reasonable times, to its facilities. 
 

4.8. Notices.  Notices to the Contractor required by this Contract shall be made by the State to the person indicated 
on the signature page by the Contractor, unless otherwise stated in the Contract.  Notices to the State required 
by the Contract shall be made by the Contractor to an ADHS Procurement Officer, unless otherwise stated in the 
Contract.  An authorized ADHS Procurement Officer and an authorized Contractor representative may change 
their respective person to whom notice shall be given by written notice, and an amendment to the Contract shall 
not be necessary. 

 
4.9. Advertising and Promotion of Contract. The Contractor shall not advertise or publish information for commercial 

benefit concerning this Contract without the prior written approval of an ADHS Procurement Officer. 
 

4.10. Property of the State.   
 

4.10.1 Equipment.  Except as provided below or otherwise agreed to by the parties, the title to any and all 
equipment acquired through the expenditure of funds received from the State shall remain the property 
of the State by and through the ADHS and, as such, shall remain under the sole direction, 
management and control of the ADHS.  When this Contract is terminated, the disposition of all such 
property shall be determined by the ADHS.  For Fixed Price contracts, when the Contractor provides 
the services/materials required by the Contract, any and all equipment purchased by the Contractor 
remains the property of the Contractor.  All purchases of equipment need to be reported to the ADHS 
Office of Inventory Control.  

 
4.10.2 Title and Rights to Materials.  As used in this section, the term “Materials” means all products created 

or produced by the Contractor under this Contract, including, but not limited to: written and electronic 
information, recordings, reports, research, research findings, conclusions, abstracts, results, software, 
data and any other intellectual property or deliverables created, prepared, or received by the 
Contractor in performance of this Contract.  Contractor acknowledges that all Materials are the 
property of the State by and through the ADHS and, as such, shall remain under the sole direction, 
management and control of the ADHS.  The Contractor is not entitled to a patent or copyright on these 
Materials and may not transfer a patent or copyright on them to any other person or entity.  To the 
extent any copyright in any Materials may originally vest in the Contractor, the Contractor hereby 
irrevocably transfers to the ADHS, for and on behalf of the State, all copyright ownership.  The ADHS 
shall have full, complete and exclusive rights to reproduce, duplicate, adapt, distribute, display, 
disclose, publish, release and otherwise use all Materials.  The Contractor shall not use or release 
these Materials without the prior written consent of the ADHS.  When this Contract is terminated, the 
disposition of all such Materials shall be determined by the ADHS.  Further, the Contractor agrees to 



AGREEMENT NUMBER INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS ADHS17-132851 

 

Page 5 of 20 
 

give recognition to the ADHS for its support of any program when releasing or publishing program 
Materials. 

 
4.10.3 Notwithstanding the above, if the Contractor is a State agency, the following shall apply instead:  It is 

the intention of ADHS and Contractor that all material and intellectual property developed under this 
Agreement be used and controlled in ways to produce the greatest benefit to the parties to this 
Contract and the citizens of the State of Arizona.  As used in this paragraph, “Material” means all 
written and electronic information, recordings, reports, findings, research information, abstracts, 
results, software, data, discoveries, inventions, procedures and processes of services developed by 
the Contractor and any other materials created, prepared or received by the Contractor and 
subcontractors in performance of this Agreement.  “Material” as used herein shall not include any pre-
existing data, information, materials, discoveries, inventions or any form of intellectual property 
invented, created, developed or devised by Contractor (or its employees, subcontractors or agents) 
prior to the commencement of the services funded by this Agreement or that may result from 
Contractor’s involvement in other service activities that are not funded by the Agreement. 

 
4.10.4 Title and exclusive copyright to all Material shall vest in the State of Arizona, subject to any rights 

reserved on behalf of the federal government.  As State agencies and instrumentalities, both ADHS 
and Contractor shall have full, complete, perpetual, irrevocable and non-transferable rights to 
reproduce, duplicate, adapt, make derivative works, distribute, display, disclose, publish and otherwise 
use any and all Material.  The Contractor’s right to use Material shall include the following rights:   the 
right to use the Material in connection with its internal, non-profit research and educational activities, 
the right to present at academic or professional meetings or symposia and the right to publish in 
journals, theses, dissertations or otherwise of Contractor’s own choosing.  Contractor agrees to 
provide ADHS with a right of review prior to any publication or public presentation of the Material, and 
ADHS shall be entitled to request the removal of its confidential information or any other content the 
disclosure of which would be contrary to the best interest of the State of Arizona.  Neither party shall 
release confidential information to the public without the prior expressly written permission of the other, 
unless required by the State public records statutes or other law, including a court order.  Each party 
agrees to give recognition to the other party in all public presentations or publications of any Material, 
when releasing or publishing them.  

 
4.10.5 In addition, ADHS and Contractor agree that any and all Material shall be made freely available to the 

public to the extent it is in the best interest of the State.  However, if either party wants to license or 
assign an intellectual property interest in the material to a third-party for monetary compensation, 
ADHS and Contractor agree to convene to determine the relevant issues of title, copyright, patent and 
distribution of revenue.  In the event of a controversy as to whether the Material is being used for 
monetary compensation or in a way that interferes with the best interest of the state or ADHS, then the 
Arizona Department of Administration shall make the final decision.  Notwithstanding the above, 
“monetary compensation’ does not include compensation paid to an individual creator for traditional 
publications in academia (the copyrights to which are Employee-Excluded Works under ABOR 
Intellectual Property Policy Section 6-908C.4.), an honorarium or other reimbursement of expenses for 
an academic or professional presentation, or an unprofitable distribution of Material.  

 
4.11. E-Verify Requirements   In accordance with A.R.S. § 41-4401, Contractor warrants compliance with all Federal 

immigration laws and regulations relating to employees and warrants its compliance with Section A.R.S. § 23-
214, Subsection A. 

 
4.12. Federal Immigration and Nationality Act. The Contractor shall comply with all federal, state and local immigration 

laws and regulations relating to the immigration status of their employees during the term of the Contract. 
Further, the Contractor shall flow down this requirement to all subcontractors utilized during the term of the 
Contract. The State shall retain the right to perform random audits of Contractor and subcontractor records or to 
inspect papers of any employee thereof to ensure compliance. Should the State determine that the Contractor 
and/or any subcontractors be found noncompliant, the State may pursue all remedies allowed by law, including, 
but not limited to; suspension of work, termination of the Contract for default and suspension and/or debarment 
of the Contractor. 

 
 
 



AGREEMENT NUMBER INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS ADHS17-132851 

 

Page 6 of 20 
 

5. COSTS AND PAYMENTS 
 

5.1. Payments.  Payments shall comply with the requirements of A.R.S. Titles 35 and 41, net 30 days. Upon receipt 
and acceptance of goods or services, the Contractor shall submit a complete and accurate Contractor’s 
Expenditure Report for payment from the State within thirty (30) days, as provided in the Accounting and Auditing 
Procedures Manual for the ADHS. 

 
5.2. Recoupment of Contract Payments.  

 
5.2.1 Unearned Advanced Funds.  Any unearned State funds that have been advanced to the Contractor 

and remain in its possession at the end of each budget term, or at the time of termination of the 
Contract, shall be refunded to the ADHS within forty-five (45) days of the end of a budget term or of 
the time of termination. 

 
5.2.2 Contracted Services.  In a fixed price contract, if the number of services provided is less than the 

number of services for which the Contractor received compensation, funds to be returned to the ADHS 
shall be determined by the Contract price.  Where the price is determined by cost per unit of service or 
material, the funds to be returned shall be determined by multiplying the unit of service cost by the 
number of services the Contractor did not provide during the Contract term.  Where the price for a 
deliverable is fixed, but the deliverable has not been completed, the Contractor shall be paid a pro rata 
portion of the completed deliverable.  In a cost reimbursement contract, the ADHS shall pay for any 
costs that the Contractor can document as having been paid by the Contractor and approved by 
ADHS.  In addition, the Contractor will be paid its reasonable actual costs for work in progress as 
determined by Generally Accepted Accounting Procedures up to the date of contract termination.   

 
5.2.3 Refunds.  Within forty-five (45) days after the end of each budget term or of the time of termination of 

the Contract, the Contractor shall refund the greater of:  i) the amount refundable in accordance with 
paragraph 4.2.1, Unearned Advanced Funds; or ii) the amount refundable in accordance with 
paragraph 5.2.2, Contracted Services.   

 
5.2.4 Unacceptable Expenditures.  The Contractor agrees to reimburse the ADHS for all Contract funds 

expended, which are determined by the ADHS not to have been disbursed by the Contractor in 
accordance with the terms of this Contract.  The Contractor shall reimburse ADHS within 45 days of 
the determination of unacceptability. 

 
5.3. Unit Costs/Rates or Fees.  Unit costs/rates or fees shall be based on costs, which are determined by ADHS to be 

reasonable, allowable and allocable as outlined in the Accounting and Auditing Procedures Manual for the 
ADHS. 

 
5.4. Applicable Taxes. 

 
5.4.1 State and Local Transaction Privilege Taxes.  The State of Arizona is subject to all applicable state 

and local transaction privilege taxes. Transaction privilege taxes apply to the sale and are the 
responsibility of the seller to remit.  Failure to collect taxes from the buyer does not relieve the seller 
from its obligation to remit taxes. 

 
5.4.2 Tax Indemnification.  The Contractor and all subcontractors shall pay all federal, state and local taxes 

applicable to its operation and any persons employed by the Contractor.  Contractor shall require all 
subcontractors to hold the State harmless from any responsibility for taxes, damages and interest, if 
applicable, contributions required under Federal, and/or state and local laws and regulations and any 
other costs, including transaction privilege taxes, unemployment compensation insurance, Social 
Security and Worker’s Compensation. 

 
5.4.3 I.R.S. W9 Form.  In order to receive payment under any resulting Contract, the Contractor shall have a 

current I.R.S. W9 Form on file with the State of Arizona.   
 
 
 
 



AGREEMENT NUMBER INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS ADHS17-132851 

 

Page 7 of 20 
 

5.5. Availability of Funds for the Next Fiscal Year.  Funds may not be presently available for performance under this 
Contract beyond the first year of the budget term or Contract term.  The State may reduce payments or terminate 
this Contract without further recourse, obligation or penalty in the event that insufficient funds are appropriated in 
the subsequent budget term.  The State shall not be liable for any purchases or Subcontracts entered into by the 
Contractor in anticipation of such funding. The Procurement Officer shall have the discretion in determining the 
availability of funds.    

 
5.6. Availability of Funds for the Current Contract Term.  Should the State Legislature enter back into session and 

decrease the appropriations through line item or general fund reductions, or for any other reason these goods or 
services are not funded as determined by ADHS, the following actions may be taken by ADHS: 

 
5.6.1 Accept a decrease in price offered by the Contractor; 

 
5.6.2 Reduce the number of goods or units of service and reduce the payments accordingly; 

 
5.6.3 Offer reductions in funding as an alternative to Contract termination; or 

 
5.6.4 Cancel the Contract.    

 
6. CONTRACT CHANGES 

 
6.1. Amendments, Purchase Orders and Change Orders.  This Contract is issued under the authority of the 

Procurement Officer who signed this Contract.  The Contract may be modified only through a Contract 
Amendment, Purchase Order and/or Change Order within the scope of the Contract, unless the change is 
administrative or otherwise permitted by the Special Terms and Conditions.  Changes to the Contract, including 
the addition of work or materials, the revision of payment terms, or the substitution of work or materials, directed 
by an unauthorized State employee or made unilaterally by the Contractor are violations of the Contract and of 
applicable law.  Such changes, including unauthorized Contract Amendments, Purchase Orders and/or Change 
Orders, shall be void and without effect, and the Contractor shall not be entitled to any claim under this Contract 
based on those changes. 

 
6.2. Subcontracts.  The Contractor shall not enter into any subcontract under this Contract without the advance 

written approval of the Procurement Officer.  The subcontract shall incorporate by reference all material and 
applicable terms and conditions of this Contract. 
 

6.3. Assignments and Delegation.  The Contractor shall not assign any right nor delegate any duty under this 
Contract without the prior written approval of the Procurement Officer.  The State shall not unreasonably withhold 
approval. 

 
7. RISK AND LIABILITY 

 
7.1. Risk of Loss.  The Contractor shall bear all loss of conforming material covered under this Contract until received 

and accepted by authorized personnel at the location designated in the Purchase Order, Change Order or 
Contract.  Mere receipt does not constitute final acceptance.  The risk of loss for nonconforming materials shall 
remain with the Contractor regardless of receipt. 

 
7.2. Mutual Indemnification.  Each party (as “indemnitor”) agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the other 

party (as “indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, losses, liability, costs or expenses (including 
reasonable attorney’s fees) (hereinafter collectively referred to as “claims”) arising out of bodily injury of any 
person (including death) or property damage, but only to the extent that such claims, which result in 
vicarious/derivative liability to the indemnitee, are caused by the act, omission, negligence, misconduct, or other 
fault of the indemnitor, its officers, officials, agents, employees or volunteers. 

 
7.3. Indemnification - Patent and Copyright.  To the extent permitted by A.R.S. § 41-621 and A.R.S. § 35-154, the 

Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State against any liability, including costs and expenses, for 
infringement of any patent, trademark or copyright arising out of performance of the Contract or use by the State 
of materials furnished by or work performed under this Contract.  The State shall reasonably notify the Contractor 
of any claim for which it may be liable under this paragraph. 

 



AGREEMENT NUMBER INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS ADHS17-132851 

 

Page 8 of 20 
 

7.4. Force Majeure 
 

7.4.1. Liability and Definition.  Except for payment of sums due, neither party shall be liable to the other nor 
deemed in default under this Contract if and to the extent that such party’s performance of this Contract 
is prevented by reason of force majeure.  The term “force majeure” means an occurrence that is 
beyond the control of the party affected and occurs without its fault or negligence.  Without limiting the 
foregoing, force majeure includes acts of God; acts of the public enemy; acts of terrorism; war; riots; 
strikes; mobilization; labor disputes; civil disorders; fire; flood; lockouts; injunctions-interventions not 
caused by or resulting from the act or failure to act of the parties; failures or refusals to act by 
government authority not caused by or resulting from the act or failure to act of the parties; and other 
similar occurrences beyond the control of the party declaring force majeure, which such party is unable 
to prevent by exercising reasonable diligence. 

 
7.4.2. Exclusions.  Force Majeure shall not include the following occurrences: 

 
7.4.2.1 Late delivery of Materials caused by congestion at a manufacturer’s plant or elsewhere, or an 

oversold condition of the market; 
 
7.4.2.2 Late performance by a subcontractor unless the delay arises out of a force majeure 

occurrence in accordance with this force majeure term and condition; or 
 
7.4.2.3 Inability of either the Contractor or any subcontractor to acquire or maintain any required 

insurance, bonds, licenses or permits. 
 

7.4.3. Notice.  If either party is delayed at any time in the progress of the work by force majeure, the delayed 
party shall notify the other party in writing of such delay, as soon as is practicable and no later than the 
following working day of the commencement thereof, and shall specify the causes of such delay in such 
notice.  Such notice shall be delivered or mailed certified-return receipt and shall make a specific 
reference to this article, thereby invoking its provisions.  The delayed party shall cause such delay to 
cease as soon as practicable and shall notify the other party in writing when it has done so.  The time of 
completion shall be extended by Contract Amendment for a period of time equal to the time that the 
results or effects of such delay prevent the delayed party from performing in accordance with this 
Contract. 

 
7.4.4. Default. Any delay or failure in performance by either party hereto shall not constitute default hereunder 

or give rise to any claim for damages or loss of anticipated profits if, and to the extent that, such delay 
or failure is caused by force majeure. 

 
7.5. Third Party Antitrust Violations.  The Contractor assigns to the State any claim for overcharges resulting from 

antitrust violations to the extent that those violations concern materials or services supplied by third parties to the 
Contractor for or toward the fulfillment of this Contract. 

 
8. DESCRIPTION OF MATERIALS 

 
The following provisions shall apply to Materials only: 

 
8.1. Liens. The Contractor agrees that the Materials supplied under this Contract are free of liens.  In the event the 

Materials are not free of liens, Contractor shall pay to remove the lien and any associated damages or replace 
the Materials with Materials free of liens. 

 
8.2. Quality. Unless otherwise modified elsewhere in these terms and conditions, the Contractor agrees that, for one 

year after acceptance by the State of the Materials, they shall be: 
 

8.2.1. Of a quality to pass without objection in the Contract description; 
 

8.2.2. Fit for the intended purposes for which the Materials are used; 
 

8.2.3. Within the variations permitted by the Contract and are of even kind, quantity, and quality within each 
unit and among all units; 



AGREEMENT NUMBER INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS ADHS17-132851 

 

Page 9 of 20 
 

8.2.4. Adequately contained, packaged and marked as the Contract may require; and  
 

8.2.5. Conform to the written promises or affirmations of fact made by the Contractor. 
 

8.3. Inspection/Testing.  Subparagraphs 8.1 through 8.2 of this paragraph are not affected by inspection or testing of 
or payment for the Materials by the State. 

 
8.4. Compliance With Applicable Laws.  The Materials and services supplied under this Contract shall comply with all 

applicable federal, state and local laws, and the Contractor shall maintain all applicable license and permit 
requirements. 

 
8.5. Survival of Rights and Obligations After Contract Expiration and Termination. 

 
8.5.1. Contractor’s Representations.  All representations and warranties made by the Contractor under this 

Contract in paragraphs 7 and 8 shall survive the expiration or termination hereof.  In addition, the 
parties hereto acknowledge that pursuant to A.R.S. § 12.510, except as provided in A.R.S. § 12-529, 
the State is not subject to or barred by any limitations of actions prescribed in A.R.S. Title 12, Chapter 
5. 

 
8.5.2. Purchase Orders and Change Orders. Unless otherwise directed in writing by the Procurement Officer, 

the Contractor shall fully perform and shall be obligated to comply with all Purchase Orders and 
Change Orders received by the Contractor prior to the expiration or termination hereof, including, 
without limitation, all Purchase Orders and Change Orders received prior to but not fully performed and 
satisfied at the expiration or termination of this Contract. 

 
9. STATE’S CONTRACTUAL REMEDIES 

 
9.1. Right to Assurance.  If the State, in good faith, has reason to believe that the Contractor does not intend to, or is 

unable to, perform or continue performing under this Contract, the Procurement Officer may demand in writing 
that the Contractor give a written assurance of intent to perform.  Failure by the Contractor to provide written 
assurance within the number of Days specified in the demand may, at the State’s option, be the basis for 
terminating the Contract. 
 

9.2. Stop Work Order. 
 

9.2.1. Terms.  The State may, at any time, by written order to the Contractor, require the Contractor to stop all 
or any part of the work called for by this Contract for a period up to ninety (90) Days after the order is 
delivered to the Contractor, and for any further period to which the parties may agree.  The order shall 
be specifically identified as a stop work order issued under this clause.  Upon receipt of the order, the 
Contractor shall immediately comply with its terms and take all reasonable steps to minimize the 
incurrence of costs allocable to the work covered by the order during the period of work stoppage. 

 
9.2.2. Cancellation or Expiration.  If a stop work order issued under this clause is canceled or the period of the 

order or any extension expires, the Contractor shall resume work. The Procurement Officer shall make 
an equitable adjustment in the delivery schedule or Contract price, or both, and the Contract shall be 
amended in writing accordingly.  

 
9.3. Non-exclusive Remedies.  The rights and remedies of ADHS under this Contract are not exclusive, and ADHS is 

entitled to all rights and remedies available to it, including those under the Arizona Uniform Commercial Code 
and Arizona common law. 

 
9.4. Right of Offset.  The State shall be entitled to offset against any sums due the Contractor in any Contract with the 

State or damages assessed by the State because of the Contractor’s non-conforming performance or failure to 
perform this Contract.  The right to offset may include, but is not limited to, a deduction from an unpaid balance 
and a collection against the bid and/or performance bonds.  Any offset taken for damages assessed by the State 
shall represent a fair and reasonable amount for the actual damages and shall not be a penalty for non-
performance.  

 
 



AGREEMENT NUMBER INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS ADHS17-132851 

 

Page 10 of 20 
 

10. CONTRACT TERMINATION 
 

10.1. Cancellation for Conflict of Interest.  Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-511, the State may cancel this Contract within three 
(3) years after Contract execution without penalty or further obligation if any person significantly involved in 
initiating, negotiating, securing, drafting or creating the Contract on behalf of the State is, or becomes at any time 
while the Contract or an extension of the Contract is in effect, an employee of or a consultant to any other party 
to this Contract with respect to the subject matter of the Contract.  The cancellation shall be effective when the 
Contractor receives written notice of the cancellation, unless the notice specifies a later time.  If the Contractor is 
a political subdivision of the State, it may also cancel this Contract as provided in A.R.S. § 38-511. 

 
10.2. Gratuities.  The State may, by written notice, terminate this Contract, in whole or in part, if the State determines 

that employment or a Gratuity was offered or made by the Contractor or a representative of the Contractor to any 
officer or employee of the State for the purpose of influencing the outcome of the procurement, securing the 
Contract or an Amendment to the Contract, or receiving favorable treatment concerning the Contract, including 
the making of any determination or decision about Contract performance.  The State, in addition to any other 
rights or remedies, shall be entitled to recover exemplary damages in the amount of three times the value of the 
Gratuity offered by the Contractor. 

 
10.3. Suspension or Debarment.  The State may, by written notice to the Contractor, immediately terminate this 

Contract if the State determines that the Contractor or its subcontractor has been debarred, suspended or 
otherwise lawfully prohibited from participating in any public procurement activity, including but not limited to, 
being disapproved as a subcontractor of any public procurement unit or other governmental body.   

 
10.4. Termination Without Cause. 

 
10.4.1. Both the State and the Contractor may terminate this Contract at any time with thirty (30) days’ notice in 

writing specifying the termination date.  Such notices shall be given by personal delivery or by certified 
mail, return receipt requested. 

 
10.4.2. If the Contractor terminates this Contract, any monies prepaid by the State, for which no service or 

benefit was received by the State, shall be refunded to the State within 5 days of the termination notice.  
In addition, if the Contractor terminates the Contract, the Contractor shall indemnify the State for any 
sanctions imposed by the funding source as a result of the Contractor’s failure to complete the 
Contract. 

 
10.4.3. If the State terminates this Contact pursuant to this Section, the State shall pay the Contractor the 

Contract price for all Services and Materials completed up to the date of termination.  In a fixed price 
contract, the State shall pay the amount owed for the Services or Materials by multiplying the unit of 
service or item cost by the number of unpaid service units or items.  In a cost reimbursement contract, 
the ADHS shall pay for any costs that the Contractor can document as having been paid by the 
Contractor and approved by ADHS.  In addition, the Contractor will be paid its reasonable actual costs 
for work in progress as determined by GAAP up to the date of termination.  Upon such termination, the 
Contractor shall deliver to the ADHS all deliverables completed.  ADHS may require Contractor to 
negotiate the terms of any remaining deliverables still due. 

 
10.5. Mutual Termination.  This Contract may be terminated by mutual written agreement of the parties specifying the 

termination date and the terms for disposition of property and, as necessary, submission of required deliverables 
and payment therein. 

 
10.6. Termination for Default.  The State reserves the right to terminate the Contract in whole or in part due to the 

failure of the Contractor to comply with any material obligation, term or condition of the Contract, to acquire and 
maintain all required insurance policies, bonds, licenses and permits, or to make satisfactory progress in 
performing the Contract.  In the event the ADHS terminates the Contract in whole or in part as provided in this 
paragraph, the ADHS may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as deemed appropriate, Services or 
Materials, similar to those terminated, and Contractor shall be liable to the ADHS for any excess costs incurred 
by the ADHS in obtaining such similar Services or Materials. 

 
 
 



AGREEMENT NUMBER INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS ADHS17-132851 

 

Page 11 of 20 
 

10.7. Continuation of Performance Through Termination.  Upon receipt of the notice of termination and until the 
effective date of the notice of termination, the Contractor shall perform work consistent with the requirements of 
the Contract and, if applicable, in accordance with a written transition plan approved by the ADHS.  If the 
Contract is terminated in part, the Contractor shall continue to perform the Contract to the extent not terminated.  
After receiving the notice of termination, the Contractor shall immediately notify all subcontractors, in writing, to 
stop work on the effective date of termination, and on the effective date of termination, the Contractor and 
subcontractors shall stop all work.  

 
10.8. Disposition of Property.  Upon termination of this Contract, all property of the State, as defined herein, shall be 

delivered to the ADHS upon demand. 
 

11. ARBITRATION 
 
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 12-1518, disputes under this Contract shall be resolved through the use of arbitration when the 
case or lawsuit is subject to mandatory arbitration pursuant to rules adopted under A.R.S. § 12 -133. 
 

12. COMMUNICATION 
 

12.1. Program Report.  When reports are required by the Contract, the Contractor shall provide them in the format 
approved by ADHS.  

 
12.2. Information and Coordination.  The State will provide information to the Contractor pertaining to activities that 

affect the Contractor’s delivery of services, and the Contractor shall be responsible for coordinating their activities 
with the State’s in such a manner as not to conflict or unnecessarily duplicate the State’s activities.  As the work 
of the Contractor progresses, advice and information on matters covered by the Contract shall be made available 
by the Contractor to the State throughout the effective period of the Contract. 
 

13. CLIENT GRIEVANCES 
 
If applicable, the Contractor and its subcontractors shall use a procedure through which clients may present grievances 
about the operation of the program that result in the denial, suspension or reduction of services provided pursuant to 
this Contract and which is acceptable to and approved by the State.  

 
14. SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY 

 
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-621(O), the obtaining of insurance by the State shall not be a waiver of any sovereign immunity 
defense in the event of suit. 

 
15. ADMINISTRATIVE CHANGES 

 
The Procurement Officer, or authorized designee, reserves the right to correct any obvious clerical, typographical or 
grammatical errors, as well as errors in party contact information (collectively, “Administrative Changes”), prior to or 
after the final execution of a Contract or Contract Amendment.  Administrative Changes subject to permissible 
corrections include: misspellings, grammar errors, incorrect addresses, incorrect Contract Amendment numbers, 
pagination and citation errors, mistakes in the labeling of the rate as either extended or unit, and calendar date errors 
that are illogical due to typographical error.  The Procurement Office shall subsequently send to the Contractor notice of 
corrections to administrative errors in a written confirmation letter with a copy of the corrected Administrative Change 
attached. 

 
16. SURVIVAL OF TERMS AFTER TERMINATION OR CANCELLATION OF CONTRACT.  

 
All applicable Contract terms shall survive and apply after Contract termination or cancellation to the extent necessary 
for Contractor to complete and for the ADHS to receive and accept any final deliverables that are due after the date of 
the termination or cancellation. 

 
 
 
 
 



AGREEMENT NUMBER INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS ADHS17-132851 

 

Page 12 of 20 
 

17. HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT OF 1996 (HIPAA).   
 

17.1. The Contractor warrants that it is familiar with the requirements of HIPAA, as amended by the Health Information 
Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act (HITECH Act) of 2009, and accompanying regulations and will 
comply with all applicable HIPAA requirements in the course of this Contract.  Contractor warrants that it will 
cooperate with the Arizona Department of Health Services (ADHS) in the course of performance of the Contract 
so that both ADHS and Contractor will be in compliance with HIPAA, including cooperation and coordination with 
the Arizona Department of Administration-Arizona Strategic Enterprise Technology (ADOA-ASET) Office, the 
ADOA-ASET Arizona State Chief Information Security Officer and HIPAA Coordinator and other compliance 
officials required by HIPAA and its regulations.  Contractor will sign any documents that are reasonably 
necessary to keep ADHS and Contractor in compliance with HIPAA, including, but not limited to, business 
associate agreements. 

 
17.2. If requested by the ADHS Procurement Office, Contractor agrees to sign a “Pledge To Protect Confidential 

Information” and to abide by the statements addressing the creation, use and disclosure of confidential 
information, including information designated as protected health information and all other confidential or 
sensitive information as defined in policy.  In addition, if requested, Contractor agrees to attend or participate in 
HIPAA training offered by ADHS or to provide written verification that the Contractor has attended or participated 
in job related HIPAA training that is: (1) intended to make the Contractor proficient in HIPAA for purposes of 
performing the services required and (2) presented by a HIPAA Privacy Officer or other person or program 
knowledgeable and experienced in HIPAA and who has been approved by the ADOA-ASET Arizona State Chief 
Information Security Officer and HIPAA Coordinator. 

 
18. THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) or Transparency Act - P.L.109-

282, as amended by Section 6202(A) of P.L.110-252 (https://www.fsrs.gov 
 
If applicable, the Contractor shall submit to ADHS via email the Grant Reporting Certification Form. This form and the 
instructions can be downloaded from the ADHS Procurement website at http://azdhs.gov/procurement and returned to 
the ADHS by the 15th of the month following that in which the award was received. The form shall be completed 
electronically, and sent to the following email address: ADHS_Grant@azdhs.gov . All required fields must be filled 
including Top Employee Compensation, if applicable. Completing the Grant Reporting Certification Form is required for 
compliance with the Office of Management and Budget (OMB), found at http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/open . Failure 
to timely submit the Grant Reporting Certification Form could result in the loss of funds. This requirement applies to all 
subcontractors utilized by the Contractor during the term of the Award. 
  

19. COMMENTS WELCOME    
 

The ADHS Procurement Office periodically reviews the Uniform Terms and Conditions and welcomes any comments 
you may have. Please submit your comments to: ADHS Procurement Administrator, Arizona Department of Health 
Services, 1740 West Adams, Suite 303, Phoenix, Arizona, 85007 
 

20. AUTHORIZATION FOR PROVISION OF SERVICES 
 

Authorization for purchase of services under this Contract shall be made only upon ADHS issuance of a Purchase 
Order that is signed by an authorized agent.  The Purchase Order will indicate the Contract number and the dollar 
amount of funds authorized.  The Contractor shall only be authorized to perform services up to the amount on the 
Purchase Order.  ADHS shall not have any legal obligation to pay for services in excess of the amount indicated on the 
Purchase Order.  No further obligation for payment shall exist on behalf of ADHS unless a) the Purchase Order is 
changed or modified with an official ADHS Procurement Change Order, and/or b) an additional Purchase Order is 
issued for purchase of services under this Contract. 

https://www.fsrs.gov/
mailto:ADHS_Grant@azdhs.gov
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/open


AGREEMENT NUMBER INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
SCOPE OF SERVICES ADHS17-132851 

 

Page 13 of 20 
 

1. BACKGROUND 
 

1.1. The Arizona Department of Health Services (ADHS) Bureau of Nutrition and Physical Activity (BNPA) 
administers funds provided by the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) for the operation of the 
Commodity Supplemental Food Program (CSFP) and the Senior Farmers Market Nutrition Program 
(SFMNP). Both USDA programs are discretionary, and each program provides a specific service. 

 
1.2. The CSFP is a USDA nutrition program providing food commodities to low-income, nutritionally at-risk   

persons sixty (60) years of age or older. The SFMNP is intended to increase consumption of locally grown 
fresh fruits and vegetables by providing SFMNP checks to a limited number of seniors participating in the 
CSFP to purchase these items directly from Growers at ADHS-approved Farmers’ Markets. Currently, ADHS 
contracts with Agencies to provide both CSFP and SFMNP services such as nutrition education and 
instructions for FMNP check use, and adherence to an agreed upon distribution process.  ADHS continues to 
look at ways to expand our preparedness capabilities based on our Five-Year Plan and the Capability 
planning Guide (CPG) data. Based on that information and the guidance set forth by the Center for Disease 
Control (CDC) ADHS has developed, with your input, this PHEP grant agreement. 

 
2. OBJECTIVE 

 
2.1. Contract with viable organizations that can become Program Contractors for either CSFP and SFMNP.  A 

Contractor shall meet CSFP Program requirements and may additionally elect to provide SFMNP services 
within the five (5) year time period of this Contract.  As such, a Contractor may provide CSFP Services only or 
CSFP and SFMNP services. 

 
3. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
      CSFP 
 

3.1. The Contractor shall perform all necessary work required to administer and provide CSFP services to eligible 
participants according to the Arizona CSFP Policies and Procedures Manual (CSFP PPM). These services 
include but are not limited to:  

 
3.1.1. Identifying clients and offering program services; 

 
3.1.2. Distributing information to participants; 

 
3.1.3. Providing nutrition education services to participants; 

 
3.1.4. Providing competent staff to perform certification and information on distribution procedures for food 

boxes, such as; 
 

3.1.4.1. Safeguarding; 
 

3.1.4.2. Warehousing; 
 

3.1.4.3. Distributing; 
 

3.1.4.4. Tracking, and 
 

3.1.4.5. Conducting inventory of food ordered and distributed. 
 
3.2. Documenting accurately all required information; 
  
3.3. Providing administrative functions necessary for operation of the CSFP; 
  
3.4. Preparing and submitting all required reports in accordance with this Contract; and  
 
3.5. Compliance to all provisions of the CSFP PPM. 



AGREEMENT NUMBER INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
SCOPE OF SERVICES ADHS17-132851 

 

Page 14 of 20 
 

SFMNP 
 
3.6. The Contractor shall perform all necessary work to administer SFMNP services to eligible participants 

according to the Arizona FMNP Policies and Procedures Manual (FMNP PPM). These services include, but 
are not limited to:  

 
3.6.1. Identifying clients and offering program services; 

 
3.6.2. Distributing information to participants; 

 
3.6.3. Providing nutrition education services to participants; 
 
3.6.4. Providing competent staff to perform certification and information on distribution procedures, such as; 

  
3.6.4.1. Safeguarding check stock and issuing checks; 

 
3.6.4.2. Documenting accurately all required information; 

 
3.6.4.3. Providing administrative functions necessary for the operation of the SFMNP; and  
 
3.6.4.4. Preparing and submitting all required reports in accordance with this Contract and 

adhering to all provisions of the FMNP PPM. 
 

4. TASKS 
 

4.1. Administration 
 

The Contractor for CSFP Services shall: 
 

4.1.1. Screen program applicants to determine eligibility for program participation in accordance with 
procedures described in the Arizona CSFP PPM; 

 
4.1.2. Utilize the ADHS database system to certify CSFP participants, to include the following activities: 

  
4.1.2.1. Provide required certification documents; and 

 
4.1.2.2. Provide guidance as to location and times for pickup of monthly food boxes. 

 
4.1.3. Provide CSFP participants with written information about available health and social services that the 

participant may be eligible for, and make referrals as necessary; 
 
4.1.4. Provide each program participant with information on Program rules, regulations, foods and food 

package use; 
 

4.1.5. As needed, develop and submit for ADHS approval a Local Agency Policies and Procedures Manual 
if current policies and procedures deviate from the Arizona CSFP PPM; 

 
4.1.6. Obtain Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) authorization from each affected 

program participant prior to the release of participant information to any Agency; 
 

The Contractor for SFMNP Services shall: 
 

4.1.7. Provide services to clients in accordance with the Arizona Farmers’ Market Nutrition Program Policies 
and Procedures Manual (FMNP PPM); 

 
4.1.8. Utilize the ADHS database system to identify eligible participants, offer the program, and issue 

SFMNP checks to eligible CSFP participants; 
 



AGREEMENT NUMBER INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
SCOPE OF SERVICES ADHS17-132851 

 

Page 15 of 20 
 

4.1.9. Treat FMNP checks as negotiable financial instruments.  Contractor shall assume liability for the 
issuance of SFMNP checks assigned to the Contractor, and assume financial liability for any checks 
that cannot be accounted for and reconciled; 

 
4.1.10. Submit a written request to the ADHS FMNP Program Manager for authorization to utilize a staff 

member to train and certify local growers.  Grower training shall be conducted only by ADHS 
authorized individuals.  Each request to conduct training shall be granted on a case-by-case basis, 
and shall not be performed without receipt of prior written approval from the ADHS FMNP Program 
Manager; 

 
4.1.11. Provide other information as required for ADHS to administer the program in accordance with State 

and federal regulations; and 
 
4.1.12. If additional funds become available and the Contract budget (as shown on the Contract Price Sheet) 

has been fully expended, Contractor shall choose whether or not to distribute the additional checks 
with no increase in the Contract budget. 

 
4.2. Distribution   

 
The Contractor for CSFP Services shall: 

 
4.2.1. Distribute and document the issuance of the food boxes to participants. 
 
The Contractor for SFMNP Services shall: 

 
4.2.2. Distribute to participants a brief description of non-allowable and allowable items (Participant 

Information Guide and other information provided by ADHS) and the time period for check 
redemption; 

 
4.2.3. Distribute information to participants regarding the location and hours of ADHS-approved Farmers’ 

Markets; 
 
4.2.4. Distribute information regarding approved Farmers’ Markets (provided by ADHS) to participants and 

notify ADHS within five (5) working days of receipt, of any notification of change from an individual 
Farmers’ Market; 

 
4.2.5. Issue SFMNP checks to persons sixty (60) years of age or older who have been certified or waitlisted 

for CSFP and desire to participate in the program; and 
 
4.2.6. Encourage and remind participants to visit the farmers’ market to redeem checks. 

 
4.3. Nutrition Education  

 
The Contractor for CSFP Services shall: 

 
4.3.1. Provide each CSFP program participant with one (1) nutrition education contact per six (6) month 

period that shall be documented in the participant’s ADHS database file;   
 

4.3.2. Whenever possible, Arizona Nutrition Network (AZNN) materials and messages provided by ADHS 
shall be utilized by the Contractor to ensure common nutrition messages. 

 
The Contractor for SFMNP Services shall: 

 
4.3.3. Provide the participant with nutrition education and materials supplied by ADHS and information 

regarding the identification of seasonal market produce; and  
 
4.3.4. Document the provision of the education according to the Arizona FMNP PPM. 

 



AGREEMENT NUMBER INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
SCOPE OF SERVICES ADHS17-132851 

 

Page 16 of 20 
 

4.4. Staffing 
 

The Contractor for CSFP and/or SFMNP Services shall: 
 

4.4.1. Designate an individual to serve as the CSFP and/or SFMNP Director/Manager for the Local Agency; 
 

4.4.2. Provide the services of a Community Nutrition Worker(s) in numbers proportionate to the Local 
Agency’s assigned caseload, to certify program participants for CSFP and issue SFMNP checks; and 

 
4.4.3. Provide CSFP clerk(s) to perform administrative support tasks with CSFP clinics, at the option of the 

Contractor. 
 

4.5. Training 
 

The Contractor for CSFP and/or SFMNP Services shall: 
 

4.5.1. Provide training to program staff and volunteers on the following subjects; 
 

4.5.1.1. Program rules for CSFP and/or SFMNP; 
 

4.5.1.2. CSFP commodities and food box composition; 
 

4.5.1.3. Use of ADHS database system for certifying program participants and recording of food 
box distribution; 
 

4.5.1.4. As appropriate, ADHS Approved Farmers’ Market locations;  
 

4.5.1.5. As appropriate, issuance and education procedures for SFMNP checks; and 
 

4.5.1.6. As appropriate, use of ADHS database system for issuing SFMNP checks. 
 
4.5.2. On an annual basis provide program staff and volunteers with civil rights training in accordance with 7 

CFR Part 247. 
 

4.6. Data Collection 
 

The Contractor for CSFP and/or SFMNP Services shall: 
 

4.6.1. Collect and maintain program and participant demographic information. The following tools and tasks 
are required; 

 
4.6.2. Utilize the hardware and software provided by ADHS to operate the CSFP and/or  Seniors Farmers’ 

Market module of the ADHS database system to certify and enroll program participants; and 
 

4.6.3. Complete all data elements required in the ADHS database system as outlined in the Arizona CSFP 
and/or FMNP PPM. 

 
4.7. Equipment Handling 

 
The Contractor for CSFP and/or SFMNP Services shall: 

 
4.7.1. Comply with the Accounting and Auditing Procedures Manual for Contractors of ADHS Funded 

Programs (AAPM) with respect to accountability for equipment purchased with ADHS provided funds; 
 

4.7.2. Maintain a formal inventory listing or subsidiary record of all capital and non-capital equipment 
provided by ADHS or purchased by the Contractor with CSFP funds. The capital equipment (with a 
cost of $5,000.00 or more) listing shall include the following information; 

 



AGREEMENT NUMBER INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
SCOPE OF SERVICES ADHS17-132851 

 

Page 17 of 20 
 

4.7.2.1. Tag or identification number; 
 

4.7.2.2. Description; 
 

4.7.2.3. Purchase cost or fair market value on the date of donation; 
 

4.7.2.4. Purchase or donation date; 
 

4.7.2.5. Physical location; and 
 

4.7.2.6. Date of disposal. 
 

4.7.3. Provide appropriate maintenance and upkeep for all equipment purchased with CSFP funds. Services 
may be provided by internal Contractor staff or any authorized maintenance contract; 
 

4.7.4. Obtain written permission from ADHS prior to expending CSFP funds to purchase capital equipment; 
 

4.7.5. Obtain written permission from ADHS prior to purchasing automated data processing equipment with 
CSFP funds; and 
 

4.7.6. Obtain specific written ADHS approval prior to the transfer or disposal of any equipment purchased 
with CSFP funds. 

 
4.8. Administrative Requirement and Reports 

 
The Contractor for CSFP and/or SFMNP Services shall: 

 
4.8.1. Maintain CSFP and/or SFMNP files in accordance with Arizona CSFP/FMNP PPM guidelines. The 

following documentation records shall be maintained either as a paper file or in the ADHS database 
system: 

 
4.8.1.1. Eligible participant files (active and inactive) (ADHS database); 

 
4.8.1.2. Number and type of counseling sessions provided to participants regarding their program 

abuse (paper); 
 

4.8.1.3. Ineligible participant files and reason for ineligibility (paper); 
 

4.8.1.4. Food packages authorized for the program participant (ADHS database); 
 

4.8.1.5. Staff training files (paper); 
 

4.8.1.6. Outreach files (paper); 
 

4.8.1.7. Documentation of dual participation actions; 
 

4.8.1.8. Waiting lists (when applicable) (ADHS database); and 
 

4.8.1.9. Civil Rights file to include documentation and resolution of all civil rights complaints. Civil 
rights files shall include and provide the following: 

 
4.8.1.9.1. Racial and Ethnic Participation forms (FNS-191); and 

 
4.8.1.9.2. Data compilation, records maintenance, and reports submittals as required 

by USDA to permit effective enforcement of the non-discrimination laws. 
 
 
 



AGREEMENT NUMBER INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
SCOPE OF SERVICES ADHS17-132851 

 

Page 18 of 20 
 

4.9. Participant Requirements 
 

CSFP Eligible Program Participant Requirements: 
 

4.9.1. Persons sixty (60) years of age or older (Seniors), whose household income does not exceed one 
hundred and thirty percent (130%) of the current designated federal poverty guidelines and who 
reside in the service area of the Contractor. 

 
SFMNP Eligible Program Participant Requirements: 

 
4.9.2. CSFP participants sixty (60) years of age and older (Seniors). 

 
5. CONTRACTOR REQUIREMENTS 
 

5.1. The Contractor shall have computer systems that can access the ADHS database system to become a CSFP 
Contractor; and 

 
5.2. The Contractor shall be a CSFP Agency with existing access to the ADHS database system to become an 

SFMNP Contractor. 
 
6. REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
 

6.1. Title 7 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Part 247- Commodity Supplemental Food Program – Available at 
http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title07/7cfr247_main_02.tpl 

 
6.2. Arizona Commodity Food Program Policy and Procedures Manual – Available at 

http://azdhs.gov/prevention/nutrition-physical-activity/index.php#commodity-supplemental-food-resources 
 

6.3. Accounting and Auditing Procedures Manual for Contractors of ADHS Funded Programs – Available at 
http://www.azdhs.gov/bhs/documents/audits/auditprocedures.pdf 

 
6.4. Title 7 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 249 – Senior Farmers’ Market Nutrition Program – Available at 

https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/granule/CFR-2011-title7-vol4/CFR-2011-title7-vol4-part249 
 

6.5. Arizona Farmers’ Market Nutrition Program Policies and Procedures Manual – Available at 
http://azdhs.gov/documents/prevention/azwic/fmnp/fmnp-local-agency-manual.pdf  

 
7. STATE PROVIDED TASKS/ITEMS 
  

7.1. Arizona Commodity Supplemental Food Program Policies and Procedures Manual; 
 

7.2. ADHS database system (currently referred to as HANDS) and system maintenance; 
 

7.3. Educational materials for participants; 
 

7.4. Monitoring of CSFP Contractors for compliance with regulations; 
 

7.5. Arizona Farmers’ Market Nutrition Program Policies and Procedures Manual; 
 

7.6. Farmers’ Market Client/Participant Information Guide;  
 

7.7. Information about approved farmers’ market locations; 
 

7.8. Monitoring of Farmers’ Markets for compliance with regulations; 
 

7.9. Periodic redemption reports for issued checks; 
 

7.10. Formats for required reports; and 
 

http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title07/7cfr247_main_02.tpl
http://azdhs.gov/prevention/nutrition-physical-activity/index.php#commodity-supplemental-food-resources
http://www.azdhs.gov/bhs/documents/audits/auditprocedures.pdf
https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/granule/CFR-2011-title7-vol4/CFR-2011-title7-vol4-part249
http://azdhs.gov/documents/prevention/azwic/fmnp/fmnp-local-agency-manual.pdf


AGREEMENT NUMBER INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
SCOPE OF SERVICES ADHS17-132851 

 

Page 19 of 20 
 

7.11. An electronic Contractor's Expenditure Report (CER). 
 
8. DELIVERABLES 
 

The Contractor shall submit: 
 

8.1. A monthly Contractor's Expenditure Report (CER) for each Program within three (3) weeks after the end of 
each month in which services were provided. Electronic format of the CER shall be provided; 

 
8.2. Final CER, which reflects the Contractor’s total incurred costs for the fiscal year.  Due thirty (30) days after the 

end of the fiscal year; 
 

8.3. Copies of any local polices or procedures for approval prior to implementation; 
 

  Additional Senior Farmers’ Market Deliverables 
 
8.4. Notification of ADHS FMNP Manager within five (5) working days of receipt of notification of change of hours 

or location of  any  Farmers’ Market; 
 

8.5. Written requests for authorization to utilize a Contractor staff member to train and certify local growers, as 
needed; and 
 

8.6. All other reports as required in the Arizona FMNP Policies and Procedures Manual. 
 
9. NOTICES, CORRESPONDENCE AND REPORTS 

 
9.1. Notices, Correspondence and Reports and CERs concerning CSFP from the Contractor to ADHS shall be 

sent to: 
 
Arizona Department of Health Services 
Bureau of Nutrition and Physical Activity (BNPA) 

 CSFP Manager 
  150 North 18th Avenue, Suite 310 
  Phoenix, Arizona  85007 
  Email: Stacy.Beauregard@azdhs.gov 
  Phone: 602-542-2824  
   
9.2. Notices, Correspondence and Reports and CERs concerning SFMNP from the Contractor to ADHS shall be 

sent to: 
 
Arizona Department of Health Services 
Bureau of Nutrition and Physical Activity (BNPA) 

 CSFP Manager 
  150 North 18th Avenue, Suite 310 
  Phoenix, Arizona  85007 
  Email: Stacy.Beauregard@azdhs.gov 
  Phone: 602-542-2824  
   
9.3. Invoices shall be emailed to: Stacy.Beauregard@azdhs.gov 

 
 

 
 

  

mailto:Stacy.Beauregard@azdhs.gov
mailto:Stacy.Beauregard@azdhs.gov
mailto:Stacy.Beauregard@azdhs.gov


AGREEMENT NUMBER INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
PRICE SHEET ADHS17-132851 

 

Page 20 of 20 
 

 
CSFP AND SFMNP SERVICES 

 
 PRICE SHEET 

 
OCTOBER 1, 2016 TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 

 
COMMODITY SUPPLEMENTAL FOOD PROGRAM (CSFP) 

 LINE ITEM BUDGET            AMOUNT 
1.0 PERSONNEL SERVICES $3,400.00 
2.0 EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPENSES $1,326.00 
3.0 PROFESSIONAL & OUTSIDE SERVICES $0.00 
4.0 TRAVEL EXPENSES $600.00 
5.0 OCCUPANCY EXPENSES $0.00 
6.0 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES $122.00 
7.0 CAPITAL OUTLAY EXPENSES $0.00 
8.0 INDIRECT (IF AUTHORIZED) $0.00 

 TOTAL  $5,448.00 
 

  
SENIOR FARMER'S MARKET NUTRITION PROGRAM (SFMNP) 

TYPE OF SERVICE UNIT RATE 
UNIT OF 
MEASURE 

ESTIMATED NUMBER 
OF PARTICIPANTS 

WIC FMNP CHECK ISSUANCE $1.25 WIC Participant AS NEEDED 
 

 
LINE ITEM BUDGET TRANSFERS: 
 
Upon receipt of written authorization from the ADHS Program Manager, the Contractor is 
authorized to transfer up to a maximum of ten percent (10%) of the Total Budgeted Amount 
between line items. Transfers of funds are only allowed between funded line items.  
Transfers exceeding ten percent (10%) or to a non-funded line item shall require a Contract 
Amendment. 

 
 
 
 



Memorandum 

August 24, 2016 

To: Gila County Board of Supervisors 

From: Gila County Attorney’s Office 

Re: September 6, 2016 Agenda Item No.: 3912 re: Commodity 
Supplemental Foods Program and the Senior Farmers’ Market Nutrition 
Program 

The proposed contract cannot be approved as to form because it would 
bind the county for five years from October 1, 2016 through September 
30, 2021.   BOS-FIN-002 states that contracts should not obligate Gila 
County for more than four years. 

The acronym GAAP used in Section 10.4.3 is not defined in the 
proposed contract.   This acronym should be defined; however, failure 
to define it does not prevent the county attorney’s office from 
approving the proposed contract as to form. 



   
ARF-3911     Consent Agenda Item      4. G.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  

Submitted By: Samantha Jerome, Nutrition Manager
Department: Health & Emergency Management Division: Health Services
Fiscal Year: 2016-2017 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

10-01-16 through 09-30-17 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 3 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) (Contract No. ADHS14-053062) with the Arizona
Department of Health Services (ADHS) to extend funding for nutrition services an additional year from October 1,
2016, to September 30, 2017.

Background Information
On October 1, 2013, the Board of Supervisors approved an IGA (Contract No. ADHS14-053062) with ADHS.  This
agreement replaced a previous IGA that was in place for many years between Gila County and ADHS whereby ADHS
provided the Gila County Health Department funding for its various nutrition programs that include the Women,
Infant and Child (WIC) Program, Breastfeeding Peer Counseling (BFPC) Program, and Farmers Market Nutrition
Program (FMNP).

On October 28, 2014, Amendment No. 1 was approved by the Board of Supervisors to extend the nutrition services
from October 1, 2014, to September 30, 2015.

On November 17, 2015, Amendment No. 2 was approved by the Board of Supervisors to extend the nutrition services
from October 1, 2015, to September 30, 2016.

Amendment No. 3 will extend the nutrition services from October 1, 2016, to September 30, 2017.

Evaluation
In this extended agreement, ADHS will continue to provide the following funding amounts to the Gila County Health
Department: 1) WIC - $277,125, 2) BFPC -  $40,500, and, 3) FMNP -  at $1.25 per WIC participant on an as-needed
basis.  This funding will allow the Gila County Health Department to continue providing nutrition services to
qualified families.

Conclusion
This funding will allow the Gila County Health Department to continue providing nutrition services to qualified
families.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Health and Emergency Management Division Director that the Board of Supervisors
approve Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. ADHS14-053062 with ADHS in the total amount of $317,625 annually to
extend nutrition services in Gila County from October 1, 2016, through September 30, 2017.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 3 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS14-053062) between the Gila
County Health and Emergency Management Division and the Arizona Department of Health Services to extend the
term of the agreement for the period of October 1, 2016, through September 30, 2017.

Attachments

Amendment No. 3 ADHS14-053062 
Amendment No. 2 ADHS14-053062 
Amendment No. 1 ADHS14-053062 
IGA Contract No. ADHS14-053062



Approval as to Form



 

 

 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

AMENDMENT 

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH SERVICES 

1740 West Adams, Room 303 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 
(602) 542-1040 MAIN 
(602) 542-1741 FAX 

CONTRACT No.: ADHS14-053062 AMENDMENT No.: 3 PROCUREMENT OFFICER 
Jacqueline S. Ortega-Avila 

 
WIC, BFPC AND FMNP SERVICES 

 
Effective October 1, 2016, it is mutually agreed that the Contract referenced is amended as follows: 

 
1. Pursuant to the Terms and Conditions, Provision Twenty (20), THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND 

TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA OR TRANSPARENCY ACT - P.L.109-282, AS AMENDED BY SECTION 6202(A) 
OF P.L. 110-252), FOUND AT https://www.fsrs.gov/ is hereby added to read as follows: 

 
20. If applicable, the Contractor/Grantee shall submit to ADHS via email the Grant Reporting Certification Form. 

This form and the instructions can be downloaded from the ADHS Procurement website at 
http://www.azdhs.gov/operations/financial-services/procurement/index.php#ffata and must be returned to the 
ADHS by the 15th of the month following that in which the award was received. The form shall be completed 
electronically, and submitted using the steps outlined in the  Grant Reporting Certification Form Instructions to 
the following email address: ADHS_Grant@azdhs.gov. All required fields must be filled including Top Employee 
Compensation, if applicable. Completing the Grant Reporting Certification Form is required for compliance with 
the Office of Management and Budget (OMB), found at http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/open. Failure to timely 
submit the Grant Reporting Certification Form could result in the loss of funds. This requirement applies to all 
subcontractors/sub-awardees utilized by the Contractor/Grantee for amounts exceeding $30,000.00 during the 
term of the Award. 

CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE 
 
 
 

 GILA COUNTY HEALTH SERVICES 

 CONTRACTOR SIGNATURE 
 

 
 

Contractor Name 
 
5515 S. APACHE AVENUE, SUITE 100 

Contractor Authorized Signature 

Address 
 
GLOBE                                     ARIZONA               85501 

Printed Name 

City                                                       State                             Zip Title 
CONTRACTOR ATTORNEY SIGNATURE 

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952, the undersigned public agency attorney 
has determined that this Intergovernmental Agreement is in proper 
form and is within the powers and authority granted under the laws of 
the State of Arizona.  

 This Intergovernmental Agreement Amendment shall be effective the 
date indicated. The Public Agency is hereby cautioned not to commence 
any billable work or provide any material, service or construction under 
this IGA until the IGA has been executed by an authorized ADHS 
signatory. 
State of Arizona 
 
Signed this ______ day of _______________________ 20___ 

 

Signature                                                          Date 
 

 

Printed Name Procurement Officer 

Attorney General Contract No. P0012014000078, which is an 
Agreement between public agencies, has been reviewed pursuant to 
A.R.S. § 11-952 by the undersigned Assistant Attorney General, who 
has determined that it is in proper form and is within the powers and 
authority granted under the laws of the State of Arizona.   
 
 

 RESERVED FOR USE BY THE SECRETARY OF STATE 
 
Under House Bill 2011, A.R.S. § 11-952 
was amended to remove the requirement  
that Intergovernmental Agreements be filed  
with the Secretary of State. 
 
 

Signature                                                                             Date 
Assistant Attorney General 
 
Printed Name:  
 

javascript:window.parent.navigate(%22/media_461531632/Arizona_State_Seal.html%22);
https://www.fsrs.gov/
http://www.azdhs.gov/operations/financial-services/procurement/index.php#ffata
mailto:ADHS_Grant@azdhs.gov
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/open
javascript:window.parent.navigate("/media_461531632/Arizona_State_Seal.html");�
phorn
Typewritten text
Michael A. Pastor

phorn
Typewritten text
Chairman, Board of Supervisors

phorn
Typewritten text
Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief



 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

AMENDMENT 

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH SERVICES 

1740 West Adams, Room 303 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 
(602) 542-1040 MAIN 
(602) 542-1741 FAX 

CONTRACT No.: ADHS14-053062 AMENDMENT No.: 3 PROCUREMENT OFFICER 
Jacqueline S. Ortega-Avila 

 

 2 

2. The WIC Price Sheet in Amendment Two (2) is hereby replaced with the revised WIC Price Sheet of this 
Amendment Three (3). There was a reallocation between the line items but the budget total remains the same. The 
total budget amount for the WIC Price Sheet is still $277,125.00. 
 

3. The BFPC Price Sheet in Amendment Two (2) is hereby replaced with the revised BFPC Price Sheet of this 
Amendment Three (3). There was a reallocation between the line items but the budget total remains the same. The 
total budget amount for the BFPC Price Sheet is still $40,500.00. 

 
4. In ProcureAZ the “Items” Tab of the Master Blanket Purchase Order will be revised to reflect the pricing upon 

execution of this Amendment Three (3).  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

javascript:window.parent.navigate(%22/media_461531632/Arizona_State_Seal.html%22);


 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

AMENDMENT 

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH SERVICES 

1740 West Adams, Room 303 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 
(602) 542-1040 MAIN 
(602) 542-1741 FAX 

CONTRACT No.: ADHS14-053062 AMENDMENT No.: 3 PROCUREMENT OFFICER 
Jacqueline S. Ortega-Avila 

 

 3 

REVISED PRICE SHEET 
 

OCTOBER 1, 2016 TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 
 

                              WOMEN, INFANTS, AND CHILDREN (WIC) 
LINE ITEM BUDGET            AMOUNT 
PERSONNEL COSTS/SALARY EXPENSES $125,541.00 
EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPENSES $56,156.00 
PROFESSIONAL & OUTSIDE EXPENSES $1.00 
TRAVEL EXPENSES $9,795.00 
OCCUPANCY EXPENSES $1.00 
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES $8,019.00 
CAPITAL OUTLAY EXPENSES $1.00 
INDIRECT COST EXPENSES (IF AUTHORIZED) $15,686.00 
RD SUPPLEMENT $61,925.00 

TOTAL $277,125.00 
 
 
 

OCTOBER 1, 2016 TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 
 

               BREASTFEEDING PEER COUNSELING SERVICES (BFPC) 
LINE ITEM BUDGET            AMOUNT 
PERSONNEL COSTS/SALARY EXPENSES  $24,913.00  
EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPENSES  $6,551.00  
PROFESSIONAL & OUTSIDE EXPENSES  $1.00  
TRAVEL EXPENSES  $1,676.00  
OCCUPANCY EXPENSES  $1.00  
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES  $3,675.00  
CAPITAL OUTLAY EXPENSES  $1.00  
INDIRECT COST EXPENSES (IF AUTHORIZED)  $3,682.00  

TOTAL $40,500.00 
 
 
 

MARCH 1, 2017 TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 
 

FARMER'S MARKET NUTRITION PROGRAM (FMNP) 

TYPE OF SERVICE UNIT RATE UNIT OF 
MEASURE 

ESTIMATED NUMBER 
OF PARTICIPANTS 

WIC FMNP CHECK ISSUANCE $1.25 WIC Participant AS NEEDED 
 
 

 

javascript:window.parent.navigate(%22/media_461531632/Arizona_State_Seal.html%22);


 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

AMENDMENT 

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH SERVICES 

1740 West Adams, Room 303 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 
(602) 542-1040 MAIN 
(602) 542-1741 FAX 

CONTRACT No.: ADHS14-053062 AMENDMENT No.: 3 PROCUREMENT OFFICER 
Jacqueline S. Ortega-Avila 

 

 4 

ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 
 
With prior written approval from the Program Manager, the Contractor is authorized to transfer up to a maximum of ten 
percent (10%) of the total budget amount between funded line items except for Registered Dietitian Expenses. Transfers of 
funds are only allowed between funded line items.  Transfers exceeding ten percent (10%) or to a non-funded line item 
shall require an amendment. The Registered Dietitian line item is meant to fund additional Registered Dietitian position(s) 
to meet high-risk counseling requirements.  
 
Authorization for purchase of services under this Contract shall be made only upon ADHS issuance of a Purchase Order 
that is signed by an authorized agent.  The Purchase Order will indicate the Contract number and the dollar amount of 
funds authorized.  The Contractor shall only be authorized to perform services up to the amount on the Purchase Order.  
ADHS shall not have any legal obligation to pay for services in excess of the amount indicated on the Purchase Order.  No 
further obligation for payment shall exist on behalf of ADHS unless a.) the Purchase Order is modified with an official 
ADHS Procurement Change Order, and/or b.) an additional Purchase Order is issued for purchase of services under this 
Contract. 
 
ADHS reserves the right to adjust awards given to local agencies depending on federal dollars received.  Adjustments will 
be at the discretion of ADHS.  
 
ADDITIONAL WIC PROGRAM:   
 
Should additional administrative monies become available through state or federal grants, ADHS may increase the 
purchase order to increase the number of participants served and increase the total of this contract.   
 
The assigned caseload for FFY 2017 is: 1,250 
 

ADDITIONAL BREASTFEEDING PEER COUNSELING PROGRAM: 
 
Allowable costs for the Peer Counseling Program include compensation for peer counselors and designated peer 
counselor managers/coordinators, and related costs such as training and training materials; telephone expenses for 
participant contacts (including pager, cell phones and answering machines); travel for training and home and hospital 
visits; recruitment of peer counseling staff; and the purchase of demonstration materials (e.g., breast pumps for 
demonstration purposes, videos).  Out of state travel must be pre-approved by ADHS. Items and materials for distribution 
to WIC participants (e.g. breast pumps, breastfeeding aids, written materials) are not allowable costs. 
 
FARMER’S MARKET NUTRITION PROGRAM: 
 
If funding for additional FMNP checks becomes available and the contract budget (as shown on the Contract Price Sheet) 
has been fully expended, Contractor may choose whether or not to distribute the additional checks with no increase in the 
contract budget. 
 
 

ALL OTHER PROVISIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT SHALL REMAIN IN THEIR ENTIRETY. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

javascript:window.parent.navigate(%22/media_461531632/Arizona_State_Seal.html%22);


















































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   

ARF-3922     Consent Agenda Item      4. H.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  

Submitted For: Robert
Mawson,
Senior
Accountant 

Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Buyer

Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: FY 2016-2017 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

August 18,
2016 to
August 17,
2017

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. 042314 Janitorial Service for Northern Gila County

Background Information
On June 24, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved a request to advertise Request
for Proposals (RFP) No. 042314 for janitorial services in northern Gila County.  RFP
No. 042314 was advertised in the July 2, 2014, and July 9, 2014, editions of the
Arizona Silver Belt.  Responses received to RFP No. 042314 were opened in a public
setting on July 23, 2014.  RFP No. 042314 was emailed to six janitorial contractors, as
well as posted on the Gila County website.  On August 18, 2014, the Board of
Supervisors awarded a contract to the lowest, most responsible and qualified bidder,
which was Jani-Serv, Inc.  The annual contract amount was for $40,714.56.

On September 15, 2015, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 1 to
extend the term of the contract from August 18, 2016, to August 17, 2017. 
Amendment No. 1 also served to increase the original dollar amount of the contract
from $40,714.56 to $42,11456.

Evaluation
The following County facilities are serviced under Contract No. 042314: Payson
Courthouse, Sheriff's Office, Health/Rabies/Environmental, Community Action, Co-Op
Extension, Administration Building, Assessor's Office, Recorder's Office, Sheriff's
Office-Jail Administration and Justice of the Peace Courtroom. 

Service Agreement No. 042314 - Janitorial Services for Gila County with Jani-Serv will
expire August 17, 2016. Per Page 17 "Term and Renewal" of the contract, Gila County
has the option to renew the contract for three additional one-year terms.



Amendment No. 2 will serve to exercise the option to renew the contract for one
additional year, from August 18, 2016, to August 17, 2017.

Conclusion
County staff is pleased with the service provided by Jani-Serv, Inc. and would like to
extend the contract for another year.

Recommendation
The Finance Division Director and the Public Works Division Director recommend
renewing the contract with Jani-Serv, Inc. for one additional year, whereby Jani-Serv,
Inc. will continue to provide janitorial services for various County facilities in northern
Gila County.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. 042314 with Jani-Serv, Inc. to extend
the contract term to provide janitorial services for various County facilities in northern
Gila County for the period of August 18, 2016, through August 17, 2017, at an annual
cost of $42,114.56.

Attachments
Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. 042314 with Jani-Serv, Inc.
Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 042314 with Jani-Serv, Inc.
Contract No. 042314 Jani-Serv, Inc.
County Attorney Comment







































































Memorandum 

 

August 25, 2016 

To:  Gila County Board of Supervisors 

From: Gila County Attorney’s Office 

Re:  September 6, 2016 Agenda Item No. 3922 re: Janitorial 

Services for Northern Gila County. 

 

This office cannot approve the proposed contract amendment for the 

following reason: 

 

ISRAEL BOYCOTT CERTIFICATION 

 

A new statute, effective August 6, 2016, prohibits a public agency from 

entering into a contract with a company to acquire or dispose of 

services, supplies, information technology, or construction unless the 

contract includes a written certification that the company is not 

currently engaged in, and agrees for the duration of the contract to not 

engage in, a boycott of Israel.  We suggest the following language:  

Contractor hereby certifies that it is not currently engaged 

in, and will not for the duration of this agreement engage in, 

a boycott of Israel as defined by A.R.S. § 35-393.01. Violation 



of this certification by Agency may result in action by County 

up to and including termination of this Agreement. 



   

ARF-3957     Consent Agenda Item      4. I.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  

Submitted For: Steve Sanders,
Director 

Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Buyer

Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: 2016-2017 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

9-16-16 to
9-15-17

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of Amendment No. 2 to extend the term of service with Blackstone Security
Services, Inc.

Background Information
At the September 2, 2014, regular Board of Supervisors' meeting, the Board approved
Gila County's utilization of a State of Arizona, State Procurement Office contract with
Blackstone Security Services, Inc. to provide armed security guards at the entrance to
the Globe Courthouse to man the security equipment.

Staff sought input from the Sheriff's Office, County Attorney's Office and the Courts on
utilizing armed security or unarmed security. The consensus was to continue to use
armed security. 

On September 1, 2015, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 1 to the
Agreement which renewed the contract for one additional year beginning September
15, 2015, through September 15, 2016.

Evaluation
The existing term of service between Gila County and Blackstone Security Services,
Inc. will expire on September 15, 2016.  Staff desires to extend the term of service for
an additional year. 
 
The service will provide two guards posted at the main entrance of the Globe
Courthouse, from 7:30 A.M. to 5:30 P.M., Monday through Friday to man the security
equipment at the entrance the public will be utilizing, as well as to locker any weapons
brought into the Courthouse by a member of the public.  The annual cost to the
County of $82,750 reflects the hourly rates for which the State has contracted with
Blackstone Security Services, Inc. less the ten holidays the County facilities will not be
open for business.

Conclusion



Staff wishes to extend the term of service with Blackstone Security Services, Inc. to
provide armed security to man the security equipment in the Gila County Courthouse
in Globe, AZ.  Gila County is a member of ProcureAZ, the State of Arizona’s
procurement agency for cooperative purchasing.  By using the State of Arizona
Contract No. ADSPO13-054359 with Blackstone Security Services, Inc., it will save the
County both time and money for a rate that has already been established through the
State of Arizona bidding process.

Recommendation
The Public Works Division Director recommends the approval of Amendment No. 2 to
extend the contract term for one additional year between Gila County and Blackstone
Security Services, Inc. by utilizing the State of Arizona, State Procurement Office
Contract No. ADSPO13-054359 with Blackstone Security Services, Inc. to provide
armed security manpower for the safety of the public and employees in the Gila
County Globe Courthouse.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 2 to State of Arizona Contract No. ADSPO13-054359 to
extend the contract term with Blackstone Security Services, Inc., whereby the
contractor will provide armed security manpower for the safety of the public and
employees at the Gila County Globe Courthouse in the amount of $82,750 for the
period of September 16, 2016, through September 15, 2017.

Attachments
Amendment No. 2 to Contract ADSPO13-054359-Blackstone Security Services
Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. ADSPO13-054359-Blackstone Security Services
Original Contract No. ADSPO13-054359-Blackstone Security Services
County Attorney's Comment











Memorandum 

 

August 25, 2016 

To:  Gila County Board of Supervisors 

From: Gila County Attorney’s Office 

Re:  September 6, 2016 Agenda Item No. 3957 re: Blackstone 

Security Services, Inc. 

 

This office cannot approve the proposed request for proposals for the 

following reason: 

 

ISRAEL BOYCOTT CERTIFICATION 

 

A new statute, effective August 6, 2016, prohibits a public agency from 

entering into a contract with a company to acquire or dispose of 

services, supplies, information technology, or construction unless the 

contract includes a written certification that the company is not 

currently engaged in, and agrees for the duration of the contract to not 

engage in, a boycott of Israel.  We suggest the following language:  

Contractor hereby certifies that it is not currently engaged 

in, and will not for the duration of this agreement engage in, 

a boycott of Israel as defined by A.R.S. § 35-393.01. Violation 



of this certification by Agency may result in action by County 

up to and including termination of this Agreement. 



   

ARF-3946     Consent Agenda Item      4. J.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  

Submitted For: Robert
Mawson,
Senior
Accountant 

Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Buyer

Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: 2016-2017 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 7, 2016
to July 6, 2017

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of Amendment No. 8 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813-Gila
County Medical Examiner Mark Fischione

Background Information
On January 7, 2014, the Board of Supervisors (BOS) approved Professional Services
Agreement No. 062813 with Dr. Mark Fischione to provide medical examiner services
to Gila County. The contract was issued for a period of one year in a not to exceed
amount of $30,000 without prior written approval from Gila County for the contract
term ending on January 6, 2015.  Additionally, the contract allows for the option to
renew the contract term for three additional one-year periods.

On June 24, 2014, the BOS approved Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement which
increased the total contract by an additional $40,000 for a new total contract amount
of $70,000 for the contract term ending on January 6, 2015.

On October 21, 2014, the BOS approved Amendment No. 2 to the Agreement which
increased the total contract by an additional $30,000 for a new total contract amount
of $100,000 for the contract term ending on January 6, 2015.

On December 16, 2014, the BOS approved Amendment No. 3 to the Agreement which
renewed the contract for one additional year beginning January 7, 2015, through
January 6, 2016; and the total not to exceed amount was revised from $30,000 to
$70,000 for the contract term ending on January 6, 2016.

On September 1, 2015, the BOS approved Amendment No. 4 to the Agreement which
increased the total contract by an additional $40,000 for a new contract amount of
$110,000 for the contract term ending on January 6, 2016.

On January 19, 2016, the BOS approved Amendment No. 5 to the Agreement which
increased the total contract by an additional $10,000 for a new contract amount of



increased the total contract by an additional $10,000 for a new contract amount of
$120,000 for the contract term ending on January 6, 2016.

On February 2, 2016, the BOS approved Amendment No. 6 to the Agreement which
extended the term of the contract from January 7, 2016, to July 6, 2016. This
Amendment also served to increase the original dollar amount of the contract from
$30,000 to $65,000.

On July 5, 2016, the BOS approved Amendment No. 7 to the Agreement which served
to increase the original dollar amount of the contract from $65,000 to $95,000.

Evaluation
Professional Services Agreement No. 062813-Medical Examiner Services for Gila
County with Dr. Mark Fischione will expire on July 6, 2016. Per Article 11-Term of the
contract, Gila County has the option to renew the contract for three additional one
year terms. Amendment No. 8 will serve to extend the contract term from July 6, 2016
to July 5, 2017, with a not to exceed without prior written authorization, total contract
amount of $95,000.

Conclusion
Staff feels it would best serve the interest of Gila County to continue to contract with
Dr. Mark Fischione for Medical Examiner services for Gila County.

Recommendation
Staff recommends the approval of Amendment No. 8 to extend the contract term of
Professional Services Agreement No. 062813 with Dr. Mark Fischione for Medical
Examiner Services for Gila County, for an additional year from July 7, 2016, to July 6,
2017, with a not to exceed contract amount of $95,000.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 8 to Professional Services Contract No. 062813-Medical
Examiner Services between Gila County and Mark A. Fischione, M.D., PLC to extend
the contract from July 7, 2016, to July 6, 2017, at a not to exceed contract amount of
$95,000.

Attachments
Amendment No. 8 to Professional Services Contract No. 062813
Amendment No. 7 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813
Amendment No. 6 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813
Amendment No. 5 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813
Amendment No. 4 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813
Amendment No. 3 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813
Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813
Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813
Professional Services Agreement No. 062813-Medical Examiner Services with Dr.
Fischione















































   

ARF-3928     Consent Agenda Item      4. K.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  

Submitted For: Marian
Sheppard 

Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County Fair, Inc. Special Event Liquor License application for September 22-25,
2016.

Background Information
A qualified organization may submit an application to serve liquor at a special event for
up to 10 days per year.  The Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control
(DLLC) approves all liquor-related applications; however, part of the DLLC's process
requires that the local governing body review the application and submit a
recommendation for approval or disapproval to the DLLC for any establishment
located within the jurisdiction of that local governing body.

Evaluation
The Clerk of the Board of Supervisors (Clerk) has reviewed the attached application
and has determined that it has been filled out correctly.

Conclusion
This charitable organization properly completed the application.  If the Board of
Supervisors approves this application and final approval is given by the DLLC, the Gila
County Fair, Inc., will have used 4 days of the allowable 10 days to serve liquor at a
special event in 2016.

Recommendation
The Clerk recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve this application to allow
the Gila County Fair, Inc. to serve liquor at a special event.

Suggested Motion
Approval of a Special Event Liquor License application submitted by Gila County Fair,
Inc. to serve liquor at the Gila County Fair to be held at the Gila County Fairgrounds
on September 22-25, 2016.

Attachments
Gila County Fair Inc. Special Event License Application













   
ARF-3944     Consent Agenda Item      4. L.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  
Submitted For: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Sidewinders Tavern & Grill Application for a Temporary Extension of
Premises/Patio Permit.

Background Information
Any establishment that has been issued a liquor license must submit an
Application for Extension of Premises/Patio Permit to the local governing
body of the city, town or county where the establishment is located.  The
application can be submitted to temporarily or permanently extend the
premises/patio where serving liquor is permitted by the Arizona
Department of Liquor Licenses and Control (DLLC).  The local governing
body usually has established internal procedures for review and approval
of the application.  The DLLC has final approval of all recommendations
submitted by the local governing body. 

Randy D. Nations has submitted an application to temporarily extend the
premises/patio of the Sidewinders Tavern & Grill for an event to be held
on October 1, 2016.  The Sidewinders Tavern & Grill is located in Pine,
Arizona.

Evaluation
The application has been reviewed by the Clerk of the Board of
Supervisors Department, and Community Development Division Chief
Building Official, Scott Buzan, who is familiar with the premises, and
there are no objections with regard to this application. 

Conclusion
The application is ready to be presented to the Board of Supervisors for a
decision.  The Board's recommendation will then be sent to the DLLC for
a final decision.

Recommendation



It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors issue an approval
recommendation to the DLLC. 

Suggested Motion
Approval of an Application for Extension of Premises/Patio Permit
submitted by Randy D. Nations to temporarily extend the premises where
liquor is permitted to be served at the Sidewinders Tavern Grill, located in
Pine, at an event to be held on October 1, 2016.

Attachments
Sidewinders Tavern & Grill Application
Interoffice Memo Community Development













   

ARF-3863     Consent Agenda Item      4. M.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  

Submitted For: Eric
Mariscal,
Director 

Submitted By: Cate Gore, Elections Assistant

Department: Elections Department

Information
Request/Subject
Adoption of an Order calling for an election to reorganize the Rim Trail Domestic Water
Improvement governing board from three to five members.

Background Information
Arizona Revised Statute §48-1012 (F) states, "The board of supervisors shall make an
order calling an election to decide whether to reorganize a domestic water improvement
district that has a board consisting of three members as a domestic water improvement
district that has a board consisting of five members when a petition containing the
signatures of twenty-five percent of the qualified electors residing within the district and
requesting that the district be reorganized is filed with the board except the board of
supervisors may not call for a reorganization election to expand the number of
directors on the district board more frequently than once every two years..."

Evaluation
A petition containing the required twenty-five percent of qualified electors residing
within the Rim Trail Domestic Water Improvement District has been submitted and
verified.

Conclusion
As set forth in Arizona Revised Statute §48-1012 (F), the governing board of the Rim
Trail Domestic Water Improvement District has successfully petitioned to expand the
governing board from three to five members.

Recommendation
The Gila County Elections Director recommends that the Gila County Board of
Supervisors adopt an Order calling for an election to reorganize the Rim Trail Domestic
Water Improvement District governing board from three members to five members.

Suggested Motion
Adoption of an Order calling for an election to reorganize the Rim Trail Domestic Water
Improvement District governing board changing from three members to five members.

Attachments
Order for Rim Trail Domestic Water Improvement District



Initiative Petition Signatures
Gila County Assessor Profile
Arizona Revised Statute 48-1012



 

 
 

 
 

 

ORDER 

 

AN ORDER OF THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

CALLING FOR A REORGANIZATION ELECTION TO EXPAND THE 

NUMBER OF DIRECTORS ON THE DISTRICT BOARD OF THE RIM 

TRAIL DOMESTIC WATER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT FROM 

THREE TO FIVE MEMBERS. 

 

WHEREAS, A.R.S. §48-1012(F) states, “The board of supervisors shall make an order calling 

an election to decide whether to reorganize a domestic water improvement district that has a 

board consisting of three members as a domestic water improvement district that has a board 

consisting of five members when a petition containing the signatures of twenty-five percent of the 

qualified electors residing within the district and requesting that the district be reorganized is 

filed with the board except the board of supervisors may not call for a reorganization election to 

expand the number of directors on the district board more frequently than once every two 

years…”; 

 

WHEREAS, the Rim Trail Domestic Water Improvement District has 20 qualified electors 

residing within the district, and a petition containing the signatures of ten of those electors has 

been filed with the Gila County Elections Department, therefore, more than twenty-five percent 

of qualified electors residing within the district signed the petition; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors does 

hereby call for a reorganization election to expand the Rim Trail Domestic Water Improvement 

District consisting of a three member board to a five member board.  

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 6
th

 day of September 2016, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona 

 

Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

_______________________________ _______________________________ 

Marian Sheppard, Clerk   Michael A. Pastor, Chairman    

 

Approved as to form: 

 

_______________________________ 

Jefferson R. Dalton 

Deputy Gila County Attorney  

Civil Bureau Chief 



























   

ARF-3876     Consent Agenda Item      4. N.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  

Submitted For: Eric Mariscal,
Director 

Submitted By: Cate Gore, Elections Assistant

Department: Elections Department

Information
Request/Subject
Beaver Valley Fire District Governing Board Appointment.

Background Information
Arizona Revised Statute §48-803 (B) provides that if a vacancy occurs on the district
board, other than from expiration of a term, the remaining board members shall fill
the vacancy by the appointment of an interim member.

Evaluation
Beaver Valley Fire District Governing Board Member Kelley Paulin tendered her
resignation notice effective February 16, 2016.  On June 20, 2016, the Beaver Valley
Fire District Board of Directors, appointed Oscar "Gene" Jones to fulfill Mrs. Paulin's
unexpired term of office, which ends on December 31, 2018.

Conclusion
On June 20, 2016, the Beaver Valley Fire District Board of Directors, unanimously
voted to appoint Oscar "Gene" Jones to fulfill Kelley Paulin's unexpired term of office,
which ends December 31, 2018.

Recommendation
The Gila County Elections Department Director recommends that the Board of
Supervisors acknowledge Kelley Paulin's resignation from the Beaver Valley Fire
District Board of Directors and the appointment of Oscar "Gene" Jones to fulfill Mrs.
Paulin's term of office beginning June 20, 2016, and ending December 31, 2018.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of Kelley Paulin's resignation from the Beaver Valley Fire District
Board of Directors and appoint Oscar "Gene" Jones to fulfill Mrs. Paulin's unexpired
term, effective June 20, 2016, through December 31, 2018.

Attachments
Loyalty Oath of Office For Oscar Gene Jones
Draft Meeting Minutes 8-15-2016
Amended Meeting Agenda 6-20-2016
Amended Meeting Agenda 2-16-2016



Arizona Revised Statute 48-803
County Attorney's Comment





Minutes BVFD BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING Monday, Aug 15, 7 PM, 2016 
 
 
1.  CALL TO ORDER - Chairman Sam Baker called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm 
2.  ROLL CALL OF FIRE BOARD MEMBERS & QUORUM ESTABLISHMENT - S. Baker, 
Jolly; G. Jones; K.Friend (via telephone) Quorum Established 
3.  SCHEDULED PUBLIC APPEARANCES-Ron Sattelmaier, Steve Prahin (not present) 
A.  CALL TO THE PUBLIC-R.Sattelmaier gave a brief overview of the Impact Statement Draft 
that he created stating that once BVFD had voted on a date for their public hearing it would be 
added to the document and mailed to all property owners and to the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors. 
4.  CHAIR COMMENTS-Status of Possible BVFD Consolidation with WPFD-S.Baker thanked 
R.Sattelmaier for his contribution. S. Baker stated that there was $82,000 in reserves and 
suggested putting money into the tanker to make it safer, mentioning it could be as much as 
$40,000.  Also being considered was the addition of a veranda or possibly extending the 
existing one. Terry warned of the need to have designated handicapped parking. Albert 
mentioned additional storage was needed and also voiced a concern about the auxiliary still 
having usage of the facilities after the merger. S.Baker stated that there would be no change to 
community usage.  Chief suggested a training area be added. 
5.  APPROVAL OF THE JULY MEETING MINUTES - After review of the minutes, N. Jolly 
made a motion to accept the minutes as written, G. Jones seconded. There was no discussion 
and the vote was unanimous. S. Baker stated that the July Financial Report needed to be 
corrected and would be approved at the next meeting. 
6.  SCHEDULED PUBLIC APPEARANCES –None 
7.  REPORTS AND CORRESPONDENCE  
A. July Fire Chief Report –Chief M.Williamson read the report and it will also be posted on the 
BV Community Website. 
8. DISCUSSIONS AND POSSIBLE ACTION CALENDAR 
A. Resolution 2016-02 Letter to GC BOS for Consolidation Review and Comment-S.Baker 
stated the need to send the resolution letter to the Gila County Board of Supervisors, he gave 
a brief overview of what needed to be included in the letter.  N. Jolly made a motion to send 
the resolution letter, G. Jones seconded, there was no discussion and the vote was 
unanimous. 
B. Resolution 2016-03 Set Date for Public Hearing of Consolidation with WPFD-S.Baker stated 
the need to set a date for the Public Hearing, after some discussion, S.Baker made a motion 
for the Public Hearing to be September 24th, 2016 at 10am, G. Jones seconded, there was no 
further discussion and the vote was unanimous. 
C.  Changes to February and June Agendas and minutes to reflect correct verbiage and  
names to match Oath of Offices for Kelly Urban and Oscar Eugene Jones-S.Baker stated the 
need to amend the agendas and minutes for February and June. He made a motion to make 
the corrections, G. Jones seconded, there was no further discussion and the vote was 
unanimous. 
D.   H. Plues Resignation and submittal of GC Special Board Change Forms-S.Baker stated 
that H. Plues Resignation needed to be accepted as he was no longer a property owner. He 
stated the need to find and appoint a replacement within 90 days. 
E. BVFD Pension Fund Status-No Update 
9. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS  
A. BUSINESS FOR NEXT MEETING – Approval of July Financial Report 
B. ADJOURNMENT– S. Baker adjourned the meeting at 7:57pm 
  
Next regular meeting is 9/19/16, 7 PM 
 



BEAVER VALLEY FIRE DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

FIRE STATION CONFERENCE ROOM 
Monday, Jun 20, 7 PM, 2016 

(Amended by Board vote 8_15_16) 
    
1. CALL TO ORDER  
 
2. ROLL CALL OF FIRE BOARD MEMBERS & QUORUM ESTABLISHMENT  
 
3. UNSCHEDULED PUBLIC APPEARANCES  
A.  CALL TO THE PUBLIC 
 
4.   CHAIR COMMENTS-Possible BVFD Consolidation with WPFD 
        
5. APPROVAL OF THE MAY MEETING MINUTES 
 
6. SCHEDULED PUBLIC APPEARANCES - WPFD CHIEF, Ron Sattelmaier 
 
7. REPORTS AND CORRESPONDENCE  
A. May Fire Chief Report 
B.   May 2016 Financial Report Approval  
 
8. DISCUSSIONS AND POSSIBLE ACTION CALENDAR  
A. Monthly Cash Flow Report - Board Approval 
B. FY 2018 Budget estimate - Public Comment 
C. Appointment of New Board Member-Oscar Eugene Jones (commonly known as Gene       
 Jones)  
D. BVFD Pension Fund Status 
E. Special Board Meeting, 6/28, 7 PM - Public Comment 
F. Resolution to approve the subcontract collection of fees for out-of-district responses  
  
9. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS  
A. BUSINESS FOR NEXT MEETING  
B. ADJOURNMENT  
  
Next regular meeting is 7/18/16, 7 PM 
 
 
 



                                    BEAVER VALLEY FIRE DISTRICT 
                     BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 
    FIRE STATION CONFERENCE ROOM 
            Monday, Feb 16, 7 PM, 2016  
                           (Amended by Board vote 8/15/16) 
    
1. CALL TO ORDER  
 
2. ROLL CALL OF FIRE BOARD MEMBERS & ESTABLISH QUORUM  
 
3. UNSCHEDULED PUBLIC APPEARANCES  

A.  CALL TO THE PUBLIC 

4.   CHAIR COMMENTS-AFDA Report on ARS Financial Reporting perceived Changes 
        
5. APPROVAL OF DECEMBER MEETING MINUTES 
 
6. SCHEDULED PUBLIC APPEARANCES -None 
 
7. REPORTS AND CORRESPONDENCE  

A. Fire Chief Report 
B. December & January 2016 Financial Report Approval  

 
8. DISCUSSIONS AND POSSIBLE ACTION CALENDAR  
 A. Approval to use Capital Reserve Funds for 10% Cost Sharing Required for FEMA AFG 

Grant if BVFD Receives an Award 
 B. Approval to use Capital Reserve Funds for 10% Cost Sharing Required for Az Dept. of 

Forestry WFHF Grant if BVFD Receives an Award 
     C. Impact on BVFD services if a property tax rate reduction voted in 
 D. 2016 & 2017 Budgets 

E. Dismissal of Kelley Urban (Maiden name Kelly Paulin) as BVFD board member 
F. AFDA website Posting of BVFD Annual financial reporting 
G. BVFD pension fund status 

  
9. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS:  

A. BUSINESS FOR NEXT MEETING  
B. ADJOURNMENT  

  
Next regular meeting is 3/21/16, 7 PM 

 
 
 







County Attorney’s Comment: 

July 25, 2016 

 

To:  The Gila County Board of Supervisors 

From: The Gila County Attorney’s Office 

Re:  Board Meeting set for August 2, 2016; Agenda Item 3876; 
Beaver Valley Governing Board Appointment. 

 

The Gila County Attorney’s Office cannot approve the appointment of 
the new Beaver Valley Board Member board member because: 

1. The Beaver Valley Fire District lacked authority to make the 
appointment.  The district minutes from the February 16, 2016 
board meeting state that Kelley Urban was dismissed. The district 
had ninety days to appoint a replacement, until i.e. May 16, 2016.  
The district didn’t fill the vacancy within that time period and, 
therefore, the power to do so shifted to the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors.  The district’s appointment made on June 20, 2016 is, 
therefore, void.  A.R.S. § 48-803(B) provides: 
 

If a vacancy occurs on the district board other than from 
expiration of a term, the remaining board members shall 
fill the vacancy by appointment of an interim member 
and … the remaining board members shall fill the vacancy 
within ninety days after the date the vacancy occurs. … if 
the remaining district board members do not appoint an 



interim member within that ninety-day period, the board 
of supervisors shall appoint an interim member to the 
district board within sixty days after expiration of the 
ninety-day period ….” 

2. The district board meeting minutes of February 16, 2016 
state that Kelley Urban did not resign but was dismissed for 
missing three consecutive meetings.  However, the Agenda 
Item Informational section uses the name of “Kelly Paulin” 
and not “Kelley Urban” and states that “Kelley Urban 
tendered her resignation”.   

3. The bylaws of the district providing for dismissal for missing 
three consecutive meetings are not attached. 

4. The Agenda Item Informational section refers to the 
appointment of “Oscar ‘Gene’ Jones.” The district’s agenda 
provides: “Appointment of New Board Member-Gene 
Jones.”  The acceptance form uses the name of “Oscar G. 
Jones” and the district minutes refer simply to the 
appointment of “Gene.” 



   
ARF-3916     Consent Agenda Item      4. O.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  
Reporting
Period:

July 2016

Submitted For: Jesse Bolinger, Justice of the Peace-Globe Region 
Submitted By: Mary Navarro, Justice Court Operations Mgr.

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office monthly report for July 2016.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the July 2016 monthly activity report submitted by
the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
Monthy Report for July 2016









   
ARF-3930     Consent Agenda Item      4. P.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  
Reporting
Period:

July 2016

Submitted By: Dorothy Little,
Justice of the
Peace-Payson
Region

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office July 2016 monthly activity
report.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the July 2016 monthly activity report submitted by
the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
Monthly Report for July 2016













   
ARF-3955     Consent Agenda Item      4. Q.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  
Reporting
Period:

July 2016

Submitted For: Anita Escobedo, Clerk of the Superior Court 
Submitted By: Vicki Aguilar, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Superior Court

Information
Subject
Clerk of the Superior Court's Office Monthly Report for July 2016.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the July 2016 monthly activity report submitted by
the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.

Attachments
Monthly Report for July 2016



















   
ARF-3934     Consent Agenda Item      4. R.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  
Reporting
Period:

August 2, 2016 and August 15, 2016

Submitted For: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk

Information
Subject
August 2, 2016 and August 15, 2016, Board of Supervisors' meeting
minutes.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the August 2, 2016, and August 15, 2016, Board of
Supervisors' meeting minutes.

Attachments
08-15-16 BOS Meeting Minutes
08-02-16 BOS Meeting Minutes



Page 1 of 5 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  August 15, 2016 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN  By: Laurie J. Kline 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Deputy Clerk 
 
JOHN D. MARCANTI                                                 Gila County Courthouse 
Member         Globe, Arizona                        
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman (via 
ITV); John D. Marcanti, Member; Don E. McDaniel, Jr., County Manager; 
Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief; Marian E. 
Sheppard, Clerk of the Board; and, Laurie J. Kline, Deputy Clerk 
 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION  
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a regular session at 10:00 a.m. this 
date in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Robert Mawson led the Pledge of 
Allegiance and Minister Lawrence Knowlton of the Church of Christ in Miami 
delivered the invocation.  
 
Item 2 – PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the submission of a Federal 
Fiscal Year 2016 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Application 
to the State of Arizona, Department of Housing for CDBG Regional Account 
funding in the amount of $132,242 and adopt related Resolution Nos. 16-08-
03, 16-08-04 and 16-08-05 for two proposed CDBG housing rehabilitation 
projects in Gila County.   
 
Malissa Buzan, Community Services Division Director, stated that this is a public 
hearing and request to apply for Community Development Block Grant Regional 
Account funds from the State of Arizona, Department of Housing, for two 
proposed housing rehabilitation projects in Gila County.  Per statutory 
requirement, a public hearing to obtain input from citizens was held; one in 
northern and one in southern Gila County, and now a public hearing must be 
held by the Board of Supervisors.  It is also required that the Board adopt 
resolutions verifying that the application requirements have been met, and which 
must be included with the application.  Chairman Pastor opened the public 
hearing; however, there were no comments, so he closed the public hearing and 
requested a motion from the Board.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, 



Page 2 of 5 
 

seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously authorized the 
submission of a Federal Fiscal Year 2016 Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) Application to the State of Arizona, Department of Housing, for CDBG 
Regional Account funding in the amount of $132,242 and adopted related 
Resolution Nos. 16-08-03, 16-08-04 and 16-08-05.  (Copies of the Resolutions 
are attached to the minutes and permanently on file in the Board of 
Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
B.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Order No. LL-16-03, an 
application submitted by Donald Taylor for a new Series 10 Beer and Wine 
Liquor License for Taylors Pine located in Pine.   
 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, stated that this is an application for a new 
Series 10 Beer and Wine Liquor License for Taylors Pine located in Pine.  She 
explained the internal review process whereby the Building Permitting 
Department, Health Department and County Treasurer review the application to 
ensure that County requirements have been met.  Ms. Sheppard advised that her 
office has not received any objections with regard to this application from anyone 
residing within a one-mile radius of the proposed liquor license location; 
therefore, she recommended proceeding with the public hearing.  Chairman 
Pastor opened the public hearing; however, there were no comments, so he closed 
the public hearing and requested a motion from the Board.  Upon motion by 
Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously 
adopted Order No. LL-16-03. 
 
Item 3 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to set primary and secondary property 
tax rates for 2016 for all taxing jurisdictions within Gila County and convey 
tax rates for all jurisdictions to the County Treasurer, and adopt Resolution 
No. 16-08-02 providing for the collection of taxes for all jurisdictions by the 
County Treasurer for fiscal year 2016-2017.   
 
Don McDaniel, County Manager, stated that this is the time set for the Board to 
set the tax rates for all taxing jurisdictions within the County and adopt a 
resolution allowing for the collection of those taxes.  The tax rates are established 
by budget and financial information submitted to the County by the taxing 
authorities, such as special districts, school districts, or cities and towns.  He 
stated that staff recommends that the Board set the primary and secondary 
property tax rates and adopt the resolution as stated above providing for the 
collection of those taxes for all jurisdictions in Gila County by the Gila County 
Treasurer.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor 
Marcanti, the Board unanimously set primary and secondary property tax rates 
for 2016 for all taxing jurisdictions within Gila County, conveyed tax rates for all 
jurisdictions to the County Treasurer, and adopted Resolution No. 16-08-02.  (A 
copy of the resolution is attached to the minutes and permanently on file in 
the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 



Page 3 of 5 
 

 
B.  Information/Discussion/Action to direct staff to begin negotiations with 
The Gordian Group to facilitate a Job Order Contract for the construction of 
the Superior Court North building at 110 W. Main Street in Payson.  
 
Steve Sanders, Public Works Division Director, stated that the design of Phase I of 
the Superior Court North facility, which will be housed in the former NAPA 
building in Payson, has been completed.  Canyon Country Design has prepared a 
design which includes electrical and mechanical drawings and it has been 
reviewed and approved by the County and stakeholders who will occupy the 
facility.  Staff is ready to move forward to the next step in the process which is the 
construction phase.  A Job Order Contract would be the preferred method of 
construction for this project as the County has used this method of construction 
for the Copper Administration Building and other smaller projects which have 
had positive results.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-
Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously directed staff to begin negotiations 
with The Gordian Group to facilitate a Job Order Contract for the construction of 
the Superior Court North building at 110 W. Main Street in Payson. 
 
C.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of 
Invitation for Bid No. 070816 for the purchase of up to two new or used full 
sized, regular cab, 3/4 ton pickup trucks to be utilized by the Public Works 
Division.   
 
Mr. Sanders stated that during the budget process, the Board of Supervisors 
approved the purchase of up to two trucks as described above of which funds for 
the purchase have been included in the current fiscal year budget.  The vehicles 
will be assigned to the Facilities Department.  Mr. Sanders clarified that this 
request is to obtain permission to advertise the Invitation for Bid in the 
newspaper. He added that when two trucks are purchased, at least two older 
vehicles will be eliminated at the same time so as not to increase the number of 
County fleet vehicles.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by 
Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously authorized the advertisement of 
Invitation for Bid No. 070816. 
 
D.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of 
Request for Proposals No. 080116 for WAN (Wide Area Network) and Internet 
Services.   
 
Jacque Sanders, Assistant County Manager, Librarian, stated that this item, if 
approved, will allow for the advertisement of the Request for Proposals to secure 
services to increase bandwidth which will improve the inner connectivity in Globe.  
It has become evident across all County departments that the current Internet 
access bandwidth is not sufficient to allow staff to perform duties in a timely 
manner.  Increasing County Internet bandwidth and point-to-point bandwidth 
between County facilities will be a first step in restoring regular communications 
speeds across all County departments.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, 



Page 4 of 5 
 

seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously authorized the 
advertisement of Request for Proposals No. 080116. 
 
Item 4 – CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the Consent 
Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 
upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the Board 
of Supervisors.)  
 
A.  Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Funding Agreement No. 203-16 between 
the Arizona Department of Housing and the Gila County Division of 
Community Services, Housing Service, to amend the Scope of Work to 
indicate the change in Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program 
(LIHEAP) income eligibility level to 200% of the federal poverty guidelines 
and the LIHEAP rolling average per unit expenditure to $7,105.  
 
B.  Approval of an Application for Extension of Premises/Patio Permit 
submitted by Tamara Morken to temporarily extend the premises where 
liquor is permitted to be served at THAT Brewery Rimside Grill located in 
Pine for a Labor Day event to be held on September 3-4, 2016, an annual 
Oktoberfest event to be held on September 24-25, 2016, and a Halloween 
event to be held on October 29, 2016.  
 
C.  Approval of a Special Event Liquor License Application submitted by Pine 
Strawberry Fuel Reduction, Inc. to serve liquor at an event to be held at the 
Mary Ellen Randall Horse Arena located in Pine on September 16-18, 2016.  
 
D.  Approval to authorize the Gila County Animal Control Department to 
submit a grant application to the Arizona Companion Animal Spay and 
Neuter Committee for $10,000 to expand its discounted spay/neuter 
services in Gila County for a period of one year.  
 
E.  Acknowledgment of the June 2016 monthly activity report submitted by 
the Payson Regional Constable's Office.  
 
F.  Acknowledgment of the July 2016 monthly activity report submitted by 
the Payson Regional Constable's Office.  
 
G.  Acknowledgment of the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Annual Report submitted 
by the Payson Regional Constable's Office.  
 
H.  Acknowledgment of the June 2016 monthly activity report submitted by 
the Recorder's Office.  
 
I.  Acknowledgment of the June 2016 monthly activity report submitted by 
the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.  
 



Page 5 of 5 
 

J.  Acknowledgment of the July 2016 monthly activity report submitted by 
the Globe Regional Constable's Office.  
 
K.  Approval of the July 26, 2016, and August 3, 2016, Board of Supervisors' 
meeting minutes.  
 
L.  Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been approved 
by the County Manager for the weeks of June 27, 2016 through July 01, 
2016; and July 4, 2016 through July 8, 2016.  
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda action items 4A – 4L.  
 
Item 5 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public benefit 
to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any issue within 
the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members may not discuss 
items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. Therefore, pursuant 
to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the conclusion of an open call 
to the public, individual members of the Board of Supervisors may respond 
to criticism made by those who have addressed the Board, may ask staff to 
review a matter or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda for 
further discussion and decision at a future date.  
 
There were no comments from the public. 
 
Item 6 – At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02(K), 
members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager may present a 
brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken on information 
presented.  
 
Each Board member and the County Manager presented information on current 
events.  
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 10:33 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 



Page 1 of 15 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  August 2, 2016 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN  By: Laurie J. Kline 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Deputy Clerk 
 
JOHN D. MARCANTI                                                 Gila County Courthouse 
Member         Globe, Arizona                        
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via ITV); John D. Marcanti, Member; Don E. McDaniel, Jr., County Manager; 
Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief; Marian 
E. Sheppard, Clerk of the Board; and, Laurie J. Kline, Deputy Clerk 
 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION  
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a regular session at 10:00 a.m. 
this date in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Robert Mawson led the 
Pledge of Allegiance and Pastor Carl Peterson of the Payson United Methodist 
Church in Payson delivered the invocation.  
 
Item 2 – PRESENTATIONS: 
 
A.   Presentation by Jim Soulia, General Manager of Arizona Eastern 
Railroad, on the activities of the railroad.  
 
Mr. Soulia provided a brief history of the Arizona Eastern Railroad and stated 
that it is owned by Genesee & Wyoming, Inc. (G & W) which is named after two 
counties in upstate New York.  G & W is a global company which is still 
expanding.  He stated that Arizona Eastern Railroad in Claypool was in a bit of 
a down slide; however, since coming to the area about three years ago the G & 
W has invested approximately $37 million into the railroad track infrastructure 
and continues to make capital improvements such as crossings and signal 
improvements.  Currently the Arizona Eastern Railroad is working in consort 
with the Arizona Department of Transportation to upgrade the railroad tracks 
in downtown Globe, Miami and Claypool.  Mr. Soulia added that community 
outreach and building relationships are an important part of what the Arizona 
Eastern Railroad does in order to educate the community about trains and 
track safety, and to show respect for the land that is traversed by their railroad 
tracks and trains.  Mr. Soulia introduced Daniel Dalton, Assistant General 



Page 2 of 15 
 

Manager, who is in charge of operations and the daily events in Globe and the 
surrounding areas.  Vice-Chairman Martin expressed her appreciation for the 
update.  Supervisor Marcanti stated that he attends the transportation 
meetings in San Carlos and added that the County has a good relationship 
with the San Carlos Apache Tribe and he emphasized the importance of 
respecting the land on the reservation.  Chairman Pastor welcomed Mr. Soulia 
and Mr. Dalton to the community. 
 
B.  Recognition of Charlene Becker of Teen Outreach Pregnancy Services 
as the Arizona Community Action Association 2016 "Heart in Hand" 
Award recipient.   
 
Malissa Buzan, Community Services Division Director, recognized Charlene 
Becker who received the Arizona Community Action Association 2016 “Heart in 
Hand” award earlier this year.  Ms. Buzan gave kudos to Ms. Becker and stated 
that she is a friend and a mentor to local teens and young adults who are 
looking for guidance and support.  She added that Ms. Becker goes above and 
beyond her daily duties to positively impact and improve the lives of teens and 
young adults in our community.   
 
Ms. Becker stated that it is important to help teens and young adults who are 
having problems with their parents as a result of teen pregnancy because by 
improving relationships, it helps create a healthier community.  She 
commented that she loves her job and appreciates the opportunity to make a 
positive difference in the lives of others.  The Board members commented 
favorably and thanked Ms. Becker for her hard work and dedication.   
 
C.  Update on the activities of the County Supervisors Association (CSA) 
by Craig Sullivan, CSA Executive Director, including a discussion of 
recent legislative activities. 
 
Craig Sullivan, County Supervisors Association Executive Director, had not yet 
arrived at the meeting; therefore, Chairman Pastor delayed addressing this 
agenda item at this time. (This item was addressed after agenda item 3-A.) 
 
D.  Presentation of Bullion Plaza Cultural Center & Museum's 2015 Annual 
Report and 2016 economic development grant funding request in the 
amount of $10,000.  
 
Joe Sanchez, President of the Board of Directors for the Bullion Plaza Cultural 
Center & Museum, stated that this agenda item is a funding request to support 
the activities of the Bullion Plaza Cultural Center & Museum, and a 
presentation of the annual report to the Board of Supervisors.  He then 
introduced Tom Foster, Bullion Plaza Cultural Center & Museum Executive 
Director.   
 



Page 3 of 15 
 

Mr. Foster stated that Bullion Plaza is an attractive place for people in and out 
of the community to visit and to have events.  He provided a slide presentation 
which highlighted some of the projects, renovations, improvements and 
exhibits in progress.  The second-floor room with the stage has been restored 
and the floors have been re-done thanks to a grant from the Freeport-
McMoRan Foundation and new energy efficient windows have been installed 
thanks to Resolution Copper.  Mr. Foster stated that economic grant funds 
provided by the County have been used for infrastructure improvements, 
expansion of museum displays, improved research capabilities offered to the 
public, and improvement of virtual and audio/video presentations.  
Additionally, the improvements which have been made thus far make it more 
attractive for visitor and community organizations to hold more events, 
presentations and meetings at Bullion Plaza Cultural Center & Museum.  The 
Board members expressed thanks and appreciation for all of the hard work put 
forth by Mr. Sanchez, Mr. Foster, and volunteers to continually improve the 
Bullion Plaza Cultural Center & Museum. 
 
Item 3 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Intergovernmental 
Agreement No. 033116 whereby the Gila County Sheriff's Office shall 
continue to provide law enforcement services to the Town of Star Valley 
for a period of four years, effective July 1, 2016, through June 30, 2020.   
 
Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd, (via ITV) thanked and acknowledged Town of Star 
Valley Mayor Ronnie O. McDaniel, Attorney Timothy Grier and Council 
members; and Gila County Manager Don McDaniel, Deputy County Attorney 
Jeff Dalton, Finance Director Jeff Hessenius and Senior Accountant Robert 
Mawson, who were instrumental in getting this Intergovernmental Agreement 
(IGA) before the Board of Supervisors today.  Sheriff Shepherd also 
acknowledged his staff that assisted with this IGA, as follows:  Chief 
Administrative Officer Sarah White, Chief Deputy Sheriff Johnny Sanchez and 
Undersheriff Michael Johnson.  The Board members commented favorably and 
thanked the Sheriff’s Office and staff for all of the work that was done in order 
to move forward with this IGA.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, 
seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously approved 
Intergovernmental Agreement No. 033116. 
 
2-C.  Update on the activities of the County Supervisors Association (CSA) 
by Craig Sullivan, CSA Executive Director, including a discussion of 
recent legislative activities.  
 
Mr. Sullivan arrived at the meeting at 10:34 a.m. and at that time Chairman 
Pastor addressed presentation agenda item 2-C.  
 



Page 4 of 15 
 

Mr. Sullivan thanked the Board for the opportunity to give the presentation 
and report and provided paper copies of a slide presentation and report to the 
Board members and Clerk of the Board.  He stated that the County Supervisors 
Association (CSA) is a collaboration of all 15 counties in Arizona which engage 
other entities that pass policies that impact the Counties.  Currently, Vice-
Chairman Martin serves as the President Elect and next year she will serve as 
the President of the CSA Executive Committee.  She is also serving as CSA’s 
Western Interstate Region Representative which ensures that Gila County is 
involved in the activities of CSA.  He expressed appreciation to Vice-Chairman 
Martin for all of the extra work and time she spends in this regard.  He added 
that Don McDaniel, County Manager, does a phenomenal job providing 
feedback to CSA and, as a result, Gila County is always well represented.   
 
Mr. Sullivan stated that the number one priority garnered from the long list of 
legislative priorities obtained from each of the counties is to offset budget cost 
shifting, which has occurred at the state level.  CSA was unable to get 
permanent relief from the cost shifting; however, it was able to get some 
temporary relief of approximately $18.3 million to all of the counties and 
approximately $219,000 to Gila County.  Not included in that total amount is 
$6.3 million that will be reimbursed to the counties for conducting the 
Presidential Preference Election.  He then stated that a major priority of CSA is 
increased transportation investment and to restore the Highway User Revenue 
Fund (HURF), which is underfunded and degrading because it is primarily 
based on gas tax; therefore, CSA has been calling on lawmakers to restore it.  
This year lawmakers created a study committee to begin evaluating the 
resources necessary for transportation and CSA will be present and involved 
with the study committee.  The Public Safety Personnel Retirement System is 
another priority and for which legislation has been passed and CSA will be 
working with lawmakers to implement the new law smoothly.  The final priority 
in today’s presentation is the 1% Property Tax Reform, which shifts the 
responsibility from the state to the local jurisdictions when the 1% 
constitutional cap is violated; however, there is no mechanism to pay for it or 
distribute it; therefore, CSA worked to defeat this reform.   
 
There were 8 CSA bills signed into law and 3 CSA policy issues inserted into 
the budget.  Of particular importance are the 41 bills that were defeated or 
amended, which would have negatively affected counties.  Vice-Chairman 
Martin stated that she appreciated the report and thanked Mr. Sullivan and his 
staff for all of their hard work and assistance to protect the counties.  
Supervisor Marcanti thanked Mr. Sullivan and he inquired if securing HURF is 
going to continue to be a challenge, to which Mr. Sullivan replied that the 
positive aspect regarding HURF is that the counties have been very consistent 
in conveying to lawmakers that HURF should be restored; however, the 
negative aspect is that the state is using HURF as a rainy day fund for state 
operations.  CSA plans to continue to work consistently with cities to restore 
HURF to the counties.  Chairman Pastor inquired if there has been support 



Page 5 of 15 
 

from the Governor’s Office regarding HURF, to which Mr. Sullivan stated that 
the Governor is responsive and supports restoring HURF to the counties.   
 
Chairman Pastor agreed with Vice-Chairman Martin that CSA is very effective 
in getting legislation passed.  He thanked Mr. Sullivan for the presentation and 
stated that he appreciates the support CSA provides to all of the Arizona 
counties. 
 
B.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of 
Invitation for Bid No. 071516 for the acquisition and installation of 
equipment required to upfit up to thirteen (13) Special Service Vehicles 
purchased separately by the County for use by the Gila County Sheriff's 
Office.  
 
Jeff Hessenius, Finance Division Director, stated that on April 19, 2016, the 
Board approved the purchase of up to five new Special Service Vehicles.  The 
vehicles were purchased; four vehicles were assigned to the Sheriff’s Office 
Patrol and one was assigned to Sheriff’s Office Administration.  The vehicles 
were purchased as stock and this request is to “upfit” those vehicles.  The term 
“upfit” is used to describe the installation of additional equipment to the 
vehicles such as lights, etc., which are required for law enforcement purposes.  
The Sheriff’s Office and Public Works Division Director have requested that the 
Finance Division prepare an Invitation for Bid (IFB) in order to acquire and 
install equipment required to “upfit” up to 13 Special Services Vehicles for law 
enforcement purposes and for the Board to authorize the advertisement of the 
IFB.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman 
Martin, the Board unanimously authorized the advertisement of Invitation for 
Bid No. 071516. 
 
C.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 16-07-03 to 
approve an Intergovernmental Agreement (No. IGA/JPA 16-0005916-I) 
between the Arizona Department of Transportation and Gila County to 
replace the bridge on Colcord Road over Gordon Canyon, located east of 
the Payson area in Gila County.   
 
Steve Sanders, Public Works Division Director, advised that Gila County holds 
an easement on Colcord Road which is from the U.S. Department of 
Agriculture, Forest Service.  The road easement begins at Highway 260 to the 
end of the road at the Colcord and Ponderosa Springs Subdivision.  The length 
of the road is about 5.5 miles and approximately 3 miles of that road is paved.  
The paved portion of the road ends at the bridge on Colcord Road.  Mr. Sanders 
stated that this proposed project is qualified to receive federal bridge funds and 
federal surface transportation funds.  If approved, this Intergovernmental 
Agreement (IGA) will allow the County to leverage approximately $1.4M at a 
cost to the County of $156,500.  The Arizona Department of Transportation will 
be responsible for all facets of the bridge design, bidding process, contract 



Page 6 of 15 
 

award and managing the project to build the bridge and upon completion the 
County will be responsible for maintaining the bridge.  Mr. Sanders advised 
that Jefferson Dalton, Deputy County Attorney and Civil Bureau Chief, has 
some concerns with the IGA.  Chairman Pastor called upon Mr. Dalton to 
speak.  Mr. Dalton advised that all of his concerns have been outlined in a 
memo that is attached to this agenda item.  For the record, Mr. Dalton’s 
concerns are listed in the memorandum as follows:   
 
The Gila County Attorney’s office cannot approve this proposed IGA as to form 
because it lacks language required by statute:  
 

1. Paragraph 1 of the Recitals section cites A.R.S. § 28-401 as authority  
for the state to enter into this IGA. However, we do not see any authority in 
that section for the state to enter into this IGA.  

 
2. The proposed IGA references A.R.S. § 41-4401: “The Parties shall  

comply with the applicable requirements of Arizona Revised Statutes §  
41-4401.” However, that statute expressly requires that three provisions 
be “included” in every governmental entity contract: “Every governmental 
entity shall require that every governmental entity contract include all of 
the following provisions.” (Emphasis added.)  This means that every 
governmental contract must contain the provisions. Below is a paragraph 
which complies with that binding directive:   

 
Each party hereby warrants its compliance with all federal 
immigration laws and regulations that relate to its employees and 
A.R.S. §23-214(A). If either party uses any subcontractors in 
performance of this contract, subcontractors shall warrant their 
compliance with all federal immigration laws and regulations that 
relate to its employees and A.R.S. § 23-214(A). A breach of this 
warranty shall be deemed a material breach of the contract subject 
to penalties up to and including termination of this contract. Each 
party retains the legal right to inspect the papers of the other party 
and its subcontractors who work on the contract to ensure that the 
other or subcontractors are complying with this warranty. 

 
3. The proposed IGA makes clear in many places that the county will be  

responsible for any costs that exceed the estimates. A.R.S. § 11.952(B)(3) 
specifies that an IGA must set out: “The manner of financing the joint or 
cooperative undertaking and of establishing and maintaining a budget for 
the under taking. Although the IGA declares the source of funding, it says 
nothing about “establishing and maintaining a budget” as required. Below 
is a suggested provision:   

 
Each party is responsible to provide for financing  



Page 7 of 15 
 

and to establish and maintain a budget for its respective obligations 
under this agreement. 

 
4. A.R.S. § 11.952(B)(4) requires that every IGA make provision for “disposing 

of property on partial or complete termination.” Here is a suggested 
contractual provision:  
 

Upon termination of this agreement, each party shall retain its 
respective property and property belonging to one which was 
furnished to the other shall be returned to the furnishing party.   

 
The following proposed change to the IGA would be favorable to the county but is 
not mandatory for the IGA to be approved as to form. 
 

1. Indemnity. The indemnity provision on Page 5, Paragraph 2, causes  
the county to indemnity the state but not the reverse. However, on Page 3, 
paragraph 2.a., the IGA states: “The County will ... Designate the State as 
the County’s authorized agent for the Project.”  The county, therefore, will 
be imputed liability for the negligent acts of its agent, the state. It would be 
well, then, to include a provision requiring the state to indemnify the 
county for what the county has to pay because of the state’s negligence. 

 
Chairman Pastor asked for comments from the Board members at this time.  
Vice-Chairman Martin was pleased to see that this topic has developed to this 
point as she believes the bridge needs to be built.  No other comments were 
offered, so Chairman Pastor asked for a motion on the agenda item.  Upon 
motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board 
unanimously adopted Resolution No. 16-07-03 to approve an 
Intergovernmental Agreement (No. IGA/JPA 16-0005916-I) with the Arizona 
Department of Transportation.  (A copy of the Resolution is permanently on 
file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
Note for the record:  As of this writing it was learned that the IGA was not 
executed by the Arizona Department of Transportation because it did not 
contain the County Attorney’s approval.  A revised IGA will be presented to the 
Board of Supervisors for approval at a future meeting. 
 
D.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 16-07-04 to 
approve an Intergovernmental Agreement (No. IGA/JPA 16-0005917-I) 
between Gila County and the Arizona Department of Transportation to 
construct a sidewalk along Golden Hill Road located in the Globe-Miami 
area in Gila County.   
 
Mr. Sanders advised that this Intergovernmental Agreement will allow the 
County to leverage federal funds in the amount of $350,000 at a cost to the 
County of $77,500 to construct a sidewalk along Golden Hill Road that will tie 



Page 8 of 15 
 

into the main street sidewalk, which at this point it is in the design phase.  
Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously adopted Resolution No. 16-07-04 to approve an 
Intergovernmental Agreement (No. IGA/JPA 16-0005917-I) with the Arizona 
Department of Transportation.  (A copy of the Resolution is permanently on 
file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
Note for the record:  Mr. Dalton also submitted written comments for this 
agenda item and his concerns are listed in the memorandum as follows: 
 
The Gila County Attorney’s office cannot approve this proposed IGA as to form. 
 
Paragraph 1 of the Recitals section cites A.R.S. § 28-401 as authority for the  
state to enter into this IGA. However, we do not see any authority in that  
section for the state to enter into this IGA. 
 
The Information section of the agenda item provides that Gila County has  
offered to provide $50,000 in addition to the required 5.7% match. But the  
proposed IGA states the county will pay $30,000 for the initial project 
management and design review estimated costs, the county’s project design 
costs, estimated at $7,556.00, and, after completion of the design, pay an 
estimated $40,000 for the county’s project construction costs. This adds up to an 
estimated $70,000.00 plus the 5.7% match.   
 
The proposed IGA references A.R.S. § 41-4401:  “The Parties shall comply with 
the applicable requirements of Arizona Revised Statutes § 41-4401.”  
However, that statute expressly requires that three provisions be “included”  
in every governmental entity contract: “Every governmental entity shall require 
that every governmental entity contract include all of the following provisions.” 
(Emphasis added.)  Below is a paragraph which complies with  
that binding directive:  
 

Each party hereby warrants its compliance with all federal immigration  
laws and regulations that relate to its employees and A.R.S. §23-214(A). If 
either party uses any subcontractors in performance of this contract, 
subcontractors shall warrant their compliance with all federal immigration 
laws and regulations that relate to its employees and A.R.S. § 23-214(A). A 
breach of this warranty shall be deemed a material breach of the contract 
subject to penalties up to and including termination of this contract. Each 
party retains the legal right to inspect the papers of the other party and its 
subcontractors who work on the contract to ensure that the other or 
subcontractors are complying with this warranty. 
 

A.R.S. § 11.952(B)(4) requires that every IGA make provision for “disposing of 
property on partial or complete termination.” Here is a suggested contractual 
provision:  



Page 9 of 15 
 

Upon termination of this agreement, each party shall retain its respective 
property and property belonging to one which was furnished to the other 
shall be returned to the furnishing party.  
 

The proposed IGA makes clear in many places that the county will be responsible 
for any costs that exceed the estimates. A.R.S. § 11.952(B)(3) specifies that an 
IGA must set out: “The manner of financing the joint or cooperative undertaking 
and of establishing and maintaining a budget for the undertaking. Although the 
IGA makes clear the source of funding, it says nothing about “establishing and 
maintaining a budget” as required. Below is a suggested provision:  
 

Each party is responsible to provide for financing and to establish  
and maintain a budget for its respective obligations under this agreement. 

 
Note for the record:  As of this writing it was learned that the IGA was not 
executed by the Arizona Department of Transportation because it did not 
contain the County Attorney’s approval.  A revised IGA will be presented to the 
Board of Supervisors for approval at a future meeting. 
 
E.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 16-08-01 
authorizing regulatory signage to be placed at the intersection of Randall 
Place and Pine Creek Drive located in Pine in Gila County.   
 
Mr. Sanders stated that in March of this year, the County accepted Randall 
Place into the County’s Maintained Roadway System.  An inventory of 
regulatory signage on the road was performed.  It was determined that a stop 
sign needs to be placed at the intersection of Pine Creek Drive and Randall 
Place.  The Gila County Engineer evaluated the intersection and also 
determined that a stop sign was needed for vehicles traveling northbound on 
Pine Creek Drive; therefore, staff recommends that the Board adopt Resolution 
No. 16-08-01 authorizing the installation of the regulatory signage at the 
intersection of Pine Creek Drive and Randall Place.  Upon motion by Vice-
Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously 
adopted Resolution No. 16-08-01.  (A copy of the Resolution is permanently 
on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.)  
 
Item 4 – CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the Consent 
Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 
upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the 
Board of Supervisors.)  
 
A.  Approval to terminate Contract No. 110615-1 - Supplemental Nutrition 
Assistance Program Education Support Services with Pinnacle Prevention 
effective September 30, 2016.  
 



Page 10 of 15 
 

B.  Approval of the following amendments to legal services contracts for 
the Superior Court:  Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services Contract 
No. 041515-3 with Myers and Associates, PLLC;  Amendment No. 2 to 
Professional Services Contract No. 040815 with Raymond Geiser; and, 
Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services Contract No. 041515-7 with 
Steven Burk for the purpose of extending each contract for an additional 
year, from July 1, 2016, through June 30, 2017; revising the 
compensation amounts for each contract; and, adding language to each 
contract.  
 
C.  Approval of an Environmental Review Record for Contract No. CDBG 
FY16-FY19 between the Arizona Department of Housing and the Gila 
County Division of Community Services, Housing Program.    
 
D.  Approval of a Special Event Liquor License application submitted by 
Rim Country Friends of Tonto Natural Bridge State Park, Inc. to serve 
liquor at a fund-raising event to be held on October 8, 2016.  
 
E.  Acknowledgment of the Sheriff's Office quarterly report for the Gila 
County Drug, Gang, and Violent Crimes Task Force for April 2016 through 
June 2016.  
 
F.  Acknowledgment of June 2016 monthly activity report submitted by 
the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.  
 
G.  Acknowledgment of the June 2016 monthly activity report submitted 
the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.  
 
H.  Acknowledgment of the June 2016 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Globe Regional Constable's Office.  
 
I.  Acknowledgment of the Human Resources reports for the weeks of July 
5, 2016, July 12, 2016, July 19, 2016, and July 26, 2016.  
 
JULY 5, 2016 
DEPARTURES: 
1.  Felicia Trembath – Health and Emergency Services – Temporary PHEP 
Planner – 06/10/16 – PHEP Fund – DOH 10/26/15 
2.  Mary Stemm – Library District – Temporary Library Assistant Senior – 
02/22/16 – Library Assistance Fund – DOH 10/07/15 
3.  Dailyann Thomason – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 07/05/16 – 
General Fund – DOH 01/06/14 
4.  Deborah Hunsaker – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatch Supervisor – 07/05/16 
– General Fund – DOH 05/06/13 
5.  Sarah Haynie – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 07/05/16 – General 
Fund – DOH 02/02/09 



Page 11 of 15 
 

6.  Kendall Rhyne – Probation/Superior Court – Chief Probation Officer/Court 
Administrator – 06/30/16 – General Fund – DOH 01/11/10 
7.  Linda O’Dell – School Superintendent’s Office – School Superintendent – 
06/30/16 – General Fund – DOH 01/01/05 
NEW HIRES: 
8.  Erin Baker – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer – 07/05/16 – Juvenile 
Intensive Probation Supervision Fund – Replacing Brenda Newton 
9.  Brittany Preston – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 07/11/16 – General 
Fund – Replacing Wayne Sukosky 
10.  Robert Smith – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 07/11/16 – General 
Fund – Replacing Kevin Roberts 
11.  Autumn Giles – Board of Supervisors – Administrative Services Manager – 
07/11/16 – General Fund – Replacing Janice Cook 
12.  Jennifer Navarro – County Attorney’s Office – Legal Secretary – 07/11/16 – 
General Fund – Replacing Christian Leos 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
13.  Michelle Keegan – Payson Constable’s Office – From Constable Clerk – To 
Temporary Constable Clerk – 07/05/16 – General Fund 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
14.  Betty Hurst – From Purchasing – To Finance – Buyer – 06/27/16 – 
General Fund 
15.  Stephanie Chaidez – From Purchasing – To Finance – Buyer – 06/27/16 – 
General Fund  
16.  Brenda Cova – From Probation – To County Attorney’s Office – From 
Administrative Clerk Senior – To Legal Secretary – 07/18/16 – From Various 
Funds – To General Fund – Replacing Adela Johnson 
17.  Brenda Newton – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer 2 – 07/05/16 – 
From Juvenile Intensive Probation Supervision Fund – To Adult Probation 
Service Fees Fund – Replacing David Jones 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
18.  Heather Boyer – Probation – From Deputy Probation Officer IV- To 
Probation Manager – 07/01/16 – Various Funds 
19.  Cynthia Romance – Probation – From Deputy Probation Officer IV – To 
Probation Manager – 07/01/16 – From Diversion Intake Fund – To Various 
Funds 
20.  Bradley Allison – Library District – Temporary San Carlos Early Literacy 
Community Liaison – To San Carlos Early Literacy Community Liaison – 
07/01/16 – Library District Grants Fund – Extending employment through 
06/30/17 
21.  Roshanda Cody – Library District – Temporary Early Literacy Program 
Coordinator – To Early Literacy Program Coordinator – 07/01/16 – Library 
District Grants Fund – Extending employment through 06/30/17 
REQUEST TO POST: 
22.  Payson Constable’s Office – Constable’s Clerk – Vacated by Michelle 
Keegan 
23.  Community Development – Administrative Assistant  



Page 12 of 15 
 

24.  Community Services – Deputy Director of Community Services 
25.  Library District – Bylas Early Literacy Program Coordinator – Vacated by 
Bradley Allison 
 
JULY 12, 2016 
DEPARTURES: 
1.  Guadalupe Aldape – Constituent Services – Temporary Laborer – 07/5/16 – 
General Fund – DOH 02/29/16 
2.  Sarah Bennett – Superior Court – Systems Specialist – 06/28/16 – General 
Fund – DOH 03/09/04 
3.  Jasmine Gingras – Health & Emergency Management – Staff Nutritionist – 
08/12/16 – WIC Fund – DOH 08/17/15 
4.  Jessica Ortega – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer 1 – 07/15/16 – 
Juvenile Intensive Probation Fund – DOH 05/23/11 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
5.  Dennis Neil Roupe, Jr – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 07/20/16 – 
General Fund  
6.  Kristy Johnson – Public Fiduciary – Administrative Clerk – 07/25/16 – 
General Fund  
7.  Christopher Mathews – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 07/20/16 – 
General Fund 
 
JULY 19, 2016 
DEPARTURES: 
1.  Mark Boyd – Health and Emergency Services – Animal Control Officer – 
07/28/16 – Rabies Control Fund – DOH 02/04/08 
2.  Jonathan Manley – Superior Court – Law Clerk/Baliff (.48) – 07/15/16 – 
General Fund – DOH 08/18/14 
NEW HIRES: 
3.  Victoria Wampole – Child Support – Child Support Case Manager – 
07/25/16 – General Fund – Replacing Stephanie Canizales 
4.  Brent Stamper – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 08/15/16 – General 
Fund – Replacing Mark Essary 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
5.  Chastity Van Buskirk – Clerk of Superior Court – Associate Jury 
Commissioner – 07/13/16 – General Fund 
6.  Amy O’Connor – Recorder’s Office - Recorder’s Clerk – 07/25/16 – General 
Fund 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
7.  Cassie Reyes – From Superior Court Division 1 – To Superior Court – From 
Judicial Assistant – To Deputy Court Administrator – 09/01/16 – General 
Fund – Replacing Jonathan Bearup 
8.  Dennis Roupe Jr. - Sheriff’s Office – From Detention Officer – To Deputy 
Sheriff – 08/22/16 – General Fund – Replacing Marquis Clark 



Page 13 of 15 
 

9.  Christopher McGroarty – Sheriff’s Office – From Deputy Sheriff – To 
Professional Standards Investigator – 07/11/16 – General Fund – Replacing 
Gordon Gartner  
REQUEST TO POST: 
10.  Health and Emergency Services – Animal Control Officer – Vacated by 
Mark Boyd 
11.  Superior Court Division 1 – Judicial Assistant – Vacated by Cassie Reyes  
12.  Health and Emergency Services – Staff Nutritionist – Vacated by Jasmine 
Gingras 
 
JULY 26, 2016 
DEPARTURES: 
1.  Devin Alvarez – Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician – 
07/12/16 – Public Works Fund – DOH 02/23/15 
2.  Julie Scott – Community Development – Deputy Building Official – 
08/12/16 – General Fund – DOH 02/15/90 
3.  Kevan Ford – Community Services – Administrative Clerk Senior – 
07/19/16 – CAP(.50)/GEST(.50) Funds – DOH 08/17/15 
NEW HIRES: 
4.  Taylor Mansoor – Probation – Administrative Clerk Senior – 08/01/16 – 
General(.80)/Diversion Consequences(.20) Funds – Replacing Sarah Roberts 
5.  Lisa Foster – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer 1 – 08/01/16 – Juvenile 
Intensive Probation Supervision Fund – Replacing Jessica Ortega 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
6.  Charles Turney – Health and Emergency Services – Community Health 
Specialist – 07/19/16 – Prescription Drug OD Prevention Fund  
7.  DeAnn Young – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 06/22/16 – 
General Fund 
8.  Lisa King – County Attorney’s Office- Legal Secretary Senior – 08/02/16 – 
General Fund  
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
9.  Sharon Listiak – Health and Emergency Services – From Home Visitation 
Coordinator – To PHEP Assistant – 08/01/16 – From Maternal and Child Home 
Visiting Fund – To PHEP Fund 
10.  Kimberly Rust – From Globe Constable’s Office – To Payson Constable’s 
Office – Constable’s Clerk – 08/01/16 – General Fund – Replacing Michelle 
Keegan 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
11.  Daniel Lowe – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer 2 – 07/11/16 – From 
Adult Intensive Probation Supervision Fund – To State Aid Enhancement Fund 
– Change in fund codes 
12.  Connor Stenson – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer 2 – 07/11/16 – 
From State Aid Enhancement Fund– To Adult Intensive Probation Supervision 
Fund – Change in fund codes 



Page 14 of 15 
 

13.  Edward Reyes - Probation – Deputy Probation Officer 2 – 07/11/16 – From 
Adult Intensive Probation Supervision Fund – To State Aid Enhancement Fund 
– Change in fund codes 
14.  Kimberly Zamora – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer 2 – 07/11/16 – 
From State Aid Enhancement Fund– To Adult Intensive Probation Supervision 
Fund – Change in fund codes 
REQUEST TO POST: 
15.  Community  Services – Temporary Administrative Clerk Senior 
16.  Community Services – Administrative Clerk Senior – Vacated by Kevan 
Ford 
17.  Public Works – Construction Project Manager – Vacated by Jerry Farr 
18.  Globe Constable’s Office – Constable’s Clerk – Vacated by Kimberly Rust 
19.  Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician – Vacated by Devin 
Alvarez 
20.  Community Development – Deputy Building Official – Vacated by Julie 
Scott 
 
J.  Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been 
approved by the County Manager for the weeks of June 13, 2016 through 
June 17, 2016; and June 20, 2016 through June 24, 2016.  
 
K.  Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of June 
27-July 3, 2016, in the amount of $1,816,789.40; July 4-10, 2016, in the 
amount of $328,586.43; July 11-17, 2016, in the amount of 
$2,056,564.05; and July 18-24, 2016, in the amount of $1,386,917.94.  
(An itemized list of disbursements is attached to the minutes and permanently 
on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda action items 4A – 4K.  
 
Item 5 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 
issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 
may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 
of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date.  
 
Sheriff Adam J. Shepherd acknowledged and thanked Rodney Cronk, Deputy 
Sheriff Sergeant, for his service as he is retiring from the County; particularly, 
his involvement to improve safety to the public with respect to the Fossil Creek 



Page 15 of 15 
 

Bridge hiking area.  The Board members expressed appreciation and thanked 
Mr. Cronk for his service to the County.  
 
Item 6 – At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 
may present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken 
on information presented.  
 
Each Board member and the County Manager presented information on 
current events.  
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 11:22 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 



   
ARF-3894     Consent Agenda Item      4. S.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  
Reporting
Period:

08/02/16, 08/09/16, 08/16/16, 08/23/16 and
08/30/16

Submitted For: Shelley McPherson, HR and Risk Management Director 
Submitted By: Erica Raymond, Human Resources Assistant Sr.

Information
Subject
Human Resources reports for the weeks of August 2, 2016, August 9,
2016, August 16, 2016, August 23, 2016, and August 30, 2016.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the Human Resources reports for the weeks of August
2, 2016, August 9, 2016, August 16, 2016, August 23, 2016, and August
30, 2016.

Attachments
HR Summary Report
08/02/16 Human Resources Report
08/09/16 Human Resources Report
08/16/16 Human Resources Report
08/23/16 Human Resources Report
08/30/16 Human Resources Report



Summary
Year To 
Date Jan‐16 Feb‐16 Mar‐16 Apr‐16 May‐16 Jun‐16 Jul‐16 Aug‐16 Sep‐16 Oct‐16 Nov‐16 Dec‐16

Human Resources Action Items

DEPARTURES 108 11 10 19 9 19 10 16 14

NEW HIRES REGULAR STATUS 80 8 5 17 5 13 6 9 17

NEW HIRES TEMPORARY STATUS 14 1 4 1 0 3 3 1 1

NEW VOLUNTEERS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS 45 5 1 5 5 0 13 7 9

END PROBATIONARY PERIOD 63 6 8 8 9 9 6 8 9

OTHER ACTIONS 47 5 1 4 1 3 14 8 11

REQUEST TO POST 80 7 7 11 6 13 13 13 10

  Total Transactions 437 43 36 65 35 60 65 62 71 0 0 0 0

 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
AUGUST 2, 2016 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Michael Thrall – County Attorney’s Office – Deputy County Attorney – 07/29/16 – Cost of Prosecution 
Reimbursement Fund – DOH 09/28/15 

2. Ray Carpenter – Public Works – Road Maintenance/Equipment Operator Senior – 09/12/16 – Public 
Works Fund – DOH 07/31/06 

3. Mark De Los Reyes – Assessor’s Office – Property Appraiser 1 – 08/05/16 – General Fund – DOH 
10/19/15 

4. Cynthia Romance – Probation – Probation Manager – 07/30/16 – Various Funds – DOH 10/27/03 
5. Wayne Morgan – Assessor’s Office – Property Appraiser 1 – 07/26/16 – General Fund – DOH 01/20/15 

 
NEW HIRES: 
 

6. Steven Lessard – Probation – Chief Probation Officer – 08/08/16 – General(.91)/State Aid 
Enhancement(.09) Funds – Replacing Kendall Rhyne 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

7. Vincent Hillard – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 08/10/16 – General Fund 
 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

8. Rose Holiday – From Sheriff’s Office – To Globe Constable’s Office – From Civil Clerk – To 
Constable’s Clerk – 08/08/16 – General Fund – Replacing Kimberly Rust 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

9. Elaine Votruba – Library District – Public Services Librarian – 07/25/16 – From Library District 
Grants(.30)/Library Assistance(.70) Funds – To Library District Grants(.19)/Library Assistance(.81) 
Funds – Change in fund code distribution  

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

10. County Attorney’s Office – Deputy County Attorney – Vacated by Michael Thrall 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
AUGUST 9, 2016 

 
DEPARTURES: 
  

1. Rodney Cronk – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 08/31/16 – General Fund – DOH 05/15/95 
2. Jeffrey Hessenius – Finance – Finance Director – 08/05/16 – General Fund – DOH 07/29/13 

 
NEW HIRES: 
 

3. Ginger Chester – Probation – Administrative Clerk Senior – 08/15/16 – Adult Intensive Probation 
Supervision Fund – Replacing Amber Dean 

4. Therese Berumen – Probation – Administrative Clerk Senior – 08/15/16 – Various Funds  - Replacing 
Brenda Cova 

5. George Allen – Public Fiduciary – Public Fiduciary Services Specialist – 08/22/16 – General Fund – 
Replacing Patty Comstock 

6. Adriean Evans – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 08/15/16 – General Fund – Replacing Amy 
LeFleur 

7. Tricia Thoms – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 08/22/16 – General Fund – Replacing Donald Hayes 
III 

8. Andrew Bradford – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 08/15/16 – General Fund – Replacing Dakota 
McCall 

9. Dustin Burdess – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 08/15/16 – General Fund – Replacing David 
Tavares 
 

END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

10. Karen Brake – Sheriff’s Office – Administrative Clerk – 09/08/16 – General Fund 
11. Vanessa Bryce – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 08/17/16 – General Fund 
12. Ian Uptain – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 08/10/16 – General Fund 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

13. Robert Campbell – Sheriff’s Office- From Deputy Sheriff – To Deputy Sheriff Sgt. – 08/15/16 – 
General Fund – Replacing Art Salcido 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

14. Nina Ruiz – School Superintendent’s Office – Chief Deputy – 08/08/16 – General Fund – Reduction in 
hours 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

15. Sheriff’s Office – Civil Clerk – Vacated by Rose Holiday 
16. Superior Court – PT Bailiff(.48) – Vacated by Jonathan Manley 

 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
AUGUST 16, 2016 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Jay Heisler – Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician – 08/04/16 – Facilities Management 
Fund – DOH 05/23/16 

 
NEW HIRES: 
 

2. Kristopher Tower – Health and Emergency Services – Animal Control Officer – 08/22/16 – Rabies 
Control Fund – Replacing Samantha Dickison 

3. Michael Halbert – Health and Emergency Services – Animal Control Officer – 08/22/16 – Rabies 
Control Fund – Replacing Mark Boyd 

4. Marlowe Cassadore – Elections – Voter Outreach Coordinator – 08/22/16 – General Fund – Replacing 
Josephine Goode 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

5. Bret McDaniel – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 08/17/16 – General Fund 
6. Jerome Wallace – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 08/17/16 – General Fund 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

7. Estelle Belarde – Community Services – From Housing Services Administrator – To Deputy Director of 
Community Services – 08/22/16 – Various Funds  

8. Johnny Holmes – Sheriff’s Office  - From Deputy Sheriff Detective – To Deputy Sheriff – 08/29/16 – 
General Fund – Replacing Gilbert Olivarez 

9. Keith Charles – Sheriff’s Office – From Deputy Sheriff – To Deputy Sheriff Detective – 08/29/16 – 
General Fund – Replacing Johnny Holmes 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

10. Sheldon Benedict – Health and Emergency Services – Animal Control Officer – 07/11/16 – Rabies 
Control Fund – Salary correction 

11. Juley Bocardo-Homan – Human Resources – Compensation and Risk Management Administrator – 
06/30/14 – General Fund – Classification and Compensation Study  

12. Michael Burdess – Sheriff’s Office – Nurse – 08/22/16 – General Fund – Eligible for a full uniform 
allowance 

13. Penni Padgett – Sheriff’s Office – Nurse – 08/22/16 – General Fund – Eligible for a full uniform 
allowance 

 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
AUGUST 23, 2016 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Robert Smith – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 08/29/16 – General Fund – DOH 07/11/16 
2. Zachary Navarro – Public Works – Recycling and Landfill Operations Worker Senior – 08/10/16 – 

Recycling and Landfill Management Fund – DOH 08/26/13 
3. Destinee Barajas – Constituent Services 2 – Temporary Laborer – 08/15/16 – General Fund – DOH 

06/20/16 
 
NEW HIRES: 
 

4. Gilbert Olivarez – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 08/29/16 – General Fund – Replacing Shawn 
Campbell 

5. Kateri Thompson – Library District – Early Literacy Community Liaison – 08/29/16 – Library District 
Grants Fund – Replacing Bradley Allison 

6. Mona Newton – Sheriff’s Office – Administrative Clerk – 08/29/16 – General Fund – Replacing 
Vanessa Amairia 

 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
 

7. Tammy Farris – Community Services – Temporary Administrative Clerk Senior – 08/29/16 – Various 
Funds 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

8. Rebecca Guadiana – From Clerk of Superior Court – To Superior Court Division 1 – From Courtroom 
Clerk Technician – To Judicial Assistant – 09/05/16 – General Fund – Replacing Cassie Reyes  

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

9. Finance – Finance Director – Vacated by Jeffrey Hessenius 
10. Public Works – Recycling and Landfill Operations Worker Senior – Vacated by Zachary Navarro  

 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
AUGUST 30, 2016 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Gilbert Lopez – Public Works – Custodian (.85) – 08/24/16 – Facilities Management Fund – DOH 
05/31/16 

2. Michelle Keegan – Payson Constable’s Office – Temporary Constable’s Clerk – 08/22/16 – General 
Fund – DOH 07/05/16 

3. James Rottnek II – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 08/22/16 – General Fund – DOH 05/16/16 
 
NEW HIRES: 
 

4. Zachary Paul – Public Works – GIS Analyst – 09/12/16 – General Fund – Replacing Bernadette Ortiz 
5. Tori Wright – Sheriff’s Office – Medical Assistant – 09/05/16 – General Fund – Replacing Noreen 

Prater  
6. Rochelle Montano – Sheriff’s Office – Medical Assistant – 09/12/16 – General Fund – Replacing Terri 

Childers 
 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

7. Kenneth Jones – Public Works – Flood Control Technician – 09/07/16 – General Fund 
8. Stephanie Perez – Clerk of Superior Court – Courtroom Clerk IV-D – 08/31/16 – General Fund 
9. Marcos Diaz – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer 1 – 08/24/16 – General Fund 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

10. Eric Dawson – Probation – From Juvenile Detention Officer – To Surveillance Officer – 09/05/16 – 
From General Fund – To General(.50)/Adult Probation Service Fees(.50) Funds – Replacing Marcos 
Diaz 

11. Forrest Bennett – From Court Information Systems – To Computer Services – From Systems Specialist 
– To IT Systems Administrator – 09/12/16 – General Fund – Replacing Carolyn Bartling  

12. Leonard Kerszykowski – Sheriff’s Office - From Task Force Sgt. K9 – To Deputy Sheriff – 08/29/16 – 
From Drug Gang Violent Crime Control Fund – To General(.925)/Drug Gang Violent Crime 
Control(.075) Funds – Replacing Robert Campbell II 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

13. Larry Pontel – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer 2 – 08/22/16 – From Juvenile Standards Probation 
Fund – To Juvenile Intensive Probation Supervision Fund – Change in fund code 

14. Lisa Foster – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer 1 – 08/22/16 – From Juvenile Intensive Probation 
Supervision Fund – To Juvenile Standards Probation Fund – Change in fund code 

15. Ginger Chester – Probation – Administrative Clerk Senior – 08/15/16 – From Adult Intensive Probation 
Supervision Fund – To Diversion(.50)/Juvenile Standards Probation(.50) Funds – Change in fund codes 

16. Therese Berumen – Probation – Administrative Clerk Senior – 08/15/16 – From Diversion(.50)/Juvenile 
Standards Probation(.50) Funds – To Adult Intensive Probation Supervision Fund – Change in fund 
code 

17. Erika Pisano – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer IV – 08/24/16 – JPSF Treatment(.78)/Juvenile 
Evening/Weekend Resource Center(.22) Funds – Extending probationary period an additional six 
months 

 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
AUGUST 30, 2016 
PAGE 2 OF 2 
 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

18. Clerk of Court – Courtroom Clerk Technician – Vacated by Rebecca Guadiana 
19. Assessor’s Office – Provisional Appraiser – Vacated by Mark De Los Reyes 
20. Assessor’s Office – Provisional Appraiser – Vacated by Wayne Morgan  
21. Public Works – Construction Project Manager – FY 17 position 
22. Public Works – Custodian(.85) – Vacated by Gilbert Lopez 

 
 



   

ARF-3958     Consent Agenda Item      4. T.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  

Reporting
Period:

July 25-31, 2016; August 1-7, 2016; August 8-14, 2016; August
15-21, 2016; and, August 22-28, 2016

Submitted For: Amber
Warden,
Accountant
Senior 

Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk

Information
Subject
Finance reports/demands/transfers for July 25-31, 2016; August 1-7, 2016; August
8-14, 2016; August 15-21, 2016; and, August 22-28, 2016.

Suggested Motion
Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for July 25-31, 2016; August 1-7,
2016; August 8-14, 2016; August 15-21, 2016; and, August 22-28, 2016.

Attachments
Finance Report August 22-28, 2016
Finance Report August 15-21, 2016
Finance Report August 8-14, 2016
Finance Report August 1-7, 2016
Finance Report July 25-31, 2016



























































































































































































































































































































   
ARF-3943     Consent Agenda Item      4. U.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2016  
Reporting
Period:

Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under
$50,000 for Weeks Ending 07-15-06 and 07-22-16

Submitted By: Betty Hurst,
Buyer

Information
Subject
Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks
Ending 07-15-06 and 07-22-16.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been approved
by the County Manager for the weeks of July 11, 2016 through July 15,
2016; and July 18, 2016 through July 22, 2016.

Attachments
Report for County Manager approved contracts 07-11-16 and
07-18-16
Amendment No. 3 Limited Service Contract with Norchem Drug
Testing
Amendment No. 3 Limited Service Contract with Redwood Toxicology
Laboratory
Amendment No. 3 Limited Service Contract with Sienna Counseling
& Consulting
Amendment No. 4 to Service Agreement No. 102714 with Kwik Kool
Refrigeration
Contract No. 13024-S Maricopa County SAVE Co-OP with Norment
Security Group
Service Agreement No. 071216 with Rodriguez Constructions, Inc.
Service Agreement No. 071216-1 with Four Seasons Motorsports
Amendment No. 2 to Service Agreement No. 102015 with North
Mechanical, LLC
Amendment No. 2 to Service Agreement No. 071415-1 with



Amendment No. 2 to Service Agreement No. 071415-1 with
Earthquest Plumbing, Inc.
Service Contract No. CNT003055-08 with Multicard
Amendment No. 2 to Service Agreement 020315 with Dutchaire, LLC



 

 
Page 1 

 
  

COUNTY MANAGER APPROVED CONTRACTS UNDER $50,000 
 
July 11, 2016 thru July 15, 2016 

 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

Limited Services 
Contract 

Norchem Drug Testing 

 
Amendment No. 3 will 

extend the contract from 
07-01-16 to 06-30-16. 

 

 
$35,000.00 

 

 
07-01-16 to 06-30-17 

 

 
07-13-16 

 
Option to renew for an 

additional one year 
term. 

 
Amendment No. 3 will extend the 
contract term with Norchem Drug Testing 
for an additional year from July 01, 2016 
to June 30, 2017. Norchem provides drug 
testing services for juvenile probation. 
 

 
Limited Services 

Contract 
Redwood Toxicology 

Laboratory 

 

 
Amendment No. 3 will 

extend the contract from 
07-01-16 to 06-30-16 

 

 
$35,000.00 

 

 
07-01-16 to 06-30-16 

 
07-13-16 

 
Option to renew for an 

additional one year 
term. 

 
Amendment No. 3 will extend the 
contract term with Redwood Toxicology 
Labs for an additional year from July 01, 
2016 to June 30, 2017. Redwood 
Toxicology Labs provides professional 
drug testing. 
 

 
Limited Services 

Contract 
Sienna Counseling & 

Consulting, Inc. 
 

 
Amendment No. 3 will 

extend the contract from 
07-01-16 to 06-30-16 

 

 
$35,000.00 

 
07-01-16 to 06-30-16 

 
07-13-16 

 
Option to renew for an 

additional one year 
term. 

 
Amendment No. 3 will extend the 
contract term with Sienna Counseling & 
Consulting for an additional year from 
July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017. Sienna 
provides sex offender counseling. 
 

 
102714 

Kwik Kool 
Refrigeration, Inc. 

 

 
Amendment No. 4 will 
increase the contract 

amount. 

 

 
Increase 
amended 
contract 

amount by 
$5,000  for a 
new contract 

amount of 
$20,500 

 

 
12-10-15 to 12-09-16 

 
07-13-16 

 
Option to renew for an 

additional one-year 
period 

 
Amendment No. 4 will serve to increase 
the amended contract amount of 
$15,500.00 by $5,000.00 to ensure that 
funds are available to cover for the 
remainder of the December 10, 2015 to 
December 09, 2016 term, for a new total 
contract amount of $20,500.00. Facilities 
wants a blanket Purchase Order with an 
HVAC company that can respond to 
heating and cooling problems in Southern 
Gila County. 
 

 

 



 

 
Page 2 

 
  

July 11, 2016 thru July 15, 2016 

 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

071615-1 
Kwik Kool Refrigeration, 

Inc. 

 
Amendment No.2 will 
extend the term of the 

contract from 07-29-16 to 
06-28-17.  

 

 
Decrease  
contract 

amount by 
$3,500  for a 
new contract 

amount of 
$6,500 

 

 
07-29-16 to 06-28-17 

 
07-13-16 

 
Option to renew for an 

additional one-year 
period 

 
Amendment No. 2 has been issued to 
extend the term of the agreement from 
July 29, 2016 to June 29, 2017. In addition 
Amendment No. 2 will serve to decrease 
the original contract amount of 
$10,000.00 by $3,500.00. The purpose of 
this contract will follow the Pinal-Gila 
Council for Senior Citizens mission to 
enhance the quality of life of elders and 
disabled through climate control services. 
The temperature is rising and this funding 
will allow the elderly and disabled to be 
able to live comfortably. 

 

July 18, 2016 thru July 22, 2016 

 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

13024-S Maricopa 
County/SAVE Co-Op 

Norment Security 
Group, Inc. 

 
Maintenance Agreement-
Cameras and recording 

System in Jail. 
 
 

 
$5,000.00 

 
07-01-16 to 06-30-17 

 
07-20-16 

 
Option to renew for an 
additional one year 
period. 

 
To have a Maintenance Agreement in place 
for any repair on the Cameras and 
Recording Systems. Norment Security will 
provide parts, maintenance and repair for 
cameras, recording equipment and touch 
screen monitors used for door operation, 
cameras and intercoms, at various 
locations throughout Gila County. 
Contractor shall be paid an amount not to 
exceed $5,000.00, if required or requested, 
for the contract term July 1, 2016 to June 
30, 2017. 

  



 

 
Page 3 

 
  

July 18, 2016 thru July 22, 2016 

 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

071216 
Rodriguez Construction, 

Inc. 

 
Weatherization Projection 

No. HH#8128 

 
$2,000.00 

 
07-20-16 to 06-30-16 

 
07-20-16 

 
Expires 

 
Contract includes but is not limited to 
fascia replacement on all four sides of 
home at eaves and roof repair. 
 

 
071216-1 

Four Seasons Motor 
Sports 

 
Diagnostic and Repair of 

Polaris Side x Side 
 
  

 

 
$2,000.00  

 
 08-31-16 

 
07-20-16 

 
Expires. 

 
Contractor will diagnose and repair the 
Side x Side that is used at the Fairgrounds. 
Having an authorized dealer make the 
repairs was recommended by County 
Shop personnel. Four Seasons 
Motorsports chosen due to proximity to 
location of vehicle, cost for transporting 
the vehicle to vendors outside of the area 
would exceed the per-hour savings. 

 
020315 

Dutchaire LLC 
 

 
Amendment No. 2 will 

extend the Contract term of 
from 07-01-16 to 06-30-17 
and increase the contract 

amount. 

 
Increase  
contract 

amount by 
$500 for a new 

contract 
amount of 

$6,500 
 

 

 
07-01-16 to 06-30-17 

 
07-20-16 

 
Option to renew for an 

additional one year 
period. 

 
Amendment No. 2 has been issued to 
extend the term of the agreement for an 
additional one year period. In addition 
Amendment No. 2 will serve to increase 
the original contract amount by $500.00, 
to cover to enable Dutchaire to perform 
emergency repair/repair on HVAC for 
Housing clients during the term of this 
contract, Further Amendment No. 2 will 
change the term of the contract from 
February 10, 2015 to February 09, 2016 
to new contract term July 1, 2016 to June 
30, 2016. 

  



 

 
Page 4 

 
  

July 18, 2016 thru July 22, 2016 

 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

071415-1 
Earthquest Plumbing 

 
Amendment No. 2 will 

extend the Contract term of 
from 07-01-16 to 06-30-17 

 
 

 
Decrease  
contract 

amount by 
$2,000  for a 
new contract 

amount of 
$7,000 

 

 
07-09-16 to 06-28-17 

 
07-20-16 

 
Option to renew for an 
additional one year 
period. 

 
Amendment No. 2 will serve to extend the 
contract from July 29, 2016 to July 28, 
2017, in addition due to a funding source 
allotment, Amendment No. 2 will serve to 
decrease the original contract amount by 
$2,000.00 The Utility repair and 
Replacement Program (URRD) was 
established to provide assistance to low 
income individuals in crisis situations to 
make needed repairs and/or 
replacements to existing utility related 
appliances or systems. This contract will 
enable Earthquest Plumbing to react 
quickly to our client’s needs. 

 
CNT003055-06 

Multicard 

 
Maintenance Agreement 

Fingerprint Scanner 

 
$1,690.00 

 
08-15-16 to 08-14-17 

 
07-20-16 

 
Option to renew. 

 
Renewal for Maintenance Agreement on 
the two Sheriff’s Office fingerprint 
scanners, card printers and related 
equipment. Includes one preventative 
maintenance service per year per card 
printer and all parts, labor, travel and 
mileage. Consumables not included. 
 

 

 

 
































































	Agenda
	 Item 2.A. - Resolution No. 16-09-04 to amend the Planning District of the Comprehensive Plan from C2 to R1-D12
	Att1_Resolution No. 16-09-04
	Att2_Assessor's Map
	Att3_Staff Report
	Att4_Public Hearing Notice-Change in Comp Plan-Clinton
	 Item 2.B. - Ordinance No. 2016-02 to Rezone 8409 W. Fossil Creek Road, Strawberry, AZ from C2 to R1-D12
	Att1_Ordinance No. 2016-02
	Att2_Assessor's Map
	Att3_Staff Report
	Att4_Public Hearing Notice-Amend Zoning Map-Reynoso and Clinton
	 Item 2.C. - Ordinance No. 2016-01 to rezone 105 and 107 Mineral Lane in Globe from C3 to R1-D12
	Att1_Ordinance No. 2016-01
	Att2_Staff Report
	Att3_Assessor's Map Reynoso
	Att4_Public Hearing Notice-Amend Zoning Map-Reynoso and Clinton
	 Item 2.D. - Gila County Order No. LL-16-04-Liquor License Application
	Att1_LL-16-04 Local Governing Body Recommendation
	Att2_LL-16-04 Interoffice Memos and Affidavit of Posting
	Att3_LL-16-04 Liquor License Application
	 Item 3.A. - Authorization of 6 Certificates of Removal and Abatement of Tax and 24 Certificates of Clearance
	Att1_6-Certificates of Removal and Abatement of Tax
	Att2_24-Certificates of Clearance
	Att3_A.R.S. 42-18351
	Att4_A.R.S. 42-18353
	Att5_A.R.S. 42-19118
	 Item 3.B. - Intergovernmental Agreement No. 080416 between Gila County and Gila County Community College District for Maintenance of College Facilities
	Att1_IGA No. 080416 GC Community College
	 Item 3.C. - U of A, Gila County Cooperative Extension Office FY 2016-2017 Budget Request
	Att1_U of A Coop Ext Funding Request 2016_2017
	Att2_Annual Report_Budget Request
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Since its earliest beginnings, Cooperative Extension has been helping people solve problems and improve lives with research and education.
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Gila County Funds FY 16-17
	Slide Number 8

	 Item 3.D. - Old Dominion Historic Mine Park Funding Request
	 Item 3.E. - Town of Payson Request for an Economic Development Grant
	Att1_Payson Request Letter 2016
	 Item 3.F. - Resolution No. 16-09-01 accepting Grant of Roadway Easements for portions of Pinal Creek Road in the Globe area
	Att1_Resolution No. 16-09-01
	RESOLUTION NO. 16-09-01
	Attest: GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

	Att2_BHP Copper, Inc. Grant of Roadway Easement
	Att3_Freeport McMoRan Miami Inc. Access Easement Agreement
	Att4_Mitch Holder Grant of Roadway Easement
	Att5_Monty and Clara Nichols Grant of Roadway Easement
	Att6_Approval as to Form
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	 Item 3.G. - Resolution No. 16-09-02 to sign IGA_JPA 16-0005916-I with the Arizona Department of Transportation
	Att1_IGA_JPA 16-0005916-I
	I. RECITALS

	Att2_Resolution 16-09-02
	Att3_Approval as to Form
	 Item 3.H. - Resolution No. 16-09-03 to sign IGA_JPA 16-0005917-I with the Arizona Department of Transportation
	Att1_IGA_JPA 16-0005917-I
	I. RECITALS

	Att2_Resolution No. 16-09-03
	Att3_Approval as to Form
	 Item 3.I. - Official Canvass of the August 30, 2016, Primary Election Results
	Att1_ARS 16-642
	 Item 3.J. - Authorization to Advertise Request for Proposals No. 080316-Sub-Grantee for Public Health Support Services
	Att1_RFP No. 080316-Sub-Grantee for Public Health Support Services
	Att2_Request to Advertise for Bids Form
	 Item 3.K. - Purchase of replacement server hardware and software licensing through Dell with financing provided by Dell Financial Services, LLC
	Att1_Dell Master Lease Agreement
	Att2_NASPO Contract Addendum
	Att3_State of Arizona - Dell Approved Vendor Listing
	Att4_Dell combined pricing quote with Lease options
	Att5_Dell VMWare Licensing Quote
	Att6_SHI VMWare Licensing Quote
	Att7_Dell Hardware Quote
	Dell FX2 Compellent Quote Updated.pdf (p.1-9)
	GILA COUNTY FX2 Compellent Networking v5.pdf (p.10-27)

	Att8_HPE Hardware Quote
	 HP price 119922161-1_1

	Att9_Lenovo Hardware Quote
	Att10_Dell Limited Warranty
	Att11_Dell Co-pilot Support
	Att12_Dell Pro-support information
	Att13_Tax Document for Finance
	Att14_Public SCC
	Att16_Terms of Sale
	Att17_Dell Return Policy
	Att18_Email County Attorney Approval 
	Att19_Statement of Work
	 Item 3.L. - FY17 Library Service Agreements
	Att1_FY17 Globe LSA
	Att2_FY17 Globe Library Budget
	Att3_FY17 Hayden LSA
	Att4_FY17 Hayden Library Budget
	Att5_FY17 New Isabelle Hunt LSA 
	Att6_FY17 Isabelle Hunt Library Budget
	Att7_FY17 Miami Library LSA
	Att8_FY17 Miami Library Budget
	Att9_FY17 Payson Library LSA
	Att10_FY17 Payson Library Budget
	Att11_FY17 New Tonto Basin LSA
	Att12_FY17 Tonto Basin Library Budget
	Att13_FY17 New Young LSA
	Att14_FY17 Young Library Budget
	 Item 3.M. - State Grants-in-Aid Application 2017 for the Gila County Library District
	Att1_2017 SGIA Award Notification
	Att2_SGIA 2017 Application 
	Att3_Certification of Application SGIA 2017
	Att4_Resource Access Attainment Policy 2017
	Att5_SGIA 2017 FAQs
	State Grants-in-Aid (SGIA)
	What is SGIA?
	Who Qualifies?
	How Can Funds Be Used?


	 Item 3.N. - Provide comments on the proposed Tonto Basin Green Waste Disposal Site project on the Tonto Basin Ranger District
	Att1_Comment letter Tonto Basin Ranger District Green Waste Disposal Site project
	Att2_Green Waste Disposal Site proposal letter Tonto Basin
	 Item 4.A. - Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control Grant Agreement (ACJC No. DC-17-023)
	Att1_DC-17-023 Grant Agreement
	 Item 4.B. - Victim Compensation Grant VC-17-052
	Att1_VC-17-052 Victim Compensation Grant Agreement
	 Item 4.C. - Arizona Criminal Justice Commission Victim Assistance Grant No. VA-17-020
	Att1_VA-17-020 Victim Assistance Grant
	 Item 4.D. - Appointment of Justice of the Peace Pro Tempore Payson Regional Justice Court
	Att1_BOS Approval of Appointment
	Att2_Superior Court Memo to BOS
	Att3_Administrative Order - Antunes
	 Item 4.E. - Amendment No. 1 to IGA No. ADHS13-049248 for the Tuberculosis Control Program
	Att1_Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. ADHS13-049248
	Att2_IGA-Contract No. ADHS13-049248
	Att3_Approval as to Form
	 Item 4.F. - Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS17-132851) Arizona Department of Health Services
	Att1_IGA No. ADHS17-132851 
	Arizona Department of Health Services has authority to contract for services specified herein in accordance with A.R.S. §§ 11-951, 11-952, 36-104 and 36-132.  The Contractor represents that it has authority to contract for the performance of the servi...
	State of Arizona
	Signature of Person Authorized to Sign               Date   
	Signature of Person Authorized to Sign               Date   

	Att2_County Attorney's Comment
	 Item 4.G. - Amendment No. 3 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS14-053062) with Arizona Department of Health Services
	Att1_Amendment No. 3 ADHS14-053062 
	Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) Amendment
	CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE


	Att2_Amendment No. 2 ADHS14-053062 
	Att3_Amendment No. 1 ADHS14-053062 
	Att4_IGA Contract No. ADHS14-053062
	Att5_Approval as to Form
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	 Item 4.H. - Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. 042314 Janitorial Service for Northern Gila County
	Att1_Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. 042314 with Jani-Serv, Inc.
	Att2_Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 042314 with Jani-Serv, Inc.
	Att3_Contract No. 042314 Jani-Serv, Inc.
	Att4_County Attorney Comment
	 Item 4.I. - Approval to Extend the Term of Service with Blackstone Security Services, Inc.
	Att1_Amendment No. 2 to Contract ADSPO13-054359-Blackstone Security Services
	Att2_Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. ADSPO13-054359-Blackstone Security Services
	Att3_Original Contract No. ADSPO13-054359-Blackstone Security Services
	Att4_County Attorney's Comment
	 Item 4.J. - Amendment No. 8 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813-Gila County Medical Examiner Mark Fishione
	Att1_Amendment No. 8 to Professional Services Contract No. 062813
	Att2_Amendment No. 7 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813
	Att3_Amendment No. 6 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813
	Att4_Amendment No. 5 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813
	Att5_Amendment No. 4 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813
	Att6_Amendment No. 3 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813
	Att7_Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813
	Att8_Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813
	Att9_Professional Services Agreement No. 062813-Medical Examiner Services with Dr. Fischione
	 Item 4.K. - Gila County Fair, Inc. Special Event Liquor License Application
	Att1_Gila County Fair Inc. Special Event License Application
	 Item 4.L. - Sidewinders Tavern & Grill Application for a Temporary Extension of Premises_Patio Permit
	Att1_Sidewinders Tavern and Grill Application
	Att2_Interoffice Memo Community Development
	 Item 4.M. - Order Calling for an Election to Expand the Rim Trail Domestic Water Improvement Governing Board
	Att1_Order for Rim Trail Domestic Water Improvement District
	Att2_Initiative Petition Signatures
	Att3_Gila County Assessor Profile
	Att4_Arizona Revised Statute 48-1012
	 Item 4.N. - Beaver Valley Fire District Board Appointment
	Att1_Loyalty Oath of Office For Oscar Gene Jones
	Att2_Draft Meeting Minutes 8-15-2016
	Att3_Amended Meeting Agenda 6-20-2016
	Att4_Amended Meeting Agenda 2-16-2016
	Att5_Arizona Revised Statute 48-803
	Att6_County Attorney's Comment
	 Item 4.O. - July 2016
	Att1_Monthy Report for July 2016
	 Item 4.P. - July 2016
	Att1_Monthly Report for July 2016
	JULY 2016 TREAS REPORT.pdf
	jp0404 july 2016

	 Item 4.Q. - July 2016
	Att1_Monthly Report for July 2016
	 Item 4.R. - August 2, 2016 and August 15, 2016
	Att1_08-15-16 BOS Meeting Minutes
	Att2_08-02-16 BOS Meeting Minutes
	 Item 4.S. - 08_02_16, 08_09_16, 08_16_16, 08_23_16 and 08_30_16
	Att1_HR Summary Report
	Att2_08_02_16 Human Resources Report
	Att3_08_09_16 Human Resources Report
	Att4_08_16_16 Human Resources Report
	Att5_08_23_16 Human Resources Report
	Att6_08_30_16 Human Resources Report
	 Item 4.T. - July 25-31, 2016_ August 1-7, 2016_ August 8-14, 2016_ August 15-21, 2016_ and, August 22-28, 2016
	Att1_Finance Report August 22-28, 2016
	Att2_Finance Report August 15-21, 2016
	Att3_Finance Report August 8-14, 2016
	Att4_Finance Report August 1-7, 2016
	Att5_Finance Report July 25-31, 2016
	 Item 4.U. - Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks Ending 07-15-06 and 07-22-16
	Att1_Report for County Manager approved contracts  07-11-16 and 07-18-16
	Att2_Amendment No. 3 Limited Service Contract with Norchem Drug Testing
	Att3_Amendment No. 3 Limited Service Contract with Redwood Toxicology Laboratory
	Att4_Amendment No. 3 Limited Service Contract with Sienna Counseling and Consulting
	Att5_Amendment No. 4 to Service Agreement No. 102714 with Kwik Kool Refrigeration
	Att6_Contract No. 13024-S Maricopa County SAVE Co-OP with Norment Security Group
	Att7_Service Agreement No. 071216 with Rodriguez Constructions, Inc.
	Att8_Service Agreement No. 071216-1 with Four Seasons Motorsports
	Att9_Amendment No. 2 to Service Agreement No. 102015 with North Mechanical, LLC
	Att10_Amendment No. 2 to Service Agreement No. 071415-1 with Earthquest Plumbing, Inc.
	Att11_Service Contract No. CNT003055-08 with Multicard
	Att12_Amendment No. 2 to Service Agreement 020315 with Dutchaire, LLC

